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ABOUT THE REPORT

Infraestruturas de Portugal, S.A. is publishing this Annual Report for the financial year 2023, which
consists of seven parts.

This report helps to better understand our business strategy and the transfer of value to our
stakeholders (employees, shareholders, investors, financiers, customers, regulators, suppliers,
partners, etc.), to whom this report is addressed.

The Management Report (Part |) presents the various business areas and the economic and
financial performance, not to mention IP Group's major challenges in the short term, of which we
would highlight the modernisation of the National Railway Network through the implementation of
the Ferrovia 2020 Investment Programme, the 2030 National Investment Programme and the
road investments planned under the Recovery and Resilience Plan. These aspects are presented
and developed from the perspective of the IP Group, not only because of IP's size and
preponderance in relation to the other companies in the Group, but also because of the existence
of a common corporate strategy. The IP Group's separate and consolidated financial statements
and respective notes to the accounts (Part Il and |V, respectively) were prepared on the basis of
ongoing operations, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union (EU), issued and in force on 31 December 2023.

The budgetary statements and respective notes (Part Ill) are presented from IP's point of view,
and include the budget performance, the budget implementation for expenditure and revenues
and the implementation of the multi-annual investment plan statements and were the subject of
an opinion issued by the General Supervisory Board.

|IP's Corporate Governance Report (Part V) was drawn up in accordance with the manual provided
by UTAM (Technical Unit for Monitoring the Public Business Sector) and is the subject of opinions
issued by the General Supervisory Board.

This document is digitally signed (Part VI).

The Management Report and the Financial Statements were approved by the General
Supervisory Board, certified by the statutory auditor Vitor Almeida e Associados, SROC, Lda.,
and audited by the external entity BDO - Rosa, Correia & Associados, SROC, S.A. (Part VII).

IP will simultaneously publish the 2023 Sustainability Report, in which it will disclose its non-
financial information in accordance with the guiding principles of the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI) and comply with the publication obligation laid down in Decree-Law no. 89/2017 of 28 July
and articles 66 B and 508-G of the Companies Code, relating to consolidated non-financial
information.

Moreover, we are complying with the provisions of Directive 2013/50/EU, of 22 October, which
requires issuers with securities admitted to trading on a regulated market and subject disclosure
obligations, to prepare their annual financial reports in a single electronic format for
communicating information.

For further information on the data published in this report or if you wish to send us your
comments, please write to us to the following email address: ip@infraestruturasdeportugal.pt; or
postal address:

Campus do Pragal; Praca da Portagem; 2609-013 ALMADA - Portugal.

Inclusive Language
Due to the length of the text, we have not used gender-inclusive language. The only reason for this decision is to make
the report easy to read; this does not compromise our conviction and our fight against all sexist forms of communication.
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2. CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

In 2023 IP again proved its relevance at
national level and as far as the
implementation of public policies and
investments are concerned, against a
challenging background, particularly in terms
of the availability of some raw materials,
various materials and labour.

Notwithstanding, it is particularly worth noting
that in 2023 IP again significantly improved its
efficiency levels, showing the commitment of
the entire Group and all its different teams to
the fulfilment of the objectives set, driving an
increase in investment levels and improved
availability of national rail and road
infrastructures

Overall investment in the rail and road
networks, excluding maintenance and costs
relating to PPPs, totalled € 621 million, which
represents an increase of 31% compared to
the same period in 2022; it is also the highest
figure since 2010. The first word of this
message must therefore be addressed to all
the teams and those who, regardless of the
nature of their duties, deserve due recognition

Of this investment amount, € 550 million were
earmarked for upgrading and modernising the National Railway Network, of which € 466 million
were spent under the Ferrovia 2020 Investment Programme and around € 20 million under the
National Investment Programme 2030 (PNI 2030), mainly in studies and projects It is also worth
noting the € 39 million invested in the Mondego Mobility System, and € 26 million in other railway
investments

Due to the transformational impact it has on mobility in Portugal, on the competitiveness of the
national economy and on territorial cohesion, the developments in the High Speed Line project
between Oporto and Lisbon are worth highlighting. In 2023, the required conditional favourable
environmental impact statements were issued, allowing the tender for the public-private
partnership (PPP) for the stretch between Porto (Campanha) and Oia to be launched in January
2024, based on the work of the Project Team, which also included UTAP and the Finance Ministry.
In January 2024 an application was submitted under the CEF 2 Programme for the development
of the first phase of the project, with a view to obtaining € 875 million in EU funding

Still in the rail sector, in 2023 IP and the Recovering Portugal Mission Structure signed a financing
contract to carry out the investment called "Digitalisation of Rail Transport”, as part of Component
C15 of the RRP For the implementation of the contract, IP will receive overall funding of € 49
million, with the aim of modernising the electronic signalling systems installed on the national rail
network.

In the road sector, overall capital expenditure in 2023, excluding maintenance, was € 61 million,
mainly centred on investments under component C7 of the Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP)
(€ 49 million), which is fully covered by European funding | would like to highlight the completion
of the contract for the road link to the Fontiscos industrial area and the remodelling of the Ermida
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junction in Santo Tirso, as it was the first project to be commissioned under the RRP. | would also
like to highlight the completion in 2023 of another project included in the Business Areas
Enhancement Programme, the 8.8-kilometre EN303 bypass, which provides direct, safer and
faster access between the Formariz Business Park and the Sapardos junction of the A3
motorway. These projects, in addition to their contribution to promoting the region's economic
competitiveness and attracting new investment, are particularly important moreover, in terms of
reducing congestion and urban traffic jams, aspects that have a positive impact in terms of
sustainability and improving safety conditions.

Another structuring project that was given a strong boost in 2023 is the implementation of the new
submarine electronic communications cable system between the mainland and the Autonomous
Regions (Atlantic CAM), which includes an innovative SMART component. In 2023, a concession
contract was signed with the Portuguese state, under which IP assumes and promotes the
conception, design, construction, operation and maintenance of Atlantic CAM. Still in 2023 the
first application for European funding for this project was submitted and approved, with the
allocation of €40.5 million under the CEF Digital programme, whereas the second application
submitted by IP in 2024 is being analysed by the European Commission In 2023, the tender
procedure for the Atlantic CAM maritime component also took place, which allowed the contract
to be signed in 2024.

While the investment plan for the railway infrastructure is crucial to promoting a more modern and
efficient network, on the road infrastructure side, and despite the increase in investment under
the RRP, the main focus continued to be on the efficient maintenance and upkeep of the existing
network, which in 2023 totalled € 145 million, 14% more than in 2022. This team effort carried out
in a context of changing procedures and requirements and also heavily impacted by extreme
weather events that involved adjusting work schedules, changing/adjusting priorities, reallocating
funds, authorisation processes and other formal procedures lacking the flexibility and urgent
response associated with extreme events, deserves to be highlighted as it requires increased
levels of resilience from everyone.

As part of the maintenance of the railway infrastructure in 2023, a total of € 85 million was spent,
6% more than in 2022. The continued increase in efficiency in railway maintenance, carried out
on a network undergoing modernisation and major transformation, which has also been impacted
in certain regions by extreme weather events, shows the commitment and capacity for action
demonstrated.

In terms of operating income, we will reach approximately € 1,350 million in 2023, an increase of
more than € 52 million compared to 2022. Although the value of the Road Service Consignment
recorded in 2023, amounting to € 642 million, is € 24 million lower when compared to that posted
in 2022 (-4%), the income from tolls recorded an increase of around € 28 million (+9%) in 2023
compared to 2022, reaching € 322 million (+9% compared to 2022), as a result of the positive
evolution of road traffic, slightly higher than in the pre-covid era. These different trends in traffic
levels and toll revenues, on the one hand, and CSR revenues, on the other, reflect significant
changes in the context of road mobility, which have associated consequences that should be
reflected upon.

In terms of results, IP ended 2023 with a pre-tax profit of € 23.9 million and net losses of € 18.8
million. This result is fundamentally due to the application of the changes to tax legislation
introduced by the 2023 State Budget Law (SB), namely the combined effect of the introduction of
the Tax Incentive Scheme for the Capitalisation of Companies (ICE) in the Tax Benefits Statute,
with the change to the tax loss deduction scheme provided for in article 52 of the CIRC. In addition,
IP did not recognise the amount of Compensatory Allowances included in the approved budget,
but rather the amount approved in RCM no. 3/2024, of 5 January.
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On an institutional level, it is worth highlighting the evolution of the IP Group's organisational
structure that took place in 2023, one year after the current Executive Board of Directors took
office, essentially materialised by changes aimed at improving the interfaces between support
processes and the value chain and strengthening the focus on meeting the core objectives of the
IP Group's mission, while also incorporating new challenges such as sustainability in its different
vectors.

In this regard | highlight the fact that this year we are publishing the Sustainability Report on a
stand-alone basis, which accounts for the performance of the IP Group's companies in the
environmental, social and governance (ESG) dimensions, describing the most relevant results
and indicators of their activity in a clear, comparable and objective manner. This first year of
preparing a Sustainability Report represented a remarkable effort, both for the team that
coordinated its preparation and for all the areas involved, given that IP’s areas of activity are so
diverse, the impact and relevance of activities are so significant, and the harmonisation of
reporting is so demanding.

Another area that deserved attention in the reorganisation process was safety, in particular by
preventing accidents at level crossings and road blackspots, with the creation of a mission
structure under the direct supervision of the Executive Board of Directors whose mission is to
integrate and boost the actions promoted by the various areas of the company with an impact on
reducing accidents. In fact, as the entity responsible for managing road and rail infrastructure, the
IP Group is permanently focused on reducing accidents and mitigating risks, making the national
road and rail networks increasingly safer for users.

In the field of railway system safety, 2023 saw the renewal of the Safety Authorisation, which
confirms the acceptance of |IP's Safety Management System, a process of continuous
improvement led by a small and committed team, with the involvement of the entire IP Group.

Another area of focus in 2023 is the professional training of our employees and its central role in
strengthening a culture of learning, innovation and safety in the development of their work. To this
end, the IP Academy provided a total of more than 169,000 hours of training, mostly in
professional categories associated with the IP Group's core business, namely in the areas of
engineering, operations and security. In this context, we highlight the 3rd edition of ISEL's
Postgraduate Programme in Railway Engineering. We intend to continue strengthening this
activity, for which we count on the availability of trainees, trainers and other stakeholders,
including in the improvement of training areas to be developed.

When projecting the near future, it is important, as already mentioned, to take into account the
international geopolitical scenario of increased uncertainty - with situations of war in Europe and,
more recently, in the Middle East - and respective impact on the evolution of the national
economy, specifically on the price of oil products.

Despite this international context, an increase in capital expenditure is expected for 2024 and
beyond, essentially as a result of the completion of the investments initially included in the
Ferrovia 2020 Programme, the growth in the execution of RRP investments and the execution of
the Atlantic CAM contract We are thus maintaining the annual growth trend that has been seen
consistently since 2016.

The year 2024 will also be a very important year for developing the studies and projects needed
to implement the PNI 2030 As part of the High-Speed Line between Porto and Lisbon, in 2024
we plan to continue the project with the launch of the PPP tender procedure for the section
between Oia and Soure and the award of the 1st phase, between Porto and Oia following the
tender currently underway.

As part of the relationship with the Portuguese state, we expect the signing in 2024 of the new
programme contract for the management of the railway network for the period 2024-2028, taking
into account that with the publication of Council of Ministers Resolution no. 3/2024 of 5 January,
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expenditure was authorised regarding the compensatory allowances to be paid by the state to IP
far fulfilling the public service obligations of managing the railway infrastructure, both defined in
the aforementioned contract.

Another topic deserving of particular attention in the near future is the evolution of the financing
and management model for the national road network, which has already been the subject of in-
depth internal reflection as well as external discussion by a number of speakers with vast
experience in the road sector and knowledge of the main trends in the mobility and transport
system.

A final word of well-deserved thanks to all the IP Group's male and female employees who
demonstrated their competence, dedication, commitment and professionalism, which were
essential to the development of the [P Group's business in 2023, as well as contributing to the
achievement of results in a very demanding vear.

t should also be noted that, in 2023, the members of the Executive Board of Directors, Mrs Vanda
Nogueira and Mrs. Ana Isabel Coelho tendered their resignations, and the performance of 2023
was marked by their contribution and work, which is why we would also like to thank them.

Finally, a special thank you to the Shareholder, for the confidence shown, and to the members of
the Supervisory Bodies for their support, collaboration, always constructive interaction and
commitment.

We all connect destinations with our eyes set on the future!

Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz
Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors
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3. ABOUT US

IP GROUP is the largest group in the management of transport infrastructure in Portugal; its major
aim is to provide a safe, efficient and sustainable multimodal mobility service IP is the state-
owned company that resulted from the merger of Rede Ferroviaria Nacional — REFER, E.P.E.
(REFER) into EP - Estradas de Portugal, S.A. (EP, S.A.) through which REFER was merged into
EP, becoming a public limited company called Infraestruturas de Portugal, S.A. (IP). The merger
entered into force on 1 June 2015, as provided in Decree-law 91/2015 of 29 May.

IP is responsible for managing infrastructures under the terms of the general road concession
contract entered with the State including any future concession contract, and all remaining
infrastructure under its administration.

Additionally, IP’s corporate object includes the business operation of the public railway and road
domain, including autonomous assets, such as the operation of service stations, parking areas,
information and traffic management systems, rail and road safety systems, technical channel and
communication networks between infrastructures or between infrastructures and vehicles, or
stations, or terminals or other railway facilities.

In 2022, Decree-Law No. 63/ 2022 of 26 September the expanded the company's corporate
purpose, in order to allow it to promote the design, planning, construction, development, operation
and maintenance, under a concession regime, with the option of sub-concession, of the electronic
communications submarine cable system between the mainland and the Autonomous Regions
(CAM link).

The following contracts were entered with State:

¢ Road Concession Contract:

The State entered a concession contract with EP, S.A. (now integrated in IP), the bases of which
were approved in annex to Decree-Law 380/2007 of 13 November, amended by Law 13/2008 of
29 February, Decree-Law 110/2009 of 18 May, and Decree-Law 44-A/2010 of 5 May. One of the
more relevant changes concerned the introduction of the concept of availability, which consists of
assessing the quality of the service provided to users and measuring road accident levels and the
levels of externalities generated therefrom, translated in performance indicators. In addition to the
toll fees charged on toll roads and other income from the concession, the National Road Network
is financed by the Road Service Consignment (CSR), created by Law 55/2007 of 31 August.

® Railway Framework Contract:

On 11 March 2016, the State signed a 5-year Framework Contract for the National Railway
Network with IP, in compliance with Decree-Law 217/2015 of 7 October. Subsequently, the
contract was extended every six months from the 1st half of 2021, for six-month periods, through
addenda determined by Resolutions of the Council of Ministers. The latest of these addenda set
the contract to expire on 30 June 2022.

Under this multi-annual contract, the state's obligations to finance the management of railway
infrastructure and IP's obligations to fulfil performance objectives aimed at users are worth
highlighting, through quality indicators and criteria covering various elements, such as train
performance (speed, line reliability and customer satisfaction), network capacity, asset
management, activity volumes, safety levels and environmental protection. The contract also
establishes financial efficiency objectives for IP in the form of revenue and expenditure indicators.
The National Railway Network is financed through the following: tariff revenues charged to railway
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operators; surpluses resulting from ancillary activities associated with the operation of the railway
infrastructure; and compensatory allowances to cover the costs of fulfilling public service
obligations that are not covered by such revenues.

In January 2024, Council of Ministers Resolution no. 3/2024 of 5 January set the amount of
compensation for the 2024-2028 Programme Contract, which has not yet been signed.

® CAM Ring Concession Contract

In November 2023, the Portuguese state and IP signed the Concession Contract for the
conception, design, construction, operation and maintenance of the submarine electronic
communications cable system between mainland Portugal and the Autonomous Regions of
Madeira and the Azores (Atlantic CAM). This contract was approved by the Court of Auditors on
09/02/2024.
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3.1 IP GROUP
A " ’ -
@) 1P engenharia " IP Patriménio BV P Telecom
Shareholders Shareholders Shareholders
Infraestruturas de Portugal, SA Infraestruturas de Portugal, SA Infraestruturas de Portugal, SA
98,43% 99,8968% 100%
IP Patriménio, SA IP Engenharia, SA
1,57% 0,0032%
W § Infraestruturas
¥ de Portugal
: ATLANTIC ey
Corredor Atlantico AVEP
Corredor Atlantico, AEIE Alta Velocidade de Espanha e Portugal AEIE
Members Shareholders
Infraestruturas de Portugal 256% Infraestruturas de Portugal 50%
ADIF (Espanha) 25% ADIF (Espanha) 50%
SNCF Réseau (Franca) 25%
DB Netz AG (Alemanha) 25%

empresas subsidicrios operocdes conjuntos

IP’s stake in the share capital of subsidiaries

The IP Group gathers the technical know-how required for the proper performance of road and
rail infrastructures, in the areas of design, construction, financing, maintenance, operation,
redevelopment, extension and modernisation of the national road and rail networks, which
includes, in relation to the latter, traffic command and control.

IP currently holds stakes in the share capital of three companies: IP Engenharia, IP Patrimonio
and IP Telecom. These subsidiaries are profit centres aimed to optimise the non-core revenue of
the Group, making the best possible use of existing surplus capacity in assets not used in main
activities.

IP Engenharia, on the other hand, focuses most of its activity in the achievement of the 2020
Ferrovia Programme and the 2030 National Investment Programme.

Additionally, IP holds a stake in the share capital of Atlantic Corridor and AVEP — Alta Velocidade
Espanha/Portugal, entities formed with peer European companies to promote the
competitiveness of rail freight transport and to conduct preliminary studies for the Porto-Vigo and
Madrid-Lisbon-Porto corridors.
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Shares representing the total capital stock of IP belong to the State and are held by the
Directorate-General for the Treasury and Finance. At 31 December 2023 the share capital totalled
€ 12 586 670 000.

3.2 MISSION, VISION AND VALUES

Mission

The corporate object of Infraestruturas de Portugal is the design, planning, construction,
financing, maintenance, exploration, rehabilitation, enlargement and modernisation of the national
road and rail networks, including traffic command and control.

IP is also responsible for the design, construction, operation, operation and maintenance, under
a concession, with the option of sub-concession, of the electronic communications submarine
cable system between the territory of mainland Portugal and the archipelagos of the Azores and
Madeira.

Vision
- -; To position Infraestruturas de Portugal as a multimodal
'::::- . mobility manager, boosting asset management and ensuring
’ !
el i . the provision of a safe, efficient and sustainable service,
o 1 o ' enhanced by the profitability of complementary assets.
VISION |
Values

ETHICS - Acting with respect for ethical principles, namely transparency,
good faith and honesty

DEFINING HOW WE GET THERE
SAFETY -Acting with respect for people’s lives and physical integrity, an attribute that
l most characterises our service

VALUES AND SUSTAINABILITY -Acting with a view to economic, social and environmental
MANAGEMENT sustainability

COMMITMENT
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3.3 OUR NETWORKS
3.3.1 Road Network

'?‘;m?']
The overall length of the network
operated by IP is currently 14,860 km, of
which 13,833 km are directly managed,
and 1,027 km are subject to concession.
The 13,833 km network under direct management of IP is
distributed as follows: Legenda
*  Lisboa
. Construido
® |P (ltinerario Principal) (Main Itinerary): 463 km; ~ = Em Constrgho
s |P perfil duplo

e |C (ltinerario Complementar) (Complementary m\.' /i —— IP perfi simples
Hlormpa -

N
ltinerary)): 1,807 km; “}yﬁ R /,,1)\\ il s A
@\ AN s} (U Aoy IC peri dupko
o

® EN (Estrada Nacional) (National Road)): 4,673 km;

L e S J = IC perfil smples
) ] 4 Lofond 7 - = - ICnovo tracado
® ER (Estrada Regional) (Regional Road): 3,352 km; r[)g /7T \{\ —— 1C pori inplon
e ED (Estrada Desclassificada) (Disqualified Road)): \ 5 A IPOR
3,538 km. ~— ER a assegurar corredor de IC
e EN{d) & 8ssegurac comador de IC
In the year under review the management of 118 _:::::“
kilometres of roads was ftransferred to respective Eiewivenondes)
—— ER parfil duplo
municipalities. —— ER parfil smples

Qutras Estradas
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3.3.2 Road Network

The lines and branches of the national railway network (in operation
and not in operation) have a total length of 3,600 kilometres, of which
2,527 kilometres are in operation.

Seventy per cent of the network with an overall
length of 2,527 km is in operation, consisting of:
1,916.7 km single track; 563 km double track;
and 48 km multiple track.

The length of the electrified network (1,794 km)
accounts for 71% of the total operating network.

In 2023 there were 563 railway stations and
halts in operation, of which 292 exclusively for
passenger service, 12 exclusively for freight
service and 245 with combined service.
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3.3.3 Trans-European Transport Network

Part of the national road and rail network is integrated in the Trans-
European Transport Network, with the aim of strengthening the
social, economic and territorial cohesion of the Union and create an
efficient and sustainable single European transport area providing
increasing benefits to users and supporting inclusive growth.

The Trans-European Transport Network must create European added value focused on
accessibility, modal integration, the promotion of cost-effective and high-quality transport,
interoperability and the coordinated and efficient development of new and existing infrastructure,
namely in the cross-border sections, bottlenecks and missing links.

The network comprises two levels to be developed gradually: the overall network to be completed
by the end of 2050, and the main network included in the Atlantic Corridor to be completed by the
end of 2030, comprising the strategically most important parts of the overall network to achieve
the development goals of the TEN-T.

Approximately 1800 km of the national rail network will integrate the global network, of which 800
km are part of the main network. As for the road network, approximately 800 km form part of the
main network.

Overall and Main Road Network Overall and Main Railway Network
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3.4 KEY INDICATORS

3.4.1 Financial

The IP Group's Turnover totalled € 1,201 million in 2023, € 30 million more
than in 2022.

Turnover Operating Expenses
[EUR million] [EUR million]

201 2022 2023

=P 1P Group 2021 e S 2023
EBITDA ) .
[EUR million] Financial Results
[EUR million]

2021 2022 2023
s«IF =|F Group
2021 2022 2023
=2|F %I Group
Debt
Net Profit [EUR Million]

[EUR million]

2021 2022 2023
2021 2022 2023

w|P =P Group
=P =IF Group
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3.4.2 Operating

Railway

In 2023 there were a total of 33.4 million train Kilometres (tK), 5% less than
in 2022, 84% of which was passenger traffic and 16% related to the freight
segment.

Train Km Network Availability
[million] L]
2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023
Punctuality Index Level of network safety
[%] [Significant accidents per MTK]

111

2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023
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Road

Road accidents increased compared to 2021 and 2022, years that were
heavily impacted by the lower volume of traffic due to the pandemic
background.

Fatalities Severity Indicator in Built-
(Road) up Areas
[No] [Index]
172 173 B3
2027 2022 2023 2021 2022

3.4.3 Investment

Rail investment increased by 32% in 2023, driven by the Ferrovia 2020
programme, and road investment increased by 24% as a result of the
implementation of the Recovery and Resilience Plan.

Railway Investment
[EUR million] Road Investment
[EUR million]

2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023




2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Report | |nfraestruturas

de Porlugal

3.4.4 Human Capital

The company’s strategy views the stabilisation of its current staff, replacing
employees going into retirement and strengthening the workforce in critical
areas, namely operational traffic and infrastructure maintenance areas.

It is worth noting the increase in Training per employee in 2023.

Average workforce Training hours [per Employee]

2021 2022 pinskd

2021 2022 2023

3.9 HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

JANUARY

Renovation of the EN101 between Valenca and Mongéo

On 2 January, the "EN101 - Valenca (km 0.875) and junction with
EN202 (Monc&o - km 15.963)" contract was awarded, located in the
municipalities of Valenga and Mong&o, in the district of Viana do
Castelo. The contract was awarded for more than € 6 million. The aim
of the intervention is to significantly improve the traffic and road safety
conditions of this road, renovating the pavement and the signalling
and safety equipment, restoring the appropriate levels of service.

Douro Line | Bagauste Tunnel structural renovation completed
Work has been completed on the structural renovation of the
Bagauste Tunnel at km 107 287 of the Douro Ling, in the municipality
of Peso da Régua. The contract, with an investment of € 880,000,
aimed to repair deficiencies, namely detached and altered concrete
with cracking, infilirations and blocks of natural mass at the level of
the shafts that showed instability, pathologies that could eventually
evolve into situations of structural insecurity/instability with impacts
on the reliability of railway operation.
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nE\ S NEXUS Agenda kick-off conference
! ’\U IP and IPT are part of the NEXUS Agenda consortium, one of the

projects selected under the Mobilising Agendas for Business
Innovation of the Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP). The main
objective is to digitalise and decarbonise the logistics chain
associated with the Port of Sines corridor. This project, led by the Port
of Sines, involves 35 partners who will invest around € 91 million by
2025.

FEBRUARY

Innovative noise barriers tested on the National Rail Network
As part of the INBRAIL - INNOVATIVE NOISE BARRIERS FOR
RAILWAY S project, an innovative noise barrier prototype was tested.
The experimental campaign was carried out on the Sintra Line, at
km 23.760 - in the Algueirdo-Mem Martins area - and aimed to
experimentally characterise this acoustic barrier in a real
environment, analysing the Insertion Loss obtained when it was
placed.

RRP | Elimination of constraints on EN229 between Viseu and
Satao - Improved access to Mundao Area

On 14 February, the contract to upgrade the EN229 between Viseu
and Satao was awarded. The signing of the consignment note marked
the start of the contract to improve the layout and widen the road
platfiorm on the approximately 9 6-kilometre stretch of the EN229,
linking the Satao bypass to the Mund&o Industrial Park roundabout in
Viseu. Involving an investment of € 3.4 million, this project was
developed as part of the "Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP)",

under the heading of Business Cenire Areas (AAE) - Road
Accessibility, funded by the European Union.

Bobadela North Park | Circularity in construction

The contract "Linha do Norte | Adaptacdo do Parque Norte do
Complexo Logistico da Bobadela, RCM 45/2021", which began in
May 2022, was completed in February 2023. The aim of this contract
was to provide the Bobadela Logistics Complex with the conditions to
allow loading and unloading operations associated with logistics
activities, ensuring that the space receives customs clearance. The
contract allowed for the promotion of circular solutions on site.

The use of waste on site, defined in the project, was promoted by

IP, the contractor and the designer, through the application of the
five APA General Rules for Construction and Demaolition Waste
(CDW), approved and published under the General Waste
Management Regime.
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MARCH

Renovation of IP8 - Santa Margarida do Sado and Ferreira do
Alentejo
IP has launched the contract to upgrade the IP8 corridor between Santa
Margarida do Sado and Ferreira do Alentgjo. The works involve
structurally improving the road along a stretch of around 221 kilometres
between the end of the A26 at Santa Margarida do Sado and Ferreira
P R R do Alentejo, after the roundabout with the ER2. With a base tender price
of €38 million, this is the largest investment yet launched by IP under

the Recovery and Resilience Plan (PRP), a programme funded by the
European Union.

Plano de Recuperagdo
o Basilifomni

IP present at High-Speed Congress 2023

IP presented the New Porto-Lisbon High Speed Line project at the 11"
edition of the High-Speed Congress, which took place at the Palais des
Congrés in the Moroccan city of Marrakech from 7 to 10 March. The
chairman of IP, Miguel Cruz, took part in the discussion called High-
Speed on the Move. He began by explaining that the aim of IP and the
government is to "connect Portugal’s two largest cities, at a distance of
320 kilometres, in one hour and fifteen minutes” - a journey that
"currently takes three hours by train or car”.

Opening of the new link connecting the Business Park of Formariz
to A3

The 8.8-kilometre EN303 bypass opened to ftraffic on 24 March,
providing direct, safer and faster access between the Formanz
Business Park and the Sapardos junction of the A3. The amount of
capital expenditure involved was € 10.8 million. With the opening to
traffic of the new link between the Formariz Business Park and the A3,
the first phase of the PVAE was completed.

APRIL

IP is a signatory of the Portuguese Platform for Integrity

On 18 April, IP renewed its commitment to the PPI - Portuguese
Platform for Integrity, which was set up in 2019. On this day, UN
Global Compact Network Portugal and Associac&o Portuguesa de
Etica Empresarial (APEE) organised the Forum for Integrity, which
included the protocol ceremony for the renewal of the signatory
organisations and the accession of new entities to the PPl -
Portuguese Platform, as part of the ESG Week 2023 initiative, which
discusses the great themes of Sustainability, framed In the ESG -
Environmental, Social, Governance domains.
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Technical Conference on Innovation in Paving

i | The 2" Technical Conference on Innovation in Paving - Bituminous
Mixtures with Reacted and Activated Rubber (RAR) took place on 18
April at LNEC. These 2™ Technical Days conveyed IP's culture of
innovation, which aims to make an active and sustainable contribution
to the decarbonisation of transport infrastructures and the promotion
of sustainability principles in the management of road and rail

| infrastructures.

Renovation and seismic reinforcement of the Duarte Pacheco
Viaduct

On 17 April, the Minister for Infrastructure, Jodo Galamba, and the
Secretary of State for Infrastructure, Frederico Francisco, visited IP's
renovation and seismic reinforcement work on the Duarte Pacheco
Viaduct. This intervention, which involves a capital expenditure of
close to € 6.9 million, aims to improve the state of conservation and
reinforce structural durability, promoting improved levels of comfort,
mobility and road safety for the thousands of motorists who travel over

the Duarte Pacheco Viaduct every day.

MAY

| Modernisation of the Cascais Line
As part of the plan to modernise the track and catenary of the Cascais
Line, work began on 2 May on Phase 1, which will take place between
| Cais do Sodré and Algés over the next 18 weeks, with an investment of
€ 31.6 million. This investment is part of the Cascais Line Modernisation
e T prqec_t and is co-financed by POSEUR un(_jer Portugal 20_20_ Its main
LINHA FERROVIARIA DE CASGALS objectives are to promote more efficient and environmentally
sustainable transport services.

| IP at the Portugal Railway Summit 2023
The Portugal Railway Summit 2023, held on 3 and 4 May at the National
Railway Museum and promoted by the Portuguese Railway Platform,
RAILWAY - was attended by IP. The Chairman of IP's Executive Board of Directors,
Iﬂﬂ"*" = Miguel Cruz, spoke on Panel 1, 'National Invesiments - Opportunities
and Challenges', highlighting the national objectives, aligned with the
European objectives for the decade, with special emphasis on the

Railway 2020 Investment Plan.
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JUNE

15 June marked International Level Crossing Awareness Day
HOXS By (ILCAD)

This initiative, promoted by the International Union of Railways (UIC),
which will be celebrated for the 15" consecutive year in 2023, aims to

DIA INTERNACIONAL PARA A disseminate information and raise awareness among pedestrians and
SEGURANCA EM PASSAGENS DE NIVEL

drivers of the need to comply with signalling and safety rules at level
crossings.

,6\ w a With the implementation of the Fermovia 2020 and PNI2030
PARE ESCUTE OLHE programmes, more than 250 level crossings will be removed from the
National Railway Network, in line with IP's policy of removing and
improving safety conditions on railway lines. This ongoing work has
made a major contribution to reducing accidents.

Douro Line | Tender launched for the electrification of the section
between Marco de Canaveses and Régua

IP has launched the international public tender for the electrification of
the section of the Douro Line between Marco de Canaveses, in the
district of Porto, and Peso da Régua, in the district of Vila Real. With a
base price of € 118 million, the intervention's main objectives are to
continue the investment in the comprehensive modemisation of the
Douro Line. This investment is being carried out as part of the
programme to expand and modernise the National Raillway Network,

Ferrovia 2020, which will be part of a future application under the 2021-
2027 MFF, to be co-financed by the European Union.

RRP | IP launches tender for renovation of IC2 between Meirinhas
and Pombal
A public tender has been launched for the contract to renovate the 1C2
between Meinnhas and Pombal, with the aim of improving traffic
conditions and road safety on this road. The work is part of the
PR R Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP), specifically the Missing Links and
Network Capacity Increase investment programme. These works will
Thene. 1 icinuipese involve an estimated expenditure of € 2.9 million.

JULY

IP committed to preserving the Iberian Lynx

Two information panels were installed for the presence of the Ibenan
Lynx in the territory bordering the IC27. Thus, anyone travelling on this
road between the municipalities of Alcoutim and Castro Marim will find
the information at km 31, in the north-south direction, and at km 17 in
the south-north direction, on a 14 km stretch that crosses a new lbernian
Lynx dispersal area.

RRP | Start of EN344 renovation in Pampilhosa da Serra

Close to € 200 million worth of works under the Recovery and Resilience
Plan (RRP), within the Infrastructure Component, are already under
contracting phase or being carried out on the ground. Namely, in July IP
began work to upgrade the EN344 between km 67.800 and 75.520, in
the municipality of Pampilhosa da Serra, in the district of Coimbra.
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Completion of the contract works on EN1 and EN3

On 20 July, the contract "EN1 at km 45.300 (Ota), EN1 at km 30.500

(Vala do Carregado) and EN3 between km 00.100 and km 00.300

(Carregado) - Improvement of safety conditions” was completed. The

works involved redesigning the existing intersections onthe EN1 (OTA),

EN1 (Vala do Camregado) and EN3 (Carregado), with the aim of
| significantly improving traffic conditions and road safety

AUGUST

Works to improve the Minho Line completed

The works took place between km 40.800 and km 41.600 of the Minho
Line, in the municipalities of Vila Nova de Famalic&o and Barcelos. The
works involved the treatment of the frack platform and the complete
replacement of its superstructure - rails and sleepers - as well as the
remodelling of the various drainage systems and the treatment of
embankments on the section.

ER209 renovation contract completed

Works were completed on the ER209 between km 20.100 and km
27.810 in the municipalities of Valongo and Paredes, in the district of
Paorto. The aim of the works was to improve traffic and safety conditions
on this stretch of road by renovating the pavement and the signalling
and safety equipment.

SEPTEMBER

IP presents High-Speed Project on European Car Free Day

During European Mobility Week, IP presented the High-Speed Project
at the PFP Workshop at the Instituto Superior Técnico, on European
Car Free Day. Carlos Fermnandes, Vice-Chairman of IP's Board of
Directors, presented the New Porto-Lisbon High Speed Line project in
the first panel "Railway Investments in Portugal: The Challenge of
Sustainable Planning” at the Portuguese Railway Platform (PFP)
Workshop.

Renovation of Track Superstructure works on the Douro Line

The works took place between km 151.335 and km 163.100 of the
Douro Line (Ferradosa - Freixo de Num&o), in the municipalities of S&o
Jodo da Pesqueira and Vila Nova de Foz Coa.

The intervention improved the safety, quality, reliability and availability
of the infrastructure, and viewed to ensure passenger comfort and
convenience.
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OCTOBER

Inauguration of the last section of the Vouga Ecotrailway.

The section of the Vouga Ecotrall linking the municipalities of Oliveira
de Frades, S&o Pedro do Sul, Viseu and Vouzela, members of the
Viseu Déao Lafées Intermunicipal Community (CIM), was inaugurated,
an investment of more than € 4 million.

IP and IPP honoured by APEE in "Recognition of Practices in
Social Responsibility and Sustainability™

IP and IPP were honoured on October 17 as part of the "Recognition
of Practices in Social Responsibility and Sustainability” at a ceremony
organised by APEE - the Portuguese Association of Business Ethics,
which took place at the Alverca Palace, known as Casa do Alentgjo, in
Lisbon. The prestigious awards recognise the work of the IP and IPP
teams on social and sustainability issues, both because of the

company's activity as a public body with increased responsibilities in
this area, but also because of the characteristics and impact of the
activity on society.

IP at the 20" Anniversary of the UN Global Compact Network
Portugal

IP was present at the Conference "The Future of Business for a
Sustainable World" of the UN Global Compact Network Portugal
(UNGCNP), which took place on 10 October at the Gare Maritima de
Alcantara in Lisbon. The event brought together participating
UNGCNP companies, members of United Nations agencies in
Portugal, Non-Profit Organisations and other entities.

NOVEMBER

RRP | Completion of the new link to the Fontiscos industrial area
and remodelling of the Ermida junction

IP has completed the contract for the road link to the Fontiscos
industrial area and the remodelling of the Ermida junction in Santo
Tirso. In an investment of around € 3.2 million, this intervention was
the first work to be put into service under the RRP - Recovery and
Resilience Plan - Valorisation of Business Areas, co-financed by the
European Union.

...u:y.w IP at the PROFORUM 2023 Congress
_‘.1.:;;3'_“.".‘-".'—':-""“ "Portuguese Engineering as a Driver of Portugal's Future" was the
- i
ST theme of the PROFORUM Congress, held at LNEC to mark the 28'"

anniversary of the organisation.

Miguel Cruz, Chairman of 1P's Executive Board of Directors, took part
in the panel on The importance of railway infrastructures’, which
discussed the importance of infrastructures for the country's
development, specifically for boosting tourism, with a focus on the new
Porto/Lisbon High Speed Line and its integration with other networks.
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IP participates in the international event "Rail Live 2023" | IP
defends its commitment to the railway as a sustainable means of
transport for mobility in the 21% century

This leading railway exhibition and conference in Spain brought
together in Madrid a number of players and key stakeholders in the
promotion of the railway in Europe. The Chairman of IP, Miguel Cruz,
spoke on the "Future Infrastructure Panel Discussion” panel, where he
highlighted the clear environmental advantages of rail transport,
particularly in terms of GHG emissions.

IP and RRP sign contract to digitise rail transport

The Chairman of IP, Miguel Cruz, and the Chairman of the Recovering
Portugal Mission Structure, Fermnando Alfaiate. signed the financing
contract for the investment called "Digitalisation of Rail Transport”, as
part of Component C15 of the Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP)
For the execution of the contract, IP will receive a total of € 49 million
with the aim of modemising the electronic signalling systems installed
on the National Railway Network.

Completion of work to renovate the IC2 between Asseiceira and
Freires

The contract "ICZ/EN1 - Improvement between Asseiceira (km
65.200) and Freires (km 85.500)", located in the municipalities of Rio
Maior and Alcobaga, in the districts of Santarém and Leiria, was
completed. This work brings significant improvements to mobility and
road safety conditions on the Ceniral Region’s Road network, with an
investment of more than € 8.6 million.
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4. OUR STRATEGY

41 STRATEGIC PLAN

IP Group's Strategic Plan is based on the company’s Mission, Vision and Values, and establishes
the company’s strategy and major goals. It is guided by strict asset management, aimed to the
creation of value, whilst consistently focused on the integrated development of the road and rail
network, as well as to the increase in revenue (core and non-core), the capture of internal and
external synergies (scale and know-how), the articulation of the regional presence, always with a
view to ensuring the sustainable management of national road and railway infrastructures.

IP’s operating strategy is oriented to the following lines of action, taking into consideration its
internal and external planning instruments.

Courses of action

Current preseryabonimaintena by

contracfsub-contract of the ENTIRE IP

network, giobal interventions viewing the

improvement of road and raiway safety, and
preventive interventions in selected

pavements, among other types of action

Proximity Plan to meet the effective
needs of users, enhancing inland

reglons

Infraestruturas
de Porlugal

The strategy considered a set of assumptions related to analysing IP's internal and external
contexts and identifying its main stakeholders.

In addition to the above, the analysis of the internal and external context is fundamental for a
better understanding and for the consolidation of the organisation's strategy, objectives and
procedures. The main vectors of this analysis are the identification of strengths, weaknesses,
advantages/opportunities and threats, with a view to identifying issues that affect or increase the
ability to achieve the desired results.
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42 CONTEXT ANALYSIS

4.2.1 External Background

For Europe as well as for the rest of the world climate change and environmental degradation are
the major challenges of this century, requiring concerted responses at global level.

In this context, in 2019 the European Union proposed a growth strategy that aims to transform
Europe into a sustainable, decarbonised, modern, resource-efficient and competitive economy -
the Green Deal.

The Green Deal thus continues to be one of the most important strategic documents and
frameworks for European development and policies, based on a model for continuing economic
growth while reducing the resulting environmental damage, and which seeks to transform climate
and environmental challenges into opportunities, in all areas of intervention/sectors of activity,
now reinforced by the European Climate Law, approved in 2021, and the Fit for 55 in 2030
programme, the latter comprising a set of legislative proposals to achieve the target of reducing
CO2 emissions by at least 55% by the end of this decade (2030).

In line with the global model of sustainable development advocated for Europe, the policy for
sustainable and decarbonised mobility encourages the choice of more sustainable mobility and
transport options, so that a carbon-neutral continent can be achieved by 2050, which has since
been brought forward to 2045.

In Portugal, with the same goal of decarbonising the economy, the 2050 Carbon Neutrality
Roadmap was also approved, which aims to make the national economy carbon neutral by 2050.

Since transport is responsible for a quarter of the European Union's greenhouse gas emissions,
transport policy continues to focus resolutely on the objective of recovering market share for rail,
both in passenger and freight transport, by maintaining the vast programme of investment in rail
infrastructure, with the aim of opening up the market and thereby stimulating competition.

The Atlantic Corridor, as part of the trans-European transport network, aims to help strengthen
the Union's social, economic and territorial cohesion and contribute to the creation of a single
European transport area that is efficient and sustainable, brings more benefits to its users and
supports inclusive growth. Its development must therefore demonstrate European added value
through its contribution to the objectives of cohesion, efficiency, sustainability and increased
benefits for users.

In this sense, the development of the trans-European transport network and the Atlantic Corridor
in particular has been planned, developed and exploited in a resource-efficient manner, through:

® The development, modemisation and maintenance of existing transport infrastructure;
® Optimising the integration and interconnection of the various infrastructures;

® The deployment of new technologies and telematic applications, if this is economically
justified;

e Due consideration of possible synergies with other networks, in particular with the trans-
European energy or telecommunications networks;

® The assessment of the strategic environmental impact of mobility systems and transport
infrastructures;
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® The adoption of measures to plan and, if necessary, optimise and/or increase
infrastructure capacity; and

® Due consideration of the vulnerability of transport and telematics infrastructures to climate
change and natural or man-made disasters and the identification of the adaptation
measures needed to make them more resilient to such disasters.

In what concerns the railway sector, the Ferrovia 2020 investment plan is crucial to promote an
increasingly modern and efficient network, whilst in the road sector, the main focus continues to
be the efficient maintenance and preservation of the existing network.

The National Investment Programme 2030 (PNI 2030), which materialises the structuring public
investments to be made by 2030, aims to continue the commitment to expanding the rail network,
renovating and modernising the infrastructure and increasing both the capacity and speeds of the
existing rail network. Of particular note in this programme is the Porto-Lisbon High Speed Line
(LAV) project, which pave the way to a high-quality service, characterised by significant reductions
in travel times covering a vast expanse of Portuguese territory and for a disruptive leap in terms
of service frequency on the route launched in January 2024. This project is not only
transformational for the future of the railway and for strengthening people's commitment to rail,
but it is also the aggregating element of a mobility transformation that will be comprehensive for
the country.

Also within the scope of this programme in road terms, the focus remains on the renovation and
modernisation of the existing network, the digitalisation/connectivity of the network and the
completion of "missing links", in addition to the implementation of various measures aligned with
the unavoidable need to decarbonise the sector and increase the resilience of infrastructures.

Nevertheless, with the approval of the Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP), an investment plan
to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic and respective impacts on the economy, and with an
implementation period until 2025, investment in road infrastructure will amount to € 520 million,
to be developed by IP or by local authorities. This plan will operationalise some of the investments
recommended in the PNI2030, the previous PETI (Strategic Transport and Infrastructure Plan)
and the PVAE (Business Area Enhancement Programme), such as the Evora Eastern Bypass,
the Arruda dos Vinhos Bypass or the IP8 between Santa Margarida do Sado and Beja, among
other important projects, all of which are already under way.

Finally, the National Railway Plan (NRP) launched in April 2021 is also an opportunity to ensure
the stability of the national railway network and respective connections to the international
network, including its planning and respective interventions in the medium to long term. In
accordance with the NRP, rail access will be guaranteed to all district capitals, promoting
adequate coverage of the territory and easy intermodality, with the medium-term expectation of a
modal shift from road to rail, contributing to the objectives of decarbonising the economy and the
transport system.

In this context, IP has been developing its activity based on the following guidelines / external
factors:

® The Ministry's guidelines for the modernisation and expansion of the railway
infrastructure, duly framed in the 2014-2020 Multiannual Financial Framework, as
financial leverage for the Ferrovia 2020 Investment Plan. In the road sector, in addition to
the aforementioned ongoing RRP, with recourse to European funds, the implementation
of the Strategic Transport and Infrastructure Plan (PETI) and the Business Areas
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Enhancement Programme (PVAE) is ensured by own funds, with occasional partnerships
with local authorities;

® Ministry’s guidelines for the modernisation and expansion of road and rail infrastructure,
within the framework of the next Multiannual Financial Framework 2021-2027, as financial
leverage for the National Investment Programme 2030;

® |[nstructions from the Directorate-General for Treasury and Finance (DGTF), and the
principles and reference values contained in [P's Business Plan.

Other external factors influencing IP's activity include the necessary adoption of the General Data
Protection Regime, the response to the demands of the administrative authorities, the legal
increase in the annual training period for employees, the national, European and international
political contexts and the decreasing availability and quality of services contracted externally.

Likewise, the social, economic and regulatory assumptions, such as the State Budget Law and
the respective decree-laws apply.

Finally, recognising the climate emergency in which the world finds itself and the urgent need to
comply with the Paris Climate Agreement and the Sustainable Development Goals of the United
Nations 2030 Agenda, IP has committed itself to some of the strategies for preserving the planet
and combating climate change, namely through 3 main initiatives:

® Business Ambition for 1.5°C Programme launched by the United Nations Global Compact
(2019);

® Lisbon City Corporate Mobility Plan, launched by the Lisbon Municipality and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development (2019);

® Lisbon European Green Capital 2020 / Lisbon 2030 Climate Action, launched by the
Lisbon Municipality (2020).

In addition, IP has been monitoring the sustainability of its operations to try to ensure that its
business can contribute to sustainable development, both by minimising the negative impacts of
its activity and by optimising the positive impacts on people and the planet. The monitoring carried
out has made it possible to anchor the sustainability/SDG in the company's business and to
propose the definition of objectives and targets that establish the company’s basis and level of
ambition.

The war situation in Ukraine and its economic impact are events that influence and will continue
to influence the company's activity.

High levels of inflation and rising interest rates put additional pressure on households, affecting
their purchasing power, thus influencing employees’ expectations in terms of wage growth.

Also noteworthy are the Medium-Term Agreement to improve incomes and the Decent Work
Agenda and amendments to the Labour Code and related legislation.

On the other hand, due to the atypical context of the pandemic (COVID 19), there is a widespread
favourable perception of teleworking, essentially from the perspective of reconciling family life and
also its potential to reduce GHG emissions associated, for example, with the elimination of home-
work-home commuting. This is a subject which is reviewed on a continuous basis, given the need
to assess its effects with regard to less tangible dimensions, such as interpersonal relations, team
management and knowledge sharing, the impact on value chains, among others.
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Opportunities and Threats

Analysis of the external context helped to identify a number of threats and opportunities that also
influenced the Plan.

Managing these vulnerabilities (threats and/or opportunities) in a structured, integrated,
transversal and continuous manner contributes to preserving and creating value and, as such, is
intrinsically linked to the sustainability of IP's business. In order to better analyse these points, the

principles of "widespread involvement”, "adding value" and "supporting decision-making” are
used as a starting point.

With regard to the opportunities’ side, the following stands out:

® The availability of EU and shareholder funds to finance capital expenditure, the current
preparation of an infrastructure resilience plan (rail, road and telematics), the integration
of technological and other innovation (adapting infrastructure to new trends in land
transport mobility, also with effects on increasing the level of safety and reliability of the
system's operation), external recognition of the quality of the selected investment and the
prioritisation model used at IP, as well as the political consensus around the PNI2030
(National Investment Programme) and the RRP (Recovery and Resilience Plan);

® The RRP is also seen as an opportunity because it guarantees funding for critical
infrastructures for the development and consolidation of the road network, as well as for
the economic development of the territories, through investments aimed at restoring
sustained economic growth after the pandemic, reinforcing the goal of convergence with
Europe over the next decade;

® Adaptation measures, which have been identified and applied to infrastructures, making
them more resilient to extreme weather events and natural disasters;

® |P’s strong investment in decarbonising its activities (e.g. electrification of the National
Railway Network, increasing the share of renewable energy consumed and produced by
IP, setting Scientific Targets for reducing emissions, accelerating the conversion of IP's
car fleet to less carbon-intensive vehicles, expanding the network of electric charging
stations);

® Decree-Law 84-C/2022, which came into force in January 2023, establishes the national
electronic toll service, revising the existing legislative framework on toll collection,
particularly with regard to national interoperability and access to the activity of electronic
toll service provider. This new context could promote the introduction of new collection
solutions and/or the entry of new players in the sector, leading to possible efficiency
improvements in IP’s revenue collection process. On the other hand, the decree-law
introduces some changes in terms of payment sysiems and establishes that toll
companies, including IP, and toll service providers have a period of two years from the
date of entry into force of the decree-law to adapt to them, with a particular impact on the
Easytoll system provided by IP;

® The launch of the National Railway Plan, which will guarantee stability in the railway
network of national and international interest and, consequently, its planning and
respective interventions in the medium to long term;

® The new trends and standards in terms of mobility and the environmental sustainability
of this mobility, which are emerging 15 years after the signing of the Road Concession
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Contract, justify promoting an adaptation of the current road infrastructure financing
system, namely by adjusting the concept of the Road Service Consignment (RSC) to the
circulation of electric vehicles, which are not covered by this road contribution. This action
is an opportunity to better align IP with national and European environmental and
sustainability policies, namely by contributing to more sustainable, energy-efficient and
decarbonised mobility;

® |astly, the conception, design, construction, operation and maintenance, under
concession, with the option of sub-concession, of the submarine electronic
communication cable system between mainland Portugal and the archipelagos of the
Azores and Madeira is an opportunity due to its importance and centrality, with IP having
the responsibilities described above.

From the opposite side - threats, we point out the following:

e The procedures/flows for approving expenditure and public procurement under the terms
of the legal framework, conditional autonomy to recruit and determine the respective
remuneration conditions;

® Climate change and its effects;
® Attacks on technological security and new forms of terrorism;

e The lack of funding for the maintenance and construction of the necessary quantity and
quality of infrastructure;

® The large number of investments taking place at the same time;

® The market's lack of capacity to respond to the company's need to develop new projects
and contracts;

® The possible return of EU funds;
® The lack of scientific and R&D partners to enable the development of this type of project;

® The decarbonisation of the economy and the transport system, through the increasing
electrification of road mobility, without changing the current road infrastructure financing
system, which is largely ensured by the Road Service Consignment (RSC);

® The consequences of climate change on infrastructure and its resilience and recovery
from its initial conditions;

® The RRP, which as well as being an opportunity, internalises challenging aspects, due to
the ambitious intermediate milestones and the implementation deadlines, any non-
compliance with which will result in penalties;

® The general increase in the price of materials and the cost of labour, coupled with the
difficulty of acquiring them due to a shortage of qualified supply, which has a serious
impact on new contracts and the implementation of ongoing contracts;

® Compliance with legal guidelines in terms of the circular economy and the mandatory
integration of recycled materials or materials that incorporate materials into the raw
materials used on site, which will present challenges in terms of the cost of these
materials and the respective market supply, in addition to the requirements to meet project
deadlines;
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® Likewise, and in addition to the previous points, the Russian invasion of Ukrainian
territory, which led to a generalised increase in the prices of raw materials and materials
in general. As a result, inflation is already jeopardising the financial capacity to implement
the planned investments;

® The global growth in the possibility of cyber-attacks on computer systems, with undue
access to confidential information, alteration of data and financial and reputational
damage;

® Disturbances or stoppages of railway services due to disasters, calamities with an impact
on the infrastructure, staff shortages, strikes or other constraints;

® The introduction, by decision of the State Grantor, of schemes to reduce or exempt the
payment of toll fees applicable to motorways whose revenue is held by IP, or even the
absence of authorisation for collection on certain sub-sections of these motorways or the
installation of new collection points;

® Decree-Law 84-B/2022, which came into force in January 2023, establishes a new legal
framework for the definition and implementation of procedures relating to the
management of road infrastructure safety, including the mandatory participation of duly
accredited road safety auditors. However, it is estimated that IP does not currently have
enough safety auditors to meet the requirements of the aforementioned law, and the same
is true of the market in general, namely due to the lack of training that has been provided
by IMT. This aspect will be decisive in the studies and projects currently underway,
including those associated with the implementation of the RRP. At the same time, road
safety auditors will be needed to deal with the specific road safety inspections that will be
required by ANSR under the same law;

® Finally, the system of submarine cables for electronic communication between mainland
Portugal and the archipelagos of the Azores and Madeira is an opportunity but also a
threat, due to the novelty and challenges it entails.

4.2.2 Internal Background

The IP Group's organisational model is divided into two main areas, one made up of the
departments that provide support services (shared and corporate), with internal added value, and
the other consisting of the business that generates products and services provided by IP Group.

Table below reflects the internal areas / stakeholders, their interests and the mechanisms /
documents that respond to their needs and expectations.

Areasl/internal What do you expect from IP?
Reference/Response documents
stakeholders (requirements / expectations)
|P Employees - Continuous training of employees and dissemination of knowledge; | IP's Business Plan and Budget (PAQ),
- Knowledge of the improvement plan for the railway and road Performance management and assessment
systems and the possibility of participating in its improvement; system — "Path to Excellence”;
- Planning, programming and execution of activities in a safe Training plan;
working environment and the influence of this work on system
performance; Career System;




Areas/internal

stakeholders

What do you expect from IP?

(requirements / expectations)

- Continuing the process of reinforcing and renewing staff,

- Alignment between merit, evaluation and professional and salary
progression,

- Maintaining and reinforcing measures that promote reconciling
professional, personal and family life;

- Adoption of new measures and reinforcement of existing ones,
which promote more sustainable mobility patterns, integrating
concerns such as reducing the company's carbon footprint, energy
and economic efficiency,

- Provision of quality occupational health services;

- Working conditions that promote the safe performance of activities.
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Reference/Response documents

Collective Bargaining Agreement;

Management system for reconciling professional,
family and personal life;

Internal of teleworking regulations

IP's Corporate Mobility Plan - "MCB IP"
Business Ambition 1.5° Scientific Targets already
presented to SBTi (Science Based Target
initiative);

ECO-AP Programme

IP Group Health Insurance

BCP- Business Continuity Plan

Legislation, regulations, occupational safety
documents

IPT Specific requirement: Protocol for the provision of economic and
financial management services, purchasing
Provision of services and support in support areas services, logistics and general services and
Human Resources services
IPT's Business Plan and Budget;
IPE Specific requirement: Protocol for the provision of economic and
financial management services, purchasing
- Provision of services and support in support areas; services, logistics and general services and
Human Resources services
IPE's Business Plan and Budget;
IPP Specific requirement: Protocol for the provision of economic and

- Provision of services and support in support areas;

financial management services, purchasing
services, logistics and general services and
Human Resources services

IPP's Businesss Plan and Budget;

IP's response to the requirements and expectations of internal stakeholders is ensured by the
various processes in the value chain (business and support processes) as well as the various
communication mechanisms and channels available within the organisation.

Strengths and Weaknesses

The analysis of the internal context points to a number of strengths and weaknesses in relation
to which the most appropriate measures are adjusted in the Business Plan and Budget (BPB),
supported by cross-cutting projects, activity plans for each company department and other action
mechanisms intrinsic to the existing management model.

The strengths to be maintained and reinforced include:

Resources with in-depth knowledge and experience in the various fields of IP activity;
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® Alignment with quality and good practices benchmarks, namely ISO standards;

e Continued certification of the organisation's Enterprise Management System (EMS),
obtained in 2019, which attests to continuous improvement and compliance with the
requirements of the NP EN ISO 9001:2015 (Quality) and NP EN |SO 55001:2016 (Asset
Management) standards;

e Alignment of all the IP Group's OUs with the necessary and transversal contributions to
reducing the organisation's carbon footprint, in order to comply with the Scientific CO2
Emissions Reduction Targets presented to the SBTI;

® Aligning teams with the organisation's Strategic Objectives and Commitments;
® Highly specialized, competent and committed teams;

@ Concentration of human resources in corporate areas, enabling the strengthening of skills
and bringing added value;

® Capacity of adaptation and continuous training and consolidation of knowledge;

e Rigour and reliability of information structured in robust systems and modern technologies
and information systems, as well as the systematisation of monitoring mechanisms for
road-rail strategic plans;

® Continued modernisation of management systems, with a special focus on the
development of the new application for planning network intervention needs, known as
RADAR, and the implementation of process automation using RPA - Robotic Process
Automation technology;

® Recruitment and integration processes for new employees, even in an adverse context
(market conditions);

® High adhesion of employees to participatory governance processes;

® Evolved investment selection and prioritisation processes, validated by external entities,
rationally oriented towards Global and Integrated Planning, with systematic monitoring,
from the design phase to the implementation of these investments;

e Financing contracts that ensure the sustainability of the main investments in the road and
railway networks;

® High response capacity and implementation of contingency plans in emerging situations
(e.g. Covid 19 pandemic, which has since been overcome).

On the weaknesses side, we point out:

® Strong dependence on external services in some activities, along with a limited market
supply in several areas (particularly in the railway and Information Systems);

® [nformation is scattered and occasionally not integrated, which justifies the need to
improve information systems in specific cases;

® Rigid salary policy with a strong dependence on the guidelines issued for the state
business sector, making it difficult to attract, retain and consolidate human capital within
the company;
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® High impact on the organisation of the implementation of a New Document Management
Solution in the IP Group.

4.2.3 Macro Trends of the Mobility and Transport System

In the global context of the future of mobility systems and transport infrastructures, it is
imperative that greater environmental sustainability is achieved through the spread of the
sharing economy, the circular economy, new technologies, low-carbon fuels and the resilience
of infrastructures, particularly to climate change.

The automation of transport, construction methods and logistical operations, combined with an
increase in sensor technology and connectivity and the use of artificial intelligence, will continue
to introduce major changes and even disruptions, to the mobility system as we know it today.

All these trends, combined with the social/behavioural and ongoing demographic changes, will
continue to pose major challenges, especially in terms of the transport infrastructures’ planning
and management,.

It is essential that Infraestruturas de Portugal, as a critical provider of mobility services, keeps
up with these trends and integrates innovation projects and experiences, with the aim of
clarifying its role and that of its infrastructures in the future of national mobility, testing and
foreseeing possible scenarios for its sustainability and asset profitability, as well as monitoring
and participating in legislative and regulatory changes, which will be essential for understanding
the operation and management of transport infrastructures and which could strongly condition
its medium and long-term planning and strategy.

The following charge summarises the main macro trends associated to the transport sector.

MACRO TRENDS
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43 MANAGEMENT MODEL

The IP Group’'s management model is based on rigorous management
of its assets with a view to creating value for its stakeholders, based
on the organisation's strategy and purpose and analysis of the
internal and external contexts.

The model is based on the PDCA improvement cycle (Plan, Do, Check and Act) and a corporate
architecture that integrates several reference models (PRM, BRM, DRM, ARM, IRM and SRM)
that support its implementation.

Strict asset management is crucial to maximize the value created for stakeholders. Such
management allows identifying medium- and long-term improvements, based on planning
mechanisms and a strong project management methodology (of wide-ranging, operational and
investment projects), involving different areas of the IP Group, focused on the customer/user of
road and railway infrastructures.

Business model

& 1 | H \
1 1
aSiET R [ e PLAN Do | CHECK ! ACT ;
/ H
| Analysis of ! : ! ! ! !
! Intnmal and 1o i i 1 . !
t exlemzl conlexls | ) ) | Planning | ™, ! Reposting, !
! Cetermination | L Taulical sl Implemenmtio ' u'l:lnhm& : a.:;.tulu |
1 s 1) 1 l 2 an tiom
| of relevant | ((( A ogcratianal) L ! 4
[ ] 1 ]
] [ k H 1
| stakeholdcrs i ! I 1 |
| 5 | 1 . ! i | 1 |
i aia respedwe 1 : % 3*?"59‘: Fizn . | deset danagzment Pizn (20- + Implementasion of | - ARRRQAmANS rartTol 1) |+ Repariing |
| requirements |+ Aszol Management | woar honzon £roccsses !« Cuslor s saliefaulivn i Perfamanez Control !
| ___v_ ﬁ‘ _ Strat=gy |~ Prosimity Flar + Infem 3l r=gulficns |« 1'mess contrrl | Weetings !
| - Buchesc Pl '+ NetyziK Intervanton = an ' il 1 * An3hsis of propras and !
v h | s Copuisle Obivelives 1 Aglivily sy Budusl Plans I+ Risk mon forirg | uumlslines fon sy ing ]
v h | (intendad r2a i) 'L Ganvtacing 1 1An |- 380°manbom Staicglz | HfTRgic Ans wim fhe |
: | v Manzger anl Risk Prevanlion | Plans F20:20, PET and ! gﬂ";:&lgé::‘ur;;;:;lgn :
e 1 1 Plan | PVAE FChakiors, Dasts
Ueta!'ml.'latlon 1 ' !« Compliance | wunitning :
of risks and ' i | - Perfaimanes monagomeni | * RGOS mnrreetveny o H
opportunities ! ; | osystem Lo i ]
H ! ! MIEnADAmEN! Hyatem | i

IP‘s model of value creation

A corporate architecture was defined as support to the business model of the IP Group, based on
6 reference models, which are interrelated to ensure the alignment and implementation of the
strategy at the different levels of the organisation (performance, organisation and processes, IT
applications, IT information/data and safety).

ENTERPRISE ARCHITECTURE OF THE IP GROUP - REFERENCE MODELS
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44 IP GROUP VALUE CHAIN

To achieve intended short-, medium- and long-term results all the organisation's processes are
anchored in the performance of the activities according to the Group's value chain:

® |P macro business or core business processes (IP business processes);
® Macro processes supporting IP and its subsidiaries;
® Specific macro processes for subsidiaries.

VALUE CHAIN - BUSINESS AND MACROFPROCESSES
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The value chain supports the implementation of the Organisation’s business model across
the various phases of the PDCA (Plan-Do-Check and Act) improvement cycle and is based
on:

® The requirements and expectations of stakeholders;

® The means or capital necessary for the transformation and creation of value for the
market (financial, intellectual, human, social and environmental); and

® |P’s internal and external strategy guidelines.

In addition, IP has been consolidating and boosting its approach to improving process
performance based on the principles of Business Process Management (BPM), which are aimed
at creating an internal dynamic that fosters the identification of critical activities and opportunities
for improvement to the benefit of efficient performance in the "production” of outputs and,
consequently, the results sought by the Organisation (outcomes).
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45 STAKEHOLDERS

IP Group's response to the requirements and expectations of
stakeholders is ensured by various processes in the value chain, as
well as by the communication and relationship mechanisms and
channels available in the Organisation

Table below shows information about external stakeholders and what they expect from IP in the
context of its activity.

IP's response to the requirements and expectations of these stakeholders is ensured by the
various processes in the value chain (business and support processes) as well as through the
various communication and relationship mechanisms and channels available in the Organisation.

Stakeholder
Group BuErE Reference/Response | Nature of

Networks Sitakeholders

What do you documents the Interest
pect from IP?

Sustainable mobility

(External)

Efficient management

| Road | Concession contract

(Quality vs_ cost) o
Shareholder Portuguese State Obligation

Good reputation

' Railway Public Service Framework programme
Telecommunications _Ran'onai and judicious
| investment
Safety
Information

Private or collective
users of the NRN Accessibility Expectation
(National Road Network) .

| Road Network availability

Reduced costs

Collaboration in the
contractual relationship

Concessionaires Contracts Obligation
Control of contract

obligations

Railway Operators Fair fares Network Directory Obligation

Customers of the railway
service

Clients

Information

Access to the Network

Availability/ (Dec. Law 151/2014)

Expectation

Railway Punctuality/

Reliability
Safety
Reduced costs

Information
Availability/
Reliability
Reduced costs

Telecommunications Users

SLA Expectation




Stakeholder
Group

(External)

Networks

Stakeholders

Interest

What do you
expect from IP?
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Reference/Response
documents

Nature of
the Interest

. Concession Contract /
IMT PCQ
Compliance with the National Road Plan =
Road ANSR concession contract (NRP — Law 222/98) Qhiigation
Road Statute (EERRN -
Law 34/2015)
Compliance with the
AMT framework programme Framework contract
State Regulator Railway Obligation
IMT Compliance with safety | Safety authorisation (EU
requirements Regulation 1169/2010)
Compliance with legal
and regulatory Registration
requirements
Telecommunications ANACOM Scope: GSM-R network Obligation
Reporting of correct and services; Public
and timely information | telecommunications
| network.
LA Equitable and Road Statute (EERRN -
Municsmitios transparent treatment | Law 34/2015)
- Road, Railway and . : : Expectation /
Local entities ! e g Public Railway Domain R
Telecommunications Obligation
CCDR Accessibility (Law 276/2003) g
Neighbours Information Agreements
Sub-concessionaires Contractual obligations
Design and construction | Equitable and
Bisexd, Fi ; companies; service transparent treatment TR,
: oad, Rallway an providers; (CCP compliance) Xpectation
Supplicrs Telecommunications Gonlracts Obligation
Conservation and
maintenance;
Consultants;
Utilities suppliers
Collective Bargaining
Agreement
5 Y Road, Railway and Authonty for Working Compliance with the Expectation /
Working conditions TolebommtmCatnG Conditions (ACT) e General Labour Law for Obligation
the public sector
Labour Code
Communications /
Media Road, Railway and Sl fratia Quick, strict and Replies | Expectation /
Telecommunications updated information Website / social Obligation
networks information
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Stakeholder interest
Group Notworks Stakeholders Refer&enceIRestgonse Na}utre of 11::he-
(External) What do you expect ocumen FOETES
from IP?
Europe_an_ Compliance w1th Contracts
Commission. European policies

Report on the
Implementation of Risk
Legality of contractual Management Plan for the
practices prevention of Corruption
and Related Offences of
Group IP

Audit Court

Road, Railway and Expectation /

Telecommunications ) - Compliance with Obligation
Managing entities of | recommendations of

EU Funds the Corruption
Prevention Board

Other

General Tax
Inspection
Directorate-General
of the Treasury and
Finance

Technical Unit for
the Control and
Monitoring of the
Corporate Public
Sector

46 RISK MANAGEMENT

46.1 Framework

The IP Group's risk management! comprises an aligned set of principles, methods and
procedures that guide the organisation in anticipating or dealing with events (external and
internal) that impact its business. Recognising, monitoring and controlling these
occurrences as part of the company's strategy helps to strengthen the organisation's
resilience in the face of threats that expose its vulnerability and, at the same time,
enhances the opportunities identified in the context of the activity, to the benefit of the
organisation's efficiency and the optimisation of business objectives.

The company's efforts to prevent and control threats, which materialise in Regulatory and
Compliance, Financial, Operational, Technological, Reputational and Business risks, go hand in
hand with the implementation of instruments that reinforce the internal control system, in terms of
identifying, mitigating and controlling situations at levels accepted by the company and in
compliance with the reliability, transparency and security of the processes and systems that
support the business.

! Risk Effect of uncertainty on objectives - NP ISO 31000:2018 — Risk management — Guidelines)
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An effective and efficient risk management will integrate this process in the organisational
structure; thereupon, the governance model of IP Group follows the directives of the 3 lines of
defence model” to clarify responsibilities and define the actions of the different players, as shown
below:

Internal
Audit

Risk Management and
Compliance

Operational
Management

® Operational Managers (1** line of defence): responsible for the development and
implementation of internal policies, controls and procedures, which ensure that activities
are in accordance with the defined goals and objectives;

® Risk Management, Compliance and Corporate Planning and Management Control (2™
line of defence): incorporates the risk management depariment, the Compliance
department and a management control system;

e Internal Audit (3™ line of defence): the Internal Audit Department is responsible for
ensuring the compliance, functioning and adequacy of risk management, control and
governance processes.

At Group level, the Legal and Compliance Department is responsible for creating, implementing
and promoting the risk management model to manage events with potential to affect the
achievement of the Group companies’ goals.

4.6.2 2023 Results

Risk Management

In 2023, activities implemented since 2015 were continued and reinforced:

® Update of the IP Group Global Risk Chart;
® Continuous monitoring of the implementation of the organisation's risk controls;

® Preparation and disclosure of IP Group's Report on the Implementation of the Risk
Management Plan for Corruption and Related Offences (available for consultation on
the website of Infraestruturas de Portugal, S.A.)
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® |[nterim assessment of the High and Very High-level risks identified in the I[P Group Plan
2022-2023, carried out with the following objectives:

® \alidation of the level of risk, taking into account any changes in context that may have
an impact on the risks identified;

® Monitoring the implementation of the controls contained in the Action Plans.

As a result of the latest review of the company's risk management plan, in the context of the
implementation of investments under the responsibility of the IP Group, it is important to highlight
the demands (time, quality and cost) that are required in order to comply with the road and rail
infrastructure’s intervention and maintenance/conservation programmes, in addition to the full
implementation of the investment plans (RRP, Ferrovia 2020 and PNI 2030), which are very
challenging in terms of time, volume of actions and the conditions for their implementation.

In addition to the constraints imposed by the current market conditions, impacted by the
international economic and social situation, which has repercussions, in particular, in the
increasing price of raw materials and the limitation in selecting and contracting the provision of
services (using qualified technicians), there is also the difficulty in allocating adequate internal
human and material resources to meet the defined objectives.

In order to ensure balanced management of available resources and to mitigate the impact of
limited or even insufficient financial, material and human resources in certain areas, a series of
actions have been implemented, such as replacing and/or strengthening teams, planning
activities geared to the priorities emerging from current commitments, continuing to modernise
and develop applications and systems to support the activity and equipment to make the road-rail
infrastructure more operational, also taking into account the effect of climate change on its
condition and maintenance, and strengthening security and resilience in the context of
cybersecurity.

With regard to the control and mitigation of management risks, including those of corruption and
related offences, actions to maintain and monitor the internal control system continue, assisted
by internal auditing, identifying weaknesses in internal processes and subsequent corrective
actions, and by Compliance, which, within the scope of regulatory compliance, promotes
dissemination, communication, training and awareness-raising on matters related to Ethics,
Conflict of Interest, Personal Data Protection, Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing, the
Whistleblowing Channel, the Anti-Fraud Policy Statement, Irregularity Reporting Policy,
Cybersecurity and Risk Management, among other actions.

It should also be stressed that in most of the risks analysed, vulnerability to external events,
whether in the context of regulation and compliance, shareholder impositions or exposure to
extreme natural factors, raises uncertainty in risk management and is a conditioning factor in risk
mitigation, despite the growing implementation of ongoing actions to deal with them.

As a result of the analysis carried out, it is confirmed that the IP Group is exposed to 486 risks, 7
of which are new threats.
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Considering the type of risks that characterise the activity, the predominance of "Operational”
category risks in the IP Group's overall risk universe is confirmed, with a slight decrease in the
average level of risk as well as in the "Reputational” category. Conversely, in the other categories
the level of risk increased compared to the same period last year.
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From the analysis of the 486 identified risks and the effect of implemented controls and mitigation
measures, it is confirmed that the current average level of risk of the IP Group is 7.1, i.e., there is
concentration of moderate level risks, as shown in the chart:
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A change in the level of risk was seen in 17 per cent of the risks identified and 6 per cent resulted
in an increase in the level of risk, particularly the operational (53 per cent) and Regulation and
Compliance (27 per cent) categories.

In view of the risks identified, a set of controls was established to be implemented in 2023 to i)
continue to develop and improve applications and procedures for greater efficiency in the
performance of processes and compliance with activities; ii) develop and improve technological
systems and infrastructures and iii) reinforce human resources to meet the need to rejuvenate
and strengthen teams.

In the action plans included in the IP Group's current global map, 379 controls are planned to
continue and reinforce risk mitigation, specifically regarding the continuity of infrastructure
monitoring and intervention actions, the implementation of technological action plans and the
development of applications and systems to support the activity, as well as the reinforcement of
human resources and training.

The monitoring of the implementation of these controls will be carried out during 2024, between
the “Risk Manager” body and respective “Risk Owner”, and respective result will be reported to
the stakeholders.

Management of opportunities
The Business Plan and Budget for the Group's companies identified 11 oppartunities for IP Group,

The opportunities being dealt with by the IP Group are those identified during the preparation of
the Business Plan and Budget of the respective companies and are distributed? as follows:

i N

Opportunities
By Group Company

g

Opportunities by Group Company

The nature of these opportunities at IP derives particularly from the external context, namely the
use of incentives arising from various investment programmes (PNI 2030 / RRP / Railway Plan)
and incentives for technological innovation, the availability of EU funds and the continuity of the
recruitment process.

As regards subsidiaries, opportunities stem from the specificity of their business: technological
innovation at IPT; relation with clients in the international market, at IPE; and improvement of
synergies with IP.

2 The Business and Budget Plan of IP Patriménio did not include the identification of opportunities
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Fifteen controls were identified to tackle these opportunities; their implementation is monitored
every half-year by the "Risk Management” area in collaboration with the “Opportunity’s Owner”
and the respective supporting management of each company. Results are reported to
stakeholders.

4.7 INNOVATION

The IP Group sees innovation as the driver for service improvement, namely through the creation
of solutions and products to boost efficiency and generate new businesses.

In 2023 the IP Group continued to develop and implement its Innovation Plan.

At the end of 2023, IP Group participated in 7 Research, Development and Innovation (RDI)
projects co-financed by several European programs in the most diverse areas (e.g. connectivity
and telecommunications, asset management, energy, road safety, environment and resilience).
In 2023 five R&D projects were completed.
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In 2023, these projects involved around 44 IP Group employees, which reflects IP's commitment
to innovation. Thanks to its participation in these innovation projects the IP Group has built an
extensive network of more than a hundred RDI partners.

In 2023, an application was approved for the Rail4Cities project, funded by Horizon Europe, with
the participation of IP and IP Patriménio, which aims to transform railway stations into centres for
the sustainable development of cities.

As regards SIFIDE (national programme for research & development activities), we point out the
following projects developed in 2023:

® Submittal of 20 applications by IP Group relating to RD activities carried out in 2022;

® Approval of 30 applications from the IP Group relating to ID activities carried out in 2021,
corresponding to a tax credit of €166,381.

2023 also saw the continuation of IP's 50 RDI Challenges Programme, with the launch of a New
Edition of the Programme, which updated the 50 Innovation Challenges for which the IP Group
intends to find solutions in collaboration with the scientific, technological and business
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communities. In this context, in 2023, in addition to the ongoing partnerships, a Collaboration
Agreement was signed with the Faculty of Engineering of Luséfona University for the development
of a practical case, called "Dynamic characterisation of the Edgar Cardoso Bridge using a mobile
phone", to validate the results obtained in a Research and Development (R&D) project.

Also noteworthy in 2023 is IP's participation in 2 innovation demonstrators in the field of noise
protection:

® |[NBRAIL Project, coordinated by Mota Engil, under which innovative acoustic barriers
were installed on the Sintra Line;

® NexiLap 2, an innovation acceleration programme promoted by Beta-i, Valorpneu and
Genan, under which acoustic barriers made of concrete and used tyre rubber were
developed and installed on the Evora Line.

Two meetings of IP's Innovation Think Tank were organised in 2023, one on the topic of "How
can BIM impact IP's activity?" and the other on the topic of "What are the opportunities and risks
of Artificial Intelligence for IP?"

In terms of communication, it is worth highlighting the organisation of an Innovation Road Show
in 2023, with 3 sessions (Porto, Evora, Santarém) and an exhibition at Entroncamento on IP's
anniversary, where IP employees were shown the company's innovation studies and projects, as
well as the New Edition of IP's 50 Innovation Challenges.

Still on the subject of communication, it should be emphasised that in 2023 four videos were made
about IP's innovation projects, which were published quarterly on the company's intranet, website
and social networks, specifically, on dynamic train weighing projects (Peddir DEMO and
Evo4Rail) in the 15 quarter: on Shift2Rail's In2Smart projects in the 2" quarter; on the
Rev@Construction project in the 3™ quarter; and on Shift2Rail's In2Track projects in the 41
quarter.

It is also important to mention the participation in the PFP - Portuguese Railway Platform.
Founded in 2015, PFP was recognised as one of the Portuguese economy's Competitiveness
Clusters, with the motivation of bringing together all the national railway stakeholders to promote
Portugal as an innovative country in the railway industry.

In 2023, IP continued its mandate as chairman of the PFP Board.

In this context, the following stand out:

® The organisation of the Portugal Railway Summit, the largest event in the Portuguese
railway sector, which took place at the National Railway Museum in Entroncamento on
May 2 and 3, 2023;

e The 15t PFP Thematic Group Workshop was held in Lisbon at the Instituto Superior
Técnico on 22 September;

® Participation with a stand at the Rail Live Madrid fair, from 29 November to 1 December,
which included the organisation of a business breakfast with around 70 participants,
belonging to the business mission of 20 national companies that visited Rail Live Madrid,
and several Spanish companies.
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5. BUSINESS AREAS

9.1ASSET MANAGEMENT

The management of the assets that make up IP's rail and road
networks is geared towards optimising the life cycle of the assets
guided by sustainability criteria and providing high levels of safety
and quality.

Within this framework, IP's basic mission is to inspect infrastructure assets, ensuring that an
adequate diagnosis of their state of repair is made. This knowledge of the condition of assets is
a source of development for asset planning and management activities. Inspecting the assets that
make up the infrastructure is a fundamental component for a more effective response in terms of
infrastructure safety, maintenance and operation.

Paving Inspection
Profilometer 7,412 km
Road Pavements SKM 5,130 km

The main pavement inspection campaigns take place annually and are fundamental to IP's
mission, providing the necessary indicators for good conservation and maintenance
management. In this context, campaigns were carried out using Profilometer (measurement of
geometric parameters) and SKM (transversal
friction measurement equipment).

2023 Inspection Campaign

The Pavement Mechanical Inspection
Campaign ran from February to October, and
7,412 km of track were inspected. Likewise, the
Adherence Campaign, with the SKM, enabled
the inspection of 5,130 kilometres of track =%
length.

Rail Track and Catenary

During 2023, three Track Geometry and
Catenary Inspection Campaigns were carried
out on the entire NRN in operation (general network campaigns). The inspections carried out in
2023 achieved 67 per cent compliance with the plan initially planned, and there were also
extraordinary inspections.

The Main Inspection based on Track Appliances consists of the detailed assessment of the
general status and condition of its components. In 2023, 4,478 inspections were carried out,
resulting in an implementation rate of 110% of the initial plan.

Inspection of switching
devices
4478
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Road Bridges
Main Inspection 1,004 + 79

Engineering Works

As far as Works of Art are concerned, 1,004 Main Road
Bridge Inspections were carried out in 2023 with in-
house resources, especially in the districts of Lisbon,
Santarém, Portalegre, Aveiro and Castelo Branco, in
addition to 79 other using outsourced resources.

On the railway network, 340 Principal Inspection
reports were carried out internally. Within the 2023
cycle of railway inspections, the inspections carried out
on the Northern and Beira Baixa lines stand out for
their scale.

Road sign gantries

In 2019, IP began monitoring the metal structures
supporting road signs (gantries and semi-gantries).
Once the inspection guidelines and protocols were
defined, a pilot service for carrying out major
inspections was implemented, based on the
approved inspection manual. Under this contract, 44
main inspections and 9 structural assessments were
carried out, including tests.

Sign gantries
44 major Inspections

9 structural assessments

Asset management tools are developed based on the inspection activity carried out, to provide
information on the impact of short-term economic decisions on the long-term cost-performance-
risk aspects, through:

Asset Management System

a) Methodologies to assess the condition of the assets, the level of use they undergo
and the current point of their life cycle;

b) Differentiated management models according to the service level, or availability for
operation, to which their performance should correspond;
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c) Identification of the effective intervention requirements according to the defined
service levels and also of the most appropriate interventions to carry out, the time in
the asset's life cycle and the respective impact on its performance;

d) Identification of the risks associated with the decisions not to carry out the
recommended interventions at the right time;

e) Planning, with a 20-year horizon, analysing cost scenarios, which assess the
corresponding risk and performance, as well as the resulting renewal liability.

All the information on the condition of infrastructures is compiled and analysed so that it can be
quickly made available and analysed in a planning context, using dedicated applications. The
results obtained by the company's current management systems lead to a preference for
preventive action over reactive interventions, which are characterised by greater risk, greater
disruption to networks and larger investments.

In 2023, the development of the Engineering Works Management System (covering the National
Railway Network and the National Road Network) and the Track Management System (railway)
continued, and the development of the Containment Works Management System was also
completed.

Once the inspection information (technical and detailed) has been compiled, it is processed and
transformed into management and decision-support information, embodied in the annual
presentation of information on the situation of the infrastructure. Since 2019, this information has
been made available to society and the general public via IP's institutional website, in line with
the values of clarity and transparency that guide IP's actions.
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5.2 NETWORK CONSERVATION AND MAINTENANCE

5.2.1 Railway Network

Safety, availability, reliability and sustainability are the basic pillars
of the railway maintenance activity.

To ensure that the strategy pursued incorporates these principles,
IP has human resources and state-of-the-art equipment allowing a
thorough knowledge of the status of the infrastructure. It can thus
prioritise its investments and sustain the maintenance and
renovation actions required on the 2,562 km-length network under
its operation and management.

Maintenance
Cycle

Railway maintenance develops the different activiies in a
continuous cycle from inspection to implementation, taking into
account the

characteristics of the infrastructure, the type of operation and the service objectives of each line.

Maintenance and renovation of railway infrastructure are supported by two
management tools:

a) Maintenance contracts
In 2023, IP maintenance contracts totalled € 85 million, € 5 million more than in 2022.

Implementation was carried out through multi-annual contracts in the various specialities, which
comprise three components:

Systematic Preventive Maintenance

Systematic Preventive Maintenance (SPM) includes inspection and execution, based on pre-
defined action programmes, duly scheduled in a plan and adapted to the specific nature of each
piece of equipment, in order to reduce their likelihood of failure or breakdown, as well as knowing
their condition.

The SPM - implementation activity is mostly carried out under maintenance service acquisitions
and the SPM - inspection is carried out with internal resources; the diagnosis resulting from this
activity determines the needs for intervention in assets where possible.

Conditional Preventive Maintenance

Conditional Preventive Maintenance (CPM) is based on condition control, monitoring the
operation of equipment and its significant parameters, and it is triggered according to the results
of equipment inspections and their diagnosis, duly planned in the short or long term.

Supervision of maintenance works is carried out using in-house resources and is compulsory for
work that is considered critical or which, due to its complexity or the serious consequences of
poor execution, is subject to special provisions for certification and approval of procedures,
personnel and equipment.
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Corrective Maintenance

Corrective Maintenance (CM) is carried out in response to the detection of a fault in a system
or piece of equipment, with the aim of restoring its operating conditions in order to ensure the
availability and safety of the infrastructure. Faults can be categorised into two main origins: faults
caused by the system itself and faults caused by external influences, accidents or natural
disasters.

Teams responsible for restoring equipment to working order as quickly as possible are
continuously on standby (24/7), with Reaction and Response Times defined according to the
criticality of each system. These teams carry out the activities with the aim of restoring normal
conditions of use and promoting the availability of the infrastructure for railway operations,
ensuring the safety of people

and goods, following Maintenance Contracts in 2023 € 85 million
appropriate technical and safety o
rules. LDI 2023 Investment: € 22 million

b) Investment in Long Duration Investment Infrastructure (LDI)

Work is carried out on the railway infrastructure to ensure safety conditions and improve reliability
and the quality of service provided to customers.

In 2023, capital expenditure in infrastructure renovation, adaptation to existing rules and
regulations and strengthening the railway infrastructure's service levels totalled € 21.8 million.

In this respect, the following works stand out:

® Renovation and reinforcement of the Outeiro Pequeno and Grande tunnels,
respectively at km 35.141 and 35.412 of the Beira Baixa Line.

The aim of the contract was to repair the deficiencies detected near the inlet and outlet mouths,
as well as to correct the signs of erosion of the joints and masonry on the shafts, inside the
tunnels, as these pathologies could evolve into situations of structural insecurity/instability with an
impact on the reliability of railway operation.

The contract, which lasted 210 days, involved an investment of € 893 thousand.
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® Repairing the reinforced concrete in the Penalva Tunnel on the Southern Line

The aim of the contract was to correct a series of common cracking pathologies in reinforced
concrete, which were corrected by injections of special resins, allowing the infrastructure to be
structurally rejuvenated and optimising the quality/durability binomial.

The contract, which lasted 180 days, involved an investment of € 300 thousand.

® Renovation of the track superstructure between Pk 151.353 and 163.100 on the
Douro Line (work included in PNI 2030)

The aim of this action was to migrate the
track armouring of that section to bi-
block concrete sleepers with 54kg/m rail
fastenings and the application of
54kg/m rail in BLS along its entire length
(previously on classic track), with the
main novelty being the electric welding
of the rail in situ.

The contract, which lasted 300 days,
involved an investment of € 4,245
thousand.

® Renovation of the track superstructure between Vila da Feira and Oliveira de
Azemeéis on the Vouga Line

The aim of this intervention was to renovate the track in order to improve its condition. It included
replacing wooden sleepers, replacing the rail, carrying out continuous degreasing and heavy
mechanical attack to ensure that the track's geometric parameters were restored.

The contract, which lasted 317 days, involved an investment of € 2,479 thousand.

Before After
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e Stabilisation of slopes on the Leixdes Line, between km 4.360 and 20.430, and on
the Sao Gemil Junction, between km 3.000 and 3.680, in the municipalities of
Gondomar, Maia and Matosinhos.

The contract is particularly important in the context of IP's commitment to improving the capacity
and operation of rail connections to the Port of Leixdes, boosting the transport of goods by rail,
with positive and direct impacts on the safety, quality, reliability and availability of the railway
infrastructure.

The contract, which lasted 624 days, involved an investment of € 4,763 thousand.
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522 Road Network
Traffic Control Centre

IP's Traffic Control Centre (CCT) coordinates and manages the integrated road information
system, particularly traffic information, which supports the operation and exploitation of the
national road network, especially in the Lisbon and Porto metropolitan areas and the Marao
Tunnel.

365 dayslyear
24 hours/day

Focusing on the road infrastructure user and with the main objective of improving the quality of
service, with an emphasis on traffic conditions and safety on the road network, the system covers
real-time traffic information, accidents and the various events on the network. This entire
information system is managed on a specific IT platform.

475 Video 565 Traffic counters
9 Weather stations 412 SOS

Information is also collected from ISMU, security forces and information provided by road users:

UMIAS PSP GNR
62,553 calls answered 707 500 501
171/day IP customer support number

During 2023 there were 16,124 occurrences recorded by the TCC operator in real time, such as
accidents, broken down vehicles, among others.

Interaction with drivers is carried out through various means, including the following

102 Vvariable message screens (VMSs) T ), D——

; ” 44/d
6 “Road Information Map” (RIM) Pannels at Serra da Estrela L

Travelling on the Road Portal

https://servicos.infraestruturasdeportugal.pt/viajar-na-estrada/transito-em-tempo-
real

It should also be noted that the TCC ensures the performance of audits of the virtual toll systems
and traffic counters of the concessions and sub-concessions through video verifications.
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154 video controls 61 ,467 monitored vehicles
13/month 5,122/month

Network Supervision

IP carries out the activity of Network Supervision, consisting of operational patrolling of the roads
on a consistent basis, according to a stratification of the O
network, assessed by criteria such as Annual Average v =
Daily Traffic (AADT) or Half-Yearly Average Daily Traffic
(BADT), commercial activity (Licences), existing resources

Track

and the requirement to comply with network service levels. L
38,045

Licensing
3,524

Patrolling
T.458

The network is patrolled by the Inspection and Support
Mobile Units (UMIA's) using plans that indicate the
itineraries (road stretches or connecting routes to be
supervised), the direction to take and the situations to be
assessed.

Assistanceto
e User
14839

In 2023 the UMIA’s travelled more than 1,592,640 km throughout the country to supervise
approximately 755,412 km of road.

Length of Road Inspected (Km)

woo -
70,000
60,000 Ww%?ﬂ
50,000 96.192 56,307
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000
] - S

January February March April Meay June July August  September Oclober November December

755,412 km 1,592,640 km
of road patrolled by of network
Inspection and Supporting travelled by Inspection and
Experts (ISE) Support Mobile Units (UMIA's)

The main function of the Mobile Inspection and Support Units (UMIAs) is to systematically and
continuously monitor roads, collecting and recording information on deficiencies or occurrences
arising from unexpected events that do not result from the normal wear and tear and their
components, which require urgent intervention or signalling for endangering traffic conditions
and/or the immediate safety of users. Summing up, 68,627 events were recorded by the
inspection units in 2023.
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40,780
Sightings on the conventional network
27,847

Sightings on the High-Performance Network

Regular Maintenance

Periodic maintenance consists of the performance of
highly technically complex works, carried out according to
a timetable based on technical criteria issued by the
Management Systems. This prioritisation takes into
account economic rationality and the optimisation of
human, operational and opportunity resources, with a
view to restoring road components without damaging their
original characteristics, restoring a satisfactory level of
service and extending the useful life of an existing
structure.

In Progress (award < 2023 and completion > 2023)
Awarded

Completed

Awarded and Completed

eee

2023
€ 53,18 Million

This activity is organised at IP through a set of Road Intervention programmes, covering areas
such as Pavements, Geotechnics, Engineering Structures, etc, including a pavement intervention
programme resulting from the assessment of renovation needs, in accordance with a prioritisation
strategy based on technical urgency, the Quality Index (Ql) of the roads and the levels of traffic
recorded in the planning pipeline.

In the year under review 39 contract works were ongoing, distributed as follows:

7 Contracts in progress
(award < 2023 and completion > 2023)

{\“a, ot 10 Awarded contract works
GOV et
b
?’g. o™ 17 Completed contract works
¢
de
yo

5 Awarded and completed contract works
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During 2023, the main contracts awarded and/or completed were as follows, for which the

award values and respective execution deadlines are as shown:

420 days e EN101 - L.D. VCT/BRG (km 63+017)
€5,178 and. EN205 (km 83+460)— Renovation
thousand

Renovation of the section of the EN101
between km 63+017 and km 83+460,
covering a length of around 20.4 km

® Ponte Luiz | over the Douro River — Repair of lower 365 days
€3,252.2

deck
thousand

Renovation and reinforcement of the lower deck to give the
bridge a resistant capacity compatible with current road
overloads. The works further include the renovation of the
structure and the repair of identified anomalies due to
surface corrosion of metallic elements, rectification of
deformed plates, maintenance of support equipment,
replacement of expansion joints, among others.

e ER228 - SLOPE
STABILISATION BETWEEN KMS
28+000 AND 36+000

Improving  traffic and  safety
conditions on the section of ER 228
between km 28+000 and km 36+000

300 days
€ 2,814.5 thousand
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e [C2/EN1 - improvement works between Asseiceira
(Km 65+200) and Freires (Km 85+500)

Improving traffic safety conditions by replacing/renovating

the pavement and improving the signalling system, thus 450 days
contributing to a significant increase in safety and comfort. € 8,465.9
thousand

Operational Conservation Management

Operational Conservation Management is a systematic e :
process of inspection and preventive or reactive intervention, to ensure the malntenance repair
and replacement, in appropriate conditions of functionality, of all components of the road. The
purpose is to ensure traffic safety and comfort to users and to prevent the deterioration of roads
and service conditions.

OPERATING ACTIVITY TECHNICAL
(WHERE INTERVENTION IS REQUIRED) INSPECTIONS
CURRENT CURRENT
MAINTENANCE | MAINTENANCE !mgﬁ
CONTRACTS AND OPERATION i

Routine Inspections and Revision of Inventory

In 2023, a new service was provided to carry out Routine Inspections and update the Inventory
of Track Equipment and Engineering works/Containment Works, following the positive
assessment of the previous procedure for 6 districts, carried out in 2022. The new service
provision covered 14 batches for the 12 districts not included in 2022 and 2 batches for the high-
performance network, Norte and Marao.

Investment in Routine Inspections and Inventory Updates 12 Districts, High
Performance Norte and High Performance Marao

€ 2.1 Million

Outsourcing these activities makes it possible to make up for the shortfall in IP's resources by
updating the inventory and register of track equipment,
vertical signalling and engineering structures and carrying
out routine inspections. The survey and characterisation of
assets and assessment of their state of repair, on all the
roads, including the branches of junctions, accesses and
connections, integrated into the network of the Batches
concerned, is carried out using computer applications
developed by IP for IP mobile platforms. GISMobile, paving
the way for digitisation and standardisation to digitally
represent physical objects or systems in road reality (Digital
Twins).
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Operating Activities

Operational activity is anchored in Current Conservation Contracts for the Conventional Network
and Current Conservation and Operation Contracts for the High-Performance Network. These
contracts are multi-annual in scope and their intervention is complemented by the Intervention
Brigades (Bls).

In addition to these contracts, there are specific contracts for landscape management, for fulfilling
obligations relating to forest fire defence, specific contracts for Corrective Maintenance of
Pavements and Activities carried out through direct administration.

Current Conservation Contracts (CCC) and Current Conservation and
Operation Contracts (CCO)

RoAD NETWORK LENGTH

13,839 km

13,176 km Conventional Network (RCV)
663 km High Performance Network (RAP)

The day-to-day maintenance of roads is carried out under
contractual instruments known as Current Maintenance
Contracts (CCC) and Current Maintenance and
Operation Contracts (CCQO), the latter also covering road
operation activities.

These contracts allow IP to carry out maintenance work
on the road network under its direct jurisdiction, with a
view to maintaining traffic comfort and safety conditions
while avoiding infrastructure degradation. The purpose of
these contracts is to carry out the maintenance and
upkeep of all the elements/components that make up the
roads that are the subject of the contract and respective
engineering structures. These contracts include all
routine maintenance activities, both corrective and
preventive, in order to offer users of the network better traffic comfort conditions, pleasant
journeys on the routes travelled, and improved road safety conditions.

Conventional Network (RCV)

€ 48.9 Million
€3:537/ km Amount of the works carried
Expenditure by kilometre out in 2023

CCC 2021/2024
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During 2023, 18 Current Conservation

Contracts 2021-2024 were under e
nvironmental

implementation. Regarding the 16.97%

execution of contracts, it was noted that

in 2023 there was an increase in the At Other

amount implemented compared to 2022, F‘j;i"ﬁ‘g,'“ 13.38%

in order to repair the damage caused by

bad weather. During 2023 pavement- lAct. Safety

related works accounted for 50% of the e

amount invested in the Conventional
Network under P jurisdiction. In terms of Dminagﬁfﬂems
environmental  activities, vegetation

management work stands out, especially that related to Forest Fire Defence Activities, namely
mowing and cutting vegetation, selective cutting of vegetation and tree felling, which reached
around 17% in 2023.

High-Performance Network (RAP)

i Engineering
structiures
2.28%

Operation and Control..

The High-Performance Network, which represents around 2.5% of the
road network under IP's direct management and around 4% of the
inspection length, is structured into three areas: High-Performance
North; High Performance Marao; and High-Performance South.

During 2023, 5 Current Conservation and Operation (CCO) contracts
and one Network Operation at Minimum Operating Conditions
(ERMO) contract were underway, totalling € 12.54 million.

€ 12,54 million
Amount of works carried out in 2023
Current Maintenance and Operation

€18,914/km

Expenditure by kilometre
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The Intervention Brigades carry out their activities on a one-off basis in the following situations:

Preventive or corrective

Urgent interventions interventions Non-Core Interventions

« Clearing of drainage systems - Removal of advertising

- Signalling of damaged safety = Clearing of pavement = Repair and deployment of signs
rails _ » Maintenance and clearing of + Storage of materials _

* Road cleaning after adverse drainage elements and water = Support to routine inspections

weather conditions
« Cleaning of oil on pavement
= Cleaning of snow and ice signalling

lines in areas of the road
= Maintenance of vertical

« Cleaning of leftover plois
» Support to the pilgrnims on the roads
= Support to the Technical Channel

- Road clearing - Plant cutting, deforestation and = Maintenance works at IP facilities

vegetation control
= Preventive treatment of snow
and ice

= Elimination of loopholes

Activities under the integrated rural fire management system

In order to respond to IP's legal obligations, namely Decree-Law 82/2021 of 13 October, in its
current wording, which establishes the measures and actions to be developed within the scope
of the Integrated Rural Fire Management System, for the maintenance of Fuel Management Strips
on the roads under IP's jurisdiction, the company has several contracts that include carrying out

this work

Thus, during 2023 there were several specific Vegetation Management Work (VMW) contracts
underway to guarantee the implementation of Mowing and Cutting of Vegetation, Selective
Cutting of Vegetation and Felling and Pruning of Trees, as well as Current Conservation Contracts
(conventional network and high-performance network) where these works were carried out as
part of the so-called environmental activities, which totalled an investment of around € 13.93

million.

€ 13.93 Million

Amount of works carried out in
2023

Global Vegetation Management

€ 7.7 Million

Amount of works carried out in
2023

Activity under the Integrated
Rural Fire Management System
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Of the total interventions, € 7.7 million relates to vegetation management work in fuel
management strips, covering an area of around 9,900 hectares, which represents around 52 per
cent of the total area intervened with mowing and selective cutting work.

Activities relating to extreme weather events on the road network

Climate change and the resulting extreme weather events require infrastructure to be more
resilient in order to minimise interruptions to the operation of the road network. DRR has working
groups to develop measures to ensure that existing infrastructure, as well as new construction or
modernisation projects, include requirements to ensure infrastructure resilience in the face of
climate change and exireme weather events.

The climatic events that most interfered with the operation of the road network during 2023 were
heavy rainfall, strong wind and excessive heat (resulting in forest fires).

In view of the impact on the road network of the storms that occurred in December 2022 and
January and February 2023, it was necessary to reinforce current maintenance contracts to the
amount of € 19.3 million in order to repair the extensive damage caused to the road network.

Because these occurrences are becoming more and more frequent, in October 2023 we began
systematising the monitoring of damage and the limitations it causes to the road network. Through
risk assessments, we identify potential vulnerabilities that allow us to implement targeted
measures to mitigate these risks, guaranteeing the continued functionality and resilience of the
infrastructure.

Incident management is centralised in Infraestruturas de Portugal's Traffic Control Centre, which
collects information through telematics equipment (CCTV cameras, SOS posts, etc.), from
internal sources or from external sources such as police forces, civil protection services,
firefighters and road users.

Whenever necessary, user assistance measures are activated, coordinating operations with other
operational resources, including firefighters, police and civil protection.

Based on the meteorological warnings issued by the IPMA, and in the event of interruptions and
damage to the road network as a result of climatic phenomena, the existing interruptions are
recorded and various risks are weighed up, namely the financial impact, legal impact, reputational
impact and impact on human life.
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Snow Cleaning Centre (SCC) and remaining Winter activities

IP's Serra da Estrela Snow Cleaning Centre was
created in 1971 to ensure ftraffic in safe conditions
during winter; it is located at an altitude of 1650 m, on
EN339, in Piornos. This outpost is equipped with the
resources needed to maintain traffic conditions and
operating safety on the national road network in the
districts of Guarda and Castelo Branco, a network
totalling around 290 km, of which around 128 km are
in the central massif of Serra da Estrela.

Winter activities play a crucial role in maintaining
traffic safety conditions and in cleaning roads from
snow and ice, when required. Given the country’s
orography and climate, these activities occur mainly
in the districts of Braganga, Coimbra, Guarda,
Castelo Branco, Viana do Castelo, Vila Real and
Viseu, and sometimes in Aveiro, Braga and Porto.

In 2023 IP spent approximately € 155 thousand with
the spreading of salt, through current maintenance
and operation contracts

€ 155 thousand

Amount of works carried out in 2023
Winter activities of the SCC and OCC

Also in 2023, a public tender was launched
for the purchase of around 998 tonnes of rock
salt in order to guarantee the winter viability of
traffic in safe conditions on roads that, due to
their location, require treatment with fluxing
salts.

To ensure the storage of rock salt in bulk, IP
has silos with a capacity of 60 tonnes, with
fully automatic dispensing to guarantee its
storage. Loading is easy, quick and quiet, and
is carried out by the snow plough operator

o sk himself.

= :::::;:El:ms 998 tons
Rock Salt

€ 99.75 thousand

Base price of the public tender for the purchase of rock salt launched in
2023
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Drones |Unmanned aerial vehicles (UAV'S)

The Directorate of the Road Network (DRR)
began using Drones (Unmanned Aerial Vehicles)
to support activities related to Operation and
Maintenance, through a series of missions that
have made it possible, in an economical,
functional and more expedient way, to
understand, assess and characterise the existing
territorial ~ reality, supporting construction,
operation, maintenance and inspection activities
of the road network in the areas of jurisdiction and
adjacent areas, using image and video
recordings.

In 2023, DRR carried out around 30 missions. With the delivery of new equipment and specific
software for image processing, the number of missions and data processing will be optimised.
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Operational Road Safety Management

Road safety management aims to develop management and maintenance strategies for road
safety equipment, traffic light equipment and road lighting on IP's road network, providing
technical support to the operational areas and collaborating in the periodic reporting on the
technical management of these activities.

Road Safety Equipment Traffic light Road Lighting
equipment

Maintenance projects are carried out in this area, analysing, monitoring and reporting on the
development of the respective works contracts.

Given their importance Road Safety Inspections and Safety Audits are followed up on a
continuous basis, monitoring and providing strategic support for the actions resulting from the
Inspections.

Signalling and Safety Equipment (ESS) contracts

In 2023, the Signalling and Safety Equipment 2022-2025 contract was awarded in 6 batches,
covering 18 districts, with the aim of introducing greater regularity and continuity in Signalling and
Safety interventions, helping to improve road safety conditions on the national network by
restoring the initial quality conditions of this equipment in a scheduled manner.

€ 25.54 Million 1,095 days €646
Award amount Implementation Period cos/Kmlyear
ESS 2022-2025

These contracts are mainly grouped into 3 types of equipment, namely Vertical Signs, Road
Markings and Restraint Systems. This equipment plays a fundamental role in ensuring road
safety, helping to guide drivers, organise traffic and protect road users.

With regard to the implementation of contracts, from the month the contracts were awarded, which
was May, until the end of 2023, an amount of € 3.48 million was implemented, almost 60 % of
which related to road marking activities.
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25 de Abril Bridge

The management of the 25 de Abril bridge is governed by specific
law; in this context, |IP operates in close cooperation with
LUSOPONTE, whose management duties specifically focus the
road component. IP permanently inspects, maintains and
upkeeps the bridge and regularly carries out studies, projects and
resulting improvement works and major repairs or remodelling of
the bridge's characteristics, which includes monitoring and
supervising the work and providing the necessary technical
assistance.

In addition to these actions, IP is also responsible for controlling
and coordinating the safety of road and rail operations on the 25
de Abril Bridge infrastructures, in an integrated management
logic, including the systematic and continuous adoption of measures to prevent the underlying
risks to the operation of the Bridge, the management of integrated safety documents, reviewing
and updating them whenever necessary, carrying out surveys and technical investigations into
accidents and incidents on the infrastructure, drawing up the annual safety programme and the
respective six-monthly report monitoring its implementation, carrying out real or in-office exercises
to test the integrated safety documents and managing emergency situations under the terms laid
down in the integrated safety documents.
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Also, with regard to operational safety, we highlight the 25 de Abril Bridge
Safety Council, a body created by Decree-Law 95/2008 of 6 June, which
reports to the Chairman of |IP's Safety Council and has an advisory role.

Currently, in addition to IP's own representatives, the Safety Board includes
two representatives from the Mobility and Transport Institute (IMT), a
representative from the security services and forces, appointed by the Security
Coordination Office (GCS), a representative from the emergency services,
appointed by the National Emergency and Civil Protection Authority (ANEPC)
and a representative from Lusoponte.

The year 2023 was characterised by the continuation of the contract to repair
and maintain the 25 de Abril Bridge, which is scheduled to end in March 2024.
The total amount of the work carried out in 2023 was approx. € 1.23 million.
This contract includes 8 interventions, distributed over the Suspension Bridge
and the North Access Viaduct.
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5.3 INVESTMENT IN ROAD-RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE

The Investment Plan is based on the following lines of action:

® The Ferrovia 2020 investment programme, which has a strong focus on renewing and
modernising the rail network;

e The Programme for the Enhancement of Business Areas (PVAE), which aims to
strengthen the competitiveness of companies by improving road connections between
already consolidated business areas and the existing road network;

® The Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP), which aims to strengthen resilience and
territorial cohesion by increasing the competitiveness of the productive fabric and
enabling a reduction in tape costs;

® The National Investment Programme 2030 (PNl 2030) aims to be the planning
instrument for the next cycle of strategic and structuring investments at national level, to
meet the needs and challenges of the next decade and decades to come.

5.3.1 Ferrovia 2020

The Railway Investment Plan 2020 includes the modernisation of
around 1,200 km of network. The plan provides the construction of
the main rail connections to Spain and Europe: Aveiro-Salamanca
and Sines / Lisboa - Madrid, renovation of part of the North Line and
electrification of over 400 km of existing lines. These investments will
include: starting the deployment of the European Railway Traffic
Management System (ERTMS/ETCS); extending the length of train
crossing to 750m; and preparing the migration to the standard rail
gauge. The objective is to improve rail transport efficiency, namely
freight transport, in terms of:

sy

i Increasing capacity, of both loads and number of trains;
ii. Reduction of transport costs;
iii. Decreasing travel time and distances;
iv. Improving safety and reliability conditions.

In addition to boosting international connections, these investments
will promote the connection between the coast and the inland, as well
as the connection of the inland areas to the Iberian market.

The overall implementation of Ferrovia 2020 investments in 2023 was
€ 466.2 million, which corresponds to a 65 per cent implementation
compared to what was planned in the budget. S B P TS
As part of the Ferrovia 2020 Investment Programme to support the modernisation of E‘;‘i{ﬂi’::;’é‘:,’;%f,‘?“”“
the national railway network, the networks and systems relating to the Railway
Telematics component have also been the target of intervention through the completion

of various design and construction contracts.

The technological components covered by these contracts include, among others, the power
supply systems, the data network to support operations, the operational telephone network, time
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synchronisation, the infrastructure technical supervision system and the physical transmission
network made up of metallic and fibre-optic cables.

International South Corridor

The International South Corridor will allow widening the port hinterland of Sines, Setlbal and
Lisbon, ensuring the railway link between the south of Portugal and Europe, via Caia border,
promoting railway interoperability and contributing to and efficient transport of goods.

This corridor will provide a direct link from Sines to Elvas/Caia, reducing travel time by 3h30,
increasing capacity by two-fold and improving safety conditions, by eliminating level crossings
and installing electronic signalling.

This corridor is mostly under construction and its implementation in 2023 was € 141.2 million.

Highlights include the ongoing construction work on the new line between Evora Norte and the
East Line, the work on the Evora Norte-Freixo section, the work on the Alandroal - East Line
section and the general track and catenary work.

Also included in this corridor is the contract to modernise the Southern Line, on the Ermidas -
Grandola North section.

International North Corridor

This corridor will consolidate the link between the metropolitan arch of Oporto and the coastline
system, respective harbours (Leix6es and Aveiro), airports and logistics platforms, Spain and the
rest of Europe, via the Vilar Formoso border.

It will increase daily capacity by more than double, allow the circulation of electric trains across
the Beira Baixa Line, improve grade lines in critical stretches, build the concordance links of the
Beira lines and Pampilhosa, and improve safety by eliminating level crossings and installing
electronic signs.

The implementation of this corridor in 2023 was € 170 million, concerning the Beira Alta Line.
North-South Corridor:

Investment in the Minho and North lines will improve the railway link between Portugal’s Atlantic
Axis and Europe, via the Valenca border.

On the Minho Line, it is planned to reduce journey times by using electric traction trains and
eliminating the load break at Nine, increasing safety and reliability of operation by installing a new
signalling and telecommunications system, and more than tripling current capacity.

On the Northern line, the investments include renewing the infrastructure’s life cycle, reducing the
journey time of long-distance services, increasing safety and reliability of operation by
installing/modernising signalling and telecommunications systems, increasing rail and road safety
by removing level crossings and building gradients.

On the Minho Line, sections Nine-Viana, Viana-Valengca and Valadares-Gaia (L. Norte) are
completed.

Implementation up to 2023 amounted to € 60.5 million, representing an implementation rate of
82% compared to the budget, and 13% of the total investment made in the period in the Ferrovia
2020 Programme.

The amount spent on the Northern Line was more than € 55 million, with the Ovar-Gaia section
contributing € 42.3 million and the Santana - Cartaxo - Entroncamento section € 12.9 million.
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Investments in the Minho Line this year totalled € 4.9 million.

This set of interventions comprises the electrification of the Minho Line from Caide and Marco de
Canavezes to Régua, electrification of the Algarve Line on the Tunes-Lagos and Faro-Vila Real
de Santo Anténio sections, and modernisation and electrification of the Oeste Line between
Melegas and Caldas da Rainha. The modernisation of the Cascais Line is also comprised in the
Secondary Corridors.

On the Douro Line, the elecitrification contract for the Caide-Marco de Canaveses section has
already been completed. On the Oeste line, two modernisation contracts are underway, on the
Melegas-Torres Vedras section and the Torres Vedras-Caldas da Rainha section.

On the Algarve line, the two electrification contracts for the Tunes-Lagos section and the Faro-
Vila Real de Santo Anténio section are underway. On the Cascais Line, the Via and Catenary
works, which began in December 2022, are noteworthy.

With regard to Secondary Coarridors the amount implemented totalled € 93.6 million.

5.3.2 National Investment Programme 2030 (PNI 2030)

FROCEAM) HaCKiMAL 2 O 3 O The National Inyestment
Programme 2030 defines the

strategic investments that the country will have to make over the next
decade, in line with the strategic objectives defined for Portugal 2030.

It focuses on Mobility and Transport - key factors for our country's
external competitiveness and internal cohesion, and on
Environment/Climate Action and Energy - areas intrinsically linked to
mobility and the challenges of climate change, decarbonisation and
energy transition.
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The National Investment Programme (PNI2030) was presented by the Government on 22-10-
2020.

It is the planning tool for the next cycle of strategic and structuring investments at national level,
to meet the needs and challenges of the next decade and decades to come.

NIP 2030 reflects the country's strategy for the next decade, aimed at convergence towards with
the European Union; It is based on three strategic goals, specifically:

® Territorial cohesion, by connecting territories Num ber of Capital
and business activity, valuing natural capital; raasports s Matwity Frojsts sag || Bxperdinee

Programmes €M

® Competitiveness and Innovation, increasing
and improving infrastructures, capitalising on
the country's Atlantic potential, and |gaway 16 10,510
strengthening territorial integration with

Mobility and Public Transport 9 5,823

Europe, and the Iberian Peninsula in B o 1080
particular: Airports 4 1,257
o . Maritime - Ports 8 2,088

® Sustainabilty and Climate  Change,
. N Total 45 21,660

promoting decarbonisation, energy
1 2 p Fublic capital expenditure 17,694

transition, adaptation to climate change and
Frivate mvestment 3,966

increased resilience of infrastructures.

PNI 2030 therefore includes the main investments in infrastructure and equipment to be made
between 2021 and 2030, in four thematic areas: Transport and Mobility, Environment, Energy and
Irrigation.

The Transport and Mobility axis includes investments in rail infrastructure and road infrastructure,
areas that are of direct interest to IP, which together total a planned investment of € 12.5 billion.

Railway
16 programmes and projects were identified, with a total value of € 10.510 million.

The guidelines for the objectives to be achieved with the implementation of these projects are as
follows:

Capital

® Increasing the capacity and reducing Railway Expenditure

travel time across the Porto-Lisbon -
axis, where the largest flow of HEMHE PO St 2021-2030 &
passenger and freig ht |ines; Programme to increase capacity in the rail netw ork of metropolitan areas  2021-2028 290
Hail Safety, Renovation and isafion, Noise Reduction and Ciimate 000 oa0 i

. u Change Adaptation Programme

® Construction of a new high- ERTMS/ETCS + GSM- R signaling and i jon p 20212030 270
performance  double-track line S0 o Dk on 2 e of e il 20212030 740
(Lisbon - Oriente / Porto-Campanha) Telematics. stafions and operation safely programme 2021-2030 165
equipped with a multi-purpose Wultimodal terminals impr programms 2021-2030 200
CTOSSin W|th Iberian auge insta"ed Modernisation of railw ay links fo Beja and Faro 2021-2030 230
) g ! g g Modernisation the Vouga Line 2021-2030 100
in the first phaSe; Connection of the Cascais Line fo the Belt Line 2021-2030 200
Mew Porto - Valenca - Vigo line {2nd Phase) 2021-2030 900
® Promoting cross-border connectivity, Infernational South Corridor {2nd phase) 2021-2030 150
- - aps International North Corridor (2nd phase) 2021-2030 600
ensun_ng |n'§er0perab|l|ty across the Mew roling material Urban frains 2021-2029 630
Atlantic Axis towards North and New roling material Long distance trains 2021-2029 850
intersecting international corridors; b OMG itevar Redin il 20212030 i
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® Solving major bottlenecks and consolidate the railway network in the metropolitan areas
of Lisbon and Porto;

® Completing the modernisation and electrification of the National Railway Network,
increasing capacity and speed where possible and useful;

® Launching the bases for the future expansion of the National Railway Network as factor
of territorial cohesion;

® Improving railway access to ports and airports;

® Renovating accesses, improve safety, reducing environmental impacts, namely, noise,
and adjusting the railway network to climate change.

® Dematerialising and computerising logistics in terminals;

® Developing telematics and digital connection systems for passenger interfaces and
logistics terminals;

® Renovating and expanding the fleet of rolling stock available for all passenger service
categories.

Road

8 programmes and projects were identified, with a total value of € 1,980 million.

The guidelines for the objectives to be achieved with the implementation of these projects are as
follows:

® Renovating and repairing
the road network,

) Periodical
promoting the
digitalisation of Road Safety, Renovation and Modernisation, Noise Reduction and Ciimate .+ oo i
infrastructures; Ri Change Adaptation Programme
- Missing Links building programme 2021-2030 425
® Completing missing road
Iinks, promotl ng terntonal 3 Arco Ribeirinho Sul 2021-2026 200
cohesion and cross- G Widening and capacity expansion programme 2021-2030 268
border connectivity; = Completion of IP3 betw een Sines and Beja 2021-2028 130
. Support to innovation and efficiency of the road netw ork programme 2021-2030 100
® |Improving road accesses S
: R Business Areas Enhancement Programme (2nd phase) 2021-2030 164
to business areas; ) _ )
R8 Programme of Territorial and Cross-border Cohesion 2021-2025 163

® |mprove road accesses to
airports;

® Mitigating negative externalities deriving from the use of motor vehicles;

® Renovating accesses, improve safety, reducing environmental impacts, namely, noise,
and adjusting the road network to climate
change.

® Supporting innovation and efficiency of existing infrastructure.

In 2023, this programme's implementation remained essentially in the rail component, with a total
amount of € 20.0 million, of which € 6.8 million was spent on studies, € 7.1 million on renovating
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the track superstructure of the Douro Line and € 3 million on signalling on the Minho Line.
Campanha/Ermesinde Section.

The road component was essentially centred on studies, including the study on the IP2 - Evora
Eastern Bypass, the study on the IC35 - Sever do Vouga / IP5 (A25) section and the study on the
IC31 Castelo Branco / Monfortinho Execution Project.

5.3.3 Recovery and Resilience Plan (PRR)

The PRR aims to reinforce resilience and territorial
cohesion, increase the competitiveness of the
productive fabric and contribute to the reduction of
context costs in Portugal. This plan aims to
implement a set of reforms and investments based
on three main dimensions: Resilience, Climate
Transition and Digital Transition.

The Recovery and Resilience Plan (PRR) was approved by the European Commission on
16.06.21 and is one of the financing instruments supporting national investment, with an
implementation period until 2026.

In order to strengthening the social, economic and territorial resilience of our country, 9
Components were considered, which include a robust set of interventions in strategic areas,
namely health, housing, social issues, culture, innovative business investment, qualifications and
skills, infrastructure, forest and water management.

IP supported the Government in the development of a rigorous and mature process of
identification, characterisation and selection of investment projects that optimised the
capitalisation of available funds to leverage Component 7, called Infrastructure.

Component 7 aims at territorial cohesion and improving conditions for attracting and securing
investments in less densely populated territories, boosting economic competitiveness by
improving mobility and accessibility conditions.

Projected investments in Missing Links and Network Capacity Increase, Cross-border
Connections and Business Reception Areas (AAE) — Road Accessibilities will contribute to this
purpose.

On 15 September 2021, IP and the Recovering Portugal Mission Structure (EMRP) signed the
financing contract for the investment Missing Links and Increased Network Capacity, totalling €
273 million, Cross-Border Connections, totalling € 31 million and Business Hosting Areas (AAE)
- Road Accessibility, totalling € 91 million.

The capitalisation of community funds far this program is essential to ensure the improvement of
the national road network, namely, with the completion of missing connections, the improvement
of internal and cross-border cohesion and the promotion of accessibility to Business Location
Areas.

Investments are carried out with the following objectives:

® Missing Links and Network Capacity Increase - to promote the elimination of urban
crossings and the adequacy of the road network capacity, reducing journey times,
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polluting gases and congestion situations, as well as reinforcing accessibility to major
corridors and multimodal interfaces, reducing context costs to the business fabric and

boosting investments already made in related infrastructures;

® Cross-border Connections - leverage development, enhance cross-border mobility and

reduce context costs;

® Business Reception Areas (AAE) — Road Accessibility — ensure the entry and exit of
goods in an efficient and economical way, leveraging the investment already made in the

Corporate Reception Areas.

The investment made within the scope of the PRR in 2023 totalled € 48.7 million.

IP is committed to carrying out the projects under the PRR for which it is responsible. We currently
have 19 projects launched under the PRR. Of these, 11 contracts are in the contracting phase,

seven are already underway and one has been completed.

In Programme 02 - Missing Links and Increasing Network Capacity, implementation reached € 35
million in 2023. The EN14 - Maia (Via Diagonal) / Trofa project was the one that contributed

practically all the investment.

In Programme 04 - Business Accommodation Areas - Road Accessibility, the realisation in
2023 stood at € 13 million and the main contributions were the EN248 - Arruda dos Vinhos Village

Extension and the Connection to the Fontiscos Industrial Area.

In November 2023, the New
Connection to the Fontiscos Industrial
Area and Reformulation of the Ermida
Junction was completed. In an
investment of around € 3.2 million,
this intervention was the first work to
be put into service under the PRR -
Recovery and Resilience Plan —
Enhancement of Business Areas,
co-financed by the European Union.

As part of the Recovery and Resilience Plan (PRR), |IP will receive a total of € 49 million to
modernise the electronic signalling systems installed on the National Railway Network.

IP and the Estrutura de Missdo Recuperar Portugal (EMRP) signed a contract for the Digitalisation
of Rail Transport. As part of this, they signed a financing contract for the replacement of electronic

railway signalling systems.
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5.3.4 Business Areas Enhancement Programme (PVAE)

On 7 February 2017, the government presented the Business Areas Enhancement Programme,
which aims to strengthen the competitiveness of companies, boosting job creation and increasing
exports. One of the aims of this programme was to ensure better access to high-capacity roads
for the "engines" of the economy, made up of small and medium-sized companies, an objective
to be achieved by IP. The majority of the investment is made using IP's budget, and it is partially
supported by each municipality involved, particularly with regard to the expropriations necessary
for its realisation and part of the work.

Under this Investment Programme, the following investments have been completed by 2023:

® |mproving the connection between Lanheses Business Park and the ER305 (Viana do
Castelo);

® |Improvement of road accesses to business areas of Famalicao Sul | Ribeirdo and
Lousado;

® Access road to Avepark - Taipas Science and Technology Park (Gandra Industrial Area -
Guimaraes) - Silvares junction;

® Connection of the Escariz Business Park to the A32 (S. M. Feira), which opened to traffic
in November 2022;

® Bypass of the EN303, about 8.8 kilometres long, to be completed in 2023.

Another project included in the PVAE was completed in 2023: the 8.8-kilometre EN303
bypass, which provides direct, safer and faster access between the Formariz Business
Park and the Sapardos junction of the A3 motorway. Involving a total investment of € 10.8
million, the new bypass comprises a two-lane road platform, with a slow lane on 60 per
cent of the route.

The remaining investments provided for in the PVAE will be carried out as part of the Recovery
and Resilience Plan.

The financial execution of the PVAE in 2023 was € 8.3 million.
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5.3.5 Mondego Mobility System (SMM)

The Mondego Mobility System (SMM) project aims to create a public transport link between
Coimbra and the neighbouring '
municipalities (Miranda do Corvo and
Lousa) with a "Metrobus" system,
which consists of implementing a
BRT (Bus Rapid Transit) type service
with electric traction on the former
Lousa railway branch and in the
Coimbra Urban Area.

The total length of the railroad is
43km, connecting Serpins, Lousa
and Miranda do Corvo to Coimbra, serving stations of Coimbra B and Hospitals.

This project views to contribute to a reduction in CO2 and other GHG emissions, and improve
mobility in Coimbra region, via modal transfer to collective public transport, thus improving
interoperability with remaining transport services. The new solution adopted for the Mondego
Mobility System will allow travel across the city of Coimbra, including areas where demand is
significant and allowing articulating with other suburban and urban transport services.

The SMM represents a total planned investment of around € 136 million, with the respective
financial execution in 2023 totalling € 38.7 million.

5.3.6 Other Road-Railway Investments

In addition to the investments associated with the Structural Investment Plans and Programmes,
other investments are being made in the rail and road infrastructure to ensure safety conditions
and improve the levels of reliability and quality of service provided to customers.

In 2023, investment in infrastructure renovation and restoration, adaptation to existing rules and
regulations and reinforcement of the railway infrastructure's service levels totalled € 25.5 million.

The expenditure carried out in the road
segment totalled € 1.8 million.

The most notable railway investments are the
Bobadela terminal in Parque Norte (€ 1.8
million), the investment in the Northern Line (€
5.9 million), the Minho Line (€ 5.6 million), the
Beira Baixa Line (€ 2.4 million) and the
improving telecommunications systems (€ 3.1
million).

In the field of telecommunications systems, the following investments were completed in 2023;




2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Report | |nfraestruturas

de Porlugal

® |[nstallation of a TEN support system to solve a problem of technological and functional
obsolescence on several lines, namely: Cintura, Sintra, Eixo Norte-Sul and Alentejo in
the Barreiro-Pinhal Novo section, with an investment of € 210 thousand;

® Renewal of some of the power supply systems that ensure the supply of electricity to the
Railway Telematics Systems, namely on the Sintra, Sul and Algarve Lines. Capital
expenditure: € 345 thousand.

®  Implementation of
/ a SCADA (Supervisory
Control and Data
Acquisition) platform for
the Technical
Supervision of
Infrastructures  (STI)
applied to road
systems, with the aim
of ensuring real-time management and remote monitoring of the
operating status of systems and infrastructures supporting road
operations, with an investment value of € 275 thousand.

5.3.7 Capital Expenditure in Management Supporting Structures

The amount of Capital Expenditure in Management Support Structures in 2023 was € 9 million,
of which € 4.5 million in buildings and € 2.5 million in road-rail equipment and the rest in
machinery, equipment and software.

Of particular note is the General Remodelling and Improvement Project for Building Il of IP's
Headquarters in Almada. The intervention took place between 2022 and 2023 and aimed to
maximise the functional use of the existing space, foster a culture of proximity and information
sharing between IP's various organisational units and reduce the building's operating (utilities)
and maintenance costs. The aim of this maximisation is to accommodate 724 employees on floors
1 to 4, an increase of 64 % compared to the previous situation, as well as to improve the
employees’ workspace, providing it with functions and environments that better suit current needs.

The contract, which lasted 319 days, involved an investment of € 3,481 thousand.

Also in this investment category is the purchase of a railway inspection vehicle, totalling € 1.8
million.

5.4 SECURITY

Safety is a fundamental value for Infraestruturas de Portugal (IP). As the organisation responsible
for managing road and rail infrastructure, its work is constantly focused on reducing accidents
and mitigating risks, making the national road and rail networks ever safer for users.

Based on an integrated approach covering the road and rail dimensions, the focus is on the safety
of workers, users and entities involved in the design, maintenance and operation of the
infrastructures under IP’s responsibility.

The joint efforts of IP’s current as well as its predecessor companies’ teams, have played a crucial
role in the remarkable progress made in reducing road and rail accidents in recent decades in
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Portugal. It is important to emphasise that, in the road context, these results were achieved
against a backdrop of a significant increase in road traffic.

As far as rail transport is concerned, the results are assessed according to Significant Accidents
on the entire National Rail Network, regardless of IP's direct responsibility.

Most of these accidents and incidents are the result of factors external to the railway system,
mainly due to the intrusion of third parties into railway areas. This highlights the need for proactive
approaches to dealing with external challenges and further strengthening security measures.

A constant objective is to promote an increasingly consolidated safety culture that goes far beyond
strict compliance with the rules. This is a journey that we carry out collectively, involving the entire
structure, and culminates in the promotion of safe behaviours, making them intrinsic to IP's identity
and brand.

Evolution of the Accident Rate and respective economic and social costs
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Reference: Annual Railway Safety Report 2022, IMT

Note: Given that data for 2023 is not yet available from the IMT/ERA, the

S = Ei ic-and social impact of road dents in Portugal,
GurEe: Seonomic-and Sooer iipac o readacclasris in £ economic figures from the ICS communication report for 2022 are used.

ISEG/CEGE 2021

2023 prices * Value of prevention of 1 senous injury (™) € 437.664.13

* Value of preventionof T fatal casualty (™) € 2,681,628.13

5.4.1 Road Safety

In recent decades, Portugal has made significant progress in reducing road accidents. While in
1998 the number of fatalities per million inhabitants in Portugal was 71 per cent higher than the
European Union average, 25 years on this indicator has dropped significantly, although it is still
30 per cent higher than the European Union average.

One of the factors that contributed most to this performance was the strong investment made in
transport infrastructures in the last 25 years, especially in higher quality and safer roads, such as
motorways, boosted by the implementation of the National Road Plan - 23% in 1995 against 75%
today.

Twenty-four years ago, when road traffic on the network managed by IP was a quarter of what it
is today, the number of fatalities was 1,100 (F), accounting for 59% of the overall fatality rate.

The number of fatalities recorded on the IP network in 2022 1 was 172 F, accounting for 37% at
national level.
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Investment made over the last 25 years in this field brought PORTUGAL IN EUROPE -
significant economic and social benefits to society — saving over 1998/2022

16.9 thousand lives and more than € 72.3 billion in economic and

social costs. Number of fafol per million

! Note: The European Commission has not yet released figures for 2023.

As mentioned above, the National Road Network (NRN) under
the management of IP and its predecessors has decisively
contributed to this decrease, particularly in the last 25 years:
whilst Portugal has reduced the number of fatalities by 75%, the
NRP under IP's management reduced this figure by 85%.

1998 2022
HPT mUE

Implementation of the NRN versus Fatal Casualties
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NOTE: road accident data presented from 2022 onwards should be considered provisional.

Notwithstanding the decrease recorded in the last decades, the positive evolution of road accident
indicators has slowed down in the past 3 years.

In 2023 there was an increase compared to the previous year in the Severity Indicator Within
Localities and in the number of fatalities, a figure slightly higher than in 2022.

The provisional number of Black Spots indicator for 2023 is also higher than in 2022.

The Concession Contract established with the State requires IP to pursue the objectives of
reducing accidents, specifying three indicators: number of black spots, accident severity index
within localities and number of fatalities, which give rise to penalties in the event of non-
compliance.

In pursuit of the national objective of reducing road accidents, and based on the guidelines of
these legal documents, the targets for road accident indicators, the objectives established in the
concession contract, the deficiencies detected in the road network in terms of safety, and
available funds, IP annually prepares the Road Safety Plan (RSP), which incorporates preventive
and corrective measures aimed at reducing accidents and improving safety and circulation
conditions on the road network under its management.

IP’s road safety strategy is in line with PENSE2020 Proposal and with the strategies of most
developed countries in terms of road safety, as is the case of Sweden, based on the ethical
imperative that “no-one should die or become permanently disabled following a road accident in
Portugal”.
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The Concession Contract (CC) established with the State defines objectives to reduce accidents,

specifying three indicators: number of blackspots,
accident severity index in built-up areas and number of
fatalities.

The data for 2022-2023 should be considered as
provisional, since the National Road Safety Authority
(NRSA) has not yet completed its validation of road
accident data recorded in Portugal for those years.
Established targets were revised and approved by
Instituto da Mobilidade e dos Transportes (IMT).

BLACKSPOTS IN IP NETWORK
Evolution

2024 W29 EEIT A7 14 1S

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

With regard to Black Spots, the first data for 2023,

FATAL CASUALTIES ON IP NETWORK
Evolution

indicated by ANSR, points to 44 BPs.

The figure is higher than the target set for 2023, which

was 39 Black Spots.

With regard to the most serious accidents, according to

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

F).

== Annual targets

the register of Fatalities and Serious Injuries, in 2023 on
the IP network there will be one fatality more than in 2022.

When compared to the target set forth for 2023, the
number of Fatalities exceeded the target by 12.3% (+18

Regarding the number of serious injuries, there was an
increase of 60 Sl in 2023 compared to the previous year, from 596 Sl to 656 Sl (+10.1 per cent)

In 2023, according to the provisional figures, the Severity Indicator Within Localities increased by
12.4 per cent compared to 2022, above the target set for 2023 of 15.0 per cent.

Road Safety Inspections carried out in the year

Road Safety Inspections are among IP's key activities in
the field of road safety; these are carried out by
nationwide safety inspection teams and, allow to pinpoint
defects and, problems and, propose corrective and cost-
effective measures.

Since 2014, the road safety unit's inspection teams have
inspected and analysed 998 serious accidents (with
fatalities and/or serious injuries) on the IP network.

SEY. INDEX IN BUILT-UP AREAS OM IP NETWORK
Exvolution




2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Report Infraestruturas
.87 | de Porlugal

Type of inspections 2015 2016 2017 218 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
|
Planned on the network (km) 122 &1 106 45 114 253 444 |
Blackspots {no.} 34 15 22 23 39 42 18 15
Accident Accumulation Areas (no.) 14 1 3 20 23 46
Monitoring (no.) 9 7 9 B
Inspection to accident sites (no.) 66 40 41 83 g 125 153 201 208

Since 2020, IP has ensured that any accident with a fatality recorded on its network is inspected,
resulting in an inspection report, which identifies any non-conformities and dangers existing on
the road infrastructure, from a road safety point of view, as well as indicating action measures to
mitigate and/or eliminate them.

5.4.2 Railway Safety

IP's management of the railway infrastructure is linked to obtaining and maintaining a Safety
Authorisation issued by IMT, |.P., with the current Safety Authorisation, with the EU identification
number: PT21 2023 0002, valid from 01-06-2023 to 31-05-2028, which confirms the acceptance
of IP's Safety Management System, in accordance with Directive (EU) 2016/798 and Decree-Law
no. 85/2020, and includes the procedures and provisions adopted to comply with the necessary
safety requirements in the design and construction of infrastructures, the maintenance of
infrastructures, traffic planning, traffic management and control.

In the field of railway system safety, and in line with IP's mission as the managing body of a
reliable and safe railway infrastructure, the following activities stand out:

® Development of railway safety policies as a tool to improve the performance of
infrastructure management operations, promoting a close relationship with all
stakeholders, whether internal or external to IP;

® Management of railway safety indicators, promoting the analysis and monitoring of
deviations, with the purpose of acting on respective causes, in order to maintain adequate
safety levels of rail infrastructures and operations;

® Management of research to railway accidents and events and implementation and control
of measures to eliminate/mitigate causes and causal factors.

® |nvestigation of occurrences on the railways, supporting their classification within the
scope of the Common Safety Indicators, decision on the need and advantage in initiating
a process of formal investigation of the accident/incident and identification of safety
measures to be adopted;

® Preparation of procedures and rules to support and contextualise critical functions from
the point of view of railway safety;

® |mplementation of the process for issuing complementary certificates to train driving
licences in European format, in line with Law no. 16/2011 of 3 May, which approves the
certification system for train drivers operating locomotives and trains on the railway
system, transposing Directive no. 2007/59/EC of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 23 October;

® |ssuing of expert opinions of a regulatory and technical nature and related to railway
safety (third-party interventions in the vicinity of the railways and technical conditions for
contracting procedure documents);

® Management of Special Travel Authorisation processes;




2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Report Infraestruturas
.88 | de Porlugal

® Application of common safety method to determine and assess risks;

® Performance of safety inspections and audits and identification of respective mitigating
measures, aimed to minimise incidents and accidents with impact on railway safety;

® Management and monitoring of the Wagon Maintenance Management System
(certification valid until 2024, subject to annual review);

® Management of Authorisation of Entry into Service processes, safeguarding the technical
and procedural conditions relating to the design, construction, entry into service, re-
adaptation, renovation, operation and maintenance of the elements that make up the
railway system

® Management of safety certification procedures for rolling stock (running on operating
tracks or closed tracks and checking of machinery under operating conditions), and
production of technical and regulatory conditions for the circulation of vehicles, ensuring
consistency in processes and compatibility with the various components of the railway
infrastructure.

® Management of the procedures associated with the IP Safety Management System as
support for the renewal and maintenance of the Safety Authorisation process.

Rail Safety Indicators

In 2023 there were _36 significant accidents (+2 SA SIGNIFICANT ACCIDENTS
compared to the previous year).  Fuililion

Compared with the average of SA of the last 5 years,
there is a reduction of 9% (Average over 5 years: 40
SA).

As far as causes are concerned, the vast majority of
SAs, around 81 per cent, are due to factors external to
the railway system, which are difficult for IP to control,
mostly due to intrusion into railway space (18 accidents
involving people and 13 accidents at level crossings), P ETd ETE PR BN ETR K
despite the systems and measures implemented. ) =

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

The Significant Accident rate (number of significant

accidents per million train kilometres) in 2023 was 1.070 SA/Mtk, which is unfavourably below the
target set for 2022 (0.942 SA/Mik) in the Framework Contract established between IP and the
State.
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RAILWAY SAFETY INDICATOR

SIGNIFICANT ACCIDENTS BY MILLION TK (Sa/mtk)

1,070

2 0,935 53 0935942

042

AN

0,000
2012 213 2014 2015 2016 201/ 2018 2019 2020 2021 2Rz 2023

Legend: Recorded figures {SA/mtk); Targets assumed (SA/mtk)

FATAL CASUALTIES As concerns the consequences of Significant

Accidents, of the 21 recorded fatalities:
Punlutinn

L] 62% (13) of the victims were
unauthorised persons who trespassed the
railway area, and

L] 38% (8) concern the people who did not
respect the safety rules at level crossings (LC).

In the component of events that are not
accidents, there is a consistent decrease in the
Accident Precursors figures.

2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 021 2022 2023

This shows a slight decrease of 3% compared to
the 2022. Comparing the figure for 2023 with the average of the previous five years, there is a 27
per cent reduction.

RREEURSIRY IO ARCIENTS Railway safety is one of the main goals of IP;

Evolution accordingly, the company promotes a
proactive personal attitude focused on

the themes of railway safety and the adequacy
of safe behaviours. In 2024 |P will continue to
push forward and strengthen  the
implementation of good practices and
adoption of the necessary mechanisms to
promote and identify new approaches and
partnerships, viewing an increasingly safer
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Ra"way System_

248 188 133 118 &8 35 52
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Railway Safety Inspections

One of the fundamental activities of IP in terms of railway safety is Safety Inspections, which allow
IP to identify any nonconformity or risky situation and propose mitigating measures accordingly.

Over the last 5 years Railway Safety Inspections covered the following length of the railway
network:

Type of inspections

Pedestrian (no./km) 211109 10/54 22/148 23123 14/82
Train (no./km) 11/693 2139 3284 4/348 B8/680
Regulatory (no./km) 4/8 11/240 04719 24/180 301322

In 2023 inspections to rolling stock was strengthen: this activity falls under the regulatory
inspection category.

Level Crossings

In line with the Plan for the Elimination and Reclassification of Level Crossings (LC) for 2023 —
an obligation of road and rail network managers pursuant to article 2 of Decree-Law 568/99, of
23 December, 11 eliminations and 11 alterations were carried out; respective capital expenditure
was included in the contracts for the modernisation of the Minho, Norte and Oeste Lines, as well
as the new rail link between Evora and Elvas.

At the end of 2023 there were 810 level crossings (LC) along the railway lines (IET50), of which
481 (59%) have active protection ensured by level crossing keeper or automatic signalling. At the
end of 2023 the mean level crossing density was of 0.32 LC/km. The following graph illustrates
the actions taken and how the number of Level Crossings evolved over the last few years:
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MNote: The LC figure for 2023 includes one temporary LC for the purpose of assisting ongoing works

As part of the Infrastructure Manager's responsibility to ensure the correct classification of level
crossings, as provided for in article 13 of the Level Crossings Regulations published in the annex
to Decree-Law no. 568/99 of 23 December, 164 level crossings were inspected and
characterised, including an assessment of their use and associated risk factors.
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Within the scope of risk mitigation, the assessment of risk in LC continued, with the definition of

mitigating measures, including the following studies and/or interventions:

® Road intervention to mitigate the risks of circumventing half-barriers, failure to stop or

blockage in LCs, in liaison with the respective GIRs, in 3 LCs;

® Separation of traffic, or improvement of pedestrian crossing conditions, in 4 automated

LCs;

® Regularisation and reinforcement of advanced LC approach signalling, in conjunction

with the GIRs, in various Lcs of the NRwN;

® The risk analysis for the 74 Private Lcs of the NRwN was also completed, resulting in the
need to provide an active protection solution for 40 of the 66 passive Private LCs, given

the poor visibility of such LCs.

Solutions were also defined for alternative levelled crossings to LCs, both on the lines and
sections of line planned for intervention, and for LCs which, being outside these sections, fall
within the scope of Article 2 of Decree-Law 568/99 due to their characteristics and/or accidents,

with a view to drawing up the respective projects.

In recent years, accidents on level crossings have evolved as follows:
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From 1999 to 2015 there was a decrease in accidents at LC of more than 85% in terms of
accidents and fatalities, as a result of the policy adopted of elimination and improvement of safety

conditions at LCs. Recent years have shown a stabilisation in figures.
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With regard to the accidents recorded in the last five years, around two-thirds occurred in LCs
with active protection, which shows, on the one hand, a lack of respect for the signs in place and,
on the other, that the effectiveness of introducing safety-boosting measures depends above all
on the behaviour and co-responsibility of the users of the LCs.

Bearing this evidence in mind, alongside actions on the ground IP will continue to intervene on
access roads to the LCs and focus on a communication and awareness-raising campaign about
the risks associated with the LCs and good practices when crossing them.

IP will also continue to be involved in institutional and educational initiatives such as the
"International Day for Level Crossing Safety", which will be celebrated on 6 June 2024.

For the coming years, IP is also committed to continuing its plan of actions aimed at reducing
accidents at railway crossings, with the goal of reducing the number of accidents to less than 10
by implementing the action plan for the 2020-2030 decade.

5.9 USE OF THE ROAD AND RAIL NETWORK

5.5.1 Use of the Railway Network (Train.km)

The Network Directory is an annual document listing the characteristics of the national rail network
(NRwN), the general conditions of access, and other services related to the railway activity
provided by IP to railway operators. This document also explains the principles governing the
fixing of fees and tariffs, including methodology and rules to be followed.

In 2023 rail operators recorded 33.4 million train-kilometre (Tk), 84%
of which was passenger traffic and 16% was freight traffic.
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million of tK

e [ =
23/22

Passenger 301 30.6 214 294 29.9 28.0 18 6.2%

Goods 8.1 5.8 54 56 55 54 01 11%

TOTAL 36.2 36.4 32.8 35.0 353 334 1.9 5.4%

Between 2022 and 2023, demand fell by 5.4 per cent, approximately 1.9 fewer Tk, broken down
as follows: 6.2 per cent fewer Tks for passenger

transport and 1.1 per cent fewer for freight Market :::fres 2023
transport. R

wii
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Train operators using the National Railway
Network are CP and Fertagus for passengers,
and Medway, Takargo, Transfesa and Renfe
Mercancias for freight.
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CP continues to be the operator with the highest
impact on IP's turnover, with a market share of

nearly 78%.

5.5.2 Railway Infrastructure Management - Framework Contract

In 2016 the State and IP signed a 5-year Framework Contract for the National Railway Network,
as provided in Decree-Law 217/2015, of 7 October.

The Contract lays down the State's obligations to finance the management of the infrastructures
and IP’s requirements to meet user-oriented performance targets, in the form of quality indicators
and criteria covering such aspects as train performance, network capacity, asset management,
activity volumes, safety levels, and environmental protection. The contract also sets financial
efficiency objectives to be achieved by IP, in the form of revenue and expenditure indicators.

This Framework Contract ended on 31 December 2020 and has been extended every six months
since then. The last addendum signed between |IP and the Portuguese State relates to the 15t
half of 2022, and no new addendum has yet been signed for the 2™ half of 2022 or for 2023, and
consequently no targets have been set for 2023.

Within this framework, the structure of the indicators for the level of service provided is
maintained, including financial indicators, without setting a target, which is indicated below:

1. Additional Margins correspond to the travel times added to planned timetables to reflect
the speed limitations imposed during scheduled works;

2. Railway Punctuality reflects the aggregate indicator representative of annual punctuality
recorded on the entire railway network in operation, as measured by the delay of trains
on arrival;

3. Railway Customer Satisfaction is the level of satisfaction obtained in satisfaction surveys
answered by Railway Operators and other users of the rail network in operation;

4. Network Availability reflects the percentage of time the infrastructure was available for
operations;

5. Railway Assets Management aims to assess the state of repair of the railway
infrastructure;
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Activity Volumes correspond to the sum of train-km travelled on the national rail network
in the year;

Safety Level is determined by the ratio made up of the number of significant accidents
vs. the total train-km, viewing to assess railway safety according to actual train traffic.
Environmental Protection is the percentage reduction of the number of people exposed
to noise levels higher than the limits imposed in the General Noise Regulation, in relation
to the total number of people exposed to those noise levels;

Rail revenue evaluates IP's success in obtaining core revenue;

Other Revenue, which evaluates the evolution of non-core revenue from supplementary
activities associated with the operation of the railway infrastructure;

Maintenance Expenses assesses the evolution of expenses relating to maintenance;
Expenses with other ESS assesses the development of expenses in External Supplies
and Services;

Personnel Expenses evaluates the evolution of staff related expenses.

The results in 2023 are as shown in the following table:

In 2023 there was an improvement in condition of the National Railway Network, essentially due
to the improvement in the condition of the switches and crossings and the railway track, as a
result of the investments made in the infrastructure.

2022 Results 2023 Resulis

1 Additional margins 137 96 min -30,30%
2 Railway punctuality 87.2% 833% -3.9pp.
3 ilway customer safistach 65,0% 50,0% 5.1pp.
4 Network Avallabiity* 76.2% 713% 49 p.p.
5 WManzgement of Railvay Assets 65.0% 65.3% 0.3pp.
I Business volumes. 35324305 TK 33416683 TK 5.40%
7 Safety Levels 0,955 1,070 13,60%
t: Environment protection 1,1% 0,2% -0.9p.p.
la Railway income £88,467 501 84047916 € -5,00%

10 Ofmerincome £21,314991 I7814TA4E 30,50%

1 Maintenarce Expenses £87,181727 95 326 480 € 10,50%
112 m&m Difer X! SuppRES €55,577,525 52376195 € -5.80%

13 Personnel Expenses £85.434,055 91300595 € 6,90%
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In 2023, traffic on the road network concessioned to IP recorded an annual growth of 3% to
24,707,977,247 vehicle.km, which reflects the return to normality already seen in 2021 and 2022,
after the severe restrictions on traffic in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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5.5.4 Service levels on the road network

-Annual Growth

The concession contract entered by IP and the Portuguese State on 23 November 2007 and
published on the same date through Resolution of the Council of Ministers 174-A/2007, later
amended by Decree-Law 110/2009 of 18 May, requires that the road sections on the national
road network comply with service levels in accordance with the PRN2000: Level B for the Core
Network and Level C for the Supplementary Network

The following table shows the latest results recorded in terms of compliance with service levels
(2022), showing a compliance level at 99.5%. Figures for 2023 are not yet available.

Total length
(km)
599.9

“ Fulfilment

Total

restriction resh'lchm

(km)

Il

P 506.3 987 599.9

EDIP 256.9 23 259.2 100.0 0.0 0.0 259.2
IC 953.9 49.0 1,003.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 1,003.0
EDIC 1,059.8 72.3 1,1321 100.0 0.0 0.0 1,1321
ENER 7.840.2 425.3 8,265.5 99.4 933 06 8,318.7
TOTAL 10,617.1 6425 11,2596 995 53.3 05 11,3129
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5.5.5 Partnerships with Other Entities

The diversity of IP’s operational activity recommends and determines the need to establish
partnerships with external entities (municipalities, other public entities, promoters, etc.), with a
view to complementarity, cost sharing, efficiency gains and adequate allocation of functions to
the most appropriate player.

These partnerships, formalised under Agreements, comply with the provisions of the National
Statute of the National Road Network (EERRN), approved by Law No. 34/2015, of 27 April.

There are three types of Agreements defined under the aforementioned Law:

e Dominial Mutation Agreements (AMD) — for the handing over of roads declassified by
PRN 2000, roads replaced by bypasses;

® Management Agreement (AG) — to be entered into with Municipalities or other public
entities;

® Agreements with Third Parties (AT) - to be entered into with third parties (individuals and
private companies).

With regard to Change of Ownership Agreements, in 2023 around 118 kilometres of declassified
network were transferred to municipalities, with an upward trend in recent years, as shown below:

Network (km) transferred to Municipalities

140
120
100
B0
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40
"0 W
0 : .
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

The declassified network transferred to municipalities between 2016 and 2023 was around 473
km, and around 60 per cent of this network (281 km) was transferred in the last 3 years.

The financial contribution associated with the transfer of roads in 2023, under the Dominial
Mutation Agreements, was € 15.5 million.

5.6 PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS

IP’s road activity includes all roads managed pursuant to public-private partnership (PPP), namely
Sub-concessions.

According to the terms of the Concession Contract established between the Grantor State and
former EP, Infraestruturas de Portugal (IP) is contractually responsible for making payments and
collecting the amounts due by/to the State, pursuant to the State Concession contracts.
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However, under the terms of Decree-Law no. 77/2014, of 14 May, the IMT is the relevant entity
to represent the Grantor State in matters of road infrastructure.

5.6.1 Renegotiation of the Concession and Sub-Concession

Contracts

The negotiation process for all the state concession contracts was finalised in 2015, with the
signing of nine contracts corresponding to the Norte, Costa de Prata, Beira Litoral/Beira Alta,
Grande Porto, Grande Lisboa, Interior Norte, Beira Interior, Algarve and Norte Litoral
concessions.

These nine contracts were sent to the Court of Auditors (TdC) for appraisal and were returned
with the indication that they are not subject to prior inspection and are therefore fully effective.

With regard to the negotiation process for the sub-concession contracts, the respective state of
play is presented below.

Algarve Litoral Sub-concession

The Amended Subconcession Contract (CSA) for the Algarve Litoral, signed on 23 October 2017,
was submitted to the prior inspection of the Court of Auditors, but in view of the decision of the
Court of Auditors in December 2017, IP informed the Subconcessionaire that it would have to be
submitted again to the prior inspection of the Court of Auditors. After analysing the case, on 20
June 2018, the TdC, in Ruling no. 29/2018, refused to grant the approval.

The Court of Auditors, in ruling no. 13/2019 of 28 May, upheld the initial position of refusing to
approve the Algarve Litoral Subconcession Contract, with the Board of Directors deciding to
appeal this decision to the Constitutional Court and resubmitting the Amended Subconcession
Contracts (Baixo Alentejo, Autoestrada Transmontana and Pinhal Interior sub-concessions) to
prior inspection by the Court of Auditors.

In 2020, after an initial decision not to accept the appeal, IP appealed to the Plenary, which, in
ruling no. 58/2021, of 22 January, took the final and definitive decision not to accept the appeal.

It is therefore IP's understanding that, having used up all means of appeal against the Court of
Auditors' decision, the definitive refusal of prior approval for the CSA is confirmed, under the terms
of Article 45(4) of the Court of Auditors' Organisation and Procedure Law, which is a condition for
its taking effect.

In this context, the Reformed Subconcession Contract, signed on 20 April 2009 and amended by
the reform instrument of 28 May 2010, definitively constitutes the contractual title governing the
concession relationship established between the parties.

On 17 July 2019, the sub-concessionaire asked IP to accept its declaration of termination of the
concession contract, under the terms of the applicable law. On 4 September 2019, in view of the
sub-concessionaire's disagreement, RAL launched arbitration proceedings against IP, which are
still ongoing. As part of the same lawsuit, RAL filed injunction proceedings, requesting the
payment of € 30,007,923.12 in advance, plus a monthly amount until the final decision is handed
down, totalling at least € 1,162,805.95.

By decision of 9 March 2021, IP was ordered to pay € 30,007,923.12, plus a monthly amount until
the final decision is handed down, of at least € 1,162,805.95, and € 1,262,805.95 forty-five days
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after the arbitration decision. The amounts in question are being paid by IP on account of the
remuneration due under the Reformed Subconcession Contract.

From an operational standpoint, it should be noted that:

® The sub-concessionaire suspended all its operation and maintenance activities from
midnight on 6 July 2018. Against this background, within the scope of its supervisory
powers provided in the aforementioned sub-concession contract, IP took all necessary
steps to ensure safety conditions for people and goods, while triggering the mechanisms
provided in the contract to deal with the sub-concessionaire’s failure to comply with its
operation and maintenance obligations under the contract.

® Subsequently, the sub-concessionaire resumed activities only on the object defined in the
Amended Sub-Concession Contract (CSA), stating that it had been in force since 27
December 17, refusing to intervene on the roads that the contract states will become part
of IP's direct jurisdiction. This situation forced IP to intervene in this sub-concessioned
network in emergency cases to guarantee road safety conditions, given the express non-
compliance of the sub-concessionaire;

e With the injunction decision of the Arbitration Court of 9 March 2021, IP paid the amount
of € 30,007,923.12 in April 2021, and started paying the monthly amount of €
1,162,805.95 until July, in view of the following;

® On 18 July 2021, following the decision of the Arbitration Court of 9 March 2021 regarding
the injunction, the sub-concessionaire resumed operation and maintenance work on all
the stretches included in the Reformed Sub-concession Contract, including those that
would be excluded from the sub-concession due to the start of the Amended Sub-
concession Contract. From that date onwards, IP paid the sum of € 1,262,805.95.

Baixo Tejo and Litoral Oeste Sub-concessions

Following the refusal of the Court of Auditors to issue its approval for the Algarve Litoral sub-
concession contract, the Baixo Tejo and Litoral Oeste sub-concessionaires considered that the
negotiation process under the exact terms of the Memorandums of Understanding (MoU)
established with the Negotiating Committee was unfeasible, and that they had not been extended.

In other words, the two sub-concessionaires felt that negotiations should not proceed.

As a result, the MoUs expired, reinvesting the sub-concessionaires and IP in the rights and
obligations they held on the date the MoU was signed, i.e. the reformed sub-concession contracts
were resumed, including IP's payments under these contracts.

AEBT, the Baixo Tejo sub-concessionaire, however, informed [P that the (formal) continuation of
ER377-2 as part of the sub-concession, combined with AEBT's inability to continue its
construction and operation (due to the cancellation of the EIS), put the sub-concession contract
out of balance financially, depriving the project of absolutely essential revenue to fund, among
other things, the widening and major repairs provided for in the Work Plan.

IP therefore requested, on 7 February 2019 and insisted on 11 June 2019, under the terms of
Decree-Law no. 111/2012 of 23 May, requested the Secretary of State for Infrastructure (SEI) to
set up a negotiating committee, based on the objective need to contractually reflect the
impossibility of building ER377-2, which was set up by order of the UTAP coordinator on 22 July
2019, and the final report of the Negotiating Committee (CN) was submitted to the government
on 8 January 2021.
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On 4 June 2021, following the approval of NC’s report by the Secretary of State for Finance and
the Secretary of State for Infrastructures, a contract was signed between IP - Infraestruturas de
Portugal, S.A. (IP) and AEBT - Autoestradas do Baixo Tejo, S.A (AEBT), the Amendment
Agreement and other contractual documentation agreed between CN and AEBT was signed, and
IP submitted it for prior audit by the Court of Auditors (TdC).

On 20 July 2021, the Court of Auditors issued a preliminary rejection decision.

The Amended CSC therefore came into force on 29 July 2021, after AEBT adhered to IP's
understanding that the TdC's decision allowed it to come into force (see paragraph 1(c) of Clause
Four of the Amendment Agreement).

Baixo Alentejo, Pinhal Interior and Autoestrada Transmontana Sub-concessions

The Amended Subconcession Contracts (CSA) for the Baixo Alentejo, Pinhal Interior and
Autoestrada Transmontana have been in effect since 3 April 2017, 21 December 2017 and 24
May 2018 respectively.

Douro Interior Sub-concession

With regard to the Douro Interior Subconcession, the renegotiations have been completed and
the respective final minutes were signed on 15 February 2018, with the government approval
process underway.

Following the decision not to accept the appeal to the Constitutional Court mentioned above
(Algarve Litoral Subconcession), the government's final decision on the renegotiation of the Douro
Interior is no longer limited or conditioned by the pendency of that appeal to the Constitutional
Court.

5.6.2 Completion of the sub-concession network

The road network of the seven sub-concession contracts in force totals approximately 1,019 km,
with around 911 km in service (work completed), as summarised in the following table.

Given the problems surrounding the Algarve Litoral Sub-concession contract, approximately 82
kilometres of new/upgraded work has yet to be completed and 26 kilometres of work has been
suspended.

The total length of the stretches no longer takes into account the sections of the Pinhal Interior,
Transmontana, Baixo Tejo and Baixo Alentejo sub-concessions which, according to the Amended
Sub-Concession Contracts, were transferred to IP's direct jurisdiction or which were removed
from the CSA's scope following the renegotiation of the contracts.

Relevant events in 2023 include the completion and entry into service on 17 November 2023 of
the contract to increase the number of lanes (from 2x2 lanes to 2x3 lanes) on the A33 - Coina /
Montijo (IP1), over a length of around 15.6 km, and also the start of work on increasing the number
of lanes on the IC 20 - Caparica Expressway between the junction with the A2 and the Casas
Velhas junction, over a length of 3.1 km.
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(km)

Sub-concession In operation (*) — el Not Built Total
construction

Douro Interior 241 0 241
AE Transmontana (CSA) 136 0 136
Baixo Alentejo (CSA) 113 0 113

Baixo Tejo 60 0 60
Algarve Litoral 165 82 26 273
Litoral Oeste 102 0 102

Pinhal Interior (CSA) 93 0 93
Total 911 82 26 1019

(%) Includes stretches which are under operation though they were still not renovated

5.6.3 2023 Expenditure

A
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In 2023 expenditure relating to road concessions and sub-concessions totalled € 1,138.8 million
(excluding VAT), which meant an implementation rate of 91% and € 44.0 million less (-4%) than

in 2022.

Algarve

Beira Interior

Beira Litoral and Beira Alia
Costa de Prata

Greater Lisbon Region
Greater Porio Region
Interior Norte

North

Norte Litoral

AE Transmontana
Baixo Alentejo
Baixo Tejo

Douro interior
Litoral Ceste
Pinhal Interior
Algarve Litoral

Total

46,2
523
118,8
48.2

284

77,6
69,2
1671

53.0
3971
53.0

848
119.2
118,8

15,2

1182,8

517
52,4
1222
443
356
79.9
723
1716
557

493
42,0
30,7
85,0
422
1209
152

11388

T

494
50,4
1197
433
343
78,1
695
168,0
555

487
403
295
853
418
1191
1254

1252,2

wnit: € million (without VAT)

Concessions and Sub-concessions December
2022 Effective Budget

Implementation %

105%
104%
102%
102%
104%
102%
104%
102%

101%
104%
104%
100%
101%
101%

91%

The 103% implementation of Concession Availability payments (+€ 17.5 million) is essentially
the result of the following combination of factors:

e [nflation Rate (+€ 14.6 million)
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The inflation rate taken into account when updating availability fees was 4.2 per cent in
the budget, while the effective inflation rate was 9.86 per cent.

® Advances / Withholdings (+€ 3 million)
This difference will be reflected in the next payment on account in 2024.

In sub-concessions, implementation was 78 per cent, with a deviation of -€ 108.9 million, which
is essentially due to the following:

e Algarve Litoral (-<€ -114.3 million)

The payments made were lower than the amount forecast in the budget, but the Service
component was € 5.5 million higher, due to the evolution of the inflation rate, whose
estimate taken into account when drawing up the budget was lower than actual inflation,
and the increase in traffic by more than the amount forecast in the budget.

Compared to the same period in 2022, the main differences are essentially due to the reduction
in figures in the Litoral Oeste sub-concession due to the reduction in the availability tariff provided
for in the contract. In 2022 the daily availability tariff was € 311,609.18 and in 2023 it fell to €
46,575.

Under the heading of Co-payments and Rebalancing, implementation stood at 158%, with the
deviation of a further € 6.6 million mainly due to the payment of annual compensation to the Litoral
Centro Concession, budgeted for 2022.

The amount paid out for Major Repairs was € 49.8 million, which represents 64 per cent of the
budgeted amount.

5.7 TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND BUSINESS CLOUD

Within the IP Group, IP Telecom is responsible

for ensuring the effective management of the =
telecommunications infrastructure, based on “ IP Telecom
optical fibre and technical road channels, and for

supplying and providing Information and Communications Systems and
Technologies services, based on innovative solutions with a focus on
Cloud and Security technologies.

IP Telecom has taken a strategic position in the business market and in the public administration
sector, as a fibre optic wholesale communications operator and technical road channel manager
for national and international operators, complemented by operations in the Business Cloud and
Datacentre markets.

The prolongation of the war in Ukraine into 2023 and the outbreak of the conflict in the Gaza Strip
have created some uncertainty in the sector and in attracting significant investment in these areas.
However, IP Telecom has continued to demonstrate its financial strength and technical
capabilities, due to the technological developments introduced in recent years in its portfolio, both
from a telecommunications point of view and from the point of view of Cloud solutions, ensuring
a high level of commitment to the importance of guaranteeing the stability and security of critical
communications.
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In 2023, a significant number of technical rooms that had reached their maximum capacity were
renovated. These new rooms have made it possible to reinforce international connections, as well
as the new Sines-Spain connection. In the case of Vilar Formoso, a new international link was
completed on what is one of the main terrestrial electronic communications routes.

IP Telecom has consolidated its portfolio of products and services in the datacentre and cloud
offerings, with some new differentiating business technological solutions, while maintaining
cybersecurity, data protection and data sovereignty solutions as the main focus of the services
provided, guaranteeing high levels of security and resilience of business environments and
responding to legal and compliance needs.

The year 2023 was the first year with a marked growth in the IPT Partner Network partner
programme, making it possible to develop and target a set of partner relationships with a
significant expansion in the number of solutions for end customers with a relevant commercial
impact.

It should also be noted that, following the mandate given by the Portuguese government to
Infraestruturas de Portugal and IP Telecom, the contract for the Design, Construction, Supply,
Installation, Assembly and Commissioning of the Submarine Fibre Optic Telecommunications
Cable for the new CAM Ring was signed in March 2024 between Infraestruturas de Portugal and
Alcatel Submarine Networks.

Turnover in 2023, excluding business with the IP Group and CTR, was € 11.0 million, which
represents a 10 per cent increase on the figure for 2022, which was € 10.0 million.

5.8 ENGINEERING SERVICES

The mission of IP Engenharia (IPE) is to
undertake transport engineering studies and

r
projects; manage, coordinate and supervise g IP Engenharia
-—

contracts in this area; and boost the IP
Group's international business.

IP Engenharia provides specialised railway engineering services, aimed at coordinating,
preparing and reviewing studies and projects and managing, coordinating and supervising works,
essentially in the context of investments under the responsibility of Infraestruturas de Portugal.

In 2023, IP Engenharia maintained its objective of ensuring economic, social and environmental
balance in line with its guidelines for sustained growth. At present, IP Engenharia's focus is on
the railway sector, and its activity is supported by the integrated management of available
resources and skills, necessary for a quick and targeted response to the IP Group's objectives
and investments, within the scope of coordination, preparation and review of studies and projects,
technical engineering consultancy, management, coordination and consultancy in the
management of inspections and contracts.

The company thus continued to provide its share to ensuring IP's financial sustainability, within
the scope of the integrated development and modernisation of the road-rail network. Its human
assets participated, directly and indirectly within the scope of their activity, with their specific
technical skills and as planned, in IP's investment plans, with particular emphasis on the "Ferrovia
2020" Investment Plan and the "PNI 2030" National Investment Programme.
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It is worth highlighting that the average occupancy rates of the technical teams remained
practically in line with the forecasts throughout the year, along with continued strict compliance
with the deadlines agreed with IP's client departments, most significantly with the Engineering
and Environment and Enterprise departments.

Development of the International Business

In 2023, the IP Group's international market approach strategy was maintained, under the
responsibility of IPE, with a focus on the Group's good institutional relations with the public entities
that manage road and rail infrastructures in Portuguese-speaking countries and the Mozambican
government, and a third programme that began in November 2022 was carried over to 2024.

The year was also marked by several requests for the provision of technical assistance services,
requested by various governments and |IP counterparts in Portuguese-speaking countries, whose
negotiations, together with Portuguese diplomatic entities, will continue in 2024. Also noteworthy
is the histaric partnership between IPE and INFRA.

IP Engenharia's income from Engineering and Transport Services, excluding intra-IP Group flows,
was € 107,000 in 2023, which represents a decrease on the € 295,000 recorded in 2022, as a
result of the decrease in services rendered in 2023, with activity basically centred on the Ministry
of Public Works, Housing and Water Resources of Mozambique.

5.9 PROPERTY AND COMMERCIAL SPACE MANAGEMENT

IP Patrimonio (IPP) is the company within the
IP Group responsible for managing and

A
monetising real estate assets, with vast ‘lP Patﬂmémo

experience in the commercial operation of the

network of transport stations and interfaces,

guaranteeing their efficient use, enhancement, renovation and
preservation.

The results achieved by IP Patrimonio in 2023 are a reflection of the strategy that has been
implemented, which has made it possible to consolidate the recovery of IP Patriménio's activity
after the Covid-19 pandemic, reinforced both by the extraordinary measures that the company
was able to implement and by the search for new solutions to the challenges it faced, and
supported by the work capacity and professionalism of its Employees.

Turnover in 2023 (€19.71 thousand) exceeded the figure for the same period in 2022 (€16.95
thousand), and also exceeded the figure for the same period in 2019 (€17.38 thousand), the pre-
pandemic year, a result achieved in a context in which the results of the operation of the Car
Parks have not yet reached the 2019 figures, while continuing to gradually recover.

In this still adverse context following the pandemic, aggravated by the effects of the Ukrainian
War on the global economy, IPP managed to sign/renew around 519 sub-concession contracts,
out of a total of around 1,232 contracts in force at the end of 2023. It should be noted that the
signing of the 113 new contracts translates into a financial investment of around € 5.2 million
expected to be made by the sub-concessionaires during the term of the respective contracts,
which is one of the signs of the market's continued interest in upgrading the spaces under IPP's
management.

Of the procedures promoted in 2023, the following stand out:
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Continued liaison with the government's housing department, identifying properties with
housing potential to be allocated to the various government programmes in this area.

Start of the revamping work at Porto S. Bento Station for a future restaurant space.

Work has begun on remodelling the Viana do Castelo station building with a view to
adapting it into a hotel.

Within the scope of the National Ecotrails Plan, negotiations continued with municipalities
and inter-municipal communities, maintaining the objective of creating a network of
unigue routes.

Work carried out to enhance and maintain decommissioned heritage, with various works
in progress or completed, giving these buildings a new lease of life and soul. An example
is the work on the building in Macedo de Cavaleiros, on the Tua Line.

In the area of property upgrading and refurbishment, the company continued to monitor
the processes already underway, which are extremely important and will contribute to the
company's results in the future. Of particular note was the resumption of the Pragal
Railway Complex Redevelopment and Enhancement project.

Preparation of the preliminary programmes for the Porto-Campanha and Gaia - Santo
Ovidio High Speed Stations.

Maintaining efforts to inspect all the equipment and functionalities of the railway stations,
as well as supervising the proper execution of cleaning services. Of particular note in this
context was the process of preparing and monitoring railway stations, especially the
cleaning component, in view of World Youth Day.

Completion of the "Remodelling and Improvement of Floor 4 of Building Il at IP's
headquarters"” project, as part of the IP Group's Service Facilities Intervention Plan.
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6. ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

6.1 RESULTS

Amounts in € thousand

% Change

income 2022 2023 23122 A% 23122
Operating Income 1,318,926 1,371,987 53,061 4%
Operating expenses 1,080,631 1,163,369 81177 8%
Operating profit/(loss) 238,295 208,618 -29,677 -12%
Financial Results -191,217 -181,983 9,234 -5%
Profit/(Loss) before tax 45517 26,635 -18,882 -41%
Net profit 48,299 -18,087 -66,386 -137%

The results achieved by the IP Group in 2023 were, in summary, as follows:

A

Infraestruturas
de Porlugal

e Operating Income reached € 1,371.9 million, i.e. € 53.1 million

(14%) more than in 2022;

+« Operating expenses totalled € 1,163.4 million, increasing by € 82.5

million over 2022;

o EBITDA stood at € 208.6 million, dropping by € 28.1 million as

compared to the same period last year.

« Financial Results totalled -€ 181.9 million, improving by € 9.2 million

in relation to the previous year.

o Pre-tax profits totalled € 26.6, a decrease of € 18.9 million compared to

2022.

e Net Consolidated Results totalled -€ 18.1 million, a decrease of

€ 66.4 million over 2022.

6.2 OPERATING INCOME

Operating Income totalled € 1,371.9 million, an increase of € 53.1 million (+4%) compared to

2022.
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Amounts in € thousand

- % Change

Sales and services 1171499 1200 890 29391 3%
Road Service Consignment (RSC) 665 501 541731 -23 769 4%
Tolls 294646 322 421 21775 9%
Rail Senvices 88 468 24 048 -4420 -5%
State Grantor - Revenue LDI 34903 34140 -763 -2%
Construction contracts 50947 71794 20847 41%
Other senvices rendered 37035 46 756 9721 26%
Operating subsidies 55055 65 405 10350 19%
Impairments (losses/reversals) 1570 152 1447 -90%
Other Income and gains 90802 105 541 14738 16%
Total 1318926 1371987 53 061 4%

Sales and services

Income from Sales and Services totalled € 1,200.9 million in 2023, 3% more than in 2022.

Road Service Consignment (RSC)

The National Road Network is financed by the toll fees charged on toll roads and other concession
operating income and by the Road Service Consignment (RSC), created by Law no. 24-E/2022,
of 30 December, which simultaneously extinguishes the previous Road Service Contribution,
created by Law no. 55/2007, of 31 August.

The RSC is therefore the consideration paid by users for the use of the road network and is levied
on petrol, diesel and LPG subject to and not exempt from the tax on petroleum and energy
products (ISP).

RSC income totalled € 641.7 million, compared to the same period in 2022, a decrease of € 23.8
million (-3.6%).

Tolls

In 2023, income from toll revenues increased by € 27.8 million compared to
the previous year (+9%), totalling € 322.4 million.

2022 2023

® Corcessions Sul=concessions  # Other IF rcads:

unit: € thousand
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The largest share of toll revenue comes from the use of the State Concessions network, in which
IP is the holder of the revenue from toll collection, which totalled € 255.8 million, representing an
increase of 9% compared to 2022.

The toll collection activity on motorways sub-concessioned by IP generated € 34.1 million, 9%
more than in the same period last year.

On the network under IP's direct management, toll revenues totalled € 32.5 million, 10% more
than the previous year.

The increase in toll revenue, both compared to the budget and to the same period last year, is
essentially due to the increase in road traffic to levels slightly above the pre-covid era.

It should be borne in mind that the start of 2022 was influenced by the weight of teleworking, as
there were restrictions associated with the pandemic situation that no longer apply in 2023.

Railway Services

Income from Railway Services, which includes the use of train channels,
the recovery of capacity requested but not used (suppressions by the
operator), the use of service facilities, the provision of assistance,
additional services and ancillary services, totalled € 84.1 million in 2023, €
4.4 million less (-5%) than in 2022.

114

/—3—4/ 73— 121
A s AGT _““\_-.

28,3 —
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w A liary Services

Borvice favililics

+ Additione

2022 2023

unit: € thousand

The variation in 2023 compared to 2022 is mainly due to income from Additional Services, which
fell by € 3.1 million (-17.6%) and income from the Infrastructure User Fee (UF), which fell by € 2.1
million (-3%) to e 65.8 million.

Passenger services, which account for 89 per cent of UF's revenue, fell by 3.7 per cent in 2023,
while freight services grew by 1.7 per cent. The following table shows developments by segment.
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Amounts in € thousand

s ““ i

Urban and sub-urban 28 272 27702 2%
URegional and Interegional 14 000 13131 T%
UHLong Distance and Intemational 16938 16111 5%
UkMerchandise 7 268 7337 1%
UkMarches - Split by operator 1362 1409 3%
UkSpecial 86 95 10%

67 925 65786 3%

The main events that affected activity and were reflected in the decrease in income compared to
2022 were the following:

® Sirikes by CP and IP employees since the beginning of 2023, with a strong impact on
traffic, representing -2.25 million Tks realised;

® Closure of the Beira Alta Line, between Pampilhosa and Guarda, from 19 April 2022, as
part of ongoing works (-0.75 million CK realised);

® Adverse weather conditions, which forced the partial interruption of rail traffic on the
Douro Line for two days.

In terms of services provided at Service Facilities, and more specifically in terms of use at
Passenger Stations, the most important service is the Use of Stations and Platforms Service,
which includes the use of waiting room areas, the display of travel information and the areas
containing the technical equipment installed there.

Its valuation, per commercial stop made by the passenger train at a given location, represented
an income of around €2.6 million in 2023, with a negative variation of 2.4% compared to 2022. In
aggregate, all the services within the Service Facilities represented a total income of € 3.4 million
in the period under review, a figure that represents a decrease of 0.8 per cent compared to the
same period in 2022.

Construction contracts

The Construction Contracts item contributes to the increase in operating income compared to
2022.

Construction Contracts represent IP's income from its activity of building the National Road
Network in accordance with its Road Concession Contract. This item includes all of IP's
construction activities, either directly or through sub-concessions.

The capitalised financial expenses correspond to the financial expenses incurred by IP during the
road construction phase; they consist of the financial expenses used to finance the acquisition of
the State Concession Network.

Amounts in € thousand

SP—— ﬂ“ as 2322

Contracts for the Construction of new infrastructures 40289 61 435 52%
Capitafisation Interest Expenses 10 658 10359 -3%
Total 50 947 71794 41%
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The figure totalled € 71.8 million in 2023, € 20.8 million (41%) more than in 2022, reflecting higher
implementation of construction activities under |IP's direct management compared to the previous
year.

Other services rendered

Other services rendered increased by € 9.7 million compared to 2022. This variation is essentially
due to the Real Estate and Commercial Space Management component, which grew by € 2.6
million to € 19.3 million, corresponding to the amounts from space rental, sub-concessions, car
park rental, development management and advertising.

Amounts in € fousand

- % Change .

Management of Property and Commercial Areas 16 718 19 340 2622 16%
Telecommunications 10 009 10 988 980 10%
Engineenng and fransportation services 295 107 -188 -54%
Merchandise Terminals 1833 1651 -182 -10%
Licensing 655 913 258 39%
Service areas 2071 2201 130 6%
Technical road channel 3501 3893 392 11%
Other 1953 7662 5710 292%
Total 37 035 46 756 9721 26%

The Telecommunications component includes the provision of telecommunications services to
the market, rental, maintenance and other services associated with optical fibre, as well as
technological solutions in application areas such as ERP, CRM, Service Management, Cyber
Defence, Cyber Security, among others. Turnover in this segment reached € 11.0 million in 2023,
€ 980,000 more than in 2022.

Engineering and Transport Services encompass activities related to multidisciplinary road and/or
rail projects and the corresponding mobility solutions, both nationally and internationally.

Turnover in this segment totalled € 107,000 in 2023, € 188,000 less than the previous year.

The operation of the Railway Terminals in 2023 resulted in revenue of € 1.7 million, down by €
182,000 (-64%) on the previous year. The deviation is due to the transfer of the IP Leixdes
terminal to APDL on 1 February 2023, in compliance with Decree-Law 25/2022 of 17 August.

Licensing-related income depends essentially on the annual fee collection process for PACs (Fuel
Filling Stations), which begins with the reporting of litres sold in the previous year by licence
holders, although this is scheduled to take place by 15 February of the following year. There is
some time lag between the first and last reports, which is reflected in the subsequent stages of
the process, namely in the calculation of fees, notification for payment, payment and finally the
issuing of invoices.

The amount recognised under this heading was € 913,000, an increase of € 258,000 compared
to the same period in 2022.

Income from the Service Areas totalled € 2.2 million, an increase of € 130,000 (6%) compared to
2022. This increase is justified by the positive variation in sales and the annual updating of rents
based on the CPI, as defined in the concession contracts for the operation of service areas.
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Turnover from the Technical Road Channel in 2023 was € 3.9 million, which represents an
increase of € 392 thousand (+11%) compared to the figure recorded in 2022.

Operating subsidies / Compensatory Allowances

Amounts in€housand

%
Change (A% 23/22
23122

Compensatory Allow ances 55,055 65,405 10,350 19%

The income from compensatory payments under the Programme Contract for 2023 was € 65.4
million, up by € 10.4 million (+19%) on 2022.

The amount of income recognised in 2023 corresponds to the amount approved by Council of
Ministers Resolution (RCM) no. 3/2024, of January 5, which approved the award of € 69,426,130,
plus value added tax at the legal rate in force, as compensation to be paid by the State to
Infraestruturas de Portugal, S. A. (IP, S. A.) for the year 2023, for fulfilling the public service
obligations of managing the railway infrastructure.

The total amount of the income reflected in the 2023 accounts is lower than that of the
aforementioned RCM due to the fact that a correction/regularisation of -€ 4 million was made to
the amounts from previous years, relating to the 2017 and 2019 financial years, which were
considered to be amounts that could no longer be received.

Impairment (losses/reversals)

In 2023, impairments (losses / reversals) of -€ 152,000 were recognised, which represents an
improvement of € 1.4 million compared to 2022. Further details of this account can be found in
Part |V - Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes.

Other Income and Gains

Income under Other Income and Gains totalled € 105.5 million, € 14.7 million more than in 2022.
This variation is explained by the increase in the Operating Subsidies item, which reflects the
amounts received under the Council of Ministers Resolution of 12 January 2023, relating to bad
weather.
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Amounts in € thousand

: Hfective | Hfective | % Change -
e
0%

Investment subsidies 66,349 59,660 -6,669 -10%
Income from concession fees 8,654 8,854 0%
Gains on the sale of tangible assets 135 303 167 124%
Operating subsidies 1,079 17,491 16,412 1521%
Gains on the disposal of w aste 3,011 8,187 5176 172%
Concessions for use and licences 1,997 1,318 -679 -34%
Accidents 1618 1,511 107 1%
Other 7,759 8,217 458 6%
Total 90,802 105,541 14,738 16%

6.3 OPERATING EXPENSES

In 2023 Operating Expenses totalled € 1,163.4 million, an increase of € 81.2 million (+8%)
compared to 2022.

A

Infraestruturas
de Porlugal

Amounts in € thousand

. % Change -
Operating expenses “n 23122 A% 23122

Cost of goods sold and matenals consumed 280709 323 450 42741 15%
Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Road Network 126 583 144 782 18199 14%
Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Railway Network 76 425 79 950 3525 5%
Other ESS 161 051 160 953 -98 0%
Personnel Expenses 142623 151 705 9082 6%
Expenses//(income) on subsidiaries and associates -9 60 B89 736%
Expenses/reversals of depreciation and amortisation expenses 273679 236 878 -36 801 -13%
Provisions (Increase/Decrease) 13 333 57 199 43 866 329%
Other expenses and losses 7798 8392 594 8%
Total 1082191 1163 369 81177 7.5%
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Cost of goods sold and Materials Consumed

Amounts in€ thousand

: Effective Effective % Change -
Cost of goods sold and materials consumed 2022 2023 23122 A% 23122

New road infrastructures 40 288 61435 21146 52%
State Tolls Concessions 219118 238424 19 306 9%
Consumption of Matenals for Railway Maintenance 7170 11 447 4277 60%
Consumption of Matenals for Railway Investment 14 132 12143 -1988 -14%

Total 280709 323 450 42741 15%

A. New Road infrastructures

The figures for the construction of New Road Infrastructures refer to construction activities under
IP's direct management and are calculated on the basis of the monthly works monitoring reports,
so they reflect the physical progress of the works in progress.

Implementation in 2023 totalled € 61.4 million, 52% higher than in the same period in 2022,
reflecting a higher execution of construction activities under IP's direct management compared to
the previous year.

B. Tolls - State Concessions

The amount to be recognised in 2023 totalled € 238.4 million, which shows a deviation of +9%
compared to the same period in 2022, a variation similar to that recorded in income from tolls on
State Concessions, and which results from the increase in traffic on the toll network to levels
higher than those seen in 2019.

C. Consumption of Materials - Railway Maintenance and Investment

These items include the consumption of various types of materials used in the maintenance and
investment of the National Railway Network (NRwN). In 2023, the consumption of materials for
railway maintenance was € 11.4 million, representing an increase of 60 per cent compared to the
same period last year, and the consumption of materials for railway investment was € 12.1 million,
a decrease of 14 per cent compared to 2022.

Road Maintenance, Repair and Safety

Total expenditure on road maintenance, repair and safety in 2023 was € 144.8 million, € 18.2
million more (+14%) than in 2022.

unit: € thousand

Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Road Network m % Change 23122 m

Reguiar road maintenance 55 665 55665

Road safety 10335 10710 376 4%
Current Conservation of infrastructure 59515 76 640 17125 29%
Road Telematics Maintenance 1068 1766 699 65%
Total 126 583 144 782 18199 14%

Periodic Road Maintenance corresponds to recognising IP's increased responsibility for the
costs required to maintain the level of service of the roads and engineering structures imposed
on it by its Concession Contract. Based on technical surveys of repair needs and the control of
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an average quality index of the roads and engineering structures, an annualised cost is calculated
for programmed maintenance that allows the average quality index of the network to be
maintained at the values at which it was received.

The accounting value is € 55.7 million per year.

Excluding the accounting clearance recorded, Periodic Maintenance is estimated at € 58.6 million,
which represents an increase of around 29% compared to the same period in 2022. Road Safety
activities are supported by the Road Safety Plan which, in addition to autonomous interventions,
also includes interventions in the area of vertical and horizontal signalling, traffic lights and the
placement of new safety barriers, among others. Expenditure in 2023 totalled € 10.7 million, €
376,000 more than in 2022.

Current Maintenance corresponds to the expenditure for the year on current maintenance work
on roads and engineering structures with the aim of maintaining comfortable traffic conditions,
preventing the deterioration of the infrastructure and the quality of the service.

The current management model for the day-to-day maintenance of the national road network
under IP's direct administration is essentially anchored in 18 Multi-Annual District Contracts,
intervening on the road and adjacent area with the aim of maintaining comfortable traffic and
safety conditions, avoiding the degradation of infrastructures and service conditions,
complemented by 18 biennial district contracts for carrying out vegetation management work.

Under current maintenance contracts, work is carried out such as repairing and improving
pavements, improving road drainage systems, maintaining bridges and viaducts, replacing and
adapting signs and other road protection and safety equipment, stabilising embankments and
cleaning verges and land adjacent to the road. The set of vegetation maintenance activities
around the infrastructures, including intervention in fuel management strips to fulfil IP's obligations
in terms of defending the forest against fires, are increasingly valued and, given their specific
nature, have been included in contracts for vegetation management work.

Current maintenance and operation also cover the high-performance road network, namely the
Greater Lisbon and Greater Porto motorways, the Marao, A23, A26 and A26-1, which in addition
to current maintenance work similar to that of the conventional network, also includes operation
activities, namely patrolling, network monitoring and user assistance.

A sum of € 76.6 million were spent in current maintenance in 2023, which represents an increase
of 29 per cent compared to 2022. This increase is essentially due to the work carried out to repair
the damage caused by the storms in December 2022 and January 2023, with the immediate
development of the most urgent activities to restore safe traffic conditions, which also occurred in
the contracts for the maintenance of the High-Performance Network.

The financial implementation of Road Telematics Maintenance activities totalled € 1.8 million in
2023, which represents an increase of 65% compared to the same period in 2022.

Railway Maintenance, Repair and Safety

In order to ensure the maintenance of the National Railway Network (NRwN), complying with the
planned service levels, IP has various contracts for the provision of maintenance services. Most
of these contracts are multi-annual and cover Systematic Preventive Maintenance (SPM),
Conditional Preventive Maintenance (CPM) and Corrective Maintenance (CM).

Total expenditure in 2023 was € 80 million, representing a 5 per cent increase on 2022. The
speciality that contributed most to this increase was ‘track’, with an increase of € 1.5 million
compared to 2022.




2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Repo Infraestruturas
.115 | de Porlugal

unit: € thousand

Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Railway Network m“ % Change 23/22 | A% 23/22

Track 33785 35328 1544 5%
Signalling 13 024 13445 421 3%
Telecommunications 4 267 4756 489 11%
Catenary 5508 6013 505 9%
Low Voitage 2322 2 607 285 12%
Substations 778 571 207 27%
Artworks 5946 5388 -558 9%
Engineering structures 345 238 -106 31%
Level Crossings 509 566 57 1%
Recovery of matenals 700 361 339 -48%
SOS frain 1591 1670 79 5%
Lifts Esc. Escalators 861 932 [&! 8%
Deforestation 5960 7278 1318 22%
Other 829 796 33 4%
Total 76 425 79950 3525 5%

Other Supplies and Services

Expenditure on Other External Supplies and Services in 2023 totalled € 161 million, in line with
the figure for 2022.

Amounts in € thousand

o,
Other supplies and services ﬂﬂ ® 2:;296 A% 23122

O&M EP Sub-concessions 53125 61413 8238 16%
Toll collection costs 17 896 25229 7333 41%
RSC Collection costs 13310 -13 310 -100%:
Electricity 34613 30515 -4 098 -12%:
Fees, Cansultancy and Other Specialised Labour and re 4640 4 474 -166 4%
Car fleet 3685 3571 -128 3%
Surveillance 7646 8334 689 9%
T 4962 5398 437 9%
Cleaning 8029 9105 1076 13%
Travelling and accommodation 473 513 40 9%
Communications 175 250 75 43%
Remaining ESS 12 498 12 165 -333 -3%
Total 161 051 160 953 -98 0%

Mote: the Electricity item does notinciude the energy consumed by electric vehicies, which is considered in the Car Fleet item.
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O&M EP Sub-concessions

This item represents the accounting recognition of operation and maintenance costs incurred by
the sub-concessionaires under the sub-concession contracts in force. The amount totalled € 61.4
million, an increase of 16% on the previous year.

Toll collection costs

This item includes the payment of a variable fee and the monthly adjustment of accounts (cost
offsetting) of the tolled network. In 2023 there was an increase of € 7.3 million (+41%) compared
to 2022. This variation is directly associated with the increase in toll income.

Expenses relating to the collection of the Road Service Consignment (RSC)

Under the terms of Law no. 24-E/2022, of 30 December, which amends, among other things,Law
no. 55/2007, of 31 August (which regulated the financing of the national road network by EP -
Estradas de Portugal, E. P. E.), and which came into force on 1 January 2023, the RSC
corresponds to a portion of the revenue from the tax on oil and energy products (ISP) that is
transferred from the State sub-sector budget to IP, constituting its own revenue, and this revenue
is the consideration for the use of the national road network, constituting a source of funding for
the national road network under the responsibility of IP, with regard to its conception, design,
construction, maintenance, operation, upgrading and widening..

This amendment repealed article 5 of Law 55/2007 of 31 August, which stipulated that the costs
of settlement and collection incurred by the Directorate-General for Customs and Excise would
be compensated for by withholding 2% of the proceeds of the RSC, so these costs will cease to
exist in 2023.

Electric power

Electricity expenses totalled € 30.5 million, representing a decrease of € 4.1 million compared to
2022 (-12%), a variation that is fundamentally the result of changes in electricity prices (lower in
2023 compared to 2022).

Car fleet

Expenses with the car fleet recognised under ES&S amount to € 3.6 million in 2023, which
represents a decrease of € 114,000 compared to the same period in 2022.

Total expenditure on the vehicle fleet, taking into account amortisation and leasing interest in
addition to ES&S, totalled € 5.7 million, 0.4% less than in 2022, as shown in the following table:

Amounts in € thousand

Car fleet RS A% 23122
ar flee 23122 o

Car renting expenses 10 1 -9 -90%
Fuel 2,484 2,187 -297 -12%
Tolls 424 557 133 31%
Maintenance 336 386 50 15%
Insurance 416 427 11 3%
Car tax 16 14 -2 -14%
Repayments 2,441 2,545 103 4%

Total 6,127 6,116 -1 0%
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Surveillance and Safety

The surveillance and security item mainly includes the human surveillance contract for IP, in the
administrative services buildings and operational centres, but also other expenses such as access
control maintenance, fire extinguisher and reel maintenance, as well as occasional surveillance
services, among others.

Surveillance and security costs in 2023 totalled € 8.3 million, 9% more than in the same period in
2022 (€ 689 thousand). This increase is essentially due to:

® The fact that the new security and human surveillance contract includes wage increases,
set out in the Labour and Employment Bulletin as a result of the agreement between trade
unions and security companies. This increase represents a deviation of around 9%
compared to the previous year,

® The establishment of Surveillance and Security Contracts - Vale de Figueira - LC km
84+031 of the Northern Line and for the pedestrian LC at km 350+098 of the Algarve Line
(T/VRSA), which did not exist in the same period in 2022 (as a result of the risk
assessment of the entry into service of the new signalling).

Fees, Consultancy Services and Other Specialised Works
This item totalled € 4.5 million in 2023, down € 166,000 (-4%) on 2022.
IT

In 2023, € 5.4 million were spent on IT services, € 437 thousand more than in 2022. This variation
is mainly due to the increase in spending on software licences, due to higher market prices in
licensing contracts.

Cleaning

Cleaning expenses totalled € 9.1 million in 2023, € 1.1 million more than in 2022. The new contract
for 2023 updated prices by an average of around 8 per cent, reflecting the need to update the
Guaranteed Minimum Monthly Wage.

Travelling and accommodation
This caption comprises travelling and lodging expenses at home and abroad.

Amounts in € thousand

% Change
Travel and subsistence allowances A% 23122
23122
17 6%

Travelling and accommodation - in Portugal

Travelling and accommodation - abroad 171 194 23 14%

Total 473 513 40 9%

In 2023, there was an outlay of € 513,000, which represents an increase of € 40,000 compared
to 2022, justified by the increase in international travel and stays following the severe restrictions
during the pandemic.
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Communications

Expenditure on communications in 2023 was € 250,000, € 75,000 more than in 2022, reflecting
the increase in prices in the communications sector.

Personnel Expenses

In 2023, the IP Group's personnel expenses totalled € 51.7 million, which represents an increase
of € 9 million compared to 2022 (+6%).

Amounts in € thousand

% Change o
Personnel Expenses ““ 23122 A% 23122

Personnel expenses 142 084 151250 9 166 6%
Compensations 85 28 =57 67%
Training 454 428 -26 £%
Total 142 623 151705 9082 6%

The increase in staff costs is essentially due to the combined application of the Collective Labour
Agreement in force in the IP Group, which translates into salary increases provided for in the
Career System and in pecuniary clauses linked to the different forms of work, with the annual
salary increases authorised for the SEE.

The IP Group's workforce on 31 December 2023 is 3,630 employees, 17 fewer than on 31
December 2022. The average headcount in 2023 is 3,643 employees, one more than in 2022.

The evolution of the workforce from 2020 to 2023 is shown below.

Evolution of the Workforce

3,667
St 3,642 3,643
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The IP Group's headcount structure, by Group company, is as shown in the graph.

Structure of the IP Group workforce
1% %

\

—3

5l uIlT »|lE mIPF

Provisions (Increase/Decrease)

Provisions totalling € 57.2 million were recognised in 2023, € 43.9 million more than in 2022. The
increase in provisions in 2023 is essentially due to the reinforcement of the provision (€ 25,597
thousand) relating to the lawsuit over the railway accident in Soure in 2020, whose provisioned
amount in 2023 is € 18,619 thousand.

Other Expenses and Losses

Other Expenses and Losses totalled € 8.4 million in 2023, an increase of € 594 thousand
compared to 2022.

Expenses/Reversal of Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation expenses totalled € 236.9 million in 2023, € 36.8 million less than
in 2022.

6.4 INCOME TAX FOR THE PERIOD

In 2023, income tax for the period was negative by € 44.7 million, mainly due to the changes to
tax legislation introduced by the 2023 State Budget Law (Law no. 24-D/2022, of 30 December),
which had a significant impact on the IP Group's financial statements, namely:

e The introduction in the Tax Benefits Statute of Article 43 D - Tax Incentive Scheme for the
Capitalisation of Companies (ICE).

e The alteration of the tax loss deduction regime provided for in article 52 of the CIRC,
whereby there is no longer a time limit for the recovery of tax losses generated from 2023
onwards.

Taking this benefit into account meant that IP, which has had a history of taxable profits and
benefited from the financing policy pursued by the shareholder of strengthening equity through
capital increase operations, given the magnitude of the increase, now showed a loss in tax terms.
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This situation, combined with the aforementioned amendment to article 52 of the CIRC, meant
that the recovery rates for deferred tax assets were revised downwards, with a significant impact
on the result for the year.

6.5 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The amount of capital expenditure carried out by the end of 2023
was € 620.6 million, growing by 31% compared to 2022.

This is the amount of investment associated with interventions carried out on the road-rail
infrastructure under IP's direct management, i.e. in the development of interventions to expand,
modernise and upgrade the network. It also includes the equipment needed to carry out IP's
activities as the company responsible for managing the road-rail infrastructure. It does not
comprise the charges assumed with Public-private Partnerships.

Amourte i € thousand

% Change
2322
34%

Femovia 2020 3476224 466 2387 1186162
PNI2030 105034 199934 9.450,0 90%
Other railway investments 58 6288 64 217 4 55836 10%
Railway Investment 4167546 550 449,4 1336948 32%
RRP 17 0356 487034 31 B67,8 186%
PVAE 254430 83372 71058 -67%
PNI2023 1405 407 4 266,9 190%
PETI3+ 38609 18989 15620 -51%
Other road investments 25093 1773 -732.0 -29%
Road Investment 489893 611243 121350 25%
Management Support Investments 73319 89971 1665,2 23%
Total A473075.8 620 570,38 147 495.0 3%

The amount of road and rail investment, which includes Management Support Investments
(MSls), in 2023 was € 620.6 million, which represents an increase of 31 per cent compared to the
implementation in 2022, which was € 473.1 million.

Particularly noteworthy was the increase in investment under the Railway 2020 Investment Plan,
which totalled € 466.2 million, € 118.6 million more than in 2022.

The "Other Railway Investments" item saw € 64.2 million of investment, € 5.6 million more than
in 2022. This item includes the Mondego Mobility System, which totalled € 38.7 million in 2023.

In road investments, the RRP stands out, with an implementation of € 48.7 million in 2023.

Additional information on each investment is presented in Chapter 5.3.
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6.6 FINANCING THE RAILWAY 2020 INVESTMENT PLAN AND CAM RING

The implementation of the Ferrovia 2020 Investment Plan relies on a financial package made up
of EU funds from the Connecting Europe Facility (CEF) programme, both in the General package
(30 to 50% contribution) and in the Cohesion package (up to 85% contribution) and from the
Portugal 2020 programme (up to 85% contribution), complemented by the National Public
Counterpart.

During 2023, with regard to the approval of new Community funding associated with investment
projects, the most significant event that occurred within the 2021-2027 programming period
corresponds to the CEF Digital Programme, and the application for the "Atlantic CAM" project
was approved.

Regarding the implementation of EU funds allocated to IP for the development of road and rail
infrastructure and the CAM Ring Project, a total of € 220.53 million were received in 2023.

The table below shows all active applications in 2023:

Programme
Period

Application Total Costof = Reimbursement
Status Investment EU

Programme Form Application Designation

ECF- Sines/Elvas (Spain) Railway Connection: AN
QFP 2014-2020 Railway Evora-Caia Section and Technical 238l 286 142 571 115994 394
GENERAL = (active)
Station atkm 118
ECF- . Sines/Elvas (Spain) Railway Connection: Approved
QFP2014-2020 | copegioN Raiay | £ Caia section (Phase 2) (active) 059,05 20839020
ECF- . Beira Alta (Pampilhosa-Vilar Formeso): Approved >
QFP 2014-2020 COHESION Railway PE+ Works (active) 547 741 250 375 860 046
ECF- g Sines/Elvas (Spain) Railway Connection; Approved
QFP 20142020 | congsion | @MY | Sines Ermidas-Grandola (active) Rl BB
ECE= : : 2 : 2 Approved
QFP 2014-2020 GENERAL Railway Studies Lisboa-Madnd HS Connection (active) 7932 847 3 966 424
ECF- £ Studies Porto-Lisboa HS connection (1st Approved
QFP 2014-2020 GENERAL Railway phase) (active) 35 464 132 17 732 066
COMPETE 3 Minho Line — Modernisation of the Nine/ Approved
QFP 2014-2020 2020 Railway Valenca border section (Phase 2) (active) 84713513 62 550 175
COMPETE . MNorth Line- Modemisation of the Approved
QFP 2014-2020 2020 Railway Ovar/Gaia section (Phase 2); (active) 116 055 102 97 362 767
COMPETE . Morth Line — Modemisation of the Approved
20N 2020 s Alfarelos-Pampilhosa section (Phase 2); (active) e <0080
COMPETE g - . - Approved
QFP 2014-2020 2020 Railway Algarve Line - Electrification (active) 108 030 703 36 647 146
North Line — Modernisation of the
QFP 20142020 | COMPETE Railway | Santana Gartaxo/Entroncamento section | - pproved 38 055 070 34 691 472
2020 {active)
(Phase 2)
QFP2014-2020 | COMPETE Railway | Norte Line - Bobadela Terminal Approved 10050 064 7291698
2020 {active)
Beira Baixa Line - Castelo
QFP 20142020 | COMPETE Railway | Branco/Covilhd/Guarda Section (2nd Appraved 82219305 74 989 791
2020 Phase) {active)
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Programme
Period

Application Total Cost of Reimbursement

Programme Application Designation Status Investment EU

QFP 2014-2020

S&T - Signalling and
Telecommunications on the Beira Alta
QFP 20142020 | COMPETE Raiway | Line (CIN), Evora-Caia, Sines-Ermidas- ‘“‘(‘;ﬂz‘gd 106 610 999 30 463 382
Grandola (ClS) and Contumil-Ermesinde
(CNS)
) COMPETE . Douro Line - Modemisation of Caide- Approved
QFP 2014-2020 2020 Railway Marca de Canaveses-Régua Section (active) 27 742 998 16 963 655
COMPETE 7 Oeste Line - Modernisation of Melecas- Approved
QFP 2014-2020 2020 Railway Caldas da Rainha Section (artive) 168 697 779 27 686 912
; _ 5 o 31 gk Approved
QFP 2014-2020 POSEUR Railway Modermsation of the Cascais Line (active) 128 360 785 21588715
QFP 20142020 | POSEUR s | MondegoMobimy Systesr-Deployment’ || Approved 166 773 027 38264 139
of System {active)
- ECF- . Sines/Elvas (Spain) Railway Connection: Approved )
QFP 2021-2027 GENERAL Railway B Eios Niro Geive) 3481473 17 407 266
QFP2021-2027 | CEF Digital | SUbmaine | nu e cAM Approved 96 599 588 40 500 000
Cables {active)

TOTAL 2 256 718 288 1 143 836 062
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6.7 EQUITY STRUCTURE
By end 2023 Total Assets amounted to € 30,092.2 million, made up mainly of Intangible Assets
(€ 21.778 billion) relating essentially to the right resulting from the Road Concession Contract.

Equity totalled € 12,903.6 million on 31 December 2023 (43% of Assets) and Total Liabilities
amounted to € 17,188.6 million (57% of Assets).

Amounts in € thousand

Equity Structure 2020 2021 2022 2023 |* i:;';ge A% 23122
Assets 27,3057 279387 289203 30,0022 11719 4%
Non current 212156 214827 21,8008 22177 377 2%
Current 6,090.1 64560  7,1194 7.915 795 11%
Equity 85284 101569 11,4872 12,9036 14164 12%
Liabilities 187773 17,7818 174331 17,1886  -2445 A%
Non current 147409 141507 137965 131375 6590 5%
Current 40364 36221 36366 40511 4146 11%

Assets at 31 December 2023 increased by € 1,171.9 million compared to 31 December 2022,
of which € 377 million in Non-Current Assets and € 795 million in Current Assets.

The increase in Non-Current Assets is essentially due to the Intangible Assets item (+€ 414.8
million).

In Current Assets, the increase is mainly due to the Grantor State - Accounts receivable item
(+€ 432.9 million) and the increase in the balance of the State and other public entities item (+€
207.4 million). Details of this item can be found in Part Il - Separate Financial Statements and
Notes.

In terms of Liabilities, there was a decrease of € 244.5 million, of which € 659 million less is the
change in Non-Current Liabilities.

In Non-Current Liabilities, the significant decrease was due to the reduction in items Borrowings
(-€ 571.7 million) and Other Payables (-€ 135.9 million), essentially due to the reduction in the
item "Accrued Liabilities - Subconcessions”, which records the IP Group's liability to the sub-
concessionaires for construction, operation and maintenance services already carried out by
them but not yet invoiced.

In Current Liabilities, the item Borrowings made a significant contribution to the increase in
Liabilities (+€ 409.7 million).

During 2023, capital increases totalled € 1,434,515,000, so that share capital at the end of the
year stood at € 12,586,670,000.
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6.8 RESULTS BY AREA AND MISSION

BACKGROUND

IP is obliged to provide the public service of managing the infrastructure of the National Railway
Network (NRwN), under the terms of Decree-Law no. 104/97 of 29 April, maintained in force by
article 20(1) of Decree-Law 91/2015 of 29 May, as established in article 13 of the Basic Law of
the Land Transport System, approved by Law no. 10/90 of 17 March.

Public service obligations relating to the management of RFN's infrastructure comprise the
following:

® The management of railway infrastructure capacity;
® Traffic command and control;
e Maintenance of the railway infrastructure.

® The promotion, coordination, development and control of all activities related to the
railway infrastructure.

Decree-Law 217/2015 of 7 October transposed into national law Directive 2012/34/EU of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 21 November establishing a single European railway
area.

The said Decree-Law defines, inter alia, the conditions for the provision of rail transport services
by rail and the management of railway infrastructure, as well as the content and obligation of
preparation and publication of the Network Directory by the infrastructure manager.

For the development of its activity in the railway domain IP was structured into two segments:

® Investment Management: carried out directly on behalf of the State, comprises the
construction, installation and renewal of railway infrastructure, assuming rights and
responsibilities over the public railway domain, namely the study, planning and
development of investments in long-duration railway infrastructure (LDI).

® |[nfrastructure Management: provision of the public management service for the
infrastructure that is part of the national railway network. It includes functions such as
maintenance and repair of infrastructure, capacity management, management of
regulatory and safety systems, as well as command and control of traffic (core activities).

® Also included in this segment are Other Supplementary Activities related to generating
revenue from other resources not directly related to the railway infrastructure (non-core
activities).

METHODOLOGY

As manager of the railway infrastructure, it is the responsibility of IP to ensure access to the
infrastructure by all railway operators, in a transparent and non-discriminatory manner.

One of the mechanisms established by law to ensure this impartiality is the infrastructure
manager's obligation to publish the Network Directory, where it informs the market of the
conditions of access, services offered and respective tariffs to be charged.

In addition to this, the manager must demonstrate that the model for calculating directly
attributable costs complies with Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/909 of 12 June.
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It is basically based on the breakdown of costs by rail and road, and as far as the railway is
concerned a distinction is made between investment, infrastructure management and other
complementary activities, as shown in the figure.

In the first phase, IP's Total Costs are separated into the Railway and Road segments, using a
distribution key for costs that cannot be directly attributed.

In the second phase, |IP's total railway costs are broken down by into Investment, Railway
Infrastructure Management and Other Complementary Activities.

The breakdown of expenses between missions is based on a a
breakdown key drawn up for this purpose and which applies to all
company bodies, regardless of the nature of the expenses.

Infrastructure

Railway Management

Within the scope of the Railway Domain, expenditure directly
attributable to the Maintenance and Conservation of Railway
Infrastructure, as well as expenditure on Substations, Rescue Trains,
Traction Energy, AMT, Compensation for Termination by Mutual
Agreement and Transport Concessions, Recovery of Materials,
Waste Management and Work for Third Parties does not apply to this
key, and is accounted for in the respective cost centres as belonging
to the Infrastructure Management or Other Complementary Activities
missions, respectively.

act wities

The amounts of the investment materials in the respective cost
cenitres are added to the expenses of the Investment mission
resulting from the application of the distribution keys.

RESULTS

The following table shows the breakdown of Operating Results by Domain and Mission, based
on IP’s separate Financial Statements.

Figures in £
Investment t Complementary
Activities

Sales 2nd services Rended 20630 088,40 € 84047 216,27 € 260085028 € 1045824 801,18 € 1163193 726,14 €
Operating subsidies (C: iy Al S 65404 828,00 - £ - € 65404 828,09 €
Cost of goods soid and materials consumed - 12181431.85€ - 10030 454,575 - 5573203 - 200350 475,05 € - 323 027 100,50 €
Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Road Network - € - € - € - 14473082805 € - 144 730 828,95 €
Maintenance. Repair and Safety of the Railway Network SE - 84072 08088€ - 361306.00 € -€ - 85340 287,67 €
Other Supplies and Services - 2831 11943€ - 47B67826.48€ - 4708 36054 € - 96370485.80 € - 152 136 801,34 €
Personnel swpenzes - 14117 23601€ - 86408 580.06€ - 4820 TI050€ - 3556620053 € - 141 012 036,09 €
Depreciation and amartisation for the year - 92601638 € - 3081115398 - 108 604,03 € - 230660 083,84 € - 234 786 720,54 €
Provisions (Increase/Decrease) - £ - £ - 207742305 - 27 113860.21€ - 56837 28226 €
impaimments (lossesireversals) - € - £ 110.382,01 € - 11038201 €
Other expenses - 52326483€ - 1202 42680 € - 1585 377.08€ - 453013426 € - 7960 202,77 €
Other income - € - £ 25123 803,64 € 9255805423 € 117 690 848,00 €
Gains/Losses in associates - € - £ 420212644 € 1080 525,25 € 5381651,70€

Operating Results - 0,00€ - 85 006 648,61 € - 9215368,73 € 30012219216 € 20590017482 €
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6.9 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND DEBT

Financial Management
IP Group

In 2023, the financial management of IP Group companies continued to be centralised within the
IP Group's Financial Department.

The main objective of this framewaork is the integrated management of the Group's financial
resources with a view to optimising flows between subsidiary companies and the parent company.
It is a sufficient condition that each subsidiary company manages the financial resources that
guarantee its activity, but it is a necessary condition that they are maximised in order to contribute
to the economic and financial sustainability of the IP Group.

Centralising financial management is intended to standardise practices and procedures, both in
terms of treasury management and in terms of producing management information to support
decision-making.

The processes associated with financial management are carried out in accordance with the legal
framework in force for the public corporate sector (Decree-Law 133/2013 of 3 October, as
amended), specifically with regard to compliance with the principle of State Treasury Unity and
restrictions on contracting financing operations.

The IP Group ended 2023 with total cash and cash equivalents of € 268.9 million, broken down
as follows:

Amounts in € million

Cash Resources

Infraestruturas de Portugal
2610 97%:| 2347 95%.
IP Engenharia
24 1% 33 1%
IP Patrimonio
| 38 1%| 34 1%!
IP Telecom

Tr 1% 57 2%
At the end of 2023, cash and cash equivalents included € 203.7 million in Special Short-Term

Debt Certificates (CEDIC) with IGCP.

The table below shows the IP Group's financial flows in 2023, highlighting the significant weight
of IP:

Amounts in € million

IP Group IP Weight

Receipts 29021 98.9%

Payments 2,8806 98.8%
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IP

As IP is included in the European System of National and Regional Accounts, it is part of the
general government sector under Article 2 of the Budgetary Framework Law. In this sense, IP is
part of the State Budget and is obliged to comply with budgetary legislation.

IP complies with the provisions of the Law on Commitments and Overdue Payments and related
legislation, committing all expenditure prior to its realisation, within the limits of the appropriations
allocated to the various budget headings in its budget.

Between 2012 and 2014, the shareholder adopted a financing policy implemented through
loans/shareholder loans. Subsequently, and to date, the financing policy has been materialised
through share capital increase operations, strengthening the company's equity and therefore
improving its level of solvency and financial autonomy.

The State Budget for 2023 (SB 2023), approved by Law no. 24-D/2022 of 30 December, therefore
included overall financing needs of € 1,646 million. This figure is the result of cuts to expenditure
proposed in the SB 2023 totalling € 399.6 million.

In 2023 there were difficulties in receiving the main railway revenues. On the one hand, the delay
in concluding the approval process for the new Railway Framework Contract with the Portuguese
State hindered the receipt of the Compensatory Allowances amount provided for in the budget (€
110 million). On the other hand, the railway operators' overdue debt grew throughout the year,
reaching a peak of approximately € 78 million in November, with CP - Comboios de Portugal,
E.P.E. (the public operator) accounting for 74% of that debt. At the end of the year, overdue debt
fell to € 18.7 million, with Medway standing out with € 8.6 million, Fertagus with € 5 million, CP
with € 3.4 million and Captrain (Takargo's acquirer) with € 1.7 million.

With regard to road revenue, we highlight the € 32.1 million increase in toll revenue compared to
the previous year, as a result of the increase in car traffic. With regard to the Road Service
Consignment, this revenue showed a negative deviation of around € 24.5 million compared to
the amount received in the homologous period, justified by the fact that IP did not receive any
advance payment from the Road Service Consignment for the month of December, contrary to
previous years.

This was the backdrop against which IP managed its activity, whilst seeking to minimise the risks
of fiscal implementation. The main revenue and expenditure components that underpinned
financial management in 2023 are presented below:




2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Repo Infraestruturas
1.128 | de Porlugal

Ampunts n € milion
. |w%ch
2022 znzagg; EXPENDITURE
Road Senice Consignment 626.3 6508 245 |Road PPPs Ja30) 14448 &9
Tells 3729 3408 321 Ofher Capital Expenditure 8560, 505.8 602
EU Funds and RRF Funds 2205 2048 157 Road-Railway Mainienance 2577 2004 7.3
| |

Network Directory %7 1325 338 |Persomnel 136.4) 129.4!; 7.1
Compensatory Allowances 00 33.9] =338 Tax 26.6] 456 =220
Dividends 35 29 06 Repsyment of EIB loans 159.0 1293 297
Other 1146 570 S5 |Financial Expenses™= 7 782 54
Sub-total 14365 14227 B8 |other 977 %59 18
Share capital increase 1,4345 12820 1535 — = I ) i
TOTAL 2,8714 27047 166.4 ** Includes Ferrovia 2020, PNIZD30., PETI3+Road and RRP

= Deducied of collecion costs

With regard to expenditure, there was a significant increase in the amount associated with capital
expenditure, with emphasis on projects under the scope of Ferrovia 2020 and RRP.

It should also be noted that 2023 was the closing year of Portugal 2020, which is why an effort
was made to maximise the physical and financial implementation of the contracts covered by the
applications with a view to submitting this expenditure by the end of the eligibility period - 31

December 2023.

Share capital increases

During 2023 share capital increases carried out at IP totalled € 1,434.5 million. As of 31 December
2023, the parent company’s share capital amounted to € 12,586.7 million.

Share Capital 31/12/2022 11,152,155,000
1stQ 2023 511,130,000
2ndQ 2023 424 500,000

Increases:
3rdQ 2023 253,645,000
4thQ 2023 245,240,000
Share capital 31/12/2023 12,586,670,000

These operations were aimed at covering the budget for investment, railway maintenance, debt
servicing and bank guarantees. Debt servicing does not include loans taken out from the

Portuguese state.
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At the end of 2023, IP's financial debt stood at € 3.857 billion, maintaining the downward trend in

line with the financing policy, as shown in the following graph:

EVOLUTION OF FINANCIAL DEBT
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In 2023, the reduction in debt of € 159 million resulted exclusively from the payment of the capital
repayments provided for in the loans taken out with the EIB, with the exception of the EIB loan -
CPIlII 2 Linha do Norte B, which was repaid early (September 2023 vs. December 2023), resulting

in effective interest savings.

Under the Order of the Minister of Finance of 23 February 2024, the Directorate-General for the
Treasury and Finance (DGTF) granted IP a new moratorium on the payment of the debt service




2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Repo Infraestruturas
1.130 | de Porlugal

on the state loans allocated to the road component. The maturity date of 30 November 2023 was
thus extended to 31 December 2024. This deferred repayment will not accrue interest.

The following graph shows the total debt by type of loan:

Typelogy of Loan
™)

6 000 4
5019
4 785

o ABS so5 387
i e

- Em pesimos do Estad0
= Eurodond wakor nomina

2018 2020 0 2022 2023

The bond loans were contracted at a fixed rate and are repaid in a single capital instalment at
maturity (bullet) These loans will be repaid in 2024, 2026 and 2030, which will mean an increase
in the company's overall financing requirements in those years.

The EIB loans have an amortisation plan with equal or different but successive capital instalments,
allowing the debt repayment profile to be smoothed out.

The loans granted by the State between 2011 and 2013, maturing in 2016, 2017 and 2020, have
an interest grace period of around 12 months and a repayment plan of between 8 and 12 equal
and successive instalments of principal, with moratoriums on the payment of the respective debt
service having been granted continuously since 2015. These loans are subject to fixed interest
rate.

As can be seen in the following graph, the repayments planned for 2024 total € 2,788.4 million,
and include the repayment of State loans amounting to € 2,215.6 million, the repayment of € 500
million of the Eurobond 09/24 bond loan and the repayment of € 72.8 million relating to EIB loans.
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At the end of 2023, the debt portfolio broken down by type of interest rate was as follows:

M Fixed Rate

B Floating Rate

B Fixed Rate

® Floating Rate

A

Infraestruturas
de Porlugal

At 31 December 2023 IP had no risk hedging instrument. Given the composition of the portfolio,
the level of interest rate risk to which the company is exposed is considered to be low.

The risk rating assigned to IP by Moody's Investors Service is Baa2 with Outlook Stable, in line
with the rating of the Portuguese Republic, as a result of the following factors:

® Kkey role performed by IP in the management of Portugal’s road and rail networks;

® effective Government supervision, since IP is included in the State’s budget consolidation

scope;
® expectations that the State will ensure timely financial support whenever necessary;

® maintenance of high indebtedness level and insufficient cash flow generating capacity.

Analysis of the financial results

The analysis of financial results is based on the Overall Financial Result, which is based on the
financial results in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and ignores the accounting
movements reflected in the Statement of Financial Position concerning the debit of interest to the
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Grantor (in the case of the railway segment) and the capitalisation of interest relating to the PPP
(in the case of the road segment). This approach gives a true view of the performance of the
company's debt management activity.

Table below shows the financial performance at 31 December 2023:

Amounis in € million

. ; : % Change
Financial Results Effective 2023 | Effective 2022 ‘ s

Financial Results of Investment Activity 63,4 -59,2 4.1
Financial gains ] 0 0
Financial losses -63.4 -59,2 -41

Financial Results of Infrastructure Management Activity 0.6 -0,5 0,0
Financial gains 0.0 0.0 0.0
Financial losses -0.6 -0.6 0,0

Financial Results High Performance 175,6 -184,8 0,2
Financial gains 0.0 0.0 0.0
Financial losses - sub-concessions -165.6 -174.4 3.8
Financial losses - State concessions -10,0 -10,4 03

! Financial Results - M. t of Road Network -5,?- . -5,; 0,1-

Financial gains 0.0 0.0 0

Financial losses 5.7 -5,9 0.1

Overall Financial Result -2453 -250.4 51

Amount imputed- State Grantor 634 59,2 41

Financial Result { StatementComprehensive Income ) 1819 -191,2 0.3

Global direct management -78,7 16,0 s

On 31 December 2023, the Overall Financial Result stood at -€ 245.3 million, an improvement of
€ 5.1 million on the previous year. This positive deviation is essentially the result of the combined
effect of the following factors:

® A reduction of € 9.2 million in financial losses associated with the High-Performance
segment, resulting from the reduction in debt to sub-concessionaires (€ 1,569 million in
December 2022 to e 1,410 million in December 2023);

® Anincrease of € 4.1 million in the Investment Activities segment as a result of the rise in
interest rates (3-month Euribor) relating to EIB loans.

If the component associated with sub-concessions is removed from the Overall Financial Result,
as it involves expenses with the financial updating of the debt to the sub-concessionaires for the
work/services provided (and which will be invoiced in the future, in accordance with the terms
stipulated in the respective sub-concession contracts) and, therefore, not embodied in financing
contracts signed by the former EP, this aggregate would total -€ 79.7 million compared to -€ 76
million in December 2022, reflecting an increase of € 3.7 million, which translates the rise in
interest rates over the year and which affects floating rate loans.
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7. GOVERNANCE MODEL AND
ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

7.1 GOVERNANCE MODEL

IP is a public company in the form of a public limited company and it is governed by the following:
Decree-Law 91/2015, of 29 May, which created it, as amended by Decree-Law 124-A/2018, of
31 December; Law no. 2/2020, of 31 March; Decree-Law 63/2022, of 26 September; Law 24-
E/2022, of 30 December; Decree-Law 24-E/2022, of 30 December; its articles of association,
approved in an annex to the aforementioned law; the legal regime of the public business sector,
approved by Decree-Law no. 133/2013, of 3 October; corporate governance practices applicable
to the sector; the provisions of the Companies Code; internal regulations; and the national and
European legal rules underlying its activity.

As for the corporate governance model, IP adopts the dual model, allowing an effective separation
between the supervisory function and the company's management function in the pursuit of the
objectives and interests of the company, its shareholder, employees and other stakeholders, thus
achieving the degree of trust and transparency necessary for its proper functioning and
optimisation.

IP is under the supervision of the Ministry of Infrastructures and, under the terms of the legal
regime for the public corporate sector, it is subject to the jurisdiction and control exercised by the
Court of Auditors, as well as to inspection by the General Inspectorate of Finance, under the terms
of the law.

The share capital is represented by nominative shares in book-entered form, owned by the
Portuguese State and held by the Directorate-General for Treasury and Finance.

At 31 December 2023 the share capital totalled € 12,586,670,000. The number of shares issued
totalled 2,517,334, at a nominal value of € 5,000 each.
Corporate Bodies

IP's governing bodies are the General Meeting, the Executive Board of Directors, the General
and Supervisory Board, which includes a Financial Matters Committee, and the Statutory Auditor
or firm of statutory auditors.

General Meeting

The General Meeting is formed by the shareholders. The Board of the General Meeting consists
of the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Secretary.
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GENERAL MEETING

Chairman Vice-Chairman Secretary

Maria Isabel Louro

Not Appointed (*) Not Appointed (**) Caria Alcobia

Chairman: (*) The former Chairman of the Board of the General Meeting resigned on 24 January 2020 and was not yet
replaced.

Vice-Chairman: (**) The Vice-Chairman of the Board of the General Meeting resigned on 19 December 2022.

Secretary: Maria Isabel Louro Caria Alcobia.

The members of the Board of the General Meeting were elected for the three-year period 2018-2020 and hold their
respective positions without remuneration.

Executive Board of Directors

EBD's composition for the period 1 January to 31 March 2023

EXECUTIVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

: z T - Alexandra Sof
Miguel Jorge de Carlos Alberto Jodo [l Maria Amdia Freire s Sl Vita Nogus Ana Isabel Mota da
Campos Cnuz Femandes de Almeida Nogueira Barbosa Siha Coelho (%)

Chairman: Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz
Vice-Chairman: Carlos Alberto Jodo Fernandes and Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida

Members: Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira, Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa
and Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho (*)

(*) Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho resigned as a member of the Executive Board of Directors
with effect from 31 March 2023.

The terms of the mandate and the remuneration scheme associated with the exercise of the
positions were established at the general meeting of 26 August 2022.
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EBD's composition for the period 1 April to 31 July 2023

EXECUTIVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“
i 5 : i = Vanda Cristina
Miguel Jorge e Carlos Alberto Jodo Maria Amalia Freire oikoan Seciiae
Campos Cruz Femandes de Almeida Nogueira (=)

Chairman: Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz

Alexandra Sofia
Vieira Nogueira
Barbosa

Vice-Chairman: Carlos Alberto Jodo Fernandes and Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida

Members: Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira (**) and Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira
Barbosa

(**) Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira resigned as a member of the Executive Board of
Directors with effect from 31 July 2023.

The terms of the mandate and the remuneration scheme associated with the exercise of the
positions were established at the general meeting of 26 August 2022.

EBD's composition for the period 1 August to 31 December 2023

EXECUTIVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

e “
N Alexandra Sofia Gina Maria dos
MEjaelonete Carlos Alberto Jodo Maria Amalia Freire Vieira Nogueira Santos Pimentel
Campos Cruz Femandes de Almeida Barbosa =)

Chairman: Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz.

Vice-Chairman: Carlos Alberto Jodo Fernandes and Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida.
Members: Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa and Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel (*)

(***) By unanimous written decision of 1 August 2023, Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel was
elected financial officer with effect from 1 August 2023, replacing Ana Isabel Mota da Silva
Coelho, who left office on 31 March 2023.

The terms of office and the remuneration status associated with holding office were established
at the General Meeting held on 26 August 2022 (Minutes of General Meeting no. 06/2022) and,
in the case of the member of the EBD, Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel, are set out in the
Unanimous Written Corporate Resolution of 1 August 2023, referring, with regard to the
remuneration status, to the Minutes of General Meeting no. 06/2022.
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The accumulation of functions by the Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors, Miguel Jorge
de Campos Cruz, is authorised under the terms and pursuant to the provisions of article 20(3)(c)
of the EGP, for the exercise of teaching activity in public higher education establishments or in
the public interest.

General and Supervisory Board

The General and Supervisory Board is made up of six to nine members appointed by the General
Meeting, which also appoints the chairman from among them.

Two members are currently appointed to the General and Supervisory Board, who also make up
the Financial Matters Committee, the composition of which is shown below:

General and Supenisory Board

Commitiee for Financial Matters

Statutory Auditor

At the General Meeting of 19 March 2019, the Shareholder appointed firm Vitor Almeida e
Associados, SROC, Lda (SROC no. 191, registered with the CMVM under no. 20161491),
represented by partner Vitor Manuel Batista de Almeida (ROC no. 691, registered with the CMVM
under no. 20160331) as Statutory Auditor of IP.

This appointment was made for the 2018-2020 mandate.

The supervisory bodies remain in office until a new appointment is made; the current mandate is
held by Vitor Almeida e Associados, SROC, Lda. represented by partner Carla Margarida Vicente
Godinho (registered with the Portuguese Institute of Statutory Auditors under no. 1560, registered
with the CMVM under no. 20161170), since August 2023.

7.2 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

In order to respond to the mission, vision and values indicated above, and after 8 years of
consolidation of the merger between the companies, during 2023 the previous adjustments to the
organisational structure were consolidated in order to boost the generation/creation of value in
relation to the needs and expectations of the stakeholders, through greater efficiency between
the various areas and companies of the IP Group.
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Thus, the macro structure of IP Group is made up of:

» Technical Certification and Independent Assessment Unit: responsible for coordinating
the Designated Body DeBo and the Assessment Body AsBo;

» Transformation and Governance Support Areas;
» Corporate Support Areas;

» Business areas: Mobility Management; Infrastructure Management; Asset Profitability
(Subsidiaries).

The organisational chart also includes entities that complement the structure, with a more focused
mission, which are not permanent or of a transitory nature:

» Committees: liaison and interface management instruments, at top management level,
with representation from the CAE and the Directorates, which meet periodically.;

» Mission Structure for Reducing Accidents: a dedicated team that includes members
(interlocutors) from some of the Directorates involved in its object, with a defined duration.

Thus, the macro structure of IP Group is made up of:

Executive Board of
Directors

i Missiza Struztors for Beduzing Accidents i

AREAS OF TRANSFORMATION AND GOVERNANCESUPPORT

CORPORATE SUPPORT AREAS I

| i |1|'—nms-m|nm || al Comp! i | " e and Logistics | DCL Information Systems] D31

BUSINESSARERS |

MOBILITY MANAGEMENT INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT ASSET RETURN

* Strategy, Planning and Contral | DEP Road Netwark] DRE | Railway Netwark] DRE I IP Palrimanin | IPP

Raibway Tratfhic | BCF Engineering and Enviraoment| BEA | 1P Enanharia] IPE

Accessibilifies, Telematics and ITS | BAT

sty |55 | Underiztings| IE IP Telacam |IFT
| Caneessions | BCO

Partnerships and Netmork Services| DRP l

AssetManagement [ DAM. |

Business areas are arganic units dedicated to:

7 Mobility management, which ensures the implementation of integrated network
planning and road-rail mobility management, in accordance with safety, sustainability and
core revenue optimisation principles.
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Infrastructure Management, viewing efficiency gains, based on asset management
principles;

Asset monetisation, where the subsidiaries are geared to optimise non-core revenues,
to the benefit of the core services, which have the following features:

® They view to optimise noncore revenues of IP Group, taking advantage of the
excess capacity of assets not used in core activities and noncore assets;

® Their Boards of Directors are made up of a member of IP's Board of Directors,
who presides, and two other members with executive functions;

® The organic structure of the Subsidiaries includes a General Management (with
the exception of IP Engenharia) which is directly responsible for different
hierarchical levels: from Directorates to Departments, Units or even Functions
represented or not in the Organisational Chart;

® |P's Corporate Centre provides support and a framework to the activity of
subsidiaries, which can thus focus on their core activities.

67978465Master.jpg
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8. COMPLIANCE WITH GUIDELINES AND
LEGAL PROVISIONS

The following chapter, which deals with compliance with legal guidelines, views to meet the
directives issued by DGTF concerning the preparation of reporting documents for 2023.

Figures in this chapter refer to the Separate Financial Statements of IP.

8.1 MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITY PLAN AND BUDGET

The IP Group's management objectives include a set of corporate indicators which, as a whole,
cover the Group's activiies and make it possible to monitor the company's performance
throughout the year and within the scope of the Management Control System implemented in the
IP Group.

Seven of these indicators are called "Shareholder Indicators" and are the highest level indicators,
the results of which are fundamental to achieving the company's financial and operational
objectives, as well as corresponding to the targets that the company is committed to achieving
with its Shareholder.

The results of the shareholder indicators obtained in 2023, as well as the justifications for the
deviations are as follows:

Inchentor 2023 Deviation
Results (%)
Caore revenues (cash) (Em) 1303 1129 -13%
Total Cash Flow (Em) -1425 -1253 12%
Aggregate Strategic Investments Indicator % 85% 83% -2pp.

Agagregate Network Intervention Plan

(Except Strategic Investments) Indicator % <% 2% ~S PP
Level of compliance with road service levels % 100% 98% -2pp.
Level of compliance with railway service levels % 100% 71% -29pp.

Non-Core Revenue (€Em) 22 28 27%
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A. Core Revenues - Cash (€m)
In 2023, IP received the overall amount of € 1,115.3 million in core revenues, i.e. € 189.0 million
less (-13%) compared to the amount foreseen in the budget.

The negative deviation from what was forecast in the BPB is due to not receiving all of the RSC
(Road Service Consignment), all of the revenue from the Network Directory (ND) and not
receiving any amount for Compensatory Allowances (Cl) because the respective Framework
Programme Contract has not yet been signed.

Compared to the same period in 2022, the result in 2023 shows a negative variation of € 65.6
million.

The decrease compared to 2022 is due to ND Services, which is the result of the combined effect
of late payments in 2023 by railway operators, as opposed to the payment of overdue debt in
2022 and by Cl and RSC, as mentioned above.

B. Total Cash Flow (€M)

IP's Total Cash Flow totalled -€ 1,253.4 million, corresponding to a deviation of +€ 171.6 million
compared to the forecast in the BPB (-€ 1,425.0 million) centred on:

® Operating Cash Flow: with a deviation of -€ 48.7 million;
® |nvestment Cash Flow: with a deviation of +€ 215.7 million;

® Financial Cash Flow: with a deviation of +€ 4.6 million
C. Aggregate Strategic Investments Indicator (%)

By December, the Integrated RIP Indicator - Strategic Projects - Railway 2020 / MMS / RRP /
PNI2030 / PVAE and PETI3+ Road, achieved an overall result of 83%, i.e. 2 p.p. below the target
set.

Parameters A and B, associated with the works planned to be launched in the period (respectively
in number and value), showed results below the target set. 49% of the planned works were
launched, which in value represents 45% of what was planned.

The degree of budget implementation (parameter D) was 85%, an increase of 37% compared to
2022 (parameter E).

The results for each of the five parameters of this indicator are presented below.

Parameter A (15% Weight):

® Number of works launched (call for tenders launched) and planned / Number of works
planned to be launched in the plan;

® Result of 49% (41 out of 83).
Parameter B (20% Weight):

® Total amount of contracts launched (call for tenders launched) / Amount of contracts
planned to be launched in the Plan;

® Result 45%; Amount of contracts launched: € 557.6 million / Amount of works planned to
be launched: +€ 1,231.6 million.

Parameter C (15% Weight):
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® Total planned deadline for works carried out and included in the plan / Total actual
deadline for works carried out and included in the plan;

® Result 105%.
Parameter D (35% Weight):

® Degree of implementation (economic perspective) of the RIP (adjusted version Mar.23);

® Result 85%; Implementation: € 583.9 million; Expected Implementation: +€ 683.5 million.
Parameter E (15% Weight);

® |mplementation growth factor compared to the same period last year;

® Result 137%; 2023 Implementation € 583.9 million; 2022 Implementation: +€ 426.6
million.

D. Aggregate Network Intervention Plan (Except Strategic Investments) (%)
Indicator

Up to December, the indicator for completion of the Network Interventions Plan (except for
strategic projects) reached an overall result of 82%, which is 3 p.p. below the target.

74% of the planned works were launched (parameter A) and in terms of amount this corresponds
to 49% of the planned amount (parameter B).

During this period the degree of budget implementation (parameter D) was 87%: 79% on the
Railway and 93% on the Road. Compared to the previous year, there was an increase of 11 per
cent compared to 2022 (parameter E).

The results for each of the five parameters of this indicator are presented below.

Parameter A (15% Weight):

® No. of works launched (with a call for tenders) and planned in the RIP / No. of works
planned to be launched in the RIP;

® Result of 74% (79 out of 107).
Parameter B (20% Weight):

® Total value of contracts launched (with call for tenders) / Value of contracts planned to be
launched in the RIP;

® Result 49%; Amount of contracts launched: € 91.5 million; Amount of works planned to
be launched: +EUR 187.5 million.

Parameter C (15% Weight):

® Total planned deadline for works carried out and included in the plan / Total actual

deadline for works carried out and included in the plan;

® Result 93%.

Parameter D (35% Weight):

® Degree of implementation (economic perspective) of the RIP (adjusted version Mar.23);
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Result 87%; RIP Implementation € 269.8 million / RIP Baseline: +€ 310.4 million.

Parameter E (15% Weight):

Implementation growth factor compared to the same period last year;

Result 111%; 2023 Implementation € 269.8 million; 2022 Implementation: +€ 243.5
million.

E. Level of compliance with road service levels (%)

The level of compliance with the road service level is determined on the basis of compliance with
the targets set for the Road Safety Index (RSI) and Road Asset Management.

In 2023 the level of road service stood at 97.56 per cent, i.e. lower than planned.

The figure for the road safety index (RSI) is determined on the basis of weighted results of the
following indices (basis 100 - as from the benchmark year): number of blackspots (BS), Severity
Index in built-up areas (S, BA), and number of fatal victims (FV), based on ANSR data.

RSI=LCx0.2+SI,BAx04+FVx04
Target: LC (M2020) = 40; SI, BA=15,967; F = 154

In 2023, the number of fatalities was 173, higher than in the same period in 2022 and in 2019, the
pre-pandemic year.

With regard to Black Spots, the first data for 2023, indicated by ANSR, points to 44 LCs.

IP's analysis is ongoing, pending additional information from the security forces. Of the 44 LCs,
40 are on the directly managed network and 4 are on the sub-concession network. These figures
are still provisional.

F. Level of compliance of Railway Service Levels (%)

The rail service compliance indicator is determined on the basis of compliance with the targets
set for the following indicators in the Framework Contract:

Railway Safety Index (RSI);

Quality of the Railway Infrastructure;
Reliability of the Railway Infrastructure;
Additional margins;

Network Availability;

Customer satisfaction;

Environment protection;

Business volumes.

The overall result for the period under review was 71.1%, i.e., 28.9 p.p. below target.

Note: Given that negotiations are still underway to formalise the new Framework Contract and for
the purposes of drawing up this performance report, the targets set for 2020 have been
maintained, as have the original formulas for calculating the indicators.
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RAILWAY SAFETY INDEX (SA/mtk)

The December 2023 result of 1.070 Acc./MiK is unfavourably above the target set in the
framework contract proposal of 1.048 Acc./MiK.

The 36 accidents that occurred in the period, 2 more than in the same period of the previous year,
represent 106% of the total number of accidents recorded in 2022 (34 Acc.) and 95% of the total
number of accidents to be admitted in order to fulfil the target set for 2023, considering the figure
presented in the PC of 38 Acc..

QUALITY OF THE RAILWAY INFRASTRUCTURE (%)

This indicator views to assess the conservation status of the railway infrastructure. Its initial scope
was widened to include the status of the Railway Track and Engineering Works and the
assessment of remaining assets, namely: protection structures and stabilisation of platform, track,
points and crossings, tunnels, signalling failures, ATP system, catenary and traction sub-stations.

Although it is an annual indicator, at the time this report was drafted the level of quality of the
railway infrastructure in 2023 was unavailable.

RELIABILITY (PUNCTUALITY) OF THE RAILWAY INFRASTRUCTURE (%)

The Overall Punctuality Index the first 12 months of the year stood at 83.3%; which is 6.7 p.p.
below the target set.

The figure recorded worsened compared to the same period in 2022 (87.2 per cent), reflecting
the worsening conditions in which the infrastructure is made available for train traffic.

Since April there has been a deterioration of the overall punctuality index, a trend that was
reversed in November and December.

The percentage for which IP is responsible has fluctuated greatly, from 42.8 per cent in January
to 28.2 per cent today. However, these figures have been distorted by the fluctuation in third party
causes, essentially strikes and the effect of the WYD, mainly in the Lisbon suburban area.

ADDITIONAL MARGINS (MINUTES)

Additional Margins correspond to the travel times added to planned timetables to reflect speed
limitations imposed on the infrastructure by scheduled works; Additional margins are fixed
annually in of Network Directory, according to planned interventions.

Accordingly, the indicator was determined based on the additional margins used in 2023
Timetable (50 minutes), amounting to 96 minutes. This figure is mainly due to the supplementary
margins on the 19-minute Northern Line (due to the inclusion of the Supplementary Margin for
work on the Esmoriz-Gaia section).

Compared to the previous year, it is worth highlighting the fact that the supplementary margins
on the Beira Alta Line between Pampilhosa and Guarda were no longer taken into account, due
to a temporary closure, thus explaining the reduction in this indicator.

NETWORK AVAILABILITY (%)

The Network Availability Indicator reflects the percentage of time the infrastructure was open for
operation. It is determined as the difference between total theoretical availability and ungranted
availability (closure to operation due to track closures).

The Network Availability figure determined is a provisional figure, as definitive data was not
available at the time this report was draft. This figure is 4.9 p.p down on the same period in 2022,
reflecting the large number of works underway in 2023, namely the modernisation and renewal
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works on the Norte, Oeste, Sul and Cascais lines. It should be noted that the Pampilhosa- Guarda
section of the Beira Alta line was closed to trains in 2023.

RAILWAY CUSTOMER SATISFACTION (%)

The Railway Customer Satisfaction indicator is determined as the arithmetic mean of the results:
obtained in the following 2 annual surveys:

® Railway Operator Satisfaction Survey;
e End-Customer Satisfaction Survey;

The overall result of 60 per cent took into account i) the 55 per cent obtained in 2022 (the last
figure calculated) for the Rail Operator Satisfaction Survey; ii) and the 65 per cent recorded in
2023 for the End Customer Satisfaction Survey.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (%)

The Environmental Protection Indicator measures IP's performance in its effort to reduce
exposure to noise. The outlook for this indicator reflects the plan to reduce the population's
exposure to noise.

During 2023, there was a reduction of 89 people exposed to environment noise levels above the
limits laid down in the legislation, as a result of the progress of the North/South Corridor - Northern
Line - Espinho/Gaia - RIV works. However, there were no additional contracts with the potential
to benefit the total number of people exposed to environmental noise levels above the limits
imposed by the General Noise Regulation on major rail transport infrastructures.

BUSINESS VOLUME (TK)

Up to December, the railway operators carried out an accumulated total of 33,416,683 train
kilometres (iK), 11% less than the target (37.4 MtKs).

Compared to the same period in 2022, there is a variation of -5.37%, resulting from a reduction
in passenger transport of -6.16% and a slight reduction in freight transport of -1.07%.

This variation, as well as the result below target, is directly related to the strikes by IP and CP
workers since the beginning of 2023, with a strong impact on traffic, which represents -2.25 Mtk
recorded.

In addition, the Beira Alta line between Pampilhosa and Guarda will be closed from 19 April 2022
as part of ongoing works (-0.75Mtk).

G. IP Non Core Revenue — Economic Perspective (€M)

IP's non-core income totalled € 28 million in the 12 months of the year, 27% more than forecast
in the BPB (€ 22 million).

It should be emphasised that approximately 77% of IP's non-core income comes from the sale of
waste, telecommunications concessions and commercial space concessions.

Implementation of the 2023 Business and Budget Plan
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Implemented in

Description BPB 2023 Deviation (+/-)

2023

Net Profit 32 551 148.6 -18 774 068.1 -51 325 216.6
EBITDA 509 494 536.6 440 686 894.0 -68 807 642.6
Operating Results (V) (EBIT) 231372 099.4 205900 173.4 -25471926.0
Turnover (2) 13084632929 1163193726.1| -145269 566.8
Indebtedness 4 3985189007.1| 3984342 186.6 -846 820.5
Net Financial Debt GJEBITDA 7.50 8.45 0.95

Funds available ) 162 444 070.9 260976 112.2| 98532 041.32

1) Operating profit net of provisions, impairments and fair
value adjustments,

2) Detail and quantify in the comments whenever other items, apart from sales and services rendered, are taken
into account when calculating Tumover.

3) Net financial debt means the value of indebtedness less
cash and cash equivalents

4} Interest beanng liabilities

5) Cash as per Balance Sheet

e Net Result for 2023 was -€ 18.8 million, which represents a decrease of around € 51.3
million compared to what was forecast in the 2023 BPB. This result was fundamentally
influenced by the changes to tax legislation resulting from the implementation of the 2023
State Budget (Law no. 24-D/2022, of 30 December) which had a significant impact on the
IP Group's financial statements, namely:

o Theintroduction in the Tax Benefits Statute of Article 43 D - Tax Incentive Scheme
for the Capitalisation of Companies (ICE).

o The alteration of the tax loss deduction regime provided for in article 52 of the
CIRC, whereby there is no longer a time limit for the recovery of tax losses
generated from 2023 onwards.

® The EBITDA figure is € 68.8 million lower than forecast in the BPB, this difference is
essentially due to the amount of compensatory allowances received compared to the
budgeted figure (-€ 24 million) and the Sales and Services Rendered figure was also €
145.3 million lower than budgeted.

® The variation in Operating Income was also negative compared to the BPB, down € 25.5
million (-11%). Under this heading it should be noted that operating income in 2023
totalled € 1,346.3 million, € 149 million (-10%) below the figure forecast in the BPB.
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Amounts in £ thousand

Operating income F— Rhee | anam
Effective 2023| Budget 2023 [  Se8E

Sales and services 1163 194 1308 463 -145 270 -11% 1138 436 24 757
Road Service Consignment (RSC) 641731 699 437 -57 705 -8% 665 501 -23 769 -4%
Tolls 32242 309 830 12591 4% 204 546 27775 9%
Railway Services 84 048 91334 -7 286 -8% 88 468 -4.420 -5%
State Grantor - Revenue LDI 30630 39 944 -59 314 -66% 32199 -1 569 -5%
Construction contracts 71794 111702 -39908 -36% 50 947 20 347 41%
Other services rendered 12 570 6217 6353 102% 6 677 5 894 83%
Operating subsidies 65 405 89 426 -24 021 -2T% 55 055 10 350 19%
Other Income and gains 117 691 97 488 20 203 21% 101 182 16 508 16%
Total Operating Income 1346 289 1495 377 -149 088 -10,0% 1294 674 51 615 4,0%

e Turnover fell by € 145.3 million (-11%) compared to the forecast in the BPB, due to
negative variations in revenue from Road Service Consignment (-€ 57.7 million), Railway
Services (-€ 7.3 million), the State Grantor item (-€ 59.3 million) and Construction
Contracts (-€ 39.9 million). On the other hand, there was an increase of € 12.6 million in
revenue from tolls and € 6.4 million in other services rendered.

Amourts in € thousand

2023 -
Operating expenses % t:hang:
Effective Budget B“?g?t 122
deviation

Cost of geods sold and materials consumed 323 027 4089 217 -86 190 250 585 42 442

Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Road Metwork 144731 139 193 5538 4% 126 583 15 145 14%
Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Raitway Metwork 85 340 87 325 -1985 -2% 80 145 5196 6%
Other ESS 152137 160 396 -5 259 -5% 152 822 -656 0%
Personnel expenses 141012 146 764 -5752 -4% 132 239 3773 7%
Expensesireversals of depreciation and amortisation 234787 278122 -43336 -16% 271573 -36 786 -14%
Provisions {Increase/Decrease) 56857 38087 18800 49% 13 376 43511 325%
Other expenses and losses 7960 9326 -1366 -15% T 402 558 8%
Total Operating Expenses 1145711 1268 432 -122 661 -10% 1063 852 81919 8%

Operating Expenses totalled € 1,145.8 million in 2023, € 122.7 thousand less than in the BPB and
€ 81.2 million more than in the same period in 2022:

® Debt was lower than expected, down by € 846 thousand;

® The Financial Debt/EBITDA ratio aims to assess and compare the company's operational
performance. The result obtained, around 8.5 years, is worse than the figure estimated
in the BPB, 7.5 years. The deviation of almost 1 year from the BPB estimate results from
a combination of the following factors:

= On the one hand, actual cash and cash equivalents were lower than those
estimated in the PDB, on the other hand, EBITDA was lower than forecast in the
BPB. This reduction is mainly the result of lower than expected income, especially

RSC (-€ 58 million) and compensatory allowances (-€ 24 million).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The amount of capital expenditure in road and rail totalled € 620.6 million in 2023, which
corresponds to 61% of the amount foreseen in the BPB.
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Figures in Ewo

Capital Expenditure Plan BPR 2023
TOTAL i i)
Owmn Revenue | State Badmt Indehl!dness EU Fumds Capital injections

Total Amount of Capital Expenditure 1018934 258 620 570 826 20731 520 = 22 573 446 48 TO3 444] 3!21?7415

e =
Ferrovia 2020 Investment 713 967 463 466 238 652 1E7 184 451 270074 202 55‘}':;
PHI2030 - Railway Te 542 B11 19 993 358 10.9832 352 255\':?
Dther railway investments 68 942 293 25525371 25525371 T
Mondego Mobility System 36 031 D28 38 692033 21214 085 17 477 Dag| 107%,
Road Investment [ 105 B43 ml 61124 307 12013416 48 703 444 407 u.s‘ %
PNI2020 - Roads 4767 526 407 446 407 445 a5
Road investment (RRP) 79.023 110] 48 703 444 43703 444 32%5
Other road investments 17 717 845 1777 267 1 777 267 0%
PYAE investment 1402 188 8327230 8337230, 585%,
Road investment PETIZ+ 3939 148 1898 919 1802010 48%|
Mansgement Support investments 14 500 016 gTiE 104 8748104

caung | o __moml | | | 1210 009 _—_

Railway investment, which includes Management Support Investments at the end of 2023 totalled
€ 620.6 million, which represents 61% of the value forecast in the BPB.

It is worth highlighting that overall implementation of the Railway 2020 investments in 2023
totalled € 466.2 million, which corresponds to 65% of what was forecast in the BPB.

In terms of roads, the investment made under the RRP programme, € 48.7 million, is noteworthy.

ROAD PARTNERSHIPS

Payments made in 2023 related to Road Partnerships amounted to € 1,138.8 million (VAT
excluded), € 113.4 million less than estimated in the BPB, resulting in an implementation rate of
91% against the amount foreseen in budget. Compared to the same period in 2022, there was a
reduction in payments of € 44 million (-4%).
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£M (excluding VAT)

Algarve

Beira Interior

Beira Litoral and Beira Alta
Costa de Prata

Greater Lisbon Region
Greater Porto Region
Interior Norte

North

Norte Litoral

46,2
52,3
118,8
48,2
284
77,6
69,2
1571
491

51,7
52,4
1222
443
35,6
79,9
72,3
171,6
55,7

49,4
50,4
119,7
433
34,3
78,1
69,5
168,0
55,5

105%

104%
102%
102%
104%
102%
104%
102%
100%

AE Transmontana
Baixo Alentejo
Baixo Tejo

Douro Interior
Litoral Oeste
Pinhal Interior

Algarve Litoral Subconcession

53,0

39,1
53,0
84,8

119,2

1188
15,2

49,3
42,0
30,7
85,0
422

120,9
15,2

48,7
40,3
29,5
85,3
418
119,1
129,4

101%
104%
104%
100%
101%
101%

12%

Total

1182,8

1138,8

1252,2

91%

Level of Budget Implementation downloaded in SIGO/SOE

unit: € miflion

L E T s - B EEE

Effective Revenue  1,262.22
Effective Expense  2,322.16

178812 1
327517
IPDeficit. ~1.059.94  -1,12476 148705

84517 150218
323674 275354
-139158 125135

100.70
85% 22729

The overall balance for 2023 shows a deterioration of € 126.6 million over the same period of
2022 and translates an implementation rate of 84% in relation to the 2023SB.
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unit: € million

04 Tolls and other fees 367.38 381.85 35515 355.15 39965 .
05. Interest and Dividends 2987 526 | 653 653 653 534 agna' s _;::
07 Sales and services 98.30 153.16 | 138.14 164.83 16483 132.85 -20.31: m
08. Other current Revenues 3202 381 ; 151 151 151 503 112 129%
09. Sale of ficed assets 3.99 10.40 ' 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.24 -10.6 2%
11. Financial assets (%) | 0.00 -
13. Other capital revenues 16.44 832 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 857 025  103%
06, Current transfers (RSC) 61979 65082 | 69944 67533 67533 62628 2453  95%
06. Current transfers {Cls) 67.72 3386 . 10999 109.99 109.99 3386 0%
06. Current transfers (Tolls Mechanism ) ! 3205 3205 32'95 -
06. Current Transfers (Storms) ! 0.00 0.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 =
06. Ofher current Transfers 041 054 | 288 288 288 08 005  109%
10. Receipts FC 50.02 167.84 | 49060 471.10 471.10 26653 9875  159%
1,26222 140148  1,831.72 178842 1,84517 1,502.18 100.70  107%
12 Loans and share capital increases 161265  1281.98 | 200207 164607 162107 143452 15254 112%
TOTAL 2.874.87 268346  3,83379 343419 346624 293670 25324 109%

Compared to the approved budget, IP collected 84% of the expected revenue, mainly due to:

e Receipt of 113% of the funds relating to tolls, which reflect the resumption of use of road

infrastructure;

e Receipt of 81% of the funds relating to sales and services rendered, due to the fact that
the operators did not receive the full user fee, especially the main operator (CP);

e Receipt of 93 per cent of the funds relating to RSC. The amount reported by TA was
above initial forecasts for the stipulated period, however, the early receipt of the amount

equivalent to the collection for December was not authorised;

¢ Receipt of funds relating to the Bad Weather (€ 25 million) and the Toll Support

Mechanism (€ 32.1 million), amounts not foreseen in SB2023;

o Receipt of 87% of the planned capital appropriations, totalling € 1.434,5 million, to cover

debt servicing, PPP expenses and railway investments.
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EXPENDITURE

unit-Emilian
e
T P [

01 Persormel 2a37 | o742 Bas 4% %
02, Oparatzin B580 82 | £308 - EATH =% e
02 Operation - malerial (=] BB | i7ed ik} B8 600 an E 6% %
02 Operatin - nevenue 4248 5282 ! B8 295 7575 7a06 TOA2 8o L o5
Experdilure 5 faciifies (Tractian Pawer Operstors| =785 2025 | 442 Bz 4522 4252 4004 m % m
Tollcoliection costs! CSA 2273 n I 4054 3054 2054 054 3038 701 2% B3
02 Genirul Oparatiai 3820 4850 | 7322 Tz 6038 sTE 4088 23t 5% 3%
Acquisition of goode 282 am | 564 554 iz et a7 on A% A%
Fue 246 272 | 185 188 307 305 27 oy L -ﬂ!

Tools and ulensls 0.8 044 | 050 050 034 033 028 46 25% 435
Cizaning goods o0 004 I 07 007 ooz [i173 o0z am 5% T
Baoks ant echnical documentaban o1 am | i o2 a0z ] am oot A% 6%

Mal. Stationery an oo | (E5] 638 0 o ore oz B 0%
Clathing 0z aoa I a7g n7e 08 oo 0.8 m T s
Acquisition af esrvices 3658 4320 i B75T 6757 5665 5350 A5ED w &% 3
Cammuricafions a8 054’ | 187 187 120 107 m 04T (=5 B
Carservation of gaods i 258 I 430 450 285 258 3] 085 5% -55%
Traveiling and accemmodation 0z az | 051 o5t 043 241 035 g o e
Representatian faes o oet | am .04 o [il. 000 000 50% s
Studfies ind Advisary 085 07s | 155 155 100 086 a7 000 M B
Traiiing LT as7 ¢ 080 (0] 081 05 (R3] 008 & E
Cieaning 39 a2 I BIT BT s TEE am 028 A% 475
Propety ases e oe I 05 s 08 o8 0.8 o W £ o3
Transporl Matena! Lesses 381 244 | 257 257 254 28 242 o £ )

Lease of other assets 021 oe | 037 037 058 055 043 o3 B s

Other servicss 244 i | 484 484 402 a8 178 o £ -

Other Specisfised works 152 24 207 a7 230 asé 282 0z o% -aE%
Advettising 09 an? I 024 £24 08 e on ,am ] e
fsurance 153 348 I 4u 4D 184 484 15 !n;i % s

w 544 aen | 174 1 BAD TEY 729 g3 on -38%
Transaorts 182 39 | 4n LR 285 229 208 21 % B
Survesliance a1 788 i I o7 fes ne 258 185 o] T

0 Interest ] 584 528 8526 s 8140 mar ) T S
4. Current transfers a2¢ 20 I 523 523 523 22 123 o7 8% 8%
05 Subsidies a0 o I o0 oot 208 254 250 =¥ anzes 500 TV
06, Other cutrent experses. 606 a4z | 26145 8145 nE 2671 2650 21a 45% ALBE T
08, Cther Cierent Espenans - Taxes 2628 4ad2 i 2E BE nE 2671 2654 2t -45% 55t T
6 Dther Corren| Expenses - VAS sury deposit | 20000 000 - e =
0. Otter Expenses Cument - Ruserve 528 5529 000 . -] oo
7. Ivastminls €39 az2a I =53 05t 1184 1156 215 ‘003 % 285 2%
0701 Operating investmest 39 Az I 2591 oEt a1 158 825 -0 0% 285 2%
08 Finncial assats 200 | on ooo 200 200 200 200 = 200 -
10 Finoncinl isbiities g2830 va3s | w2 02 B0 a0 w02 ai@ m e g
TOTAL 552.30 433.28 | 30673 EE1ES £25.28 55532 57132 72.08 u% -80.37 4%

With regard to activity expenditure, the implementation of € 571.3 million is above the level seen
in the same period in 2022, the main reasons for which are related to the Toll Support Mechanism
(Decree-Law no. 87-A/2022, 29 December), expenditure on facilities, namely those related to
energy (the decommissioning authorised in the 1% quarter, amounting to € 53 million, made it
possible to settle invoices received in 2023 relating to the previous year) and the increase in
interest rates on loans indexed to a variable interest rate (3M Euribor).

Compared to the approved budget, despite commitments totalling € 596.9 million (95% of the
corrected budget after retentions), IP only implemented 86% of the planned expenditure.

With the exception of debt servicing, the items with the highest implementation rates are revenue
Collection (99%), Personnel (94%), Facilities costs (120%) and IEAGs (76%).

On the other hand, the Subsidies item also shows a performance well above that forecast in the
budget due to the Toll Support Mechanism (Decree-Law 87-A/2022 of 29 December), a special
credit under expenditure item 05. Subsidies, against the amount entered under revenue item 06.
Current transfers.
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unit: € miion
02. Operstion 185.38 w030 | 30148 280.62 3488 238.52 237.58 , o 2264 %
Pl 2 758
Riihway mairienance 7342 8508 | mza 2y 1658 nAAZ BETS £ 2% ‘2447 22%
Roid haintenance 0588 mz | w25 B8 wa0e |00 iz 3801 B M =
Curmnt 00 7 | s TEE b 2204 @ B2 % uis %
Penadical BB 4084 : B009 008 70487 BT81 5065 B A45% ki 4%
PETE+and PVAE 200 109 i ot ot 005 0os 005 104 a5% 006 £3%
RRP 00 oo | 380 204 104 oon 00 000 am 0%
FNEZ030 000 ane | 0.00 000 a00 (00 00 000 000
07. Invesimants 180127 1356.01 i 2,52552 25188 245783  12m.0 2,105.25 Hax % 40563 -Ba
07.01 Rood Concessions 15445 ¥s285 | {5336 150828 153926 7143 144604 81 % 822 %
current Capital Expenditure 40.63 248 | 877 4207 LIS ] 40,36 3193 .36 25% 006 2%
0701 Road hvestment 2.32 s | 578 878 335 334 3.08 -2 5% A0 a5
Carstruction and Renovation 068 azr | 4.58 458 008 607 007 020 Td% 451 L
Studies, Prajects and Techrical Assistince 161 154 : 380 360 118 138 18 035 25% 245 B
Land Expropaations na2 228 I 0.55 05 187 187 165 o4 % a6 0%
Facliliss and mproyemen of equipment 000 i 0.00 000 000 000
OF.03. Raitway Ivestiment 38.31 3635 | BE2s 33.28 8383 37.03 288 241 25% A8 B
Herey Camsereation NRwN 2854 28 | 4158 2158 4808 2351 702 580 25% 456 s
Carnslre and Resioy. of N 5] ™| EEEC ge 077 01 #63 082 A% {as8 "
Siuties P rojmd Techmical Assiatance 525 o0 | 27 527 o5 843 5% 180 T 4% %
Land Expropristioes 100 w2 | 028 028 104 oa? 007 -1 B AT T
Faciliiies and mmprovement of equipment 60 ! 00 - 200
Capital Expenditure Plana 218.50 senez | ossao $30.55 33140 T07.37 £27.23 BB E 30333 A
07.01 Road Inveetmeant . 27.72 4758 : wiLH z2.47 Ta.42 s103° 550 755 E Zra 2%
Maris Tunnel 200 i 000 - 000 -
PETE+ oid PVAS 2759 2|36 | o n.o B75 a7 743 —2ie 5% 270 2T
RRP 000 5 | BiAL €590 750 5052 4606 @0 823 £k a0
LR B 24 | 844 e e 178 183 03 0% Y3 £
07.03. Raliway Investment 185.78 anmoe | B8E0E 348.08 752.98 E4E.35 57212 a8 % 586 A%
Mus 000 ! “IT 4477 000 - 4877 T
Ferfa iz 2020 6704 sy | 78378 76378 73186 £311 55805 “Esan a8 20473 2T
PNE0I0 0o a9 I: 7453 2857 a2 ] o ] 5% 2EAB BT%
TOTAL 1570.85 BEWES1 252700 277250 277250 R5WII 234334 | WESS R 42526 5%

With regard to project expenditure, it can be seen that the implementation of € 2.343 million is
higher than in the same period in 2022, as a result of:

® An increase in the implementation of road maintenance, justified by the interventions
carried out to deal with the damage caused by the storms in December 2022 and January
2023, as well as the increase in the costs of materials and labour;

® An increase in the implementation of road investments related to the RRP, which are
financed outright by the RRP funds;

® An increase in the implementation of railway investments, particularly in the last quarter
of 2023, where the payment of invoices before their due date using the capital
appropriations received was decisive so that this expenditure could be fully presented for
reimbursement by the end of 2023, the date of conclusion of the Portugal 2020
programme.

Compared to the approved budget, the items with the highest implementation rates are railway
and road maintenance, with 78% and 101% respectively.

Road investments (64%) and rail investments (68%), however, have lower implementation rates,
due to delays in the development of contractual processes, the low implementation rates
presented by some contractors and the process of obtaining prior approval from the Court of
Auditors.

On the other hand, the difficulties faced by IP throughout the year, both in collecting its main
sources of railway revenue (Railway User Fees and Compensatory Allowances) and in obtaining
capital to cover railway maintenance, jeopardised its ability to pay all the invoices due on 31
December 2023.
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The Road Concessions item accounts for 50% of total expenditure and has an implementation
rate of 94% compared to the budget, as a result of the evolution of availability tariffs that are pre-
defined in the contracts and the CPI update.

8.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

With a view to implementing greater financial control over the public business sector, as well as
establishing requirements in terms of good governance and strengthening the powers and duties
inherent in the exercise of the shareholder function, the Government enacted Decree-Law
133/2013 of 3 October. Article 29(1) establishes that non-financial public companies that have
been or are integrated into the general government sector, under the terms of the European
System of National and Regional Accounts, are prevented from accessing new financing from
credit institutions, except from multilateral financial institutions. Since the creation of IP, the
company has not resorted to new financing from credit institutions or the capital market.

The following table shows the evolution of the average annual interest rate for the 2019-2023
period:

Amounts in € million

Financial Expenses 73.99 70.11 91.73 97.79 108.70

Average financing rate 1.8% 1.7% 1.9% 1.9% 2.0%

The average interest rate in 2023 stood at 1.8 per cent, up 0.1 per cent on the previous year.
Despite the reduction in debt stock compared to 2022, this effect was not enough to offset the
increase in interest rates associated with variable rate loans.

8.3 INDEBTEDNESS GROWTH CEILING

In 2023, Article 35 of the State Budget Law establishes that the overall growth in the indebtedness
of public companies is limited to 2%, taking into account interest-bearing financing corrected for
paid-up share capital and excluding new investments.

Article 159(1) of 2023 Budget Implementation Decree Law provides the formula to determine
overall growth of indebtedness of the corporate public sector:

(FRi. FRw1)+(Capital: - Capital-1) - New investment:

FRt1 + Capitalt1

where:
FR - Interest bearing loans
Capital - Paid-up share capital or statutory capital.

New Investments - New investments with material expression
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% Change 23/22

Interest bearing loans (current and non current)* 38565 40155 (159,0) 4%
= of which granted by DGTF 22156 22156 - O%r
Share Capital 12 586,7 111522 1434,5 13%
New expenditure for the year (relevant) 13 10,2

Change in Indebtedness 5.4%

*At nominal value

Infraestruturas
de Porlugal

In accordance with the Investment Plan, IP considers the following for the purposes of calculating

this indicator:

i. "new investments" - investments planned under the CAM Ring, Railway Partnerships (LAV

Porto Lisboa) and IP3 Coimbra-Viseu;

i. IP's investments which are materially relevant, namely the projects included in the Ferrovia
2020 Investment Programme and the PNI 2030, which were already planned and identified

in previous Investment Plans;

iii. The investments provided for in the RRP will be fully covered by funds from the Recovery

and Resilience Mechanism.

The growth rate determined for 2023 of 8.4 per cent takes into account the portion of capital
allocated to finance the payments of the road concession and sub-concession (PPP) contracts.

These contracts were established by the state in the case of the former and under state directives
in the case of the latter, so if you exclude the amount of the capital increase allocated to cover

these payments, the ratio stands at 3.1 per cent:

Change in indebtedness (implementation)

Amounis in € million

Interest bearing loans (current and non current)® 3,856.5 40155 (159.0) -4%
+ of which granted by DGTF 22156 22158 - 0%
Share Capital / Statutory Capital™ 11,778.7 10,4039 626 6 6%

New expenditure for the year (relevant)

1.3

10.2

Change in Indebtedness

3.1%

scenario without allocation of capital to PPPs
*At nominal value
** excluding amount allocated to PPPs
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It should be noted that compliance with the 2% debt growth limit stipulated in Article 35(1) of Law
24/2022 of 30 December is checked on the overall growth of public companies' debt.

Table below shows the evolution of IP's debt growth since 2019:

EVOLUTION OF THE INDEBTEDNESS RATE ‘ 2023 2022 m

Indebtedness growth rate 8.4% 8.2% 7.5% 6.7% 5.8%

Indebtedness growth rate{%a) 3. 1% 2.8% 0.8% 0.4% 0.2%

{*) excluding amount allocated to PPPs

The 2023 growth rate worsened compared to the previous year as a result of the increase in
expenditure without a corresponding increase in revenue, which implied resorting to capital of a
greater magnitude than in 2022.

8.4 EVOLUTION OF THE PAYMENT PERIOD TO SUPPLIERS

Council of Ministers Resolution ("RCM") 34/2008 of 22 February provided the "Timely Payment
Programme” aimed to significantly reduce payment periods to public companies’ suppliers of
goods and services. This Resolution established objectives for average payment periods (APP)
to suppliers, and the monitoring and disclosure of the evolution of average payment periods. This
indicator outperforms whenever APP is less than 20 days.

Ministerial Order 9870/2009, of 13 April, revised the determination of the APP ratio, and considers
the average of amounts payable to suppliers at the end of each quarter.

IP discloses its APP in its Annual Report and Accounts.

The evolution of the Average Payment Period in 2023 as compared to 2022 was as follows:

% Change 23122
A

Period (days) -8%

Decree-Law 65-A/2011 provides that “Delay in payment - means the non payment of any invoice
for the supply of goods and services (...) within 90 days or more from the payment date specified
in respective invoice, if any, or of the invoice”.

Payment periods are contractually agreed by IP and its suppliers. Where invoices are correct and
comply with the legal and tax requirements they are paid up until due date (or approximate date).

As result, IP does not have overdue payments.
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Amount of overdue debt according to
art. 1 DL 65-A/2011

Overdue debt

Purchase of goods and sendces

Acqg. of capital

Total

8.5 SHAREHOLDER RECOMMENDATIONS WHEN APPROVING THE 2022
ACCOUNTS

As part of General Meeting 08/2023, the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
appraised by the State Shareholder at the General Meeting on 07 July 2023.

The representative of the State shareholder voted in favour of approving the separate and
consolidated financial statements for 2022, including the management and corporate governance
reports, taking into account the Legal Certification of Accounts, the external auditor's reports and
the emphases expressed therein, the favourable opinion of the General and Supervisory Board,
and Analysis Report no. 133/2023, of June 7, and subsequent letter no. 216/UTAM/2023.
133/2023, of 7 June, by the Technical Unit for Monitoring the Public Business Sector (UTAM),
and subsequent letter no. 216/UTAM/2023, of 14 June, as well as the annual activity report of the
General and Supervisory Board.

8.6 STEPS TAKEN TO SOLVE THE SITUATIONS UNDERLYING THE
RESERVATIONS INCLUDED IN THE LAST LEGAL CERTIFICATION OF
ACCOUNTS

Not applicable to IP since no reservations were made in the 2022 Statutory Audit.

8.7 REMUNERATION/FEES FOR GOVERNING BODIES AND EXTERNAL
AUDITOR

CORPORATE BODIES

BOARD OF THE GENERAL MEETING
Chairman: (*)
Vice-Chairman: (**)

Secretary: Maria Isabel Louro Caria Alcobia
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(*) The former Chairman of the Board of the General Meeting resigned on 24 January 2020, and
was not yet replaced.

(**) The Vice-Chairman of the Board of the General Meeting resigned on 19 December 2022.

The members of the Board of the General Meeting were elected for the three-year period 2018-
2020 and hold their respective positions without remuneration.

EXECUTIVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EBD's composition for the period 1 January to 31 March 2023

Chairman: Professor Doutor Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz

Vice-Chairman: Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida and Carlos Alberto Joao Fernandes

Members: Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira, Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa
and Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho 2

a) Mrs. Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho resigned as member of the Executive Board of Directors with effect
from 31 March 2023.

The terms of the mandate and the remuneration scheme associated with the exercise of the
positions were established at the general meeting of 26 August 2022.

EBD's composition for the period 1 April to 31 July 2023
Chairman: Professor Doutor Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz
Vice-Chairman: Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida and Carlos Alberto Jodo Fernandes

Members: Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira ? and Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira
Barbosa

b) Mrs. Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira resigned as member of the Executive Board of Directors
with effect from 31 July 2023

The terms of the mandate and the remuneration scheme associated with the exercise of the
positions were established at the general meeting of 26 August 2022.

EBD's composition for the period 1 August to 31 December 2023
Chairman: Professor Doutor Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz
Vice-Chairman: Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida and Carlos Alberto Joao Fernandes

Members: Mrs. Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa and Mrs. Gina Maria dos Santos
Pimentel ©

€} Mrs. Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel was elected, by unanimous written decision of 1 August 2023, as
financial member, with effect from 1 August 2023, replacing Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho, who left office
on 31 March 2023.

The terms of office and the remuneration status associated with holding office were established
at the General Meeting held on 26 August 2022 (Minutes of General Meeting no. 06/2022) and,
in the case of the member of the EBD, Mrs. Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel, are set out in the
Unanimous Written Corporate Resolution of 1 August 2023, referring, with regard to the
remuneration status, to the Minutes of General Meeting no. 06/2022.

As the remuneration status has been defined, the 5% reduction provided for in article 12 of Law
no. 12-A/2010, of 30 June, was applied to the gross amounts calculated for the year 2023.

No variable performance remuneration was awarded to managers.
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The accumulation of functions by the Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors, Professor
Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz, is authorised, under the terms and pursuant to the provisions of
article 20(3)(c) of the EGP, for the exercise of teaching activity in public higher education
establishments or in the public interest.

GENERAL AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

The remuneration of the members of the General and Supervisory Board, which comprises a
Committee for Financial Matters, was defined at the General Meeting of 28 August 2015.

Following a request to this effect, Professor Duarte Manuel lvens Pita Ferraz has been a member
of the General and Supervisory Board and a member of the Financial Matters Committee without
remuneration due to his retirement since July 2017.

Mr. José Castel-Branco holds the remunerated position of Chairman of the Financial Matters
Committee of the General and Supervisory Board, earning 30 per cent of the monthly
remuneration of the Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors currently in office.

In accordance with article 391 (4) of the Companies Code, approved by Decree Law 262/86, of 2
September, by reference to article 435 (2) of the same Code, the members of the General and
Supervisory Board will remain in office until such time as they are replaced. Since no new
members were elected when members of remaining corporate bodies were elected, the members
of the General and Supervisory Board did not change.

José Emilio Coutinho Garrido Castel-Branco did not receive any remuneration until October 2022,
the date on which he ceased to be a public manager of another Public Business Sector entity,
and the payment of his remuneration is therefore resumed from that date.

Since 26 October 2022, José Emilio Coutinho Garrido Castel-Branco has held the remunerated
position of Chairman of the Financial Matters Committee of the General and Supervisory Board,
earning 30% of the monthly remuneration of the Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors
currently in office.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

With regard to the Statutory Auditor, the general meeting of 19 March 2019 (Minutes of the
General Meeting no. 03/2019) set the maximum limit for the fees to be awarded for this position
at 35% of the overall remuneration of the Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors, plus VAT
at the legal rate in force.

ANNEX 1

1 Board of the General Meeting

2023 Annual
Term of office i
Fied Atiendance Number of Remuneration
Position

Fee (€}

Attendance Fees

{Beglnmng;‘End) Paid
Chairman Mot Appointed [*) 65000 1] 000
Vice-Chairman Mot Appointed (**) 52500 1] 0.00
2018-2020 Secretary Maria Isabel Louro Caria Alcobia 40000 ] o.oe

0.00

(*) The Chairman of the Board of the General Mesting resigned on 24 January 2020 and has not been replaced to date.
(**) The Vice- of the Board of the General Meeting resigned on 19 December 2022 and has not been replaced to date.
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2. Executive Board of Directors

Monthly Remuneration of the Executive Board of Directors - 2023

(Figures in &)

Fixed monthily remuneration - EGP

Member of the BD Gross Monthily Remuneration (€)

Fixed interest | Classification

(name) =
Representation
onthly Sala
. g fees
Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz Yes A 5,966.48 2,386.59
Carlos Alberto Jodo Femandes Yes A 5.369.83 2,147.93
Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida Yes A 5.369:83 2,147.93
Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira (**) Yes A 4.773.18 1,909.27
Alexandra Sofia Vielra Nogueira Barbosa Yes A 4,773.18 1,909.27
Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho (%) Yes A 4,773.18 1,909.27
Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel (™) Yes A 4.773.18 1,909.27
o i z
Beginning/End| Formi (1) Yes/No Corrprry i 3
(0MD)

2022-2024 Chairman Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz {GM}) 267082022 n.a 1

2022-2024 Vice-Chairman Caros Alberto Jodio Fernandes GM 6082022 No na n.a LER 3

20222024 Wice-Chairman Mzriz Amaia Freire de Almeida GM 261082022 No n.a n.a. n.a 1

20222024 Member Vanda Cristina Loureiro Scanes Mogueira (**) GM 2610872022 Ne n.a. n.a: n.a. 3

2022-2024 Member Aleeandra Sofz Vieim Nogusira Barbosa GM 280872022 No n.a na. na 2

2022-2024 Member Ana lsabel Mota da Silva Coefha {*) GM 267082022 No R n.a. n.a 1

2023-2024 Membar Gina Mara dos Santos Pimentel ***) GM o1/08/2023 No na na n.a 1




2023 Annual Report !

| Management Report Infraestruturas
.161 | de Porlugal

Accumulation of Functions
Members of the BD Identification of
Company Regime authorisation and
form
[Specify] [Specify] [Public/Private] [AG/DUEMD]
IP Engenharia Chaimman of fhe Board of Direclors Public
Miguel Jorge de Campos Cniz
IP Telecom Chairman of fhe Board of Directors Pubiic
IP Palimonio Chairman of the Board of Direclors Public
Carles Alberio Jodo F d
IP Telecom Member of he Board of Direclors Public
Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida IP Patimionio Member of the Board of Directors Public
Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira (™) IP Telecom Chairman of the Board of Directors Public
Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa IP Engenharia Member of the Board of Directors Public
Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho (%) IP Telecom Member of the Board of Directors Public
Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel (=) IP Telecom Member of the Board of Directors Public

' Mrs. Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coefho resigned as member of the Execulive Board of Direclors with effect from 31 March 2023.

! Mrs. Vanda Crisfina Loureiro Soares Mogueira resigned as member ofthe Executive Board of Directors with effect from 31 July 2023
") Mrs. Gina Maria dos Santos Pimeniel was elected, by unanimous writlen decision of 1 August 2023, as financial member, with effect from 1 August 2023, replacing Ana isabel
Mofa da Silva Coeiho, who lefi office on 31 March 2023.

(Figures m §)
Annual Remuneration Eamed (€)
et pin iy Bl Remuneration Final Gross

[name] Gross amount

) =112 reductions Amount
(4) () = (3H4)

Miguei Jorge de Campos Cruz 112,169.30 112,169.80 560851 106,56129
Carlos Alberto Jodo Femandes 100.952.73 10095278 5,047 66 96,29527
Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida 100.952.75 100.952.78 5,047 66 9590512
‘Vanda Cnstina Loureiro Soares Nogueira (™) 7254957 7254957 3,642:53 69,278 52
Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa 89 73576 8973576 4 486.82 8524394
Ana lsabel Mota da Silva Coelho (%) 2397178 2397178 1,198.59 2277319
Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel (™) 35.413.06 35413.06 1,770.64 3364242

536,045.53 26,802.41 508,707.75

"I Mrs. Ana Isabsl Mot da Silva Coelho resigned as member of the Execufive Board of Directors with effect from 31 March 2023

"' Mrs. Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira resigned as member of the Execufive Board of Directors with effect from 31 July 2023
™! Mrs. Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel was elected, by unanimous written decision of 1 August 2023, as financial member, with effect from 1 August
2023, replacing Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho, who left office on 31 March 2023,
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Figures in €}

Luncheon allowal Social security regime
Healﬂl Acclnent

| Amoumnt pam m insurance
!he year Emense

Oeccupational

Miguel Jorge de Campos Gz g 1,047 84 Sogial security 2530832 B s e sl“hﬁ 550.00
Carlos Alberto Jodo Femandes 350 1,005.34 Socsl sscurity 23TTTA 42080 - ociwetional soant M 400,00
acgidents insurance sch::l.arh'ps
Maria Amilia Freire de Almeida 250 spjany e el 2277745 Oces yoiorsad 507 41
sccidents
i 1]
\fands Crisfina Loursirn Soares Nogueira (=) 3.50 1,240.07 Sogialsecurity 16,435 66 25080 404 S;‘;ﬁg“a 50202
Alexandrs Sofs Viers Nogusis Barboss 850 1,888 60 Social security 024662 42860 g.pg Docupations! gz008 M 450.00
3 ) U ) 7 scoidents | schnlar;iu.ns
&n3 Iszbal Mota da Sile Cosho (%) 250 56344 Social szcurity 540883 107.40 j:73 Deoupatanal 16888
sceidents insurance
Gina Mariz dos Santos Pimente! (=) 250 72250 Social security 780008 Coctpingsl 74481
sccidents insurance
10,556.23 12094513 154580 2656 370597 1,400.00

' Mrs. 2n3 ls3bel Mot d= Silvs Coelho resigned 3= member ofthe Execatve Board of Directors with =fiect from 31 March 2023.

"' Mrs. \Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira resigned as member ofthe Executive Board of Directors with effect from 31 July 2023
"""! Mrs. Gina Maria dos Santos Piments! was elecied, byunasimous written decision of 1 August 2023, as financial member, with efiect fiom 1 fugist 2023, replacing Ana lsabei
Mot dz Silva Coelho. who left office on 31 Marsh 2023

Vehicle expenses

Asmigned Vehicle
ot Date of contract
vehicle reference value Year of Year of
beginning Eerminafion

Migued Joge de Campos Cruz 45.580.74 2020 2024 677288
Carios Alberto Jodo Femandes Y Y 327.088.87 Leases 2020 2024 383.82 354584 &
Mans Amalis Frare de Almeids L ¢ Y a7.RB3ET Leases 2020 2024 382 354584 g
anda Cristing Loureiro Soares Nogueirs (<) ¥ Y 2798887 Lzases 3020 2024 303.82 2126874 &
Alexandra Sofia Viera Nogusirs Barbosa : L Y 27.0E5.87 Leases 2020 2024 30382 354584 6
Ana Isabel Mota da Siha Ceelho () Y ¥ 2788357 Leases: 2020 2024 303.82 B11.48 B
Gina Maria dos Sanios Pimentel ™) Y ¥ 27,088 87 Leases 2020 2024 303.82 1,510.10 1
22, 26750

71} scmusiin; ALE; Lozsing or aihar

Auguss 2023, replacing Ana lsabet Mot da Sila

-m e | =
allowances expenses (3)
o [

Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz 1,650.46 1, 78580 3,436.26
Carlos Alberto Jo3o Femandes 133271 §52.52 Train-km 124.50 240973
Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida 8700 87.00
Vanda Cristina Loureire Soares Nogueira (**) 45.00 45.00
Alexandra Sofia Vieira Mogueira Barbosa g97.00 §7.00
Ana lsabel Mota da Silva Coelho (%) 0.00 0.00
Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel (*%) 51.00 51.00

6,136.99

"' Mrs. Ans |sabe! Mota da Siva Coelho resigned as member of the Executive Beard of Directors with effect fom 31 March 2023

") Mrs. \ianda Crisfina Lotrsifo Soares Mogueijra resigned as member of the Executive Board of Directors with effect from 31 July 2023

") Mrs. Gina Mana dos Santos Pimentel was elected, by unanimous written decision of 1 August 2023, as financial member, with efiect from 1 August 2023, replacing Ana-lsabel Mota da Silva
Coelho, who left office on' 31 March 2023.
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< General and Supervisory Board
Figures in €
Te"" LALIEES Fixed monthly
Position remuneration
s - —
2015 Chairman Jose Euie Coginko Genidd Costet, 28/08/2015 178894 1
Branco

2015 Member Duarte Manuel lvens Pifta Ferraz GM 28/08/2015 1,5891.06 1

(1) Resolution (R) / General Meeting (AG)/ Unanimous Resolution in Writing (DUE) / Order (D)

In accordance with article 391, no. 4 of the Commercial Companies Code, approved by Decree-Law no. 262/86, of 2 September; by
reference to article 435, no. 2 of the same Code, the members of the General and Supenisory Board remain in efice until they are
reappointed, so since there was no reappeintment when the members of the other statutory bodies were elected, there was no change
o the elected members of the General and Supenizory Board

In accordance with article 391, no. 4 of the Commercial Companies Code, approved by Decree-
Law no. 262/86, of 2 September, by reference to article 435, no. 2 of the same Code, the members
of the General and Supervisory Board remain in office until they are reappointed, so since there
was no reappointment when the members of the other statutory bodies were elected, the elected
members of the General and Supervisory Board did not change.

Figuresin €

Member of the General and Supervisory Gross Annual

Board Remuneration (€)

José Emilio Coutinho Garrido Castel-Branco 25,006.69
Duarte Manuel hvens Pitta Ferraz 0.00
25,006.69

4. Statutory Auditor

| Name of statutoryauditfirm |
(Beginning/ | Position " N i
End)

Vitor Almeida &
2018-2020 Effective ROC  Associados, SROC, 191 20161491 GM  19/03/2019 03/09/2019 i 7
LDA

: Carla Margarida
2018-2020 Effective ROC Vicente Godinho

Mote: effective (SROC and ROC) and alternate (SROC and ROC)
(1) General Meeting (AG) / Unanimous Resolufion in Wriling (DUE}/ Order (D)

1560 20161170 GM  19/03/2019 03/09/2019 1 1

The Official Auditor’s fees relating to the audit of the accounts were as follows:
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(Figures in €)

Annual value of addlhonal services - 2023

Annual value of service contract - 2023 (€)

Redictions Final Reduc'uon
@ amount Service ID {1' amount
(3) = (1H2) (2} (3) = (1H2)

Viiae Mmisida e Ao sesiados: SROG, 3577284 - 3577284 na  20556.00 na.  20556.00

Lda

Vitor Almeida e Associados, SROC, Lda., was paid for the statutory audit of accounts and the
preparation of an independent report certifying the financial statements for 2022 relating to various
applications under the Connecting Europe Facility Programme (CEF and CEF 2) and Horizon
2020.

5. External Auditor

Article 21(q) of IP's articles of association states that it is the responsibility of the General and
Supervisory Board to select and replace IP's external auditor, and to give the Executive Board of
Directors the instructions for hiring them.

On 5 March 2024, BDO & Associados, Sociedade de Revisores Oficiais de Contas, Lda. was
awarded the contract to provide external auditing services for the financial years 2023, 2024 and
2025.

The firm is registered with the Official Auditors Association under number 29 and with the
Securities Commission (CMVM) under number 20161384,

'd — m Contract Date | Duration of No. of years as No. of years as
) Contract external auditor in | external auditor in in
Name of External Auditor -M the group P ——

BDO & Associados, Sociedade de Revisores
Oficiais de Contas, Lda

20161384 2024 2023-2025 4 4

{*) Date of confract

(Figures in €}

Aol Biguee 9F 32 rvice: con © Annual figure of addltlonﬂl services - 2023

Reductions |Final amount Service ID Reductions |Final amount
@ Bi=(1-2) 2 (B1=0142)

81,724.50 - 81,724.50 na

Name of External Auditor

BDO & Associados, Sociedade de Revisores
Oficiais de Contas, Lda.

8.8 COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLES 32 AND 33 OF THE PUBLIC MANAGER'S
STATUTE (EGP)

Article 32 of the Public Manager's Statute, approved by Decree-Law no. 71/2007 of 27 March and
amended by Law no. 64-A/2008 of 31 December, Decree-Law no. 8/2012 of 18 January and
Decree-Law no. 39/2016 of 28 July, states that:

1. Public managers are not allowed to use credit cards or other payment instruments to incur
expenses on the company's behalf;
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2. It is not permitted to reimburse public managers for any expenses that fall under the
concept of personal representation expenses;

3. The ceiling for communication expenses, including mobile and fixed telephone and
internet is fixed by resolution of the general meeting, in the case of public limited
companies, or by order of the relevant government member responsible for finance, in
the case of public corporations, as published in the Official Gazette;

4. The sum in the previous paragraph is fixed according to the guidelines established for the
purpose by shareholders or by Government decree, published in the Official Gazette,
issued by the Government member responsible for the finance area, taking into account
the ceiling set forth for the use of fixed and mobile telephones by key function holders
(above 15t degree).”

Members of the Executive Board of Directors of I[P do not use any credit cards or other payment
cards to pay for any expenses made on the company's behalf.

IP does not refund any representation fees to members of the Executive Board of Directors.
As regards communication related expenses, in the year 2023 they were as follows:
Expenses with mobile

communications (€)
Member of the BD

(name)

Notes (1)

Migue! Jorge de Campos Cruz 80.00 40.02 960.00
Carlos Alberto Jo&o Femandes 80.00 56.61 960.00
Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida 80.00 4427 960.00
Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira (**) 80.00 59 18 560.00
Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa 80.00 22 62 960.00
Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho (%) 80.00 23.07 960.00
Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel (") 80.00 2397 960.00

269.74

®) Mrs. Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho resigned as member of the Executive Board of Directors with effect from 31 March 2023.

(1) Annual ceiling

™) Mrs. Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares MNogueira resigned as member of the Executive Board of Directors with effect from 31 July
2023

) \rs. Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel was elected, by unanimous wntten decision of 1 August 2023, as financial member, with
effect from 1 August 2023, replacing Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho, who left office on 31 March 2023.

Article 33 further provides that:
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1. The ceiling for car related expenses of public managers is fixed by resolution of the
general meeting, in the case of public limited companies, or by order of the relevant
government member responsible for finance, in the case of public corporations, as
published in the Official Gazette;

2. The sum mentioned in the previous paragraph is established in accordance with the
guidelines issued by the Shareholder, or decreed by the relevant ministerial authority, and
published in the Official Gazette;

3. The ceiling for fuel and toll expenses of allocated cars is fixed at one quarter of respective
monthly representation allowances;

4. Managers cannot opt for the purchase of the vehicle allocated to their use.

The expenses associated with the annual car costs in 2023 were as follows:

Expenses with mobile

communications (€)
Member of the BD

(name)

Notes (1)

Migue! Jorge de Campos Cruz 80.00 40.02 960.00
Carlos Alberto Jo&o Femandes 80.00 56.61 960.00
Marnia Amalia Freire de Almeida 80.00 44 27 960.00
Vanda Cnistina Loureiro Soares Nogueira (*%) 80.00 59 18 560.00
Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa 80.00 22 62 960.00
Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho (%) 80.00 23.07 960.00
Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel (***) 80.00 23.97 960.00

269.74
(1) Annual ceiling

) \rs. Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Goelho resigned as member of the Executive Board of Directors with effect from 31 March 2023.

%) Mrs. Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Mogueira resigned as member of the Executive Board of Directors with effect from 31 July
2023

) Mrs_ Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel was elected, by unanimous wntten decision of 1 August 2023, as financial member, with
effect from 1 August 2023, replacing Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho, who left office on 31 March 2023,

8.9 UNDOCUMENTED EXPENSES

In accordance with Article 16(2) of Decree-Law 133/2013 of 3 October, which determines the
adoption of the principle of financial transparency, public companies are expressly forbidden from
making any undocumented expenditure.
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Accordingly, IP did not record any undocumented expenses in 2023.

8.10 REPORT ON REMUNERATION PAID TO WOMEN AND MEN

In 2023, IP maintained its policy of respecting good practices in the field of equal treatment, mutual
respect and repudiation of any discriminatory behaviour based on any type of different
characteristics of its employees, including gender.

In December 2023, the IP Group had 3632 employees, 863 of whom were women, representing
approximately 24 per cent of the total.

The imbalance between the representation of men and women in the IP Group reflects the
asymmetry that characterizes the professional groups dedicated to the core activities of railway
traffic management and infrastructure maintenance, operational activities with greater physical
demands and geographical dispersion, traditionally more “male dominated”.

Thus, there is a predominance of men in the professional groups “Operational and Auxiliary
Personnel” and “Intermediate Technician, Specialist” compared to women.

In the case of women, there is a greater concentration in the “Administrative” and “Superior
Technicians” groups, particularly in the corporate and less operational areas.

IP 's active underwriting gender equality principles is particularly shown in the activities and
responsibilities assumed with CITE (Commission for Equality in Labour and Employment (CITE)
and IGEN (Gender Equality Organisations Forum).

The Equality Action Plan, which is part of the IP Group’s Equality Plan for 2023 (published on 22
September 2022), is based on the analysis of opportunities for improvement in specific areas,
focusing on the following dimensions:

e Strategy, Values, and Mission;

e |nitial and Continuous Training;

o Reconciliation of work, family and personal life;
e Protection to Parenthood.

IP also fulfils its commitment to the Portuguese Charter for Diversity and GRACE to contribute to
a more responsible and inclusive society by developing social responsibility initiatives with visible
and concrete impacts, in conjunction with other stakeholders.

https://www.infraestruturasdeportugal.pt/pi-pt/sobre-nos/governo-da-sociedade/outras-divulgacoes

8.11 EQUALITY PLAN (ANNUAL)
Following the publication of the Equality Plan, evaluation and monitoring reports are drawn up
(most recently from April to September/23) and published on the IP Group's intranet.

Under the terms of paragraph 1 e) of RCM no. 19/2012, the reports are sent to the department
responsible for equality, the Office of the Secretary of State for Citizenship and Equality, as well
as to the Commission for Citizenship and Gender Equality - Presidency of the Council of Ministers.

The Group’s Equality Plan Report for 2023 is available on IP website:

https://www.infraestruturasdeportugal.pt/pt-pt/sobre-nos/compromissos/responsabilidade-social
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8.12 ANNUAL CORRUPTION PREVENTION REPORT

IP Group prepares and discloses its Corruption and Related Offences Risk Management Plan
and the respective implementation reports, available for consultation on the Infraestruturas de
Portugal website, on an annual basis®

This reflects a pro-active, integrated and structured management approach of corporate risks,
contributing moreover to a better understanding or business and supporting processes, and to
the mitigation and prevention of fraud related phenomena.

The IP Group has defined a Whistleblowing Policy, revised in accordance with the legal
framework approved by Law 93/2021 of 20 December, which establishes the general regime for
protecting whistleblowers. This Policy reflects the commitment of the IP Group companies to
adopt the best practices recommended by the Corporate Governance Code of the Portuguese
Institute of Corporate Governance, by providing a direct, suitable channel and guaranteeing the
confidentiality of the entire process, to report any situations detected that:

(i) Are offences referred to in article 2 of Law no. 93/2021, of 20 December;
(i) Or which are suspected of violating or jeopardising:
» Compliance with legal, regulatory, deontological and ethical principles, as
well as internal rules and guidelines;
® The integrity of the financial information and accounting practices applied by
IP Group Companies;
e The assets of IP Group Companies;
e The image of IP Group companies or good management practices (including
areas such as conflict of interest, waste of funds, mismanagement and abuse
of authority, among others).

Any irregularities detected must be submitted via the IP website, via a link to the
‘Communication of lrregularities’ platform, created specifically for this purpose to guarantee
the confidentiality of the process.

hitps://www.infraestruturasdeportugal.pt/pt-pt/

The following post office box is also available:
INFRAESTRUTURAS DE PORTUGAL, SA
APARTADO 000533

EC PRAGAL — ALMADA, 2801-602 ALMADA

Among the activities carried out with regard to the mitigation and prevention of organisational
fraud, we would also highlight the annual monitoring of the bid register report and the signing of
the declaration of no conflict of interest by the managers of works and service contracts, members
of the jury and experts in procurement procedures and employees of the Internal Audit
Department.

With regard to public procurement, it should also be noted that the actions mentioned in no. 3
regarding "Reference to the existence of Action Plans to prevent internal fraud (committed by an
Employee or Service Provider) and external fraud (committed by Customers or Third Parties), as
well as the identification of occurrences and the measures taken to mitigate them" were adopted.

3 hitps://www.infraestruturasdeportugal pt/pt-pt/sobre-nos/governo-da-sociedade/outras-divulgacoes
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It should also be noted that IP Group companies generally comply with Recommendation no.
3/2020 of the Corruption Prevention Council published in the Official Gazette, 2™ series of 17 July
2020, on the management of conflicts of interest in the public sector.

On the other hand, bearing in mind that Law 83/2017, of 18 August, in its current wording, is
applicable to one of the IP Group Companies - IP Patriménio - because its corporate purpose and
activity fall within the real estate sector, the Procedure for Reporting Transactions to DCIAP, UIF
and IMPIC - Prevention and Combat of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing was approved
in 2020 and, in this context, and in compliance with the legal determination, the IP Group's
Regulatory Compliance Officer (RCN) has been appointed since 2019.

The Procedure for Reporting Transactions to DCIAP, UIF and IMPIC - Preventing and Combating
Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing, regulates the duty to report suspicious operations and
other legally prescribed transactions related to preventing and combating money laundering and
terrorist financing.

Compliance with these reporting obligations is monitored on a quarterly basis.

Following the publication of Decree-Law 109-E/2021, of 9 December, which creates the National
Anti-Corruption Mechanism and establishes the general regime for the prevention of corruption
and the changes introduced within the scope of the plans for the prevention of risks of corruption
and related offences, compliance with the obligation arising from that law regarding the mid-term
assessment of high and very high level risks began in October 2022.

Thus, a proactive, integrated and structured approach to corporate risk management is
implemented, which contributes to a better understanding of business and support processes, but
also to the mitigation and prevention of fraud-related phenomena.

8.13 PUBLIC PROCUREMENT

Infraestruturas de Portugal is covered by the Public Procurement Code (PPC) approved by
Decree Law 18/2008, of 29 January as amended by Decree Law 111-B/2017, of 31 August (as
amended). In accordance with the PCC, the company adopted pre-procurement procedures,
namely public tender, public tender with previous qualification, direct settlement (Criteria: Amount
and Material) and Simplified Direct Settlement.

The company's procurement policy is based on the promotion of competition to ensure the best
market conditions; accordingly, (national and international) public tenders are the preferred
procurement method; direct settlements are restricted to specific cases, according to the subject
of the contract and its framework.

For the development of contractual procedures, IP uses the Anogov electronic platform and an
internal contracting platform for procedures that allow the use of this type of electronic tool, thus
ensuring greater rigour and transparency in contracting procedures.

IP has a Procurement Manual, which regulates all the procurement activity of the company and
its subsidiaries (adapted to the traditional sector and the special sector), having been revised and
updated in 2021 following the publication of Law no. 30/2021, now covering the new procedures
established by the special procurement measures financed or co-funded by European funds. It
was revised and updated in 2021 following the publication of Law 30/2021, taking into account
the new procedures established by the special public procurement measures, with a time-limited
validity period, in terms of projects financed or co-financed by European funds, information and
knowledge technologies, the implementation of the Economic and Social Stabilisation
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Programme and the Recovery and Resilience Plan, fuel management under the Integrated Rural
Fire Management System (SGIFR), as well as procedural changes, such as the necessary
verification of compliance with the provisions of no. 6 of article 113 of the Civil Code. Article 113(6)
of the CCP for procedures under the simplified regime, by direct award or prior consultation. In
2022, the standard drafts were adapted in line with the changes introduced by the publication of
Decree-Law 78/2022 of 7 November.

In 2023, Decree-Law 49-A/2023 of 30 June was also published, which extended the validity of
the exceptional system for awarding contracts above the Base Price until 31 December 2023,
provided that the legal requirements set out in article 70(6) of the Public Contracts Code are met,
even if this possibility is not defined in the procedure programme.

As in previous years, the fourth quarter of 2023 also saw the preparation of the Procurement Plan
for 2024, which was updated according to needs, making it possible to improve the planning and
development of the procurement processes to be promoted.

During 2023, improvements continued to be implemented in IP's procurement application - known
as DESCO, applicable to the entire Infraestruturas de Portugal Group, based on the company's
activity, the changes to the Public Procurement Code and the Procurement Manual. The changes
to the aforementioned application resulted from the need to adjust it to the organisational changes
implemented in September 2023, as well as to respond to the processing of procedures under
the delegation of powers to IP's Governing Body, the power provided for in Article 22(1) of Decree-
Law 197/99, of 8 June, within the scope of the procedures necessary to ensure the railway
investments provided for in the Ferrovia 2020 Investment Plan, namely those relating to studies,
projects and opinions, including those of an environmental nature, the competence to carry out
the procedures necessary to ensure the railway investments provided for in the National
Investment Programme 2030, namely those relating to studies, projects and opinions, including
those of an environmental nature, to works contracts, to works contracts, and to the acquisition
of goods and services and the procedures necessary to ensure the day-to-day management of
the road and rail networks.

During 2023, best practice sheets were published relating to the use of this application.

The revision of the Technical Instruction (GR.PR.014) relating to contracts subject to audit by the
Court of Auditors - treatment of add-ons - was also approved.

For Infraestruturas de Portugal, the standardisation of procedures is essential for the development
of the company's activities, which is why the supporting documents for public procurement have
been updated and adapted to current needs, namely the procedural programmes, specifications,
letters of invitation, among others, in order to keep up with legislative changes, as well as to suit
the company's purposes.

In order to comply with the legislation applicable to public procurement, various pre-contractual
procedures were adopted, taking into account the company's internal needs, namely the Public
Tender, the Qualification Systems for the special sector, the Public Tender with Prior Qualification,
the Prior Consultation, the Direct Adjustment in General Regime (Criterion of Value and Material),
and the Direct Adjustment in Simplified Regime, following the principles that shape public
procurement and assuming rigour and transparency in the contracting procedures.

In order to perform the above, with a view to promoting competition and opening up the market,
the preferred contracting procedure is the Public Tender (national or international), with Direct
Adjustments limited to specific contracting procedures, both in terms of the object to be contracted
and in terms of the framework (sector) in which they take place.
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It should also be noted that the following mechanisms are used in all procedures developed by
Infraestruturas de Portugal:

® Electronic procurement, preferably using the AnoGov procurement platform, as well as
other electronic tools in compliance with the Public Contracts Code;

® Control of contracting limits (application of DESCO contracting), in relation to Direct
Adjustments chosen by the criterion of value and related entities (control of paragraphs
2 and 6 of article 113 of the CCP), and to accompany, manage and monitor all the
company's contracting processes (traditional and special sector);

® Preliminary Market Consultations under Article 35-A of the Public Contracts Code,
through the company's Sourcing.

In 2023, the following procedures were awarded, with a value equal to or greater than € 5 million:

. Type of Date of Date of Contract price
Object Supplier Tax number P
procedure contract Contract (i3]
Sacyr Neopul, SA FT501373375 0110872023 0110872023 3788741346 € |
. |
1
MOTA-BNGL RAILWAY |
STty FT514050004 orez0e 10/08/2023 24804545625 |
Somsfel - Eng Obras
e A FT500272557 01/06/2023 10/08/2023 24804545625 |
MOTA-BNGL RALWAY |
10000347 -Acquisiion of Services for the Meintenancedf | o |oeeonsen FT514250004 o1iE/z023 104082023 23.075484.87 € |
|Catenary and Track Specialiies on the Mational Rai Tanaar I
Metwork Somerel- Ena Obes FTS00272557 01/06/2023 1010812023 23075484 87€ |
Ferrovidrias 54 |
Felgn Costinges e PT502156302 o106/2023 10/03/2023 15345567 80 € l
Tecnicas Ferrovigrias, 34 |
eeplin. Copefighee FT502156302 o1/08/2023 10/08/2023 17.735275.38 €
Técnicas Ferrovidrias, SA : st
SF - Sarvicos, SA. FT518185437 o1/08/2023 o1/082023 £.500,486.14 €
IBERLIN-Higiere = |
i 1
N il FT502117281 02172023 301172023 17,720.980.80 € |
Linited e |
10010085 - Furchase of [P Group Cesning Services. Fre-Cuaification Vel | Hipes = PT504613520 02i11/2022 30111/2023 8,313,20000¢ |
Conserv., Lda
Tendsr - +
BEL Mg PTS02117281 o203 3011172023 7.080,080.06 € |
Sust Ambiental, SA |
110013004 - FE{ENESD) - District boundary SetdbaliBeja Construgdes JJR & Fihos, 2 |
FT502187714 231172023 27202023 15.425,000.00 €
(km20+613) / Ferraira do Alenteio (km 42+710) international Fublic  [SA ’
| & x 5 e N
(roundabout with ERZ}; including Figueira de Cavaleiros Tender TECHMOWVIA-Sociedade de
| FTS00250002 231172023 i el 15.425,000.00 €
|bypass Enpretadas Lda
10005415 - IC17 CRIL — Grilo Tunne! - Upgrading of ! :
ifrastructire and Safety Systeoes ~-under the DesignBit | o etonal fubia | Teiewm Duarie: Sng: PT500087483 12/07/2023 1510812023 13,808 557.00 €
{ Tender Construgdes SA |
Schame
COPS-Comp. Oper.de S i 2 |
| 10002802 - Security and human survellance service for | International Pubiic calda i aanzs 2002e02a RESERans
the three-year period 2023/2025 at IP Tender ) ) _
1 PSG- Segurangs Frivads, S4 | FTS02170710 231172023 201202023 10.047.345.04 €
| |DOD4337—.EI~I1.4 bypxs Rnad—r.ai inferface Samana Infernational Pubfic Construcoes Gabriel A S. ETR0C07ZE8R sa/08/2022 011112023 12.550,00000 € |
|(BM14) section, including new bridge over the River Ave ‘Tender Cout
110002160 - Connection of the Cabecs de Forea hdustrial  |Infernational Fublic | Construgdes Gabrisl A 5. .
| x FT500072862 23002023 o1112023 12.550,000.00 €
|Estsie (Felgusiraz) to the A11 - implementstion ‘Tender Cout e
110011120 - Vis do Tamega - EME10 bypass (Celoricode  |international Fublic | ACA-Construgdes Alberto
|Bastos) - : e PP FT501312412 25/05/2023 2610872023 11,600.000.00 €
10009858 - APurchase of road fuels and electricity for Iinternafionsl Pubfc fi
Petrdlzos de EIE PTS00507370 05/05/2022 31/05/2023 050,162.25 €
| robity - Grouping & G P : =i Fortugal-Petroga! & 2. |
10011751 - improvement of accesses to the ndustrial Area | internafional Public 1
lof Canpo e sl Construges Fragoss, SA. | FTS02406878 05/05/2022 16/08/2023 888212837 € i
[10074744 - Acquistion of the P of il m—— |
|collection services on the A23 - Tares Novas (A1) / :“:ﬂ:’“" S RUBIE | A e BM, SA. FT508577582 231172023 211272023 BETEOND0E
LY = T
110008013 - ER225. LD AVRVIS (km 36+330) and Castro | Infernational Fublic | COMNSTRUGOES CARLOS |
Estiepaipanss g FT503262482 02172023 121122023 8.184,531.43€ |
| 10012802 - Bectricity supply to nfraestruturas de Fortugal, | Internations! Pubiic - |
| [BEROROLA, UnipessoalLda | FT502124083 200032023 280472023 5.320.42040¢€ |
1S.A. Group faciities. (April to December 2023) Tender 2 |
110010820 - L. Beira Atta - Pampihesa Station 1st Phase STECONFER-Soc Téonics |
|2 - ] DrsctSetterent | o e e oa FT502048532 100172023 o220z 5,u05.0m.m§i
|
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8.14 NATIONAL PUBLIC PROCUREMENT SYSTEM (SNCP)

Following the guidelines of the Executive Board of Directors, whenever it is economically more
advantageous, the Company promotes the contracting procedures using ESPAP, under the
Framework Agreements within the scope of the National Public Procurement System.

8.15 MEASURES TO OPTIMISE THE STRUCTURE OF OPERATING
EXPENSES

According to article 133 of the DLEO DE 2023, companies must comply with the guidelines and
objectives set out therein, pursuing a policy of optimising the structure of operating expenses to
promote operational balance.

As determined in Order no. 252/2022-SET, of 18/08/2022, |IP's budget proposal for 2023 included
performance optimisation measures, aimed at maximising the operating result, with the guidelines
of increasing Operating Income and reducing Operating Expenses, with the aim of ensuring the
company's financial sustainability, taking into account the following references:

® Operational Efficiency - by 2023, ensure that the ratio of operating expenses to turnover
(Operational Efficiency) is equal to or lower than that recorded in the reference year (2022
or 2019), depending on which has a higher turnover. In the case of IP Engenharia, the
reference year is 2019.

® Costreduction plan - in 2023, the following operating costs must be equal to or lower than
the value recorded in 2022 (article 133(4) DLEO 2023):

(iii) Personnel, excluding those relating to governing bodies, corrected for the impact
of compliance with legal provisions, severance pay, and compulsory pay rises
under the terms of the LOE, as well as the effect of absenteeism:

(iv) External supplies and services, adjusted for the impact of the increase in energy
products, including their impact on transport costs;

(v) All the costs of travel, subsistence and accommodation, as well as those
associated with the vehicle fleet (vehicle costs include: rent/amortisation,
inspections, insurance, tolls, fuel and/or electricity, maintenance, repairs, tyres,
fees and taxes) and the costs of contracting studies, opinions, projects and
consultancy;

The monitoring of the measures to optimise the structure of operating expenses provided for in
article 133 of the DLEO 2023 for the year 2023 is shown in the table below:
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implementati Implementati
on on

2019

440636894 500494537 506472216 530688671 65785322 -13% 148,004,777 255

323027101 409217304 280585116 429 396 687 42,441,985 15% 106,869 586 259
(2) Supplies and services 382207919 336914084 350549644 304085396 22658275 8% 78122022 26%
{3) Personnel expenses 141012036 146764378 132239098 127320165 8,772,938 7% 13,891,571 1%

L Relafing to governing bodies™ 658,852 707,771 655,541 695.024 33n 1% -36,172 -5%

il. Severance payments™ 1428012 -1,428,012 -100%

L U LT S TR 25077455 17724682 11547310 7,884,542 44% 14,061,913 122%

mandatory™

iv. Bfect of absenteeism and

compliance with legal provisions™
!;]:;’;'m“' SO HE WA ROUE RR DS & 114743961 120979451 113.853.875  113.649.319 835085 1% 1,094,142 1%

{5) impact on expenses due to exceplional
factors ™

{6) Operating expenses for the purposes | - - D -
of determining operational efficiency = | 813,369,789.7 196,902 75 86130274823 109 37 5%
(1H{2+{3H5)

(7) Turnover (T) 1397.839424 1193491470 17379702903 35,107 084 3% 151,104,349 1%

129,525,956 35,176,955 -35,176,935 -100%

Operating subsidies
Compensatory Allowances 89,426 131 55,055,058 59.747.932 10,348,770 19% 5,656,846 9%

(8) Loss of revenue due to exceplional
factors

(9) Turnover for the purposes of i e e A U o L TR e
determining operational < fiiciency = (7+3) * i iaall 1193491470 1378702803 AP0S4 3% 451104348 1%

L9 Witk o Expe s VT (B Ll % S ETnDiE Al 0%
;E:’S‘;"' g} I ETNMRORABOT EXpE (rEce 387,59 373,804 352317 316.192 35280 10% 71,404 3%
ii. Brpenditure on subsistence

670,356 588613 816,710 684430 53,645 9% 14,073 2%
allowances {GPersonnel) :
o ESIPEIEAR S R Ok Felkort Wiy Wi EaAics 5,658,125 5,760,166 5,682,069 5.031,124 23944 0% 372,999 6%
B Experecs with oomnufiancy, siadc, 2017820 2134261 2181,361 1470248 7% 547 581 7%
opinions and projecis

(41) Total = (i} + (i) + (i) = (iv) 5501993 s =
No. Vehicies 727 724 743 3 0% 8 2%

a) Pursuant to Article 144{5)(a) of the DLED 2022

b) F applicable, exceplional impacts (namely the geopaiitical crisis and COVID-19) and impacts due to legal impositions must be duly jusfified. under the terme of arficle 144 of the DLED
2022, as well a5 guaniified and broken dow n in refation o the different items of expenditure/costs, sales and services rendered.

¢} For the purposes of the Operational Efficiency ratio, Compensatory Indemmifies under the Framew ork Contract for the Management of the Railw ay Metw ork were included in
Turnover.

d} Vehicle costs should include: rents/amortisations, inspections, insurance, tolls. fuel andior elecinicity, maintenance. repairs, tyres. fees and taxes.

EBITDA

EBITDA in 2023 remained positive, totalling € 440.7 million, which represents a decrease of €
65.8 million compared to 2022. The negative variation in EBITDA is essentially due to the fact
that the growth in operating expenses was higher than the growth in operating income.

Compared to 2019, there was a decrease in EBITDA of € 149 million.

Operating income increased by € 51.6 million compared to 2022 and operating expenses by € 82
million.

RSC and Railway Services decreased by around 28 million compared to 2022.

In terms of operating costs, the items that contributed most to the increase compared to 2022
were the cost of goods sold and materials consumed with € 42.4 million, road and rail
maintenance with an increase of € 23.3 million and provisions with an increase of € 43.5 million.
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Compared to 2019, there was a decrease of € 149 million. Turnover in 2019, before the pandemic,
was € 156.8 million higher than in 2023. The Road Service Consignment figure contributes largely
to this negative variation.

WEIGHT OF OPERATING EXPENSES ON TURNOVER

With regard to the weight of operating costs in turnover, the ratio of operating costs to turnover is
68.9 per cent in 2023, 6.5 p.p. higher than the ratio in 2019, i.e. worsening from 2019 to 2023.

Amounts in € thousand

Tumover Operating expenses

Effective 2023 1228 598.6 846 247 1 68 9%
Effective 2019 13797029 8613027 62 4%
Deviation -151104,3 -150557

-11,0% -1,7%

In relation to the budget, the ratio in 2023 was 10.7 p.p. higher than forecast in the approved
Business Plan.

Amounts in € thousand

Operational
Efficiency

Tumover Operating expenses

Effective 2023 12285986 846 247 1 68.0%
2023 Budget 1397 8894 8133698 58.2%
Deviation -169 290,9 328773

-12.1% 4.0%

The operational efficiency indicator showed a negative evolution compared to 2019 and the
budget.

Two effects contributed to this:

® Operating income in 2023 was € 145 million lower than budgeted. This reduction is
essentially due to the € 57.7 million reduction in RSC, the € 59 million reduction in the
State Grantor - ILD Credit item and the € 40 million reduction in Construction Contracts.

® Operating costs in 2023 were € 32.9 million higher than budgeted.

Expenses relating to Travel and Accommodation, Subsistence Allowances, Fleet
and Studies, Opinions and Consultancy Projects

Total expenditure on travel and accommodation, plus subsistence allowances, the car fleet and
consultancy opinions and projects amounted to € 8.7 million in 2023, € 78.6 thousand less than
in 2022 and € 122.9 thousand less than the authorised budget.

Spending in 2023 on these items was lower than budgeted and actual spending in 2022. This
requirement is met in relation to 2022 and in relation to the budget.

The following table shows the amount authorised for this set of expenses:

Amounts in € thousand

Travel and Accommodation Expenses (ESS) 3876 3738 3523 3162 138 353 10%
Expenditure on subsistence allowances (GFersonnel) 6704 hB86 616,7 6844 a7 14%: 36

Expenses associated with the car fleet) 56581 5:760,2 56821 60311 1020 2% 239 0%:
Expenses with consultancy, studies, opinions and projects 20178 21343 21614 14702 1164 55 -143 5 -T%

67339 & 8563 38125 8502,0 -1229 -1% -78.6 -1%
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Expenses with Car Fleet

The management of the I[P Group's vehicle fleet is of fundamental importance to the organisation
and development of the Group's operational activities, given its territorial dispersion and the scope
of its activities.

Continuous work has been carried out in recent years, involving concrete measures and efforts
to make the Group's vehicle fleet more efficient and effective, in line with best management
practices, responding to the challenges posed in carrying out its functions and adapting the size
of the fleet to the established objectives.

Below is a breakdown of spending on the car fleet in 2023. Total expenditure on the vehicle fleet
totalled € 5,658.1 thousand in 2023, down 2% on the budget and by the same amount on the
same period in 2022.

Expenditure on the fleet was lower than budgeted, the main reason being fuel and energy.

Amounis in € thousand

e T Lo o |

Car fiest
20232025

Car renfing expenses 13 - a1 270856 114 21%
Fuel 20020 25079 22510 19425 -505.9 -20% 249,0 -11%
Tolls 4538 7 316 3073 72,0 19% 1121 33%
Maintenance 3015 2900 24573 5586 15 4% 562 23%
Insurance 4026 arga g 3287 245 6% 309 8%
Carfax 126 10,0 148 179 26 26% 22 -15%
Leasing inierest 1026 733 2077 293 40%: -105.1 -51%
Other 3215 636 1142 167.5 2529 368% 2074 182%
Repayments 20504 20504 21266 0.0 0% -76.2 -4%
Expenses with Car Fleet 56581 57602 56821 60311 -102,0 2% -239 0%

Personnel Expenses

Personnel costs totalled € 141 million in 2023, € 8.8 million more than in 2022; an increase in
personnel costs by € 11.3 million in 2023 compared to 2022 was authorised when the 2023-2025
BPB was approved. As a result, the increase in staff costs was € 5.8 million less than the amount
authorised when the 2023-2025 BPB was approved.

Amounts in € thousand

Personnel Expenses e
it - m
489 % 33 1%

i. Relating to. governing bodies 6589 7078 6555 695.0

il. Severance paymenis 1428.0 - -

fii. Remuneration increases that are mandatory 25609,2 250772 177247 115473 5321 2% 78845 44%
iv. Effect of absenteeism and compliance with legal provisions = &=

Personnel costs without impacts i, ii., i and iv 1147440 1209795 1138589 1136498 652355 -5% 885,1 1%
Personnel Expenses 141 012,0 1467644 1322391 1273202 -57523 -4% 87729 %

8.16 HUMAN RESOURCES AND WAGE BILL

Human resources and wage bill (article 131 of the DLEO 2023 | Orders of 15 December 2022 and 12 May
2023 from the Secretaries of State for the Treasury and Finance).

Changes in the number of human resources broken down according to the table below:
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Amounts in €

2023.&022
Human Resources and Wage Bill 2023 implemented 2023 budget. 2022 Implﬂmented
A Absol. Ch.%

Number of corporate bodies (CB) 0 0.00%
MNumber of Management Offices (MB) 195 1 95 1 94 1 0.52%
MNumber of employees (excluding CB and MB}) 3220 33N 3220 0 0.00%
Total 3422 3574 3421 1 0,03%
Number of employees / Number of MB 4879 4458 4877 01 0,03%
Personnel Expenses 141012036 € 146 764 387 € 132239098€ BT72938€ 6,63%
Personnel Expenses/Total (MBS+MB+T) 41207 € 41064 € 38655 € 2552 € 6,60%

Joint Orders of 15-12-2022 and 12-5-2023, SET and SEF

Wage bill update rate (2023-2022) 0.00%

8.17 STATE’s TREASURY UNIT PRINCIPLE

The State Budget Law for 2023, in article 105, kept the obligation of public corporate companies
to comply with the State's Treasury Unit principle. Accordingly, IP must keep its cash flows and
financial applications in accounts with the IGCP, whatever their origin or nature, and operate any
funds using the bank services made available by this entity.

The Company has been using all banking resources and functionalities made available by the
IGCP, namely home banking services to pay the State and suppliers, employees and other
entities or perform other banking operations.

Notwithstanding, the Company still has to use certain commercial banking services, where IGCP
does not provide them.

In exceptional situations, as provided for in the Budget Execution Decree-Law, the IGCP may
authorise exemption from compliance with the UTE principle, for a maximum period of two years,
informing the DGO and DGTF.

By means of information no. 242/2022 of 4 April, the IGCP authorised the waiver of compliance
with UTE for the years 2022 and 2023, with regard to the following banking services:

(i) Prepaid cards;

(i) Bank guarantees that cannot be replaced by escrow deposits;
(iii) Paying agent services associated with the contracted debt;
(iv) Custody of securities other than public debt.

Every quarter IP communicates the corresponding quarterly balances, using the online services
of Directorate-General of the Treasury and Finance (DGTF) and the Directorate-General for the
Budget (DGO).

As of 31 December 2023, the company held € 260.6 million of cash resources with IGPC.
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Amounts in € thousand

IGCP()

Demand deposits 284,289.8 433,582.5 416.676.0 62,408.2

!CED!C applications - - - 198.200.0

Liquid assets with commercial banks are distributed as follows:

Amounis in € thousand

0.5 1.0

Novo Banco 10 0.1
b 40,0 0.0 2498 34
Santander 126 12.9 17,9 17
BBVA 37 313 186 182
ol 0. 0.1 0.1 0,1
= 0,0 0,0 0,0 0.8
GeD o 6.4 95 0.0

Interest earned (*7) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

* Identify the institution with which the cash and/or financial investments are held, adding t
he necessary lines
** |dentify the interest earned on all financial investments held with the Commercial Banking System

Note: The: amounts considered refer to the accounting balances at the end of each of the periods indicated, excluding negative accounting balances.

8.18 RECOMMENDATIONS ARISING FROM AUDITS CARRIED OUT BY
THE COURT OF AUDITORS

In respect of recommendations issued by the CA in reports of the last three years, we point out
the following:
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Compliance | quantification/id

Compliance with legal guidelines - 2023 Justification/Report Section

entification

2021/2022/2023

Audit “Opinion on CGE - Operability of infrastructures and Transports” - Report 1/2020 — 2nd Section

Recommendations

To the Government, through officials responsible for
the areas of finance and infrastructures
Recommendation 1:

Promote the conditions necessary to camy out the
investment provided in PETI3+ 2014/2020, revsed in NIP
2030 released on 12/01/2019 (without financing deficit).

IRecommendation 3:

Urgently obtain the funding necessary to at least, change
the status of the assessed infrastructures from ‘non
satisfactory” to "satisfactory”

Recommendation 4:

Obtain, in the short-term, the funding necessary to at
|least, change the status of the assessed infrastructures
from “requiring attention” to “satisfactory”

Recommendation 2:
|Ensure that the information on the implementation of
PETI3+ is reliable and complete.

Recommendation 5:

Fromote the improvement of the risk management relating
to the operability of transport infrastructure, in order to
strengthen user confidence.

Recommendation 6:

Implement a management system for the universe of]
transport infrastructures (whether under state company
management or subject to concession) provding regular
information on their status (consenation and condition)
and inspection (major, routine and underwater, if]
applicable), to ensure a timely assessment and efficiently
prevent non operability.

Recommendation 7:

|Create and disclose on a regular basis, nsk matnces by
segment, of transport infrastructures by nsk group,
according to the probability and risk of their non
operability, as well as the measures taken and to be
taken to mitigate such risk, if relevant.

Measures adopted

Measures Adopted - Recommendation 1, 3 and 3
The following measures are being implemented:
1. Authonsation to Strengthen IP workforce;

2. Orders on the delegation of powers to IP' s EBD -
Approval of Expenditure

Measures adopted - Recommendation 2

Viewing to comply with control procedures cumently in
force at IP, the following measures are being
implemented:

1. Half-year report on the Financial Development of
PETI3+ for the Court of Auditors; Completion of the
Integrated Global Planning- in progress.

Measures adopted - Recommendations 5, 6 and 7

As regards the assets under IP' s direct
management, IP has implemented to dedicated
management systems, supported by 3 applications.
The EWMS (Engineering Works Management
System), covening the railway and road networks,
which is supported by GOA application as concerns
roads, and GOA Web, as regards the railway, and
SGPav (Road Surface Management System), for the
road network. As regards the assets under sub-
concession, respective sub-concessionaires, as
responsible for their management, also have
management systems implemented; IP has access
to such information, which allows it to monitor guality,
on a regular basis, checking the fulfilment of
standards, as provwded in the Quality Control Plans
(QCP) established in each Sub-concession Contract.
IP processes are audited and certified by an external
entity according to |50 9001:2015 and
I1S055001:2014, thus fulfilling intemational good
practices relating to Quality Management and Asset
Management, respectively. These processes ensure
the availability of infrastructures in adequate operating
conditions.
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8.19 PREPARATION AND DISCLOSURE OF THE NON-FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

At the same time as the 2023 Annual Report, IP will publish the 2023 Sustainability Report, which
includes the non-financial statement, in accordance with paragraphs 1 and 2 of Article 66-B of the
Companies Code, as well as Article 508-G of the same law, following the guiding principles of the
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI).

8.20 INFORMATION PUBLISHED ON THE SEE'S WEBSITE

provided on the SEE

website Y/N/na Revis

Articles of Association

https:/iwww.infraestruturasdeportugal pt/pt-
pt/sobre-nos/govemo-da-
sociedade/enguadramento-legal

Company characteristics

hitps://www infraestruturasdeportugal_pt/

Supervising and shareholder
function

https:/iwww infraestruturasdeportugal pt/pt-
pi/sobre-nos/governo-da-
sociedade/enguadramento-legal

Govermnance model / Members
of governing bodies

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP website
Corporate Govemance Report published on IP
website

- Identification of Governing
Bodies

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP website
Corporate Governance Report published on IP
website

- Fixed remuneration regime

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published an IP website
Corporate Governance Report published on IP
website

- Disclosure of remuneration
of Corporate Bodies

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP website
Corporate Governance Report published on IP
website

- ldentification of functions
and duties of members of the
Board of Directors

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP website
Corporate Governance Report published on IP
website

- Resumes of the members of
govemning bodies

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP website
Corporate Governance Report published on IP
website

Public financial effort

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP website
Corporate Govemance Report published on IP
website

Summary

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP website
Corporate Governance Report published on IP
website




Information to be provided

on the SEE website

2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Repo Infraestruturas
1.180 de Porlugal

Historic and current financial
information

Y

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

Good governance principles:

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

- intemal and external
regulations which the Company
must comply with

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

- Relevant transactions with
related entities

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

- Other transactions

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

- Analysis of the Company’s
sustainability in the following
areas:

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

Economic

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

Social

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Govemnance Report published
on IP website

Environmental

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

- Assessment of compliance
with the principles of good
corporate govemance

28/04/2023

SIRIEF/ SIRIEF

Report and Accounts published on IP
website

Corporate Governance Report published
on IP website

- Code of Ethics

06/02/2024

hitps://www infraestruturasdeportugal pt/pt-
ptietica
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8.21 SUMMARY TABLE OF COMPLIANCE WITH LEGAL GUIDELINES

Compliance Quantif. / Identif.

Compliance with legal guidelines 2023 Justification/Report Section

Management Goals

Core Revenues - Cash (€M) €M 1,129 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Total Cash Flow (€M) X -£M 1,253 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Aggregate Strategic Investments Indicator (%) x 83% | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
ggj?l;%ia;:ul:lret\n\rom Intervention Plan (Except Strategic Investments) 5 2% | Point 8.1 of the Management Report
Road Service Levels (%) x 98% | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Railway Service Levels (%) X 71% | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Non-Core Revenue X €M 28 | Paint 8.1 of the Management Report
Goals to achieve as provided in BBP 2023

MNet Profit X £€M-188 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
EBITDA x €M 4407 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Operating Results X €M 2059 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Tumover X €M 1,228 6 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Indebtedness X €M 3,984 3 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Met Financial Debt/EBITDA X 8.5 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report.
Railway Investment x €M 342 | Paint 8.1 of the Management Report
Road Investment X €M 61 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report
Management related investment X €M 8.7 | Point 8.1 of the Management Report
Investment under Public - Private Partnerships X €M.1'1 od Paint 8.1 of the Management Report

excluding VAT

Level of Implementation of the Budget downloaded in SIGO/SOE

Level of Implementation of the Budget downloaded in SGIO/SOE x 88% | Point 8.1 of the Management Report;

IManagement of financial nsk

Management of financial sk Point 8.2 of the Management Report.

Limits to indebtedness growth

Limits to indebtedness growth Paint 8.3 of the Management Report.
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Compliance Quantif. / Identif.

Compliance with legal guidelines 2023 Justification/Report Section

Evolution of the APP to suppliers Paint 8.4 of the Management Report.

| Disclosure of payment arrears I

Point 8.4 of the Management Report. Payment
periods are contractually agreed by IP and its
suppliers. Where invoices are correct and comply
with the legal and tax requirements they are paid
up until due date (or approximate date). As result,
IP does not have overdue payments.

Disclosure of payment arrears X

Shareholder recommendations in the latest approval of accounts:

Shareholder recommendations in the latest approval of accounts: X Paint 8.5 of the Management Report.

Reserves issued in the last LCA

Reserves issued in the last LCA Foint 8.6 of the Management Report.

—
Remuneration/Fees

Remuneration/Fees Executive Board of Directors - remuneration % Beidad ofthe Matasaimant Reaor
reductions effective in 2023 (if applicable) : ag port.
S_uperv.lsmn (AB/OAJFU) - reduction in remuneration in force in 2023 X Point 87 of the Management Report
(if applicable)

Exha-_rnal Auditor - reduction in remuneration in force in 2023 (if = POt T of the Meanagerment Resiort
applicable)

EGP - article 32 and 33

MNon-use of credit cards X Point 8.8 of the Management Report.
MNon-reimbursement of personal expenses X Point 8.8 of the Management Report.
Ceiling on communication expenses X Point 8.8 of the Management Report.
Maximum monthly fuel and other vehicles expenses X Paint 8.8 of the Management Report.
MNon documented or confidential expenses - Art. 16(2) of RJSPE and art. 11 of EGP
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Compliance Quantif. / Identif.

Compliance with legal guidelines 2023 Justification/Report Section

See point 8.9 of the Management Report - In
accordance with the provisions of Article 16(2) of
Decree-Law 133/2013 of 3 October, which states
that in order to adopt the pnnciple of financial

MNon documented or confidential expenses not permitted X transparency, public companies are expressly
forbidden from making any wundocumented
expenditure.

Accordingly, IP did not record any undocumented
expenses in 2023.

Promotion of equal opportunities for women and men - no. 2 of CMR 18/2014

See point 8.10 of the Management Report - In
accordance with paragraph 2 of the Council of
Ministers' resolution no. 18/2014, of 7 March,
companies in the SEE must promote, every 3
years, the preparation of a report, to be publicised
internally and made available on the website, on
x the remuneration paid to women and men. The
report relating to 2022 is published on the website
of Infraestruturas de Portugal.

Preparation and disclosure of report on remuneration paid to women
and men

hitps:/www infraestruturasdeportugal . pt/pt-
pt/scbre-nos/govemo-da-sociedade/outras-

divulgacoes

Prevention of Corruption

See point 8.12 The PGRCIC is available for
consultation on the Infraestruturas de Fortugal
website:

Preparation and disclosure of annual report X

hitps://www infraestruturasdeportugal ptipt-
pt/sobre-nos/governo-da-sociedade/outras-

divulgacoes
Public procurement
Application of public procurement rules by the company X See point 8.13 of the Management Report.

See point 8.13 of the Management Report. All
contracts entered into by IP in 2024 comply with
the Organisational and Procedure Law of the
Court of Auditors, which provides that contracts
with a value greater than € 750,000 must be
approved by the Audit Court.

368 contracts
Contracts submitted to the prior approval of the CA X sent, totalling
£€405,429,621.56

Adhesion to the National Public Procurement System

Company's adhesion X See point 8.14 of the Management Report.




Compliance with legal guidelines 2023

Weight of operating expenses/turnover

2023 Annual Report !‘

| Management Repo Infraestruturas
1.184 | de Porlugal

Compliance

Quantif. / Identif.

Justification/Report Section

Paint 8.15 of the Management Report.

Total expenditure on Travel and Accommodation, Subsistence
Allowances, Vehicle Fleet and Studies, Opinions and Consultancy
Projects

€M 8.7 | Point 8.15 of the Management Report.

Personnel Expenses

€M 141 | Point 8.15 of the Management Report.

Cash and liquid assets deposited with IGCP

State’s Treasury Unit Principle {article 28 of DL 133/2013)

€M 2606 | See point .17 of the Management Report.

Cash and deposits in banks

€M 24 4 | See point 8.17 of the Management Report.

Interest eamed following UTE non-compliance handed over to the
State

See point 8.17 of the Management Report. No
interest were eamned on non Treasury applications

Audit Court Audits

Recommendation following Audit by Audit Court

See point 8.18 of the Management Report.

Preparation of the Equality Plan

Preparation and Disclosure of the Equality Plan

See point 8.11 of the Management Report.

pt/sobre-nos/compromissos/responsabilidade-
social

Presentation of Non-Financial Statement

Preparation and Disclosure of Non-Financial Statement

See point 8.19 of the Management Report.
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9.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

9.1 SHARE CAPITAL INCREASE

IP's share capital was increased by € 456,845 thousand, corresponding to 91,369 new shares
according to Unanimous Shareholders' Resolution in Writing dated 16 February 2024.

IP's share capital was increased by € 33,950 thousand, corresponding to 6,790 new shares
according to Unanimous Shareholders' Resolution in Writing dated 4 March 2024.

IP's share capital was increased by € 159,000 thousand, corresponding to 31,800 new shares
according to Unanimous Shareholders' Resolution in Writing dated 26 March 2024.

9.2 MINISTERIAL ORDER 418/2023 OF 11 DECEMBER - NEW SYSTEM OF
DISCOUNTS TO BE APPLIED TO TOLL RATES ENTERING INTO FORCE
ON 1 JANUARY 2024

This decree regulates the reduction scheme applicable to the toll amount charged to users on the
sections and sub-sections identified in Decree-Law no. 111/2011 of 28 November (A22, A23, A24
and A25), and on the sections and sub-sections of the A 4 - Marao tunnel, A 4 - Vila Real-
Braganga (Quintanilha), A 13 - Atalaia (A 23) - Coimbra Sul and A 13-1 motorways.

Although toll rates will be reduced by 65 per cent, the decree determines the end of the modular
system of discounts during the day (15 per cent and 35 per cent, depending on the ex-SCUT in
question) and also a 15 per cent reduction in the discounts currently provided for the
aforementioned sections of the A4, A13 and A13-1 (which are currently 55 per cent and will be
reduced to 40 per cent) during the night, on working days, public holidays and weekends

9.3 MORATORIUM ON STATE LOANS ORIGINATING FROM THE ROAD
SEGMENT

Under the terms of the Finance Minister Order dated 23 February 2024, |IP was authorised to
defer the payment of the debt service on the loans granted by the Directorate-General for the
Treasury and Finance (DGTF) to IP, maturing on 30 November 2023, to 31 December 2024, at
no additional cost.

9.4 NEW FRAMEWORK CONTRACT FOR THE 2024-2028 PERIOD

Council of Ministers Resolution 3/2024, of 5 January, authorised the payment of the
compensatory allowances by the State to IP, for fulfilling the public service obligations of
managing the railway infrastructure, arising from the new railway framework contract, for the
period 2024-2028. Accordingly, each year, the State will pay IP the sum of € 89,426 thousand
(plus VAT at the legal rate in force).
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9.5 INTERNATIONAL TENDER FOR THE FIRST SECTION OF HIGH-SPEED
LINE

The international tender for the first section of the High-Speed Line (LAV) linking Lisbon and Porto
was launched on 12 January 2024. Phase 1 comprises the section between Porto/Soure and has
an estimated capital expenditure of approx. €M 4,750+VAT; works are scheduled to begin in
2025.

9.6 CAM RING - CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF NEW CAM RING

The contract for the Design, Construction, Supply, Installation, Assembly and Entry into Operation
of the Submarine Fibre Optic Telecommunications Cable of the new CAM Ring (CAM - Mainland,
Azores, Madeira) was signed on 13 March 2024 between IP and Alcatel Submarine Networks
(ASN).

9.7 VAT PROCEEDINGS

On 31 March 2024, the Almada Administrative and Tax Court handed down first instance
judgments in favour of IP for the 2013, 2015 and 2016 financial years.
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10.FUTURE PROSPECTS

Projections consistently point to continued economic growth and gradual convergence of the
Portuguese economy with the European Union average throughout 2024 and beyond, and to a
decrease in inflation, although temporary effects on the prices of foodstuffs, certain types of
materials and raw materials, and energy will continue throughout the year.

However, important geopolitical risks continue to be identified, particularly as a result of the
continuing war in Ukraine, the escalation of tensions in the Middle East, growing disruption to
international logistics movements, as well as the positioning, in several countries, of forces that
advocate policies that are not very positive for countries' economic openness and regulation. The
economic evolution of economies that are among the main destinations for economic transactions
by Portuguese companies will also be a factor to take into account in the outlook for the future
evolution of the Portuguese economy.

in view of the potential implications for the price of energy and the price and availability of certain
materials and equipment, IP cannot fail to point out an increase in uncertainty, despite a more
positive outlook than in the recent past.

The strong limitations in the availability of labour in certain areas, as well as in the availability of
some specialised human resources, are also important factors to take into account when
estimating the increase in the investment effort for 2024.

It should also be noted that, in line with what was foreseen in the 2024-2026 Business Plan and
Budget, the projection of a return to positive net results for the 2024 to 2026 financial years is
maintained. The level of certainty in this projection is high, especially bearing in mind that the
reason why there was a negative Net Result in 2023 was due to the absence of a shareholder
decision, in a context that seems to be non-recurring.

In terms of the network intervention plan, the outlook for 2024 and the following years is again for
a strong increase in investment activity, thus maintaining the annual growth trend seen
consecutively since 2016, and which was particularly relevant in 2022 and 2023.

The completion of projects that had been included in the Ferrovia 2020 Investment Programme,
such as the work on the Southern International Corridor, namely the new high-speed rail section
between Evora and Elvas, the Beira Alta Line, as well as the continuation of the Modernisation of
the Northern Line, the Western Line and the Algarve Line, are particularly important in the
aforementioned increase in investment.

The financial implementation planned for 2024 under projects that had been included in the
Ferrovia 2020 programme is currently around € 540 million, in this context alone a figure similar
to the total value of rail investment in 2023.

In addition to the Ferrovia 2020 Programme, a significant increase in the financial implementation
of the Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP) is expected for 2024, to around € 140 million.

With regard to the road segment, within the scope of PETI 3+ we highlight the major investment
in modernising and upgrading the IP3, the financial impact of which is projected for the year 2025
and the following.

The year 2024 will also be a very important year for launching initiatives, projects and developing
the studies and projects needed to implement the National Investment Programme 2030 (PNI
2030), and in particular the programme for "Increasing Capacity on the Railway Network in
Metropolitan Areas”. As part of the High-Speed Line between Porto and Lisbon, in 2024 the
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project is expected to continue with the launch of the PPP tender procedure for the section
between Oia and Soure.

As far as the high speed projects are concerned, the Porto-Lisbon and Porto-Vigo connections,
as well as the Evora-Elvas section should be seen as important first steps of a high speed mobility
network at national and international levels. In fact, important decisions will have to be made in
2024, namely with regard to the connection to the new Lisbon airport and therefore the third phase
of the Lisbon-Porto link, the third crossing of the Tagus River and the consequent development
of the Madrid link, as well as options for connections to the south of the country.

The year will also see the start of investment in electronic communications between mainland
Portugal and the Autonomous Regions of the Azores and Madeira (Atlantic CAM), namely the
laying of the respective submarine cable, with its SMART research component and usefulness in
terms of environmental sustainability.

Alongside this level of capital expenditure, the next two years are expected to be challenging in
terms of attracting EU funding under the Portugal 2030 programmes, with € 1129 million already
available for rail projects, and also under the Connecting Europe Facility, both in the Cohesion
and General packages.

For the next three-year period 2024-2026, there will be a significant increase in maintenance and
upkeep activities on the road-rail network, with the main focus on motorways. This increase, in
addition to following the priorities established by IP, is also justified by the increase in current
maintenance and road safety activities, in order to comply with the legal obligations arising from
the entry into force of Decree-Law 84-B/2022 of 9 December, which transposes Directive (EU)
2019/1936 on road infrastructure safety management.

With regard to the railway programme contract, with the publication of Council of Ministers
Resolution 3/2024 of 5 January, the conditions were created to authorise expenditure on
compensatory allowances to be paid by the state to IP for fulfilling the public service obligations
of managing the railway infrastructure. The new framework contract for the management of the
rail network for the period 2024-2028 is expected to be signed in 2024, as it was not signed in
2023.

Finally, the evolution of the financing and management model for the national road network should
be highlighted as future prospect. Detailed internal work has already begun on this matter, with
various scenarios and alternatives, which involved internal reflection, accompanied by
consultation with stakeholders and experts on this subject. In view of the contextual, technological
and financial challenges, |P, in conjunction with the supervisory body, proposes to develop and
finalise a "Strategic Study to review the National Road Network's Financing and Management
Model", which will include an in-depth characterisation of the national road network and a
qualitative and quantitative assessment of the current model in its various components
(financing/management, revenue/charges, IP's business plan); and, on the basis of a comparative
analysis of alternative models, a proposal for a future model that responds to the main strategic
assumptions and the process of transferring the concession network, in line with the timetable
imposed by the expiry of the contracts.

In 2023, IP was involved in a number of innovation projects which, regardless of the importance
they may have in opening up to entities in the scientific and technological system and to national
and international entities specialised in certain areas, will bear fruit in terms of improving efficiency
and increasing solutions and improving processes. Open innovation will therefore continue to be
developed, including in the technological field and using artificial intelligence tools, whether in
support areas, in the field of security and cybersecurity, or in operational aclivities. For reasons
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of efficiency in the use of resources, and for reasons of organisational culture, there is no turning
back from this path.

Just as there is no going back on the commitment to sustainability, particularly environmental
sustainability, as a cross-cutting aspect of IP's operations. The creation of a directorate that takes
on strategic action, promotion and evaluation in the field of sustainability as its main objective has
enabled an initial effort to harmonise important results for the preparation of a Sustainability
Report. This work of improving efficiency in action, giving visibility to impacts, increasing
adherence to a culture of sustainability, developing training initiatives, being clearer, more
transparent and assertive in measuring effects, accelerating initiatives and involving stakeholders,
will also be continued and strengthened. 2024 will also be important in pursuing our commitment
to energy self-sustainability at operational level.

A final word on a very important line of action, not always easily identifiable, which has to do with
deepening priorities, improving efficiency, involving stakeholders and managing safety projects,
both in the railway domain - essentially removing level crossings - and in the road area. Within
the limits of our powers, we will continue to prioritise the reduction of accidents, increase the
allocation of resources to this area and give visibility to the work done. It's true that many accidents
are caused by behavioural factars - which also requires different and innovative disclosing
processes and awareness-raising - but all contributions are relevant.
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11.PROPOSAL FOR THE APPROPRIATION

OF NET RESULTS

Under the terms of the articles of association, the Executive Board of Directors submits this
Report and Accounts for 2023 to the General Meeting, proposing the following
appropriation of the net losses for 2023, in the amount of € 18,774,068.07 (eighteen million,
seven hundred and seventy-four thousand, sixty-eight euros and seven cents) to:

Cumulative results: € 18,774,068.07

Almada, 23 April 2024

Chairman

Vice-Chairman

Vice-Chairman

Member

Member

The Executive Board of Directors

Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz

Electronically signed document

Carlos Alberto Jodo Fernandes

Electronically signed document

Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida

Electronically signed document

Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa

Electronically signed document

Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel

Electronically signed document
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Under the terms and for the purposes of Article 29 - G, no. 1, paragraph c) of the Portuguese Securities Code,
each of the members of the Executive Board of Directors of Infraestruturas de Portugal, S.A., identified

hereinbelow, has signed the following statement:

"| hereby declare, under the terms and for the purposes of Article 29-G, no. | hereby declare that, to the best
of my knowledge, acting in the capacity and within the scope of the duties assigned to me and based on the
information made available to me by the Executive Board of Directors, the Separate Financial Statements were
prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards, giving a true and fair view of the assets and
liabilities, cash flows, financial position and results of Infraestruturas de Portugal, S.A., and that the
management report for the financial year 2023 faithfully sets out the important events that occurred in that
period and the impact on the respective Separate Financial Statements, also containing a description of the

main risks and uncertainties for the following financial year."

The Executive Board of Directors

Chairman Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz
Vice-Chairman Carlos Alberto Jo&o Fernandes
Vice-Chairman Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida

Member Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa

Member Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel
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SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 December
2023 AND 31 December 2022

| asses nows| ammar

Non-current

Investments in subsidiaries 4. 18 551 15 902
Investment in associates 5 1950 9
Financial investments 156 132
Intangible assets 6. 21777796 21 362 960
Tangible fixed assets 7. 60 300 58 051
Investment properties 71 76
Borrowings granted 12.2.2 0 0
Deferred tax assets 8. 296 101 340 744
22154925 21777 874

Current
Inventories 9. 140 257 118 324
Grantor - State - Account Receivable 12.2.1 4907 716 4474 940
Trade receivables 12.2.3 32 408 28 205
Current tax assets 10. 28 280 1513
Government and other public bodies 10. 2254 948 2048 074
Other accounts receivable 12.24 262 579 185 569
Deferrals 1441, 4 446 4148
Cash and cash equivalents 1225 260 976 236 334
Non-current assets held for sale 3 3
7 891614 7 097 109
Total Assets 30046 539 28874983

To be read jointly with the Notes to the Separate Financial Statements Amounts expressed in € thousand.
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2023 AND 31 DECEMBER 2022 (CONT.'d)

Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders
Issued capital 13. 12 586 670 11 152 155
Reserves 296 011 278 985
Retained earnings 13 0 -30758
Net profit or loss for the period -18 774 47 784
Total equity 12863907 11 448 166
Liabilities
Non-current
Provisions 14. 1024 790 967 240
Borrowings 1231 1065 011 1636 752
Other accounts payable 12.34 937 771 1074 173
Deferrals 1.2 10 105 899 10 116 523
13133472 13794 688
Current
Trade payables 12:3.3 63 202 38 853
Cash advances of trade receivables 543 514
Government and other public bodies 10. 7702 6 849
Borrowings 12.3.1 586 664 176 931
Shareholder funding/ Shareholder’'s borrowings 12.3.2 2 332 667 2 332 667
Other accounts payable 12.34 1044 419 1067 189
Deferrals 11.2. 13 964 9126
4049 160 3632129
Total Liabilities 17 182632 17 426 817
Total Equity and Liabilities 30046 539 28 874983

To be read jointly with the Notes to the Separate Financial Statements Amounts expressed in € thousand.
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SEPARATE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT FROM 1 JANUARY
2023 TO 31 DECEMBER 2023 AND FROM 1 JANUARY 2022 TO 31
DECEMBER 2022

Sales and services 5. 1163 194 1138 436
Compensatory Allowances 16. 65 405 55 055
Cost of goods sold and materials consumed 17 - 323 027 - 280 585
External supplies and services 18. - 382 208 - 359 550

Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Road Network - 144 731 - 126 583

Maintenance, Repair and Safety of the Railway Network -85 340 -80 145

Other ESS - 152 137 - 152 822
Personnel expenses 19. -141 012 - 132 239
Impairments (losses/reversals) 20. 110 873
Provisions (Increase/Decrease) 14. - 56 887 -13 376
Other Income and gains 21. 117 691 101 182
Other expenses and losses 22. -7 960 -7402
Gains/(losses) on subsidiaries and associates 23. 5 382 4 077
Earnings before depreciation, financial expenses and taxes 440 687 506 472
Expenses/reversals of depreciation and amortisation - 234 787 -271573
Operating profit (before financing and tax expenses) 205 900 234 899
Interest and similar income 24, 63 351 59 216
Interest and similar costs 24, - 245 300 - 250 416
Profit before tax 23 952 43 699
Income tax for the period 25. -42726 4085
Net profit or loss for the year -18774 47784
Comprehensive income -18 774 47 784

To be read jointly with the Notes to the Separate Financial Statements Amounts expressed in € thousand.
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES TO SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
FROM 1 JANUARY 2023 TO 31 DECEMBER 2023 AND FROM 1 JANUARY

2022 TO 31 DECEMBER 2022
Profit/(Los
S capital eresults | periodiyea
T

9 870 278 -44 13 10 118

2021-12-31 180 985 290 533 407
L 13 -13

Appropriation of net profit 2021 - - 533 533 0

0 1281 1281

Share capital increases 13 975 - - - 975

Comprehensive income for the ) R B 47 47 784
year 784

11 152 278 -30 47 11 448

20221231 155 985 758 784 166
e : 30 -47

Appropriation of net profit 2022 - 17 026 758 784 0

% H 1434 1434

Share capital increases 13 515 - - - 515

Comprehensive income for the ) . B -18 _18 774
year 774

12 586 296 -18 12 863

2N 670 011 g 774 907

To be read jointly with the Notes to the Separate Financial Statements Amounts expressed in € thousand.
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SEPARATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FROM 1 JANUARY 2023 TO 31
DECEMBER 2023 AND FROM 1 JANUARY 2022 TO 31 DECEMBER 2022

Operating Activities
Cash receipts from clients 1129 038 1147 485
Cash paid to suppliers - 1343 307 - 1332296
Cash paid to employees - 136 441 - 129 366
Flows generated by operations -350710 -314177
Corporate income tax (paid)/received - 24025 -46 028
Other receipts / (payments) relating to operating activities 105 256 115709
Net cash from operating activities (1) - 269 479 - 244 496

Investing activities

Cash receipts relating to:

Investment subsidies 220 529 150 872
Tangible fixed assets 240 10 404
Dividends 3547 2914
Interest and similar income 1 1
224 317 164 191

Cash payments relating to:
Investment subsidies - -1727
Financial investments 5 -2000 -
Tangible fixed assets - 204 465 -120 371
Intangible assets - 914 264 -799732
-1120728 - 921 830
Net cash from investing activities (2) - 896 411 - 757 639

Financing activities

Cash receipts relating to:
Capital contribution 13. 1434515 1281975
1434 515 1281975

Cash payments relating to:

Borrowings 12.5. - 159 020 - 129 345
Finance leases 12.5. -2195 -2041
Interest and similar costs - 81 467 -76173

- 242 682 - 207 560

Net cash from financing activities (3) 1191833 1074 415
Variation in cash and cash equivalents (4) = (1) +(2) + (3) 25943 72 280
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1226 260 668 234724
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1226 234724 162 444
Variation in cash and cash equivalents 25 943 72 280

To be read jointly with the Notes to the Separate Financial Statements Amounts expressed in € thousand.
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Almada, 23 April 2024

The Executive Board of Directors

Financial Maria do Carmo Almiro do Vale Duarte y .
Biractor Eairis Chairman  Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz
Vice- Carlos Alberto Jodo Fernandes
chairman
Vice- . . . .
chakinai Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida
Certified
Accountant Diogo Mendonga Lopes Monteiro
Member Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa

Member Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Infraestruturas de Portugal, S.A., with head-office at Praga da Portagem 2809-013 Almada, is the state-owned
company resulting from the merger of Rede Ferroviaria Nacional — REFER, E.P.E. (REFER) into EP - Estradas
de Portugal, S.A. (EP, S.A.), which gave rise to the public limited company Infraestruturas de Portugal, S.A.
(hereinafter IP or the “Company” ). The merger entered into force on 1 June 2015, as provided in Decree-law
91/2015 of 29 May.

The immediate conseqguence of the merger determined that road and railway infrastructures are to be managed

by as single company, in accordance with a joint, integrated and complementary strategy.

1.1. COMPANY'S ACTIVITY

According to Decree-Law 91/2015, the corporate object of IP is “the design, construction, financing,
maintenance, operation, restoration, widening and modernisation of the national road and rail networks,

including the command and control of movements of traffic movements.”

In order to carry out its activity IP holds the position of infrastructure manager, under the terms of the overall
concession contract for the national road network (NRN) and the national railway network (NRwN) programme

both concluded with the Portuguese State.

In 2022, IP's articles of association were amended by Decree-Law 63/2022 of 26 September, which extended
the company's corporate purpose, giving it powers to promote the conception, design, construction, operation
and maintenance of the submarine electronic communications cable system between mainland Portugal and

the Azores and Madeira archipelagos.

In order to carry out its activities and guarantee a high level of efficiency and effectiveness, IP uses
complementary services in business areas that are not included in its core business, but which are carried out

by its subsidiary companies.
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2. MAIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1. BASES OF PRESENTATION

The Financial Statements presented herein reflect |P's financial position, results of operations and cash flows
for the periods ending 31 December 2023 and 2022 and constitute the Company's Separate Financial

Statements.

These Financial Statements were approved by the Executive Board of Directors at a meeting held on 23 April
2024, which resolved to submit them for shareholder approval,. The Executive Board of Directors considers
that these provide a true and fair view of IP’'s operations, as well as its financial position, results and cash

flows.

IP’s Financial Statements were prepared on the basis of ongoing operations, in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU), issued and in force on 31
December 2023.

IFRS include accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and

respective bodies that preceded them.
The financial statements were prepared using mainly the historical cost measurement.

All figures are expressed in thousands of Euro (€ thousand/€th), without any rounding up or down, unless
otherwise stated. Sub-totals and totals in tables presented in these Financial Statements may not be equal to
the sum of the figures presented, due to rounding up or down. Additionally, initials €M are used for millions of

Euro, where necessary.

The preparation of Financial Statements under IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates,
assumptions, and judgements in the process of defining the accounting policies to be adopted by the company,
with a significant impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, as well as of the expenses and
revenues of the reporting period. Estimates and related assumptions are based on historic experience and on
other factors deemed applicable and form the basis for the judgements on the values of the assets and
liabilities, the valuation of which would not be possible to obtain from other sources. Issues requiring a higher
degree of judgement or complexity or, for which the assumptions and estimates are considered significant, are

presented in Note 2.3.
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2.2. SUMMARY OF RELEVANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.2.1. SEGMENTS

A business segment is a component of an entity that conducts a business activity:
i) from which it can obtain revenue and incur expenses;

ii) the operating results of which are regularly reviewed by the chief operational decision-maker of the
entity; and

iii) for which financial information is available.

IP identified the Executive Board of Directors as the body responsible for operational decision-making and as
the body which revises the internal information prepared in order to assess the Company’s performance and
resource allocation. The determination of the operational segments was carried out based on information that

is analysed by the Executive Board of Directors.
Accordingly, the following business segments were identified:
- Investment in Long Duration Infrastructure (LDI);
- Railway Infrastructure Management Activity;
- High Performance;
- Road Infrastructure Management Activity;
- CAM Ring

The 'Long Duration Infrastructure Investment Activity' segment includes all investments associated with new
infrastructure and/or network expansion, modernisation and renovation, with the introduction of new
technologies in the mode of operation and infrastructure replacement, which includes interventions that
introduce improvements of a lasting nature or that are likely to increase the value and/or useful life of the asset

without altering the operating conditions;

As described hereinabove, the financing required for the investments made is obtained by IP and may be in
the form of loans with financial institutions and the financial market, suppliers, capital contributions and

subsidies.

The 'Railway Infrastructure Management Activity’ segment corresponds to the provision of a public service,
including functions such as maintenance and repair of infrastructures, capacity management, management of
regulatory and safety control, command and control of traffic, and including other activities supplementary to

the infrastructure management.
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The "High Performance’ segment corresponds to the entire activity related to Road High Performance and
includes all currently managed Public-Private Partnerships (PPP), including concessions of the State and sub-

concessions, and the other high-performance roads currently directly managed by IP.

The ‘Road Infrastructure Management Activity’ segment includes management of the whole National Road
Network not included in the previous segment. It comprises both the activities of building and upgrading the
roads and engineering structures, and the activities of management, maintenance and improvement of network
safety.

The 'CAM Ring' segment includes the design, construction, operation and maintenance of the submarine
electronic communications cable system between mainland Portugal and the Azores and Madeira

archipelagos.
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2.2.2. CURRENT / NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

IP classifies assets and liabilities as current and non-current, separately, in order of liquidity in the Statement

of Financial Position, in accordance with provisions in IFRS.

Assets that do not have a defined maturity are considered current.
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2.2.3. FINANCIAL APPLICATIONS IN SUBSIDIARIES

For controlling purposes, it is considered that IP controls a subsidiary if and only if it cumulatively holds:

o control over the subsidiary;
e exposure or rights to variable results via its relationship with the subsidiary; and

e the capacity to use its control over the subsidiary to affect the value of the results for investors.

IP holds, directly or indirectly, the entire share capital of its subsidiaries and has no agreement with any external
entity whereby it relinquishes its rights, so there is no need for any other considerations on the effectiveness

of the existing control over the Group's subsidiaries.
IP records these investments at cost, deducted of any impairment losses.

Dividends from these entities are recognised under "Income/ (expenses) in subsidiaries"” when the right to
them is established.
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2.2.4. FINANCIAL APPLICATIONS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

An associate is an entity over which the IP has significant influence.

The considerations made in determining the possible existence of significant influence are disclosed in note
2.3

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method.

Accordingly, the investment in an associate is recognised at cost on initial recognition, with the carrying amount
being increased or decreased in order to recognise the evolution of the Company's share of the results of the
associated entity under the heading of income / (expenses) in subsidiaries and associates, after the date of

acquisition.

After applying the equity method, the Company determines whether there are any indications of the possible
existence of impairment losses on investments in associates; if they exist, the Company calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its book value, and then
recognises the loss in the income statement under the heading of income/(expenses) in subsidiaries and

associates.

The registration of the investment using the equity method is discontinued as soon as the Company ceases to
have significant influence over the investment, and it starts to be valued at fair value from that moment

onwards.
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2.2.5. JOINT OPERATIONS

Holdings in AVEP — Alta Velocidade Espanha e Portugal A.E.I.E e A.E.|.E. Corredor Atlantico are considered

as joint arrangements.
IP therefore recognises its interest in these joint operations:
e its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
e its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
e its revenue from the sale of its share of the output of the joint operation;
e its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and
e its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Note 2.3 shows the judgements and assumptions made in considering these interests as joint operations.
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2.2.6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets comprise the road concession right and other intangible.

ROAD CONCESSION RIGHT

Through the application of IFRIC 12, it is considered that the asset resulting from the Road Concession Right
which was assigned by the Road Concession Contract signed with the State is classified as an intangible

asset.

The Road Concession Right was recognised by virtue of a business combination at the time the merging

company's corporate object was changed (EP).

The Road Concession Right is increased by the management of the national road network infrastructure, which
includes, namely, the construction, financing and operation of the National Road Network (including the

Concessioned Network) and the Future National Road Network, namely as a result of:

(i) Provision of construction services

It is increased on completion of each significant component of the Future National Road Network by its

implementation value. Construction may be done directly by the Company or through sub-concession.

Until the completion of each component, the proportion of the amount of the expected implemented work is
recognised as an intangible asset in progress, using the completed percentage method calculated based on

the actual physical evolution of each works.

Expenses incurred by the Company in connection to the launching of sub-concession tenders are recognised

as intangible assets until they are billed to the sub-concessionaire.

(ii) Acquisition of future rights on the Concessioned Network
It is increased by cumulative payments relating to the Concessions, net of receipts, made up until the initial
term of each concession, after which the Company is entitled to the underlying economic benefits of the

corresponding section.

Until the initial term, they are recorded in intangible assets in progress when spending occurs.
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The Concession Contract presents the following definitions for the three key components of the Concession
Undertaking:

“Concessioned Network — corresponds to the roads/motorways that integrate the National Road
Network and which are, on the date of signing the concession contract, subject to a state concession
contract or those that the State included in a public call for tenders still pending on the same date, with

a view to the respective concessioning;”

“National Road Network — corresponds to the "ltinerarios Principais" (trunk roads), "ltinerarios
Complementares” (secondary roads), National Roads and Regional Roads included in the NRP 2000
(National Road Plan) in operation or with construction started on the date of signing the Concession
Contract. "The construction of the Trunk Roads, Secondary Roads, National Roads and Regional
Roads as set out in the PRN 2000, is deemed to have started upon award by the State, or by EP —

Estradas de Portugal, S. A., of the contract for their construction;”

“Future National Road Network — designates the Trunk Roads, Secondary Roads, National Roads
and Regional Roads foreseen in the NRP 2000 or any subsequent legislation and that come into force
up to 5 (five) years prior to the term of the Concession Contract, that are not built on the date of signing
the Concession Contract. The Trunk Roads, Secondary Roads, National Roads and Regional Roads
envisaged in the PRN 2000 are considered as not having been built if on the date of signing the
Concession Contract their construction was not yet awarded by the State or EP — Estradas de
Portugal, S. A."

IP amortises the Concession Right based on its best estimate of the consumption pattern of the economic
benefits associated to the asset, i.e., in accordance with the units of production method as defined in IFRIC
12.

The production unit corresponds to the best estimate of the infrastructure use measured by revenue inherent
to credits directly associated with the rights already acquired by the Company, which excludes income from

the toll collection activity before the initial term of the underlying concessions.
Any changes in estimates are corrected prospectively, impacting on the value of amortisation of future periods.

The depreciation value of the Concession Right, which is revised on an annual basis according to the
Company's best estimates, corresponds to the total overall amount of the costs incurred and responsibilities

assumed within the scope of the general concession of the national road infrastructure.

The Company capitalises the borrowing costs associated to the acquisition, construction or production of

qualifying assets.
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IP considers as qualifying assets those which take a period of more than 12 months to be concluded for their
intended use; its most significant qualifying asset is the Concession Right to the road infrastructure network.
Any component of the National Road Network or the Future National Road Network is considered a component

of that same qualifying asset, provided that the estimated duration of its construction is greater than 12 months.

The components of the Concession Right qualifying for capitalisation of loan expenses are essentially the

result of:

(i) Provision of construction services
The provision of construction services usually lasts more than a year, so the financial costs
associated with the financing obtained for their realisation are considered eligible, regardless of

whether the services are provided directly by IP or through a sub-concession.

(ii) Acquisition of future rights on the Concessioned Network

Payments made on account of the acquisition of future rights on the Concessioned Network up to

the initial end of each section of the current Concessioned Network.

The financial expenses associated with the financing obtained to realise the payments are
considered as a cost of the component specifically financed. Whenever there is no financing directly
attributable to each component of the network in progress, a weighted average of the interest rates
on financing active during the period is used, which is applied to the expenditure incurred in

developing that network.

Components that have been built using subsidies or that are in a position to be put into operation,
regardless of the completion of the contract, are not taken into account for the purposes of calculating

the basis for capitalising the financing costs obtained.
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The remaining intangible assets relate mainly to contractual rights over computer programmes and result from

separate acquisition transactions in which their cost is reflected:

- The purchase price, including costs of intellectual rights and taxes on non-refundable purchases, after

deduction of trade discounts and write-offs;
- any cost directly attributable to the preparation of the asset for its intended use.

IP values its intangible assets, after initial recognition, using the cost model, and amortises them on a
systematic basis from the date they are available for use, over the estimated useful life, generally

corresponding to a period of 3 years.
There are no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

IP assesses for impairment whenever events or circumstances may indicate that the book value of the asset

exceeds its recoverable amount, any impairment being recognised in the income statement.
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2.2.7. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

IP's tangible fixed assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently valued in accordance with the cost

model (acquisition cost net of depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses).

The acquisition cost includes the acquisition cost of the asset, expenses directly attributable to its acquisition

and any cost directly attributable to the preparation of the asset for its intended use.

Costs are recognised as tangible assets only if any future economic benefits are expected and those benefits

as well as the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

IP assesses for impairment whenever events or circumstances may indicate that the book value of the asset

exceeds its recoverable amount, any impairment being recognised in the income statement.
Current repair and maintenance expenses are recorded in the income statement.

Cost of operations that can extend the useful expected life of an asset, or from which are expected higher and

significant future benefits, are capitalized.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated on a monthly basis, using the straight-line method, so that

the value of the assets is depreciated until the end of their estimated useful life, with the following annual rates

applied:

I
Buildings and other constructions 2
Basic equipment 12.5-20
Transport equipment 25
Administrative equipment 125
Right of use 25
Other fixed assets 125

Depreciation starts as from the moment the asset is ready for its intended use. The useful lives of assets are
reviewed at the end of each financial year if expectations as to the expected economic benefits and the planned
technical use of the assets differ from previous estimates. Changes occurring in the depreciation charge of the

year are accounted for prospectively.

Gains and losses arising from the disposal of tangible fixed assets are determined as the difference between

the assets’ sales value and net book value and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Leases

IP assesses the existence of a potential right of use at the beginning of any contract, i.e, if the contract conveys

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a certain period against a consideration.

The right of use is initially measured at cost, comprising the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted of any
lease payments made on or prior to commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, minus any

incentive granted.
Right-of-use assets are subsequently evaluated at cost minus depreciation and any impairment losses.

The depreciation of right-of-use assets is determined using the straight-line methods during the period of the

lease.

The liability for the lease is initially recognised by the present value of rents not yet paid at the date of the

lease, minus any interest at the interest rate implicit in the lease.
Leases of IP concern vehicle lease contracts.

IP does not recognise as right of use or lease responsibility leases with a duration of less than 12 months,
opting, pursuant to IFRS 16, to recognise as lease expense on a straight-line basis as rents under the external

supplies and services heading until the end of the leases.

IP opted to present in the Statement of Financial Position the right of use duly segregated in caption Tangible

Fixed Assets (Note 7) and liabilities for leases in Other Accounts Payable (note 11.3.4).
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2.2.8. INCOME TAX

Income tax for the period includes current and deferred tax. Income tax is recorded in the Separate Income

Statement, unless these are related to items that are recognised directly in equity.

The amount of current tax is determined on the basis of profit before tax, adjusted in accordance with the tax

rules in force.

Deferred taxes arise from the existence of temporary differences between the book value of assets and

liabilities at a given time and their value for tax purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary tax differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
whenever there is a reasonable probability that future taxable profits will be generated or if there are deferred

tax liabilities against which they can be offset.

For the purposes of calculating deferred tax, the income tax rates expected to be in force when the temporary

differences are reversed will be used.

The temporary differences underlying the assets and liabilities are reviewed periodically in order to recognise
or adjust them according to their expectation of future recovery, in line with the current tax law, taking into

account any uncertainties in tax treatment, as provided in IFRIC 23.
In March 2014, the IP Group adopted the special tax system for groups of companies (RETGS).

For tax purposes, the IP Group comprises companies sieged in Portugal that are 75 per cent or more owned
by IP (the Group's parent company) and that fulfil the conditions listed in article 69 of the IRC Code, which are

presented below:
- Infraestruturas de Portugal, S.A.
- IP Patriménio — Administrac@o e Gestao Imobiliaria, S.A.
- IP Telecom — Servigos de Telecomunicages, S.A.
- IP Engenharia, S.A.

The companies included in IP tax group determine and record their income tax as if they were taxed on an
individual basis. However, the liabilities calculated are recognised as due to IP, which will be responsible for

the overall calculation and settlement of the tax.

Any benefit arising from the application of the RETGS is received by IP and reduced to the future tax that the

subsidiaries companies will incur.
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2.2.9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Company

becomes a party to the respective contractual relationship.
Financial assets are initially classified as follows:

Amortised cost - If the financial asset is held within the scope of a business model whose
purpose is to hold the financial asset in order to collect contractual cash flows that are
established in capital repayments and interest on outstanding capital. In this category IP

comprises:

o Borrowings - These relate to ancillary services provided to Group entities.

o Grantor - State - Accounts receivable - Financial asset resulting from application of

IFRIC 12 (note 2.3 - Railway concessions and note 14.2.1);

* Trade and Other Receivables - Includes current accounts with various entities, which are
initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less
impairment losses, which when they occur have a direct impact on results (notes 14.2.2
and 14.2.3).
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Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

The amounts included in the heading of cash and cash equivalents correspond to the amounts in cash, bank
deposits and other treasury applications, which include cash at the Treasury and Public Debt Agency — IGCP,
E.P.E. (IGCP), maturing in less than 3 months, and which can be immediately mobilized with risk of insignificant

change in value.

Accounting overdrafts are presented in the Statement of Financial Position, under current liabilities, under the

heading “Borrowings * and included in the balance of the Cash Flow Statement.

Regarding financial liabilities, the existing categories are:

i. Amortised cost

ii. Fair value through profit or loss.
In the Company's case, all its financial liabilities (bank and shareholder financing, suppliers and others) are
considered in the "Amortised Cost” category.

Borrowings

The Company recognises non-current loans obtained as a financial liability in accordance with IFRS 9. These

financial liabilities are recorded as follows:
(i) initially at fair value less transaction costs incurred, and
(ii) subsequently at amortised cost, based on the effective interest rate method.

IP has borrowings in the form of bilateral borrowings and bond loans to fund the construction of long-duration
railway infrastructure (LDI), the railway infrastructure management activity and the road network management

activity.
Trade Payables (Suppliers) and other accounts payable

Suppliers and other payables (including lease liabilities) are measured initially at fair value and subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Usually, the amortised cost of these liabilities does

not differ from their nominal value.
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2.2.10. INVENTORIES

At its warehouses |P has materials purchased for the sole specific purpose of its Long Duration Infrastructure

Investment Activity.

Inventories are recorded at cost, which includes purchase costs, conversion costs and other costs incurred to

place inventories in their current location and condition.

The quantities existing at the end of the period are determined from the accounting records and confirmed by

physical inventory taking. Outgoing goods (consumables) are valued at weighted average cost.

Therefore, impairment is only considered when these assets are damaged or become totally or partially

obsolete for use, at which point the loss is recognised in the Separate Income Statement.
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2.2.:11: GRANTS/SUBSIDIES

Grants/subsidies received from the Portuguese State and the European Union or equivalent bodies are
recognised at fair value when there is reasonable certainty that the conditions for receiving the grant will be

met, , except those relating to the LDI that are recognised only in the event of actual receipt.

Non-refundable grants/subsidies obtained for investment in tangible and intangible fixed assets are recognised

as deferred income.

These subsidies are subsequently credited to the Statement of comprehensive income, under "Other income

and gains", pro-rata to the depreciation/amortisation of the subsidized assets.

Subsidies obtained to finance the assets acquired/constructed in Long Duration Infrastructures are recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position under the heading "Grantor- State- Account Receivable” because, as
they are granted within the scope of the concessionary railway activity, they constitute reimbursement of part

of the expenses incurred and are deducted from the amount receivable from the Grantor.

Subsidies obtained to finance shareholdings in associates are deducted from the shareholding itself, in
compliance with Council of Ministers Resolution 99/2021 of 27 July, which determines that the subsidy

received must be applied to the acquisition of the shareholding in question.

Non-refundable operating subsidies are recognized in the separate income statement under “Other income

and gains” on a systematic basis and in the same period in which the associated costs are incurred.

2.2:12. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised by IP when there is a current obligation arising from past events and it is probable
that an expenditure of future domestic resources will be required to settle that obligation and the amount of
that obligation can reasonably be estimated. When any of the foregoing conditions is not met, the Company

discloses these contingent liabilities.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Financial Statements but are disclosed in the notes to the
Financial Statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of funds affecting future economic benefits is remote,

in which case they are not subject to disclosure.

Provisions are reviewed at the date of each reporting period and adjusted in accordance with the best estimate

on that date.
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2213 REVENUE

Revenue corresponds to the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from transactions with clients
during the ordinary course of business of IP. Revenue is recognised net of taxes, discounts and other costs

incurred to realise them, at the fair value of the amount received or receivable.
IP's revenue comprises:

In the context of railway infrastructure management, tariffs for the use of infrastructure (minimum access
package), use of stations and halts, parking of rolling stock, shunting and other services listed in the Network
Directory, available on IP's website, are established in compliance with the provisions of Decree-Law no.
217/2015, republished by Decree-Law no. 124-A/2018, and the European Commission's Implementing
Regulation (EU) 2015/909.

The Directory aims to provide to applicants, authorities and any interested party the general terms and

conditions to acquire capacity and on the services provided by the national railway network.

In addition to describing the characteristics of the network, the Network Directory states the conditions for
access, describes the services provided by IP and discloses charging principles and tariffs, including the

methodology, rules and scales used to apply them.

Road revenue is derived from the road concession contract (hereinafter “Contract”) which the State entered
into with the former EP on 23 November 2007. The bases were approved in an annex to Decree-Law 380/2007
of 13 November, amended by Law 13/2008 of 29 February, Decree-Law 110/2009 of 18 May, and Decree-
Law 44-A/2010 of 5 May.

The object of this Contract, which ends at midnight on 31 December 2082, is Concession by the Portuguese

State to the former EP of the following:

. Design, construction, financing, maintenance, operation, repair and widening of the routes that

integrate the National Road Network;

. Design, construction, financing, maintenance, operation, repair and widening of the routes that

integrate the Future National Road Netwark;

. Financing, operation, maintenance, repair and widening of the roads of the national road network or
future national Road Network, , but also integrating the concessioned network, though , these liabilities are
subject to the initial term of the concession agreements currently in force between the State and third parties.
The initial term also marks the end of the assumption by the Company of all payments to be made by the State

and the receipts to be collected by it, under the aforementioned contracts.
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Under the concession contract, which was entered into for a period of 75 years starting in 2008, the following,

among others, are |P own revenues:
Il Road Service Consignment (RSC)

The then Road Service Contribution, created by Law 55/2007 of 31 August, is the consideration paid by users
for the use of the national road network and is levied on petrol and diesel subject to and not exempt from the
tax on oil and energy products (ISP). In 2014, the Road Service Contribution was extended to LPG for vehicles,

which had previously been exempt.

Meanwhile, under Law 24-E/2022 of 30 December, the Road Service Contribution was abolished, while the
ISP rate corresponding to the amount of the Road Service Contribution was increased and the Road Service
Consignment was created. As a result, from 2023 onwards, IP’s funding, which was ensured by this

Contribution, will be ensured by this Consignment.

This revenue is recognised at the time of each performance obligation, regardless of its financial receipt, since
there is a time lag between the date on which the fuels are released for consumption and the realisation of the

financial receipts, which are transferred to IP by the Tax Authority.
ii. Other Revenue from the Concession Contract

In order to pursue its corporate object, the Company must provide construction services in connection to the

development of the national road infrastructure network.

The result of the construction of each new component of the national road infrastructure network is registered

in accordance with the completion percentage method.

The amount of revenue to be recognised results from the product between the percentage of completion and
total value of the works. The total value of the works is the amount agreed with the grantor (the State), or,
when an amount has not been agreed, the sum of the expenditure components specifically concerning the

works in question, both internal and external.

The amount receivable from the provision of construction services under the concession is replaced by the

Concession Right.

In the case where the total value of the work is agreed with the grantor, whenever the sum of the specific costs
incurred and to be incurred exceeds the agreed revenue, the estimated loss is immediately recognised in profit

or loss.
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iii. The value of toll fees - Roads under the IP management or sub-concessioned

Toll collection on roads included in the network managed of the company or the sub-concessioned network is
recognised in the year's profit or loss according to the real tolls in the period, in far as these tolls are charged

in roads over which IP already has full rights to operate the Concession.
iv. The value of toll fees - Roads under sub-concessioned management

The activity of collecting tolls on the roads of the Concessioned Network is recognised in accordance with the
actual tolls for the period, and the amount resulting from this activity is deducted from IP's investment in the
acquisition of the rights over the Concessioned Network, in accordance with the provisions of the Concession

Contract signed with the Portuguese State.

2.2.14. EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Personnel costs are recognised when the service is provided by employees, regardless of the date of payment.

The former EP granted temporary early retirement pensions and supplements to retirement pensions and

survivors’ benefits to a restricted and closed group of employees.

These post-employment supplements are paid by Caixa Geral de Aposentactes to employees, which then

charges them to IP, until those employees are in a position to retire according to General Law.

The liabilities related to the payment of these benefits are reviewed on an annual basis. The present value of
the obligation is determined using the immediate lifetime rent method, by deducting future payments of the
benefits that are perfectly identifiable, using the interest rate of high-rated bonds in the same currency in which

the benefits will be paid and with a maturity close to the liability taken on.

Liabilities recognised in the Separate Statement of Financial Position correspond to the present value of the

benefit abligation determined on the date of the Statement of Financial Position.
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2.2.15. IMPAIRMENT

The assets of |IP are assessed for impairment purposes when an event or change in circumstances suggest

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The recoverable amount of an asset corresponds to the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and

its value in use.

The asset's value is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the continued use
of the asset and its disposal at the end of its useful life. For the determination of future cash flows, the assets
are allocated to the lowest level for which there are separate identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units),

when such assessment is not possible for each asset on an individual basis.

The Company recognises an impairment loss in the income statement when the carrying amount of an asset

or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Note 2.3 discloses the main assumptions associated with the constitution/reversal of impairments for both non-

monetary and financial assets.

2.2.16. RELATED PARTIES

According to the Executive Board of Directors, relevant related parties are those entities over which IP is
controlled (Portuguese State in the strict sense), regulated (AMT), in which it exercises joint control (joint

operations), significant influence (associated companies), as well as the members of IP's governing bodies.
In addition, railway operators owned by the Portuguese state are also considered relevant related parties.

IP discloses balances and transactions with related entities in Note 26.
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2.2.47. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events occurred after the date of the Separate Statement of Financial Position and the date when the Financial
Statements were approved by the Executive Board of Directors, which provide additional information on
conditions that existed at the date of the Statement of Financial Position are reflected in the IP's Financial

Statements.

Events occurring between the date of the Statement of Financial Position and the date of approval by the
Executive Board of Directors of the Financial Statements are indicative of conditions that arose after the date

of the Statement of Financial Position, if material, are disclosed in note 33.
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2.3. SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

In preparing the Separate Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS, the Executive Board of Directors is
required make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, income,
financial flows as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Judgements, estimates and assumptions are
assessed continuously and are based on past events and other factors, including expectations for future events

likely to be probable given the circumstances on which the estimates are based.

The estimates were determined based on the best information available at the date of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. However, situations may occur in subsequent periods that are not
foreseeable at the time and were not considered in these estimates and may result in relevant changes in the
future financial position, performance and cash flows of the Company, which will be considered prospectively

in the profit or loss for the year.

These uncertainties are particularly significant with regard to the valuation of the road concession right,
recognised in intangible assets, with consequences also for the calculation of the profit for the period, insofar
as this valuation affects the amount of amortisation to be recognised each year, as described below in the
section on the Concession Right. These uncertainties stem not only from the actual behaviour of the
assumptions made regarding the future evolution of traffic and associated revenues, namely tolls and CSR,
and the amount of future investments to be made in the network, but also, and with a more immediate direct
impact, from the form that will be agreed with the Granting State to reimburse IP for the toll revenue losses
generated, either by the discounts on toll rates that have been approved in recent years, or by the
postponement of the introduction of tolls on other sections that were expected to be tolled, with management
understanding that such decisions by the Grantor give IP the right to financial rebalancing of the concession,
in accordance with the provisions of paragraph c) of Clause 87. 1. of the Concession Contract signed between
the Grantor and IP on 23 November 2007.

Therefore, when valuing the Concession Right, it was assumed that this reimbursement would take place from

2025 onwards, despite the uncertainty that such an assumption involves.
Additionally, note 12.4 discloses a set of risks to which the the Company is exposed.

The most significant accounting estimates reflected in the financial statements are:

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost taking into account their strategic nature within the scope of the

organisation of the Group’s rail and road activities.
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Intangible assets - Concession right

IP amortises its Road Concession Right by the equivalent production unit method. This amortisation is based
on: i) the estimate of total income generated by the concession until its end and on ii) the recovery of total

investments to be made by the Group.

These two parameters are defined in accordance with the best judgement of the Executive Board of Directors

for the assets and businesses in question, also considering practices adopted by companies of the sector at

international level.
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Estimated Revenue Pattern

The amount and timing of future earnings are essential to determine the equivalent unit method on which the

calculation of the amortisation of the Road Concession Right is based.

IP draws up a multi-annual financial model which is reviewed annually, its assumptions being maintained or
adjusted on the basis of recent history and the best prospects of IP's Executive Board of Directors for the
future. This model serves as the basis for calculating the Estimated Revenue Pattern which supports the

calculation of the annual amortisation of the intangible asset related to the road concession right.
The annual revenue estimate was calculated according to the main base assumptions:

— RSC, until 2024, assumes management's best estimate for those years. From 2025 onwards, RSC
evolves based on an assumption of 0% annual growth in petrol and diesel consumption and an increase
in unit values per litre consumed, in line with the CPI (2%/year);

— Toll revenues from ex-SCUT concessions and sub-concessions are based on the base cases, or on the
most recent traffic studies carried out by specialised consultants, available at the time of the review and
approval of the economic and financial flows for the Concession period. Following the reverting to IP, the
growth rate is considered in line with the CPI, based on the latest year of these studies and baseline
cases;

— However, the effect of the reduction in toll rates in various concessions (ex-SCUT), and discounts on
other motorways in IP's own network, determined by articles 425 and 426 of Law 75-B/2020, regulated
by Ministerial Order 418/2023, and which came into force at the beginning of the second half of 2021, as
an assumption, were considered until the end of 2024, as it is understood that, in view of the provisions
of paragraph c) of Clause 87.1. of the Concession Contract signed between the Grantor and ex-EP on 23
November 2007, a mechanism will be considered by the end of 2024, in conjunction between the Grantor
and IP, to ensure compensation for the loss of revenue associated with the aforementioned toll discounts;

- In the State Concessions with a real toll regime, it was considered that, from 2025 onwards, for the
sections where IP already has the right under the toll collection regime set out in its Concession Contract,
this regime would be applied, with the recognition of the resulting revenues After the reversion of the State
Concessions to IP, the latter will be ¢ holder of all the respective toll revenues, considering their growth
in accordance with the CPI, based on the last year of the respective base cases, when applicable, or on
traffic studies carried out by specialised technicians from IP;

— In general, the remaining operating revenues (revenues from service areas, telematics and others) were
estimated in 2023, as part of the review of the economic and financial model for the period of the

Concession.
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The company also made a sensitivity analysis of the evolution of revenues over the Contract's life and their

impact on the amortisation for the year. The analyses carried out were based on the following scenarios, drawn

up on the basis of the base scenario mentioned above:

a)

b)

c)

d)

It was assumed that the real growth in toll revenues after the initial expiry of the Concession Contracts
would be 1 per cent until 2039 and 0 per cent from 2040 onwards and that the real growth in the RSC
would be in accordance with the Base assumptions until 2025 and after 2025, 0.5 per cent, with

growth remaining in line with the CPI.

It was considered that the real growth in toll revenues after the initial expiry of the Concession
Contracts would be 1% and the real growth in the RSC would be in accordance with the Base

assumptions until 2025 and after 2025, 1%, with growth remaining in line with the CPI.

It was considered that the real growth in toll revenues after the initial expiry of the Concession
Contracts would be 0% and the real growth in the RSC would be in accordance with the Base
assumptions until 2025 and after 2025, 0%, with growth remaining in line with the CPI. It was also
considered that the new discount regime introduced by articles 425 and 426 of the 2021 State Budget

Law would be in force until the end of the Concession Contract without any compensatory measure.

It was assumed that the real growth in toll revenues after the initial expiry of the Concession Contracts
would be 0% and the real growth in the RSC would be in accordance with the Base assumptions until
2025 and, after 2025, 0%, with growth remaining in line with the CPI. It was also considered that the
new discount regime introduced by articles 425 and 426 of the 2021 State Budget Law would be in
force until the end of the Concession Contract without any compensatory measures and that no

revenue-boosting measures envisaged in the base scenario will be implemented in 2025.

In the first two scenarios, the universal discount in force since July 2021 on the ex-SCUTs was considered,

without any compensatory measure until 2024. In the last two scenarios, it was considered that the discount

system would be maintained throughout the Concession, without any compensatory measure on the part of

the State

The impact in result of these different scenarios for 2023 is shown in the table below:

€M

Amortisation for the year -229 -208 -168 =274 =279

Amortisation of grants 60 55 47 67 67
-169 -152 -121 -207 -211

Difference 17 48 -38 -42
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Amortisable value of Concession Right

The amount to be considered as the amortisable value of the Concession Right implies the assumption of

amounts for the execution of works and scheduled maintenance until the end of the Concession.
The estimated total investment of the Concession was based on the main assumptions:

- The annual charges for the ex-SCUT concessions are effective until 2032, and represent the best estimate
based on the results obtained from the contracts renegotiated between the Negotiating Committee and the

Concessionaires;

- The construction costs included in the Subconcession Contracts in force, valued at the cost of each base

case;
- The costs of modernising and maintaining IP’'s own network;

- The remaining investments consist of installation and improvement of assets and studies, projects,

supervision and assistance;

- Expenses with regular maintenance reflect the revision of study made in 2019, based in the

implementation of the business plan;
- The National Road Plan 2000 is implemented until 2052.

Changes in planned, contracted and executed values may vary due to factors outside the Company's control,

impacting the depreciation value to be recorded in the future.

Regular maintenance of roads and engineering structures

Based on technical surveys of repair needs and monitoring of the average quality index of the roads and
engineering structures, an annualised cost is calculated for the scheduled maintenance to be carried out which,
in accordance with the stipulations of IP's Concession Contract, allows the average quality index of the network

to be maintained at the values at which it was received.

Construction by means of Sub-Concessions

Construction through Sub-Concessions is recognised to reflect the effective evolution of the works, based on

percentage of completion data obtained from the sub-concessionaires and validated by IP.
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Grantor - State - Account Receivable

Following the spin-off of the railway activity in Portugal in 1997, IP (formerly REFER) was assigned the
responsibility of building and renovating long-duration railway infrastructures. This activity is carried out
according to the Government directives; its financing is guaranteed through the share capital, by State and

European grants and loans. The majority of the loans are secured by the State, and IP plays the role of “agent”.

Applying this understanding, the effects of this activity are recognised and measured in accordance with IFRIC

12 - Concession Arrangements.

Thus, for the purposes of applying IFRIC 12, the Long Duration Infrastructure Investment Activity (LDI) is
considered to be the existence of a concession between the State (Public Entity) and IP (assimilated to a
Private Entity even though the sole shareholder is the State), with IP assuming the role of "Concessionaire"” in

this activity.
IFRIC 12 applies to public service concession contracts in which the grantor (State) controls (regulates):

— The services to be provided by the concession holder (through the use of infrastructure), to

whom and at what price; and

— Any residual interests over the infrastructure at the end of the contract.
IFRIC 12 applies to infrastructures:

—  built or acquired by the operator from third parties; and

— that already exist and to which the operator is given access.

In this way, and given the above described, it is IP’s understanding that the existing railway concession is

included within the scope of this IFRIC for the following reasons:

- |IP is a for-profit entity and subject to the application of the Companies Code, although its
shareholder is the State, it is incorporated under the regime provided for in the legislation
applicable to the public business sector (Decree-Law 133/2013 of 3 October) and has asset and
financial independence from its shareholder, thus excluding the application of IFRIC 12 in
accordance with its §4;

— The decree-law which created IP, in substance, can be considered a concession agreement, since
the State, as Grantor, controls and regulates the public services provided by IP, as
Concessionaire, with the infrastructures that are part of or will become part of the national railway
public domain, also defining to whom the services are provided and at what price; and

— Through ownership, the state controls the infrastructure, as it belongs to the state's public domain,
giving IP the right to access it so that it can provide a public service by charging a tariff to

passenger and freight transport operators.
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This interpretation establishes the generic principles for the recognition and measurement of rights and

obligations under the concession contracts with the above-mentioned characteristics.

Taking into account the types of existing models, the model which best translates IP's railway activity is the
Financial Asset model, since according to the law in force, the State (public entity) will fully bear the costs of
the investments in national railway infrastructures, whereas |IP has an unconditional right to receive funds from
the State for its investments in LDI. This right is granted either by article 11 of the General Land Transportation
Law for rail transport (IARC), by Decree-Law 141/2008 of 22 July, or by the 2011-2015 Strategic Transport
Plan (PET) and finally, in 2014, by the Strategic Plan for Transport and Infrastructures (2014-2020) (PETI3+).

As there is no formal concession agreement for the Long Duration Infrastructure Investment Activity, only a
Programme Contract for the Railway Infrastructure Management activity, IP makes the following assumptions
to determine the value of the concession, in accordance with the financial asset model, based on the principle

of substance over form and existing legislation, namely:

e The General Land Transportation Law Infrastructure Maintenance and Supervision Law 10/90 -
which establishes in number 3 of article 11 the compensation payable by the State for shouldering
in full the infrastructure construction, maintenance and supervision costs, in accordance with rules

to be approved by the Government.
e In the The Strategic Transport Plan (RCM 45/2011):

“The investment necessary for the construction of transport infrastructure, as goods and assets in the
public domain, is the responsibility of the State as sef out in the General Land Transportation Law.
Nevertheless, over the past decades, state-owned enterprises operating in the land transport and
railway sectors have carried the burden of having to register in their Financial Statements - via the

issuing of debt - the costs of this investment made on behalf of the State”; and

"The historic debt of state-owned enterprises operating in the public railway transport and
infrastructures sector, results in part from the development of investment projects which are the State's

responsibility, (...)"
e PETI3+ - Strategic Plan for Transports and Infrastructures (2014-2020).

PETI3+ “...is a revision of PET 2011-2015, including a second phase of structural reforms to be made
in this sector, as well as a set of investments in transport to be carried out until the end of this decade.
It is estimated that 61% of priority railway projects can be financed through community funds and 39%
through public funds. Where any assets are withdrawn from the public railway domain, the profit or

loss will be allocated to this activity, as established in each withdrawal order”.

As a result of the above, a financial asset has been recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, called

"Grantor - State - Account receivable”
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This asset derives from the investment in concession assets (ILD) plus interest charged, less the monetisation

of assets, subsidies received, receipts and impairments.

i)

ii)

Investment in concession assets (Long Duration Infrastructure - LDI) - These are properties in the
public railway domain to which IP only has access in order to provide "Infrastructure Management”
services. These assets, in addition to acquisitions and constructions following the split of CP -
Comboios de Portugal, E.P.E.'s assets through the publication of Decree-Law no. 104/97 of 29 April,
also include the assets of the extinct offices (Lisbon Railway Node Office, Oporto Railway Node Office
and Office for the Management of Railway Installation Works on the Tagus Bridge) and assets
transferred from that company, which constitute assets in the public railway domain.

Interest debited - As there is no defined maturity, due to the lack of a formalised concession contract,
it is assumed that the amounts receivable fall due when they are debited. Consequently, from that
date, the interest on the outstanding amount is deemed to be payable to the concessionaire (IP). The
way this interest is calculated is based on the same conditions as the financing obtained to finance
this activity directly. Interest and other financial expenses incurred with borrowings for financing the
concession are therefore debited.

Return on assets - results from the obligation, expressed in the joint orders of the Ministries of Sectoral
and Financial Affairs, to authorise the transfer of railway public domain and for the respective disposal

proceeds to be deducted from the amounts owed to the Grantor;

iv) Subsidies received - note 2.2.11

The financial asset is presented as a current balance in the Statement of Financial Position because it has no

defined maturity, due to the lack of a formal concession contract.

Tangible, intangible assets and investment properties - Useful lives

The determination of useful lives of the assets as well as the depreciation/amortisation method to be applied is

essential to determine the amount of depreciation/amortisation to be recognised in the Separate Profit and Loss

Statement for each year.

These two parameters are defined in accordance with the best estimate of the Executive Board of Directors for

the assets and businesses in question, while also considering the practices adopted by the companies of the

sector.

Financial applications in associates

Financial investments in associated companies are included in the Financial Statements using the equity

method, from the date on which the Company acquires significant influence until the moment it ends.

The existence of significant influence on the part of the Company is normally demonstrated in one or more of

the following ways:

Representation on the Executive Board of Directors or equivalent management body;

Equity holding of 20% to 50%;
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o Material transactions between the Company and the associated entity;
e Participation in policy-making processes;
o Exchange of staff for influencer management; and

¢ Provision of essential technical information.
Joint operations

The two European Groupings of Economic Interest of which IP is member are considered joint arrangements as
provided in IFRS 11.

The determination of the typology of agreement is based on the judgement made by the entities involved, taking

into account the rights and obligations arising from the agreements, taking into account:

e Structure and legal form of the agreement - Both agreements in question were structured by
means of a separate vehicle, and in these circumstances we are dealing with a joint operation,
since the legal form of the said instrument does not confer separation between the parties and
the separate vehicle. The statutes of both groups mention the existence of unlimited and joint and
several liability on the part of those involved in the grouping, which makes them responsible for
the claims made by third parties, as well as the fact that in the event of losses, the Assembly has
the right to ask those involved to contribute proportionally, according to the percentages of
participation of each member, to the settlement of the grouping's debts, which indicates that the

parties are given obligations for the liabilities arising from the agreement.

e The terms agreed by the parties - both agreements provide that the projects will be deemed as

undivided assets of members.
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Provisions
IP regularly analyses any obligations arising from past events and which must be recognised or disclosed.

The subjectivity associated with determining the likelihood and amount of future internal resources required
for the payment of the obligations may lead to significant adjustments, either due to changes in the

assumptions used or the future recognition of provisions previously disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Provisions resulting from lawsuits in progress are periodically assessed by IP's internal and external lawyers

in charge of those proceedings.

As regards the provision for disqualified roads, |P makes a comprehensive survey of the disqualified roads still
under its responsibility and checks, on the basis of technical analyses of the cost of preparing them for hand

over to the municipalities, if the recorded value of this provision is appropriate.

As a result of the developments in the VAT proceedings described in Note 10, a provision in the amount
corresponding to the estimated impact of an unfavourable decision to former EP (the entire VAT deducted by

EP in activities financed by the RSC) has been set up.
Impairment of non-monetary assets

Tangible and intangible assets with a defined useful life - it is checked whether there are signs of impairment

losses, namely through the discontinuation/non-utilisation of assets.

Inventories held to be used in production - they will not be reduced below cost as since they are integrated in
the infrastructure, they will be debited to the Grantor at acquisition price. The only exception to this concerns
materials that are obsolete or technically depreciated and which cannot be used for the activity, which will

notwithstanding be adjusted taking into account their recoverable value from their sale as waste.

Investments in and subsidiaries associates - the existence of possible restrictions on the recovery of the
investment is verified, and it is the Company’s policy, with regard to financial holdings, to recognise impairment
whenever the value of the investment exceeds the net assets of the investees from a standpoint of liquidation
of the latter. This is deemed to be the more adequate model for these entities, which exist from a standpoint

of segmentation of service rendering activities of the Group (Note 23).
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Impairment of financial assets

Loans granted - any need to recognise impairment is verified taking into consideration the subsidiaries’

capacity to generate future cash flows, by analysing their budget projects as well as their business plans.

Grantor State - Accounts receivable - When REFER was set up, the statutory capital was paid up in kind with
the delivery of the railway infrastructure valued at € 62,350 thousand. From 1998 to 2001, the Portuguese
State increased the statutory capital of REFER in the total of € 242,850 thousand. These increases were
intended, as set out in each joint approval package, to finance investments in long-duration infrastructure
forming the public railway domain. At the time of incorporation, the public domain assets were listed as
REFER's fixed assets (tangible fixed assets under the then accounting standards - POC), so the counterpart
to the capital contribution was the recognition of these assets. With the adoption of IFRIC 12, these amounts
take the form of reimbursement made in due course for the investments made in the long-term infrastructure
by the REFER Concessionaire, totalling € 305 million (initial contribution in kind, plus the capital increases
between 1998 and 2001). Consequently, this amount will no longer be reimbursed by the State/Grantor, and

impairment has been recognised on these amounts.

Sundry debtors - based on the evaluation by the Executive Board of Directors of the probability of recovering
such receivables, the seniority of the balances, cancellation of debts and other factors. Other circumstances
and facts are also considered that may alter estimated impairment losses of receivables in the face of
considered assumptions, including changes in the economic climate and sector trends, the creditor position of

main clients and significant defaults.

Customer debts in the Railway Infrastructure Management and High-Performance segments - in general, these
have not been subject to impairment due to the specific characteristics of the customers (railway operators

and toll customers).

This evaluation process is subject to various estimates and judgements. Changes in these estimates may

imply different levels of impairment; consequently, they may have different impacts on income.
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Income tax

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be

available against which these assets can be utilised.

The correct recognition of deferred taxes requires significant judgements on the part of the Executive Board

of Directors, particularly with regard to:
o Forecasts of future profits

IP and respective Group have a history of taxable profits. As a result of the entry into force of Law 24-D/2022,
of 30 December (State Budget 2023), the introduction of article 43 D - Tax Incentive Scheme for the

Capitalisation of Companies, hereinafter ICE, was approved in the Tax Benefits Statute.
Taking this benefit into account for IP meant that the |IP's once positive tax result became a tax loss.

According to the legislation in question, this benefit must be calculated by reference to the sum of the amounts
calculated in the financial year itself and in each of the nine previous tax periods beginning in 2023. With SB

2024 (Law 82/2023 of 29 December), the number of periods was changed to six years.

Analysing IP's forecast management instruments and the aforementioned legislation, and in line with the
company's financing policy based on capital increases, it can be seen that IP is unlikely to make a taxable

profit in the next six financial years.
* Analysis of the tax legislation in force and in accordance with the specifics applicable to IP.

Law 24-D/2022 of 30 December (State Budget for 2023) changed the tax loss deduction system provided for
in article 52 of the CIRC, and there is no longer a time limit for recovering tax losses generated from 2023

onwards, which has an obvious impact on the bases of the calculated temporary differences.
 Quantification of the amount of tax assets recoverable in future periods.

IP's tax estimate includes temporary differences whose recovery is limited in time by tax legislation, namely
the temporary differences resulting from the limited deduction of financing costs provided for in article 67 of
the CIRC.

In order to quantify the amounts that can be recovered in future periods, IP's forecast instruments are analysed,
using the most up-to-date assumptions. Note 20 shows the tax assets generated, the recovery periods and

the estimated reversal of temporary differences in future periods.
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e Estimated reversal rate of temporary differences.

For the purposes of calculating deferred tax, the income tax rates expected to be in force when the temporary

differences are reversed will be used.

It was therefore necessary to analyse the bases of existing temporary differences and assess how these
differences would be reversed, given the nature of the underlying transactions, which meant segmenting the

expected tax reversal rates into different rates, as shown below:

» Temporary differences during the period in force of the ICE - Rates to be applied to the bases of
temporary differences of operations whose reversal is expected to occur in the next six financial years
(expected duration of the ICE);

» Temporary differences after the period in which the ICE is in force - Rates to be applied to the bases
of temporary differences in operations whose reversal is expected to occur from the period in which
the ICE is finalised (when IP is expected to generate taxable profits again); and

» Temporary differences arising from tax losses.

Note 8 discloses the bases and assumptions inherent in the previous types and Note 25 presents the rates

considered for the expected reversals.
o Temporary differences whose reversal is not expected, therefore not generating deferred taxes.

There are temporary differences which are not expected to reverse in future financial years and therefore do
not give rise to deferred tax assets. Of particular note are the impairments on subsidiaries, other receivables

and inventories.
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING

See accounting policy 2.2.1.

The information relating to the results from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022, assets and liabilities for the periods ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 of

the identified segments is as follows:

Railway
xia Total
Sales and services 86 739 339 228 1163 194
Impairment - 110 - - 110
Provisions - - 26 005 - - 30882 - 56 887
Other income - 94 820 9320 84 338 188 477
Other expenses -29703 - 242 929 - 345 855 -235721 854 207
EBITDA 927 - 87 265 2693 524 332 0 440 687
Amortisation and depreciation - 927 -3190 - 230670 -234 787
EBIT 0 -90 455 296 355 0 205 900
Financial expenses -63 350 - 340 - 181610 - 245 300
Financial income 63 350 o 1 63 351
EBT 0 -90 795 114 746 0 23 952
Income tax for the period ~ -42 726 -42 726
Net Income 0 -18774 -18774

Sales and services 32199 91 687 305726 708 824 - 1138 436
Impairment - 873 - - - 873
Provisions = 6 180 = - 19 556 = -13 376
Other income - 76 333 9294 74 688 - 160 315
Other expenses -31283 - 230680 -316880| -200933 - -779775
EBITDA 916 - 55 607 -1 860 563 023 0 506 472
Amortisation and depreciation - 916 -3121 - 267 537 B -271573
EBIT 0 -58 727 293 627 0 234 899
Financial expenses -59 214 - 368 -190 833 = - 250 416
Financial income 59 214 = 1 = 59 216
EBT 0 -59 095 102794 0 43 699
Income tax for the period - 4 085 4 085
Net Income 0 47 784 47 784
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Assets

Concession right - B 21773390 -| 21773390
Grantor 4907 716 = = - - 4 907 716
Other assets 102 105 270 335 27 8671 2953172 12 150 3365433
Total assets 5009 820 270 335 24 754 233 12 150 30 046 539
Liabilities

Borrowings 1451611 R 2532731 | - | 3984342
Grants/Subsidies - B 9 850 914 12150 9 863 064
Other liabilities 4658 169 430 1706 883 ‘ 1 454 255 - 3335226
Total Liabilities 1456 269 169 430 15 544 783 12 150 17 182 632

2022-12-31

Rail Infrast.
inv. Act

Rail Infrast
Manag. Act.

Road Infrast
Performance | Manag. Act

Assets

Concession right - - 21359 029 -| 21359029
Grantor 4 474 940 - - - - 4 474 940
Other assefs 69 788 204 589 42133 2724 504 - 3041013
Total assets 4544728 204 589 24 125 666 0 28 874 983
Liabilities

Borrowings 1599 235 - 2 547 115 ‘ - - 4 146 350
Grants/Subsidies - - 9 864 495 - 9 864 495
Other liabilities 3287 140 350 1872071 ‘ 1400 264 - 3415972
Total Liabilities 1602 521 140 350 15 683 945 0 17 426 817
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4. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

See accounting policy 2.2.3.

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 changes in this caption were as follows:

2023-12-31

Opening balance

Acquisition cost 44 952 44 952

Cumulative impairment -29 050 - 29449

Net value 15902 15503
Change for the year

Impairment 2649 399

Total 2649 399
Closing Balance

Acquisition cost 44 952 44 952

Cumulative impairment - 26 401 - 29050
Net value 18 551 15902

The change in impairments is due to the reversal of the adjustment of the stake in IP Patriménio, totalling
€2.649 thousand (2022: € 399 thousand), as a result of the positive result recorded in 2023 (note 23).

“ mﬂ_1 2-31

IP Engenharia, S.A. 98,43 2589 9843 2589
Rua José da Costa Pedreira n®11 - Lisboa

Investments in subsidiaries are as follows:

IP Patrimonio - Administragao e Gestao imobiliaria, S.A. 99,9968 14962 99,9968 12313
Av. de Ceuta - Estacdo de Alcéantara Terra - Lisboa

IP Telecom — Servigos de Telecomunicagées, S.A. 100,00 1000 100,00 1000
Rua José da Costa Pedreira n®11 - Lisboa

18 551 15902
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5. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

See accounting policy 2.2.4.

On September 23, 2021, a non-profit association was created under private law, called “"Associag&o Centro
de Competéncias Ferroviario, (CCF)”, with headquarters at Parque Oficinal de Guifées, Rua do Ferroviario,
Gatbes, 4460-020 Guifdes.

IP holds a 31.65% stake in CCF, whose purpose is to promote and carry out technical training, research,
development and innovation (R&D) initiatives and activities in technology, particularly in the area of railways
and railway equipment, promoting and encouraging specialised training, cooperation and technology transfer

between companies, universities, organisations and other public and private entities.

In 2021, through IP was mandated by Council of Ministers Resolution no. 99/2021 of 27 July to make the
necessary expenditure for the financial participation, for which it received a subsidy in 2021 of the entire
amount to be subscribed (€ 2,000 thousand).

In the current financial year, CCF was reclassified as a public entity under the general regime, which will entail
an internal structural reorganisation to meet the Association's strategic requirements, in particular the
refurbishment of the buildings in the Guifées Workshop Park, work which has been strongly conditioned by the
economic context of recent years due to strong inflation, particularly in the construction industry. In this context,
authorisation was requested and obtained from the Government, by means of Council of Ministers Resolution
124/2023 of 10 October, to increase the founding partners' stake in CCF's capital, which in the case of the IP
amounted to € 2,000 thousand.

The following table summarises CCF's financial information (*).

Non-current assets 17 9
Current assets 7 056 6362
Current liabilities - 912 - 22
Total equity 6 161 6 349
IP Equity Holding 3950 2009
Grants/Subsidies -2000 -2000
Value of equity holding (31.65%) 1950 9

(*) The figures for assets and liabilities included above are not final as the CCF does not have final financial statements at the date of
these financial statements.

In terms of assets, the weight of cash and cash equivalents stands out (90%).
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

See accounting policy 2.2.6.

In the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the movement in the value of intangible assets,

as well as in accumulated amortisation, was as follows:

Gross assets

2021-12-31 24 414 032 32 209 24 446 241
Acquisitions 551 608 18 551626
Other changes - - 707 - 707
202212-31 24 965 640 31 520 24 997 160
Acquisitions 643 191 509 643 700
2023-12-31 25608 831 32029 25 640 860
Amortization and Impairment
2021-12-31 -3340 717 - 27 554 - 3 368 271
Amortisation for the year - 265 893 - 36 - 265 929
2022-12-31 - 3606 611 - 27 589 -3634 200
Amortisation for the year - 228 830 - 34 - 228 864
2023-12-31 -3 835441 - 27623 -3 863 064
Net value
2022-12-31 21 359 029 3931 21 362 960
2023-12-31 21773 390 4 406 21777 796

The figure for intangible assets refers essentially to the right resulting from the Road Concession Contract.

Assets are calculated according to the percentage of completion of each works, regardless of whether this

construction is directly carried out by IP or under Public-Private Partnerships (PPP).
The investments recarded in the financial year are essentially the result of:

o Net payments of tolls received from State concessions of € 568,228 thousand (2022: € 500,998
thousand), including capitalised financial charges of around € 10,359 thousand (2022: € 10,658
thousand), as per note 15;

e Investmentin own works of € 74,957 thousand (2022: € 50,594 thousand), of which € 61,435 thousand
(2022: € 40,289 thousand) in direct investment (note 17) and € 13,522 thousand (2022: € 10,305

thousand), relating to VAT deducted on the acquisition or construction of assets (note 14).
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Amortisation for the year is calculated under IFRIC 12 by the equivalent unit method and refers to the value of
the total investment that has already been made or will be made in the future, in the context of the concession
between IP and the State, based on the economic and financial flows for the concession period. These figures

are based on IP's multi-annual financial model, the main assumptions of which are described in note 2.3.

Based on these assumptions, the amortisation recorded amounted to € 228,830 thousand (2022: € 265,893
thousand). As mentioned in the sensitivity analysis presented in point 2.3, in a pessimistic scenario in which
there is no mechanism to ensure compensation for the loss of revenue associated with toll discounts, the value
of the annual amortisation recorded would increase by around € 38 million, a situation that would be repeated

throughout the Concession.

The remaining intangible assets concern, mostly, contractual rights on computer software (licences).



00g 09 L6S G66 v 9le (44103 oeL L veo 9 88¢ 0¥ GE6 G LE-ZL-E€20C

160 85 Moz £€9 L1 (54} 920 | 0S¥y % A 286 0€ GE6 G Le-zZ1-2zoz
anfea }aN
y98 0EL - 9652 0 L9 - £l 61 - £€6L 2L - 126 1¢ - 662 LV - 0 LE-ZL-£202
£6 = * = S 5 BE - = SUOID8lI0D)/SUMOD-3]LIAA - CO_ﬁm_othmD
166G~ 0s0¢- - g8 - vy - ey - 6ve L - LGL ) - - leaf ayj jo uonerpaidaq
6£0G6ZL- 9SG G- 0 €019~ vve 61 - 08L1LL - 11 9¢- 6vS SV - 0 Le-zZ1-2zoz
£ee & = - e - LOE e - SUOID81I0D/SUMOD-3]LIAA - CO_:w_omhn_wQ
296G~ 0s0e- - g - ZLg - PGl - 612 L~ 665 | - - leah ayj jo uonesideq
6086LL- G6VE- 0 G609 - Goggl- 9Z9 Ll - 6€. GE - 066 £F - 0 Le-Zi-1eoe
jasuedw| pue uopesasdaq
Yol 161 81 8 G66 ¥ 8ze9 09.Z 02 zeeel LS6 £F 189 /8 GE6 G Le-ZL-£202
£6 - - - - ¥G - - 6E - - - suonosaloD,/ sjesodsig
0 = L0E €L - €8 L ¥80 L 286 LG5L L1 - slgjsuel|
91 8 = 899 9 - vy 8 240 L - - suolsinboy
060 £81 81 8 £€9 L1 vz 9 0.€ 02 0gz L 196 LY 0£S 92 GE6 G Le-Z1-220T
gee: - = - - o - Loge - - - suofoaLo)/ sjesodsiq
0 ® 68y 2 - - “ - 5 68V 2 - slajsuel |
602 8 3 929 # £€9 €0k 86l | . # suofjisinboy
GL6 691 81 8 9¥8 L 4 (4] 69. 61 zrel £90 L¥ v vi GE6 G Le-Zh-1eoe

S]asSSe SS0I9

sseiboig | SPESYPOXId weuidinb3 uoponAsUo) | seolnosey

9|q|6ue),
8410

|ejol 18430 pue.

PAljIS|U|WPY |  Hodsuei] sBulp|ing

U] Jlom

:SMOJ|0} SB SEM

$8sS0| Juswiliedul pue uoljeloaldep paje|nwnooe Ul Se ||am Se ‘sjesse ssolb Ul jJualianoll 8y} 'Zz0z lequiedss( L pue £zZ0z Jaquueoa(] g pepua sieah ayj |

‘/ 2z Aoljod Bununoooe ess

S14SSV ddXId4d F19IDNVL 'L

1ehnjog ep 6Vl
sajoN seJnjniIsaelju| PUE sjUaWAIEYS [BloUELl 4 Ajeledas ||
yoday .“ (enuuy 6207



‘Auedwon ey Jo} sjiyeuaq JILIOUCOa JO MOjjul Ue ajelauahb [[im Aay) Jey) @jgeqold si 1 jjun Way) 8sojosip 1o plodal Jou S8op pue sjesse juabunuoo
Juesaldal sjealed Jaaoye| esay) jey) siepisuco Auedwos sy ‘selousbunuoo |eiolewwoo Jo/pue [eba) snolea uo juspuadep si way Buisijelolawwod Jo Buisn

Jo Aypigissod ayy eouls (NYN) ¥omisN peoy [BUOHEN 8L} JO UOIJoNASUoD 8y} 0} Uoijoauuos ul suoijeudoldxe pue| woly Bunnsal spue| jo sjo|d [elanas Sumo 4|

1ehnjog ep 0sell
sajoN seJnjnuisaeljuj PUE sjUaWAIEYS [BloUELl 4 Ajeledas ||
yoday .“ (enuuy 6207



2023 Annual Report | |
Il Separate Financial Statements and Notes Infraestruturas
I1.251 de Porlugal

8. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

See accounting policy 2.2.8.
The balances recognised on deferred taxes are presented in the Statement of Financial Position at their gross

value, at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The Executive Board of Directors believes that the tax results generated in the future will allow the reversal of

all the deferred tax assets recognised.

The impact on the profit/loss of movements in deferred tax items in the financial years was as follows:

Impact on the comprehensive income statement
Deferred tax assets -44 643 36178
25 -44 643 36178

Changes occurred in deferred tax assets during the years are as follows:

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Financing | Provision fol VAT uhr Pensions | Amortisation of
costs disquaﬁied Provision conwm Adpstmalls
roads
2021-12-31 13 482 1951 91683 107 842 88 518 304 565
il 24 121 = . Y77, 3187 - 85 1724 . 36 178
(Reversal)
2022-12-31 37 603 1951 0 98915 111 029 214 90 242 790 340 744
Sty 8162 - 2603 6554 240 52 75, -790 9 069
(Reversal)
gt’:"g"s B g5 494 B - 3199 117 38 29509 - -38889
Revision of
ostimate -14 823 = = - = = - - -14 823
2023-12-31 18 608 1951 2603 108 668 110 672 229 53 371 0 296 101
The table above highlights:
i) The amounts relating to the change in the tax rate resulting from the consideration of the ICE

Benefit (-€ 38,889 thousand, note 25), and its implications for IP's future taxable profits, which can
be seen in note 2.3 - Income tax, and;

i) The revision of the estimate of the basis of financing costs (-€14,823 thousand, note 25), due to
the updating of the basis of financing costs accrued in previous periods that can be recovered, in

relation to the Company's forecast instruments.
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Temporary differences after the period in force of the ICE - Reversal rate of temporary differences
31.25%

The bases of temporary differences whose reversal is estimated to occur in the event of the existence of

taxable profits in the Company are included, as follows:

Provisions for Declassified Roads - According to the history of implementation, their reversal is not expected

in the near future.

Provision for VAT proceedings - As various legal proceedings are pending resolution, it is estimated that these

will not be finalised in the next few years.

Periodic road maintenance - historically the basis of this temporary difference has increased every year, with
the exception of 2023, due to actual execution being lower than the amounts considered as an accounting
expense. It is assumed that this trend will only change significantly after the increase in financial availability

resulting from the reversal of the concession contracts for IP.

Temporary differences after the period in force of the ICE - Reversal rate of temporary differences
21%

Included are the bases of the remaining temporary differences where the rate has been changed because it is
understood that the triggering event for the reversal of deferred taxes will occur in this period, where it is
expected that there will be no taxable profits. This situation will imply the recycling of these bases by the

constitution of deferred tax for tax losses generated in these periods.

The reconciliation of the tax rate is shown in note 25.The reconciliation of the income tax rate is shown on note
26.
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9. INVENTORIES

See accounting policy 2.2.10.

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the Group has registered the following balances under deferrals:

Raw-material, subsidiary materials & consumables 139 962 117 843
Advances on account of purchases 440 645
140 402 118 487
Cumulative impairment - 145 - 164
140 257 118 324

The raw materials and consumables item refers to the various types of materials that are incorporated into the

maintenance and construction of railway infrastructure.

With reference to the date the accounts were reported, a physical inventory was made in order to quantify the
inventory loss adjustment. Therefore, impairment concerns materials that are obsolete and technically

depreciated and cannot be used for IP's activities, and which might be sold should an interested buyer emerge;

In line with the current investment effort which, given the type of goods involved, implies ensuring their timely

supply, the raw materials item saw a significant increase compared to the same period last year.

Expenses with railway material consumption totalled € 23,168 thousand (2022: € 21,178 thousand), (note 17).



2023 Annual Report | |
Il Separate Financial Statements and Notes Infraestruturas
I.254 de Porlugal

10. GOVERNMENT AND OTHER PUBLIC BODIES (ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES)

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 this item is detailed as follows:

Debit balances

CIT 28 280 1513
Current tax assets 28 280 1513
VAT 2254 948 2048 074
Government and other public bodies 2254948 2048074

Credit balance

Contributions to SS, CGA and ADSE health systems 6090 5250
Personal Income Tax — Withholdings 1597 1584
Other taxes and levies 15 15
Government and other public bodies 7702 6 849

For the periods presented, the CIT debit balance is broken down as follows:

CIT
Advance tax payment 26,680 32,502
RETGS Benefit 1,689 498
Withholdings 65 36
Tax estimate -153 -31,524
Current tax assets 28,280 1,513

Payments to SS, CGA and ADSE (social security systems), include liabilities with holiday pay and holiday
bonuses to be settled in 2024 to Social Security, as well as the amounts processed in December 2023 and
settled in 2024, to Social Security, Caixa Geral de Aposenta¢des and ADSE.

The balance of IRS- Withholdings corresponds to the processing of December 2023 salaries, already settled

in January 2024.
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The balance of VAT receivable comprises the amount of € 2,254,948 thousand to be received by IP, where an
amount of € 227,562 thousand was already claimed in 2009, relating to the period of January 2008 to October
2009. This balance to be recovered is fundamentally the result of VAT deducted in its road activity by the now
defunct EP and IP, because IP considers that it is entitled to this deduction due to the state having collected
VAT on IP's own revenue - the Road Service Consignment - which, according to the legally established

mechanisms for its settlement and collection, was handed over to it, albeit indirectly, by the fuel distributors.

IP has eleven lawsduits in progress, the first of which relates to the VAT refund request up to June 2009, the
second to the VAT refund request from July to September and the October 2009 deduction, and the others to

inspection proceedings from 2011 to 2018.

The first case, relating to the VAT refund request up to June 2009, was rejected by the Tax and Customs
Authority (TA), which issued notifications of additional VAT assessments and interest totalling €277,124

thousand and €11,697 thousand, respectively.

Disagreeing with those assessments as undue, on 30 November 2010, the now defunct EP filed a judicial
challenge to the rejection of the hierarchical appeal at the Administrative and Fiscal Court of Almada, and the
request by the now defunct EP was deemed unfounded at first instance in January 2013. Not agreeing with

the decision, the former EP filed an appeal on 6 March 2013.

In the second case, which is at a more advanced stage in the courts and was rejected by the TA, additional
VAT and interest assessments were issued, totalling €64,506 thousand and €763 thousand, respectively. On
29 July 2011, the now defunct EP filed a judicial challenge to the rejection of the Hierarchical Appeal with the
Administrative and Tax Court of Almada, and the request by the now defunct EP was deemed unfounded at
first instance in January 2013. The now defunct EP, not agreeing with the decision, appealed against it on 11
March 2013.
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In this second case, the appeal was upheld, and IP was notified on 17 October 2017 of the ruling that repeals
the appealed decision and considers EP's legal challenge to be fully upheld, annulling in its entirety the

additional assessments issued by the TA. About this Decision:

o Various nullities were alleged by the Treasury, all of which were deemed unfounded on 26 January
2018;

o An appeal was filed by the Tax Authority on 1 March 2018, to the Supreme Administrative Court, and
the appeal was accepted for consideration. This is an appeal for review, of an exceptional nature,
which provides that the decision handed down by the Central Administrative Court of the South (TCAS)
can be reviewed whenever it concerns the assessment of an issue that, due to its legal or social
relevance, is of fundamental importance or when admission is necessary for a better application of the
law. This appeal was rejected by the TCAS on 18 October 2018, and

e An appeal filed by the Treasury was also admitted by the Supreme Administrative Court (SAC). On 9
December 2021, the SAC decided, as there were no new closing arguments after the hearing of
witnesses in the court of second instance, to annul the Judgement and send the case back to the
Administrative and Fiscal Court of Almada in order to remedy this nullity by performing the omitted act.

IP submitted new allegations on 25 February 2022 and the case is awaiting a decision.
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In the course of the usual annual tax inspection proceedings, the TA has been making corrections on the same
basis as those described for the above proceedings, and IP has followed the complaint proceedings,
maintaining its position also in the terms described above, with the status of the proceedings for each year

inspected being as follows:

o

01/2008 to 06/2009 Appeal by EP against first instance decision in favour of TA 2013-03-08 277124 9,003
07/200¢ 10 1072008 A new decision from the Almada TAC is awaited after the case file has been cancelled.  2022-02-25 64507 763
2011 Appeal by AT against first instance decision in favour of EP 2023-12-04 195514 29412
2012 Appeal by AT against first instance decision in favour of EP 2023-04-03 188,756 2,867
2013 First instance decision in favour of EP 2024-03-31 171,213 13.300
2014 Appeal by AT against first instance decision in favour of EP 20230517 248308 12475
2015 (January to May)2 First instance decision in favour of EP 2024-03-:1 121,043 4164
2015 (June to December)b!  First instance decision in favour of IP 2024-03-:1 139415 0484
2016 Firstinstance decision in favour of IP 2024-03-31 286,873 10,349
2017 Judicial challenge of the rejection of the hierarchical appeal 2023-04-01 287,993 32485
2018 Judicial challenge of the rejection of the hierarchical appeal 2023-04-01 283,926 34756
2019 Hierarchical Appeal 2024-02-02 270.358 15176
2020 Tax Inspection Report Draft 2024-01-22 -

a) Regarding the period prior fo the merger (NIF. formerly EP)

b)  Regarding the post-merger period

As a result of the described evolution of the VAT case, IP increased the provision in 2020 by € 31,207
thousand, taking its cumulative value at 31 December 2023 to € 527,429 thousand, which corresponds to the
VAT which IP estimates it will cease to receive from the Tax Authority if it is considered that the RSC is not
income liable for VAT (note 14).

In addition, it should be , it noted that the amounts corrected by the TA and not provisioned for by IP concern
mainly deducted VAT relating to the State Concession Network, therefore, if the TA thesis should be accepted
in Court, the additional consideration payable by IP will always be an increase in its Intangible Assets, with no
direct impact on the results for the year, and impact only in the results of future years, via an increase in the

depreciation and amortisation of such assets.



11. DEFERRALS

11.1. DEFERRED ASSETS

2023 Annual Report
Il Separate Financial Statements and Notes

11.258

A

Infraestruturas
de Porlugal

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the Group has registered the following balances under deferrals:

Current expenses to recognise

Other services

4446

4148

4 446

4148

11.2. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the Group has registered the following balances under deferrals:

Non-current income to recognise

Investment Subsidies - Road Concession Right 11.21 9 787 895 9847 532
Term Sale - Brisa Concession 152 300 152 300
Douro Litoral Concession Fee 76 874 84 562
RRP 62679 16 963
Greater Lisbon Concession Fee 14 000 15 166
CAM Ring subsidy 12150 -
10 105899 10 116 523
Current income to recognise

Douro Litoral Concession Fee 7687 7687
Other income 5110 272
Greater Lisbon Concession Fee 1167 1167
13 964 9126
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1121, INVESTMENT SUBSIDIES - ROAD CONCESSION RIGHT
See accounting policy 2.2.11.

This caption includes investment subsidies received by IP to finance the intangible asset relating to the Road

Concession Right and not yet recognised via results. Changes occurred during the periods ending on 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

2021-12-3: 9913 880
Imputation to income 21, - 66 349
2022-12-31 9 847 532
Increases 23
Imputation to income 21, - 58 660

2023-12-31 9787895
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12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

See accounting policy 2.2.9.

12.1. CATEGORIES ACCORDING TO IFRS 9

The breakdown of financial assets and liabilities by category according to IFRS 9 for the years ended at 31

December 2023 and 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Fair value Fair value

through other
202 123 profit or mmosrlgehensive
loss. income
Assels
Financial investments - 124 32 - 156
Grantor - State - Account Receivable 1221 4907716 - - - 4907716
Trade receivables 12.2.3 32408 - - - 32408
Other accounts receivable 1224 221213 . - 41 366 262 579
5161 337 124 32 41366 5202859
Liabilities
Trade payables 1233 63 202 - - - 63 202
Borrowing 1231 1651367 - - 309 1651675
Shareholder funding/ borrowings 1232 2332667 - - - 2332667
Other accounts payable 1234 1873607 - - 108584 1982190
5920 843 0 0 108892 6029735

Fair value Fair value Non
through | through other | financial

profit or | comprehensive | assets and

loss. income liabilities
Assets
Financial investments - 100 32 - 132
Grantor - State - Account Receivable 1221 4474940 - - - 4474940
Trade receivables 1223 28 205 . - . 28 205
Other accounts receivable 1224 142 942 - - 42627 185 569
4646 087 100 32 42627 4688 846
Liabilities
Trade payables 1233 38853 - . - 38853
Borrowing 1231 1812073 - - 1610 1813683
Shareholder funding/ borrowing 1232 2332667 . - - 2332667
Other accounts payable 1234 2037544 - - 103818 2141362

6221137 0 0 105428 6326 564
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Non-financial assets mainly relate to:

e Surety bonds services in the amount of € 31,105 thousand (2022: € 31,105 thousand) — note 12.3.4;
e Trade receivables of € 7.952 thousand (2022: € 7.651 thousand) — note 12.2.4;

o VAT on credit notes pending deduction and reversal of the taxable person totalling € 1,111 thousand
(2022: € 1,967 thousand) - note.12.2.4, and;

o Shareholder debts (RETGS, Dividends and debit balances) totalling €1,037 thousand (2022: € 1,737
thousand) — note12.2.4.

Non-financial liabilities include:

e Accounting overdrafts of € 309 thousand (2022: € 1,610 thousand) — note 12.2.5;

o Receipts relating to the RRP whose investment has not yet been made in the amount of € 43,044
thousand (2022: € 39,521 thousand) — note 12.3.4;

* Advances on account of sales of approximately € 25,583 thousand (2022: € 25,699 thousand);

e Surety bonds in the amount of € 20,057 thousand (2022: € 18,939 thousand) — note 12.3.4;

¢ Liabilities with employment benefits (remuneration and other debts) of € 14,284 thousand (2022: €
13,620 thousand);

e Advances on subsidies of € 2,733 thousand (2022: € 2,653 thousand), and

o Liability with RETGS in the amount of € 1,552 thousand (2022: € 1,945 thousand).



2023 Annual Report !‘
Il Separate Financial Statements and Notes Infraestruturas
I1.262 da Porlugal

12.2. FINANCIAL ASSETS

12:2.1. GRANTOR - STATE - ACCOUNT RECEIVABLE

The breakdown of the financial asset underlying the rail concession at 31 December 2023 and 31 December

2022 is as follows:

Concessioned assets (LDI) 10 976 862 10 399 099
Interest charged 1944 768 1881418
Grants/Subsidies - 5066 249 -4 857 911
Receipts - 2623854 - 2623 854
Return on assets -18612 -18612
Impairment - 305 200 - 305 200

4907 716 4 474 940

Of the increase in concession assets (LDI), € 577,763 thousand, we should mention the implementation of
Ferrovia 2020 investments, which totalled around € 466,200 thousand, of which investment in the Northern
International Corridor (around € 170,000 thousand) stands out, with the largest share relating to the Beira Alta
Line, and in the Southern International Corridor (around € 141,200 thousand), with emphasis on the ongaoing
construction of the new line between Evora Norte - Elvas and the Sines, Ermidas - Grandola General
Undertaking.

Of particular note is the increase in subsidies directly attributed to IP for the development of the railway
infrastructure, which totalled € 208,338 thousand. These subsidies come from the European Structural and
Investment Funds (€ 16, 923 thousand from the ERDF, €100,169 thousand from the Cohesion Fund, €65,823
thousand from the CEF-Cohesion and €25,464 thousand from the CEF-General) and correspond to
reinforcements of advances and reimbursements of applications approved in the 2014-2020 programming
period (COMPETE 2020, POSEUR and CEF programmes).

In the current financial year, interest totalling € 63,350 thousand was debited to the Grantor (2022: € 59,214
thousand), with the corresponding entry reflected under Financial Gains - interest earned - Grantor - State
(note 24)
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12:2.2. BORROWINGS GRANTED

The breakdown of borrowings granted to subsidiaries for the periods ended 31 December 2023 and 31

December 2022 is as follows:

Borrowings granted
Opening balance 10 805 10 805
Closing Balance 10 805 10 805
Cumulative impairment
Opening balance -10 805 -10 805
Closing Balance -10 805 -10 805
Opening book value 0 0
Closing book value 0 0

All the borrowings granted are in favour of IP Patriménio.

These borrowings reflect the ancillary services provided when the Gare Intermodal de Lisboa, S.A. (GIL)
merger project was completed, which was incorporated into IP Patriménio, and were intended to guarantee

the neutrality of IP Patrimonio's equity after the integration of GIL's assets and liabilities into IP Patriménio.

The set up of the said accessory contributions was carried out against the conversion of accessory capital

recorded as impairment.
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Sundry 21717 16 157
Tolls 5143 7993
Railway operator - related party 26.4 4138 3330
Subsidiaries 26.3 2486 1817

33484 29297
Cumulative impairment -1076 -1093

32 408 28 205

This item is made up of current balances, which is why it approximates their fair value.

Exposure of these balances to credit risk is shown in note 12.4.1.
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12.2.4. OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 this item is broken down as follows:

Accounts receivable for accrued income

Compensatory Allowances 26.2 96 954 31549
Road Service Consignment 26.2 93938 80092
Railway operator - related party 264 7427 8679
Subsidiaries 26.3 1031 3100
Other 1261 870
200 611 124 290
Surety deposits 121 31105 31105
Other accounts receivable
Sundry 368124 36 867
Subsidiaries 12.1/26.3 1037 1737
39 161 38 604
Cumulative impairment -8298 -8429
262 579 185 569

Debtors for accrued income include, among others:

¢ Amounts receivable relating to outstanding compensation indemnities, in accordance with Council of
Ministers Resolution no. 3/2024 of 5 January (note 16);

» Amounts receivable from the Directorate-General for the Budget (DGO) relating to the Road Service
Consignment;

o Under the heading Railway operator - Related party, we highlight the traction energy of the substations
to be invoiced in the amount of € 3,196 thousand (2022: € 5,497 thousand) and the use of railway
infrastructure in the amount of € 4,000 thousand (2022: € 3,182 thousand); and

¢ In the subsidiaries, we would highlight the concession rent for December and the re-invoicing for
human surveillance owed by IP Patriménio and the maintenance of the Lumiar building owed by IP

Engenharia.

Surety deposits essentially relate to the provision of a suitable guarantee for the VAT proceedings, totalling e
28,126 thousand; and

Other accounts receivable- sundry, net of impairments, include, among others, protocols with various
municipalities relating to the construction and upgrading of various infrastructures, in particular the
municipalities of Fundao, Cascais, Lisboa, Agueda and Sintra, totalling around € 9,657 thousand (2022: €
10,000 thousand), balances owed to suppliers in of amount of € 7,952 thousand (2022: € 7,651 thousand), the
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concession of a plot of land, in the amount of € 4,935 thousand, toll revenues in the amount of € 2,102
thousand, and VAT to be recovered from credit notes and VAT reversal of the taxable person in the amount
of around € 1,111 thousand (2022: € 1,967 thousand), as per note 12.1.

Exposure of these balances to credit risk is shown in note 12.41.

122.5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The cash and cash equivalents shown in the Cash Flow statement for the financial years ending on 31

December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are reconciled with the amounts shown in the Statement of Financial

Position, as follows:

Other investments 198 200 161 248
Bank deposits 62724 75034
Cash 52 51
Cash and cash equivalent in the Statement of Financial Position 260 976 236 334
Accounting overdrafts 1231 - 309 -1610
Cash and cash equivalent in the Cash Flow Statement 260 668 234724

Accounting overdrafts in the Statement of Financial Position, are recorded under in liabilities, under caption

“Borrowings”.

According to information from the DGO dated 20 December 2021, the funds received under the PRR and not
used (€ 43,044 thousand - note 12.3.4) were converted into off-budget operations and can only be used to pay
expenses related to the RRP in future years, so as at 31 December 2023, the operation of these amounts is

limited.

Exposure of these balances to credit risk is shown in note 12.4.1.
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12.3. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

123.1: BORROWINGS

The breakdown of current and non-current borrowings as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 is as

follows:

Non-current loans

Borrowings 1065011 1636 752
Current loans
Borrowings 586 664 176 931

1651675 1813 683
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The terms and repayment periods for these loans are detailed below:

Intesest rate.

Raitway Suburban 28102004 100,000 28571 16/06/2009 15/06/2024 Annual cannot excesd 40555

S :
Euribor+0.15%

Railway Suburban B 14122005 100,000 33,333 180092010 15/09/2025 Annual Revisable raiz 3.615% 15fset

Raitway Suburban C 12110/2006 55,000 20,952 18/03/2011 15/03/2026 Annual Fevisable rate 4 247% 15/mar

Raitway P I 2 Linh do Nore-C 1111212006 100,000 65,000 18/06f2017 16/06/2026 Annual Revisable tais 1.100% 15fjn
15fmar

i 3M Euribor 0.

Railway CP Il Linha do Nore-D 1210712007 100,000 65,000 1812017 1841212025 Arnual oy 3.829% 15fun
16fset
15idez

Fixed

Road B Boads 20092018 171122009, 200,659 73,575 18106/2014 16/06/2029 Haff-year 2.189% 15pn
15idez
15fmar

Railway Refer V 04/08/2008 160,000 80,000 1510372014 161032033 Annual 3M Euribor 0. 3872% 15fun

% 15/set
15idez.

Raitway Reker VI 100912009 110,000 49500 160972013 15/02032 Annual Revisable ra% 2271% 16/set

Railway Eurobond 06/26 104112006 600,000 589,542 161112026 Buliet Fixed 4 D4T7% 16inov

Railway Eurobond 09/24 16/10/2009 500,000 499,348 16102024 Bulst Fixed 4 575% 16/out

Foad Eurobond 10/30 090712010 125,000 122 367 130712030 Buliet Fixed 5.450% 13ul

Extemnal Loans 1,637,189
Accrued interest 14477
Accounting 309
TOTAL 1,65‘1@"?5

Interest associated with these borrowings is paid in arrears, on a quarterly, half-yearly or annual basis.

For EIB borrowings, the capital is amortised periodically after the grace period. The remaining borrowings

(Eurobonds) are repaid in full at maturity (bullet).

As at 31 December 2023, the borrowings backed by the State's guarantee totalled €1.515,932 thousand in
nominal value (2022: € 1.674,952 thousand).

Exposure of these balances to Liquidity risk is shown in note 12.4.2.
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123.2. SHAREHOLDER FUNDING / SHAREHOLDER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the item shareholder Borrowings/supplementary capital was

broken down as follows:

Current Borrowings
State Loan 2 332 667 2 332667
2332 667 2 332 667

These shareholder's borrowings viewed to meet the borrowing requirements of former EP between 2011 and
2013.

The DGTF granted a new moratorium on state loans allocated to the motorway in the amount of € 2,332,667
thousand (€ 2,215,578 thousand in amortisation and € 117,089 thousand in interest), sliding their maturity to

31 December 2024. Deferrals granted in this context are not subject to the payment of interest.

These loans pay interest at various fixed annual nominal rates, as agreed with the DGTF according to the

amount and dates of the disbursements. The breakdown is as follows:
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3 ] Repayment Interest rate
Activity Name Date of signature  Contracted amount  Principal due - i o Interest rate Periodicity
: : : i : = Opening date Closing date Periodicity  scheme i |

Road Sibi 300122011 1705000 892 500 310972013  30M1/2016  Halfyear Fixed 2.170% 31/mai

) 30fnov

Road 2710112012 204 000 153000 31/05/2014 30112017 Halfyear Fixed 3.650% 31/mai
Sizte Loan

30nov

Road 270112012 230 000 172 500 30824 32T Halfyear Fixed 3.440% 31/mai
Siate Loan

30 nov

Road Skl 2710112012 75 000 56 250 31/05/2014  30M1/2017  Halfyear Fixed 2.930% 31mai

) 30fnov

Road 2710112012 28 000 21000 31/05/2014  30M1/2017  Halfyear Fixed 2.650% 31/mai
Sizte Loan

3nov

Road 3010572012 44 060 33000 31/05/2014 301172017 Halfyear Fixed 2.690% 31/mai
Siate Loan

30 nov

Road 30/05/2012 80 060 60 000 31/06/2014 301172017 Halfyear Fixed 2.700% 31/mai
State Loan

30fnov

Road 3000672012 33 500 25125 31/05/2014 30112017 Halfyear Fixed 1.980% 31/mai
Sizte Loan

3nov

Road 26/0072012 156 800 117 600 31/05/2014 301172017 Halfyear Fixed 1.810% 31mai
Siate Loan

30fnov

Road 2911012012 16 000 12000 31/06/2014 301172017 Halfyear Fixed 1.710% 31/mai
State Loan

30fnov

Road _ 2911012012 13300 9975 31/05/2014 301172017 Halfyear Fixed 1.590% 31imai
Stafe Loan

30nov

Road 29/01/2043 85 000 85000 31052015 30172020 Halfyear Fixed 2.750% 31mai
Siate Loan

30fnov

Road 290172013 135 600 135 600 31/05/2015  30M1/2020  Halfyear Fixed 2.420% 31mal
State Loan

30/nov

Road _ 2910172013 17 400 17 400 31/05/2015  30/11/2020  Halfyear Fixed 2.150% 31imai
Stafe Loan

3nov

Road ; 0810372013 25654 26654 31/05/2015 3011172020  Halfyear Fixed 2.150% 31mai
State Loan

30fnov

Road 0810372013 266405 266 405 31/05/2015  30/11/2020  Halfyear Fixed 2.180% 31imai
Siate Loan

30/nov

Road _ 0810372013 28 042 23042 31/05/2015  30/11/2020  Halfyear Fixed 2.610% 31imai
Stafe Loan

30/nov

Road ; 04/0872013 26 202 26 202 31/05/2015 3011172020  Halfyear Fixed 2.190% 31mai
State Loan

30fnov

Road 04/0872013 25 000 25000 31/05/2015  30/11/2020  Halfyear Fixed 2.180% 31imai
Siate Loan

30/nov

Road 0410972013 17 943 17 943 31/05/2015 3001172020  Halfyear Fixed 2.070% 31imai
State Loan

30/nov

Road ; 01072013 3688 3688 31/05/2015 3011172020  Halfyear Fixed 2.100% 31mai
State Loan

30fnov

Road 0911072013 21805 21805 31/05/2015  30/11/2020  Halfyear Fixed 1.870% 31imai
Siate Loan

30fnov

Road 0811012013 45 891 49831 31052015 3071172020 Halfyear Fixed 1.970% 3t/mai
State Loan

30nov

Total shareholder financing 2,215,578
Accrued interest 117.089

TOTAL 2,332,667
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Flat-rate financing

As of 31 December 2023, the fair value of the fixed rate debt was as follows:

Exposure of these balances to Liquidity risk is shown in note 12.4.2.

EIB - Suburbans B 100 000 33333 33828 3615%
EIB - Suburbans C 55.000 20952 21740 4.247 %
ElB - REFER VI 110.000 49 500 47 198 221 %
EIB - CPIlI2 Northern Line C 100 000 65 000 63 560 1.100 %
EIB- Roads 2009-2019 200 659 73575 73529 2189 %
Eurobond 06/26 600 000 600 000 630 903 4.047 %
Eurobond 09/24 500000 500 000 508 255 4675 %
Eurobond 10/30 125000 125000 126 704 6.450 %
State Loan 1705 000 852 500 866 796 2770 %
State Loan 204 000 153000 160 133 3.690 %
State Loan 230000 172 500 179780 3440 %
State Loan 75000 56 250 58127 2930 %
State Loan 28 000 21000 21613 2690 %
State Loan 44000 33000 33 963 2690 %
State Loan 80 000 60 000 61 761 2700 %
State Loan 33500 25125 25 547 1980 %
State Loan 156 800 117 600 119227 1.810 %
State Loan 16.000 12000 12145 1710 %
State Loan 13 300 9975 10075 1.590 %
State Loan 85000 85000 91 063 2750 %
State Loan 135600 135600 143 823 2420 %
State Loan 17 400 17 400 18 303 2150 %
State Loan 25654 25654 26985 2150 %
State Loan 266 405 266 405 280 480 2180 %
State Loan 28042 28042 29915 2610 %
State Loan 26 202 26 202 27 585 21980 %
State Loan 25000 25000 26 322 2180 %
State Loan 17943 17 943 18 827 2070 %
State Loan 3688 3688 3873 2100 %
State Loan 21805 21805 22739 1870 %
State Loan 49 891 49 891 52180 1970 %

TOTAL 5078 887 3682939 3800019
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12.3.3. TRADE PAYABLES

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 this caption was made up as follows:

General suppliers 58 847 35094
Subsidiaries 26.3 2807 1338
Railway operator - related party 264 1548 2421

63 202 38853

Exposure of these balances to Liquidity risk is shown in note 12.4.2.
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12.3.4. OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

At 31 December 2023 and 2020, details of this item are as follows:

I N TN T

Non-current

Accounts payable for accrued expenses

Sub-concessions 937 771 1073431
9377111 1073431

Leases - 742
9377111 1074173

Current

Accounts payable for accrued expenses

Sub-concessions 472 343 495155
Regular road maintenance 354 151 355 293
Other Accounts payable for accrued expenses 35788 47 212
Subsidiaries 26.3 1808 2998
Railway operator- related party 264 155 238

864 245 900 895

Investment Suppliers 65 828 58 633
Sundry 64 489 58 633
Railway operator- related party 264 1339 0

RRP 1211225 43 044 39 521
Advances to be forwarded to Sales 121 25583 25699
Surety bonds 12.1 20 057 18 939
Sundry 20 003 18 890
Railway operator- related party 264 54 49
Remuneration payable 14 284 13620
Other creditors 9068 5733
Sundry 8700 5 466
Subsidiaries 26.3 368 267
Leases 757 2204
RETGS - Subsidiaries 12.1/26.3 1552 1945

1044 419 1067 189
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Accounts payable for accrued expenses include the following:

e The amount of IP's liabilities to sub-concessionaires for construction, operation and maintenance
services already carried out by them and pending invoicing, remunerated in the accounts at rates of
between 5% and 11%.

This liability is assessed annually and represents the best estimate of the Executive Board of Directors
of the valuation of the services already rendered by sub-concessionaires determined based on the
estimate of future financial flows from these contracts, regardless of their nature, including those

resulting from contingencies and legal proceedings;

e The periodic maintenance of roads resulting from IP's responsibility to maintain or restore the road
infrastructure to certain levels of service, which is established over the period that elapses until the

scheduled date of execution of the works;

The change in the Periodic Maintenance of Roads item is due to the increase in the theoretical annual
cost for scheduled maintenance totalling around € 55,665 thousand (note 18), less the execution of

maintenance work for the year of around € 56,807 thousand; and

e Other accrued liabilities include the amounts payable by IP under the Concession Contract with the
State, totalling € 24,000 thousand (2022: € 24,000 thousand) and traction power and other in the
amount of € 9,743 thousand (2022: € 13,105 thousand) and the contract for the provision of data
services and information and communication technologies totalling € 1,808 thousand (2022: € 1,614

thousand).

ltem Investment suppliers refers mainly to the amounts billed for the performance of own works.

With regard to the Recovery and Resilience Plan (RRP), € 105,724 thousand have been received to date, of
which € 49,239 thousand during this financial year. In terms of financial execution, € 62,679 thousand have

already been paid out, of which € 45,716 thousand during the 2023 financial year.

Exposure of these balances to Liquidity risk is shown in note 12.4.2.
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12.4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

IP's activity is exposed to financial risk factors such as currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk

associated with cash flows arising from borrowings and capital risk.

Decree-law 133/2013 of 3 October introduced changes to the autonomy of reclassified public companies (EPR)
in what concerns access to funding with the financial system, and the use of derivative financial instruments

for risk management purposes.

In fact, article 29 makes it impossible for the EPRs to access financing from credit institutions, with the
exception of those of a multilateral nature (e.g. the European Investment Bank. Article 72 also establishes the

transfer of the management of their financial derivatives portfolios to IGCP.

These risks are managed by the Finance Department, within the framework of the risk mitigation policies

defined by the Executive Board of Directors.

12.4.1. CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is associated with the risk of another party failing to comply with its contractual obligations resulting

in a financial loss for IP.

Credit risk is mainly associated with the likelihood of recovering trade receivables from clients, as well as other

accounts receivable, and deposits and applications with financial institutions and the IGCP.

In order to minimise its exposure to this risk, the Company obtains credit guarantees from clients in the form
of collateral, surety bonds or bank guarantees. Note 12.1 details the maximum exposure of the company to

credit risk.
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Table below provides a brief characterisation of accounts receivable (clients), according to invoicing intervals:

Number of clients

Railway 7 - 19 26
Non tolled roads - 28 162 190
Tolls - - Various -
Debt 26 409 1679 51396 33484
Railway 26 409 - 7 26416
Non tolled roads - 18679 248 1925
Tolls - - 5143 5143

2022-12-31 [>€th1000[ | [€th 999 mé€ <€th 10| [€ 10th>0] -

Number of clients

Railway 6 - 20 26
Non tolled roads - 25 166 191
Tolls - - Various -
Debt 19 495 1562 8240 29 297
Railway 19 495 - 7 19 501
Non tolled roads - 1562 240 1802
Tolls - - 7993 7993

At 31 December 2023 IP had a portfolio of 216 clients (2022: 217 clients), of which 7 (2022: 6) have balances
above € 1000 thousand accounting for approximately 79% (2022: 67%) of amounts due.

When analysing debt, we highlight the increase in the railway operators’ debt (+35% compared to 2022), given

the decrease in fare invoicing in the period under review of around 2%.

The weight of toll debts in relation to the total customer balance was 15% (2022: 27%)
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The seniority of balances of trade receivables (clients) is shown in table below.

_mmas | et | e | o | e | e |

Tolls 5143 5143
Intra group entities 2486 - - - - 2486
Railway operators 4430 3771 4370 8 566 2783 23921
Public entities - - - - 25 25
Other debtors 172 2 26 46 1664 1909
12 231 3773 4 396 8611 4472 33484

Impairment - - - - -1076 -1076
12 231 3773 4 396 8611 3396 32 408

0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 24.05 % 321%
e e [ T v
Tolls 7993 7993
Intra group entities 353 - 635 785 43 1817
Railway operators 8058 3448 104 384 5684 17 678
Public entities 34 - - - 25 59
Other debtors 49 . 39 332 1329 1750
16 488 3448 778 1502 7081 29 297

Impairment - - - - 323 - 770 -1083
16 488 3 448 778 1179 6 311 28 205

0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 21.50 % 10.87 % 373%

The credit risk associated with debts of IP clients has the following characteristics:

Road Activity - accounts receivable (clients) concern mainly tolls which have a diversified customer base and
comprises low-value transactions and are collected by the Tax Authority if not paid, so they do not have

significant associated credit risk.

Railway Activity - This risk is essentially related to non-compliance with the responsibilities assumed by the
railway operators. CP - Comboios de Portugal, E.P.E. is the main counterparty and was the one with the most
significant defaults during the year. This year has seen difficulties on the part of private operators settling their

debts on time, a situation that has been duly monitored by the services.

In relation to intra group entities and public entities there is no relevant credit risk in sight.
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With regard to other clients, referred to for this purpose as "other debtors”, a number of balances with reduced
values are included (2023: 208 clients and 2022: 214 clients), with insignificant weight in the client portfolio,
which have been subject to impairment on a case-by-case basis according to the risk analysis carried out, and

the Executive Board of Directors is convinced that the impairments considered are appropriate.

With regard to the credit risk associated with other accounts receivable, the main highlights are the weight of
the Road Service Consignment (RSC), which is collected by the Tax Authority (TA) and delivered to IP by the
DGO, the compensatory indemnities provided for in RCM 3/2024, of 5 January, and the debts of municipalities
for which, given their public nature, the associated credit risk is not considered relevant, since it is considered
that, despite any delays, the probability of recovery is 100%. In remaining cases, impairments are recognised

when the balances are due for more than 720 days.

As for credit risk associated with financial activity, IP is exposed to the national banking sector on account of
its its demand deposits balances and to the international banking sector with which it has contracted derivative
financial instruments. This exposure is reduced due to the application of the legislation on the Principle of State
Treasury Unity, which provides for the concentration of cash and financial investments with IGCP. Currently,
IP holds 99% of its cash assets with IGCP.

To date, IP did not incur into any impairment resulting from non-compliance of contractual obligations by

banks.

The following table shows a summary of the credit rating of IP's deposits, by entity, as attributed by Standard

and Poor’s at the reporting dates:

2023-12-31 2022-12-31
o

IGCP(*) BBB+ 262 709 BBB+ 236 200
BBVA A+ 14 A 32
BANCO BPI BBB+ 12 BBB+ 40
BANCO SANTANDER A+ 2 A+ 5
CGD (=) 1 =) 3
BCP BBB- 1 BB+ -
Novo Banco &) = ) 1

262738 236 283

(™) In 2023 it comprised € 198,200 thousand (2022 € 161,248 thousand) of CEDIC applications.
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12.4.2. LIQUIDITY RISK

This type of risk is measured by the ability to raise financial resources to meet the liabilities with the different
economic agents that interact with the Company, such as suppliers, banks, the capital market, etc. This risk is
measured by the liquidity available to the company to meet the assumed liabilities as well as the capacity to

generate cash flow in the course of its business.

IP seeks to minimise the likelihood of non-compliance with its commitments through rigorous and planned
management of its business. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining an adequate level of cash
and cash equivalents to meet the liabilities assumed. Since IP is financially loss-making, it is the shareholder,
i.e. the Portuguese state, which covers the Company's financing requirements through capital increases. The

liquidity risk is therefore considerably low.

Table below shows the liabilities of IP by intervals of contracted maturity. The amounts presented represent

non discounted future cash flows as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

2023-12-31 Less than 1 year 1to 5 years

Borrowings
- Repayment of borrowings 572830 894 602 173 500
- interest on borrowings 72999 113768 10607
- Repayment of shareholder funding / Shareholder's borrowings 2215578 - -
- interest on shareholder funding / Shareholder's borrowings 117 089 = e
- Surety 2992 4114 196
Trade payable and other accounts payable 999 228 937 771 -
3980715 1950 256 184 303
T
Borrowings
- Repayment of borrowings 159 020 1447 243 193 689
- interest on borrowings 69 068 165 310 20 631
- Repayment of shareholder funding / Shareholder's borrowings 2215578 . -
- interest on shareholder funding / Shareholder's borrowings 117 089 = e
- Surety 3 347 7054 357
Trade payable and other accounts payable 1002 393 1074024 -

3 566 494 2693 632 214676
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12.4.3. INTEREST RATE RISK

IP is subject to interest rate risk as long as it holds loans contracted with the (national and international)

financial system and the State to finance its activity.

The main objective of interest rate risk management is to protect against movements in rising interest rates,

since IP's revenues are immune to this variable and a natural hedge is therefore impossible.
Currently, no financial instruments are used to hedge interest rate risk.

At present, the aim of the interest rate risk management policy is essentially to monitor the interest rates that

influence the financial liabilities contracted on the basis of Euribor.

Sensitivity test to change in interest rate

IP uses sensitivity analysis on a regular basis to measure the extent to which results would be influenced by
the impact of interest rate variations on the fair value of its loans. These analyses have helped decision-making

in interest rate risk management. The sensitivity test is based on the following assumptions:

i. As of 31 December 2023 IP had not recognised any borrowing obtained at fair value;
ii. Changes in the fair value of financial loans and liabilities are estimated discounting future cash flows
using market rates at the time of reporting;
iii. On the basis of these assumptions, at 31 December 2023, a 0.5% increase or decrease in the Euro
interest rate curves would result in the following changes in the fair value of loans with potential impact

on profit and loss:

Change in the Interest rate curve
-0.50 % 0.50 %
Impact on the fair value of borrowings 28 140 -12 317
Potential impact on resuilts -28 140 12 317
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12.4.4. CAPITAL RISK

IP's goal in terms of capital risk management, which is a broader concept than the capital shown on the

Statement of Financial Position, is to safeguard the ongoing business operation.

The basic instrument for managing this risk is IP's financing plan (or financial plan), which identifies and
monitors the sources of funding, in particular the policy of strengthening the share capital promoted by the

shareholder and embodied in operations to increase cash capital.

IP was set up with a share capital of €2,555,835 thousand, represented by 511,167 shares with a nominal
value of €5 thousand each. At 31 December 2023, the share capital amounted to € 12,580,670 thousand
represented by 2,517,334 shares, with a nominal value of € 5000 each.

In 2023 capital increases were made in cash, totalling € 1,434,515 thousand (note 13) to cover financing

requirements, as shown in the table below:

Share capital increases 1434 515 1281975
PPP investment 807 946 748 258
Railway Investment 365 263 333980
_Debt Service 234 970 199736
Railway maintenance 19 996 -

Bank guarantees 6 340 -
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12.5. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES DERIVING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

The reconciliation of liabilities whose flows affect financing activities is as follows:

Shareholder's
I (T =

31 December 2022 (1) 1813683 2 332 667 2946
Cash
Interest -71974 - - 103
Amortisation (2) -158 020 - -2185
Other financial expenses -3748 -
Non-Cash
Effective Rate (3) 438 - -
Specialised interest (4) - 1964 -
Other financial expenses (5) - 160 - -
Other changes (6) -1301 - 7
31 December 2023 (1) + (2) + (3) + (4) + (5) + (6) 1651 675 2332 667 757

Shareholder's
| tes  [SEREE eses

31 December 2021 (1) 1947 023 2332 667 5000
Cash
Interest - 66 488 - - 207
Amortisation (2) -129 345 - -2041
Other financial expenses -3796 - -
Non-Cash
Effective Rate (3) 417 - -
Specialised interest (4) - 505 - -
Other financial expenses (5) - 37 - -
Other changes (6) -3869 . - 13
31 December 2022 (1) + (2) + (3) + (4) + (5) * (6) 1813683 2332 667 2946
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13. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
i) SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital is represented by nominative shares in book-entered form, owned by the Portuguese State

and held by the Directarate-General for Treasury and Finance.

At 31 December 2022 the share capital was € 11,152,155 thousand fully subscribed and paid up by its

shareholder, corresponding to 2,230,431 shares with a nominal value of € 5,000 each.

During 2023 the share capital was increased as follows:

2023-12-31

February 84 526 422630
March 17700 88 500
May 38 000 190 000
June 46 900 234 500
August 25 249 126 245
September 25480 127 400
December 49 048 245 240

286 903 1434515

As of 31 December 2023, this amounted to € 12,586,670 thousand, corresponding to 2,517,334 fully

subscribed and paid-up shares.

The basic/diluted earnings per share are as follows:

Profit allocated to shareholders (in Euro) - 18774 068 47783 531
Average number of shares in the period 2 398 456 2120 861
Average number of diluted shares in the period 2398 456 2120 861
Basic earnings per share (in Euro) -7.83 22.53
Diluted earnings per share (in Euro) -7.83 22.53

The basic and diluted earnings per share is -€7.83 as there are no dilution factors.
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IP calculates its basic and diluted earnings per share using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the reporting period, on the following basis:

January 2230431
February 2314 857
March 2332657
April 2 332 657
May 2 370657
June 2417 557
July 2417 557
August 2442 806
September 2468 286
October 2468 286
November 2468 286
December 2517 334
Average number of outstanding shares 2 398 456

i) RESERVES

Reserves are made up as follows:

Legal reserve 296 007 278 981
Merger reserves 4 4
296 011 278 985

With regard to legal reserves, commercial legislation establishes that at least 5 per cent of the annual net profit
is set aside to reinforce the legal reserve, until it represents at least 20 per cent of the share capital. This
reserve is not available for distribution, except upon liquidation of the Company, but can be used to absorb

losses once the other reserves have been used up, or to increase capital.

1) RETAINED EARNINGS

At the General Meeting held on 7 July 2023, it was decided to apply the results for 2022 to fully cover the
negative cumulative results (€ 30,758 thousand), with the remainder being used to set up the legal reserve (€

17,026 thousand), as per point ii) of this note.
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14. PROVISIONS

See accounting policy 2.2.12

The evolution of provisions for other risks and charges as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 was

as follows:
tions

2021-12-31 33573 19115 47 885 405789 449251 956 570
Increases / (Decreases) through profit - 9651 . i - 116 i 23143 13376
or loss
Use of provisions - - - - 157 -4155 - -4312
Increase_s / (Reductions) via road ) - 656 - 8044 . i 10 305 1605
concession
2022-12-31 23923 18 459 39841 684 401634 482700 967 240
Increases / (Decreases) through profit 25 285 ) i 305 i 31207 56 887
or loss
Use of provisions - - - - 145 -13021 - - 13166
Increase_s / (Reductions) via road ) 1267 1574 . i 13522 13829
concession
2023-12-31 49 208 17192 41415 934 388613 527429 1024790

PROVISIONS FOR ONGOING LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

GENERAL RISKS:

According to the analysis carried out by the Legal Affairs and Compliance Department, this provision relates

to potential liabilities from general litigation without a connection to works contracts.

The increase in this provision is mainly due to the lawsuit relating to the railway accident in Soure in 2020, for

which the provisioned amount is € 18,619 thousand.

LAND EXPROPRIATIONS:

This provision was set up to deal with the risk of IP having to make additional payments in connection to land
expropriation proceedings in litigation. Its calculation is the result of consultations carried out by the Legal

Affairs Department with the external and internal lawyers involved in the cases
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CONTRACTS:

Provision set up relating to general litigation proceedings arising from road contract works.

VAT PROCEEDINGS:

For conservative reasons, and in light of the developments in the VAT proceedings described in Note 10, it
was decided to set up a provision for the estimated impact of an unfavourable decision concerning these

proceedings.

Since the issue giving rise to the dispute between the former EP and the Tax Authority was the acceptance
or not of the RSC as income liable for VAT, a provision was set up which is equivalent to the amount of VAT
deducted by the former EP and by IP in activities financed by the RSC. It should also be noted that the
counterpart of this provision was made on the basis of the accounting classification of the expense that gave
rise to the deductible VAT, i.e. for VAT deducted in relation to expenses for the year, the counterpart was
expenses and for VAT deducted in relation to the acquisition or construction of assets, the counterpart of the

provision made was intangible assets - Concession Right.

PROVISIONS FOR OTHER NON-LITIGATION SITUATIONS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
IP grants temporary early retirement benefits and retirement and survival pension benefits to its employees.

The complementary retirement and survival pension benefits attributed to the employees constitute a defined
benefit plan under which IP pays early retirement pensions to a closed group of employees covered by the

plan until such time as they retire under the Caixa Geral de Aposentagbes system.

This provision refers to liabilities for benefits attributed to an already small group of 23 beneficiaries (2022: 27),
for a limited period of time, so it was the opinion of the Executive Board of Directars that an annual assessment

of these liabilities by a specialised company was not necessary and was carried out internally.

The change during the year corresponded to the revision of the estimate of the provision to be paid in
subsequent periods, with a direct impact on the profit and loss for the year, and the utilisation of the provision

in accordance with payments made during the period.
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PROVISION FOR DISQUALIFIED ROADS:

IP is required to transfer disqualified roads within the National Road Plan to the responsibility of municipalities,
having set up a provision which reflects the best estimate to fulfil the obligations of renovating disqualified

roads still under the company’s responsibility. The entering of the transfer protocols with the Municipalities led

to the utilisation of this provision.
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15. SALES AND SERVICES

See accounting policy 2.2.13
From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, sales and services

are detailed as follows:

Road Service Consignment (%) 641 731 665 501
Tolls 328 409 294 646
Use of slots (fees) 66 243 67 582
Construction contracts 71794 50 947

Construction of new infrastructures 6, 17 61435 40 289

Capitalized financial expenses 6,17 10 359 10658
State Grantor - Revenue LDI 26.2 30630 32199
Other 24 386 27 562

1163 194 1138 436

(*) 2022 Road Service Contribution

The unit values of the Road Service Consignment (consideration paid by users for use of the road network)
for 2023 remained unchanged from the unit values of the Road Service Contribution for 2022, standing at
€87/1,000 litres for petrol, €111/1,000 litres for road diesel and €63/1,000 litres for auto LPG.

Compared to the same period last year, there was a decrease in RSC of € 23,770 thousand, which translates

into a variation of -3.6%.

The increase in tolls compared to the same period last year (€ 33,763 thousand) was fundamentally due to the
increase in road traffic to levels slightly above the pre-COVID-19 era. It should be borne in mind that the
beginning of 2022 was influenced by the weight of teleworking and the restrictions associated with the

pandemic situation, which no longer apply in 2023.

The largest portion of toll income results from the use of the State Concessions network, where IP is the holder
of the revenue from toll collection, totalling around € 255,775 thousand (2022: € 233,894 thousand).

The use of slots (Tariffs) item refers mainly to income from the Infrastructure Use Tariffs (IUT). Passenger
fares totalled € 58,354 thousand and freight fares € 7,337 thousand, a decrease of 3.66% and an increase of

0.01% respectively compared to the same period last year.

Construction contracts reflect IP's income from its NRN construction activity, as established in the Concession

Contract. This includes all IP's construction activities, whether carried out directly or sub-concessioned.
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The amounts corresponding to the construction of New Infrastructure concern construction activities under IP’s
direct management and are calculated based on monthly monitoring reporis stating the state of progress of

the works and the expenses directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use.

Capitalised financial expenses correspond to the financial expenses incurred by |IP during the road construction

phase and consist of the financial expenses used to finance the acquisition of the State Concession Network.

The heading State Grantor — LDI Revenue, corresponds to the repayment of expenses incurred with Long-
Term Infrastructure to the Grantor, namely, materials and labour for Investment and the respective structural

expenses, under the terms of IFRIC12.

Summing up, in the 2023 financial year, we highlight the decrease in Services Rendered, with a direct impact
on results, of around -€18,050 thousand compared to December 2022, relating to RSC (-€23,769 thousand),
IP Road Tolls (+€7,059 thousand) and Railway Tariffs (-€1,340 thousand).

Additionally, although with no impact on the result, there were variations in toll revenues from State
Concessions (+€ 26,705 thousand), own construction contracts (+€ 21,146 thousand), traction energy (-€
3,117 thousand) and the capitalisation of construction finance costs (-€ 299 thousand), the effects of which
are offset by the cost of goods sold and materials consumed (-€ 40,452 thousand), external supplies and
services (-€ 4,236 thousand) and financial costs (-€ 293 thousand);
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16. COMPENSATORY ALLOWANCES

See accounting policy 2.2.13
In compliance with Decree-Law 217/2015 of 7 October, which transposed Directive 2012/34/EU of the

European Parliament and of the Council of 21 November 2012 into national law, and through Council of
Ministers Resolution 10-A/2016 of 11 March 2016 (retroactive to 1 January 2016), the Framework Contract
between the Portuguese State and IP was signed for the first time on 11 March 2016 (retroactive to 1 January
2016), which defines and regulates the terms and conditions of IP's provision of the public service obligations
of managing the infrastructure of the National Railway Network, including the setting of compensatory

allowances to be paid by the State during the 2016-2020 period.

The granting of financial compensation by the State is sustained by IP’s activity of provision of services in the
public interest, which, by nature, is different from business activities which the Company would develop if it
took into consideration its business interests, and which is aimed to ensure the coverage of specific costs

resulting from its obligations of public service.

Council of Ministers Resolution no. 3/2024 of 5 January stipulated the amounts to be paid by the State to IP
as compensation for the years 2022, up to € 27,528 thousand, and 2023, up to € 69,426 thousand, plus VAT.

In view of the above, the amount recorded in 2023, as part of the regularisation of the Framework Contract
and the aforementioned RCM, was € 65,405 thousand. The payment of €96,954 thousand is pending. (note
12.2.4).
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17. COST OF GOODS SOLD AND MATERIALS CONSUMED

From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and in the same period of 2022, the detail of this item is as follows:

Capitalization Concession Tolls 238424 219 118
Construction of new infrastructures 6, 15 61435 40 289
Railway equipment 9 23168 21178

323 027 280 585

As mentioned in note 2.2.13 (revenue), the amounts received relating to tolls on state concessions (net of
collection costs) are deducted from IP's investment in the acquisition of the rights over this same Concessioned
network. This deduction is offset in this item. The change in this item is the result of the increase in toll revenues

from state concessions net of toll collection costs (€ 19,306 thousand).

The amounts corresponding to the construction of New Road Infrastructures concern construction activities
under |P’s direct management and are calculated based on monthly monitoring reports stating the state of
progress of the works. The change this year is essentially due to the construction contract for the section of
the EN 14 bypass between Maia and Trofa, totalling € 26,870 thousand (2022: € 14,794 thousand).

Expenses with railway materials essentially refers to the various types of materials used in the investment and

maintenance of railway infrastructure.
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18. EXTERNAL SUPPLIES AND SERVICES

From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, external supplies

and services are detailed as follows:

I =T

Current Maintenance and Road Safety 89 066 70918
Railway maintenance 85340 80 145
Operation and Maintenance Sub-concessions 61413 53125
Regular road maintenance 1234 55 665 55 665
Electricity 29675 33337
Toll collection costs 25229 17 896
Cleaning, hygiene and comfort 8525 7348
Surveillance and safety 7398 6 808
Specialised works 4112 4615
Software licences 3995 3517
Insurance 3531 3486
Fuel 2236 2582
Maintenance and repair 1694 2 365
Other 4330 17743

382 208 359 550

Under Current Maintenance and Road Safety, the following stand out:

i) current maintenance of roads and engineering structures totalling € 76,589 thousand (2022:
€ 59.515 thousand);
i) road safety in the amount of € 10.710 thousand (2022: € 10.335 thousand); and

iii) road telematics bonds in the amount of € 1,767 thousand (2022: € 1,068 thousand).
Expenses with railway maintenance relate, essentially, to the outsourcing of maintenance services:

i) carriageway in the amount of € 35,329 thousand (2022: € 33.785 thousand);

i) signalling in the amount of € 13,445 thousand (2022: € 13,024 thousand);

iii) railway telematics amounting to € 9,410 thousand (2022: € 8.818 thousand);

iv) deforestation in the amount of € 7,278 thousand (2022: € 5.960 thousand);

V) catenary totalling € 6,013 thousand (2022: € 5.508 thousand);

vi) civil construction works in the amount of € 5,388 thousand (2022: € 5.946 thousand);
vil) low tension amounting to € 2,607 thousand (2022: € 2.322 thousand);

viii) use of rescue trains to the value of € 1,670 thousand (2022: € 1.590 thousand); and

ix) telecommunications totalling €1,446 thousand.
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Operating costs and maintenance of sub-concessions result from the accounting recognition of the operation

and maintenance carried out by sub-concessionaires under the sub-concession contracts in force.

Regular Road Maintenance corresponds to the recognition of the increase in the responsibility of the IP Group
with the costs needed to maintain the service level of the routes and road engineering structures which is
imposed on it by the Concession Contract. This figure does not correspond to the need for investment in
conservation in the period itself, but rather to the average annual investment needed to maintain the network’s

level of service.

Electricity costs fell compared to the previous year, reflecting the variation in market prices in 2023 compared
to 2022.

Toll collection costs increased compared to 2022 as a result of the increase in toll activity.

Finally, the variation in the other item is largely the result of the approval of Law 24-E/2022, which dictated that
the RSC is now incorporated into the ISP, having repealed article 5 of Law 55/2007, of 31 August, which
mentioned that the settlement and collection costs incurred by the Directorate-General for Customs and Excise
Duties would be compensated by withholding 2% of the RSC proceeds. In 2022, these expenses totalled
around € 13,310 thousand.
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19. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

See accounting policy 2.2.14
From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, personnel

expenses are detailed as follows:

Wages 110 484 103 307
Wage expenses 24912 23 365
Other Personnel Expenses 3631 3721
Occupational accidents insurance 823 799
Social security expenses 623 514
Remuneration of members of governing bodies 539 533

141012 132 239

In 2023, IP's staff costs totalled € 141,012 thousand, reflecting an increase of around € 8,773 thousand or
+6.63% compared to 2022 (€ 132,239 thousand).

The company's average workforce remained almost unchanged at 3,415, compared to 3,414 in 2022.

Remuneration and Staff Costs increased by € 8,724 thousand (+6.89%), influenced by the application of the
Collective Labour Agreement, which translates into salary increases provided for in the Career System and in

pecuniary clauses linked to the different forms of work provided.
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20. IMPAIRMENT (LOSSES) / REVERSALS

See accounting policy 2.2.15

The evolution of impairment for the years ended at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Trade Other accounts
Inventories Grantor receivables - Total
Client receivable

Balance as at 31 December 2021 673 305 200 1542 10 880 318 295
Increase / (Reversal) - 509 - - 449 86 - 873
Used - - - -2536 -2536
Balance as at 31 December 2022 164 305 200 1093 8429 314 886
Increase / (Reversal) -19 - -17 -75 - 110
Used - - - - 57 - 57

Balance as at 31 December 2023 145 305 200 1076 8298 314719
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21. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and from 1 January 2022 to 31 December

2022 are broken down as follows:

_m

Allocation of investment grants 17121 58 660 66 349
Operating subsidies 20527 1396
Concessions sighature fees 8 854 8 854
Concessions for use and licences 8670 7 860
Gains on the sale of waste/used materials 8187 30M
Telecommunications 5828 5285
Other 5965 8428

117 691 101 182

The income recognised under Imputation of Investment Subsidies is calculated according to the period of the

Road Concession, at the same amortisation rate as the related asset.

Operating subsidies derive fundamentally from the allocation to profit and loss of subsidies received under the

Council of Ministers Resolution of 12 January 2023, relating to bad weather.

The Concessions Signature Fees item refers to the amount recognised in 2023 of the fees awarded when the
contracts for the Greater Lisbon and Douro Litoral Concessions were signed, which are deferred over the term

of these concessions.

Under the heading Concessions of use and licences, the rent relating to the Concession Contract for the
Operation of Assets in the Public Railway Domain and the Management of Assets in IP's Private Domain
signed with |P Patriménio stands out, amounting to € 7,512 thousand (€ 6,011 thousand in 2022).

With regard to gains on the sale of waste/used materials, the most significant figure relates to the sale of
ferrous waste totalling € 7,039 thousand (2022: € 2,871 thousand).

The Telecommunications item includes the value of the Sub-concession Contract for the Operation of the
Telecommunications Infrastructure integrated in the Public Road and Railway Domain, entered into with IP
Telecom, which includes the current sub-concession for the operation of the telecommunications infrastructure
as well as the exploitation of the Road Technical Channel built or to be built under the administration and

management of IP.
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22. OTHER EXPENSES AND LOSSES

From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, other expenses

and losses are detailed as follows:

Road Activity Regulatory Fees 3177 2929
Indirect and other taxes 1227 1280
Other indemnities 521 760
Donations and contributions 652 643
Losses on inventories 649 569
Compensation for material damages 482 378
Irrecoverable debt 622 239
Other 631 603
Other expenses and losses 7960 7402

The amount recorded under the Road Activity Regulation Fees relates to the Road Infrastructure Regulation
Fee, which is due to the AMT — Autoridade da Mobilidade e dos Transportes, |.P (note 26.2).

Indirect taxes and other fees include, among others, the fee for the land mobile service, fees paid to the
Portuguese Environment Agency, municipal property tax, stamp duty on civil liability, motor vehicle, health and

labour accident insurance.
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23. GAINS/(LOSSES) ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

See accounting policies 2.2.3 and 2.2.4.

The breakdown of income/(expenses) with subsidiaries for the periods ended 31 December 2023 and 31

December 2022 is as follows:

Dividends from subsidiaries 26.3 2792 3669
(Increase) / Reversal of impairments 4 2649 399
Gains / (Losses) from applying MEP* in subsidiaries - 60 9

5382 4077

* Equity method
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24. FINANCIAL LOSSES AND GAINS

From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, financial losses

and gains are detailed as follows:

Financial losses 245 300 250 416
Interest paid: 235 686 240 619
Borrowings 70010 65 983
Sub-concessions 165 569 174 407
Leases 103 208
Other interest paid 4 21

Other financial losses 9614 8797
Financial gains 63 351 59 216
Other interest earned 1 1
Interest earned - State Grantor 12.2.1 63 350 59 214
Financial results -181 949 -191 200

Interest on borrowings increased due to the rise in interest rates associated with variable rate loans (3-month
Euribor). This item includes the interest incurred on debt relating to the High-Performance Road, Rail

Infrastructure Investment and Rail Infrastructure Management business segments.

The reduction in financial results compared to 2022 is essentially due to the decrease in interest on sub-

concessions, as a result of the reduction in debt to sub-concessionaires.

Other financial losses, in addition to bank commissions, also include the costs incurred with the guarantee fee

provided by the Portuguese state, and specialisation of the costs associated with bond issues.
The policy of refinancing the debt stock through capital increase operations is maintained.

The interest earned item, which includes the interest charged to the grantor State (note 12.2.1.), which is
calculated on the basis of the same financing conditions as the long-term infrastructure investment activity,

increased due to the rise in interest rates associated with variable rate loans (3-month Euribor).
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25. INCOME TAX

See accounting policy 2.2.8.

The breakdown of the tax amount for the year recognised in the Separate Comprehensive Income Statement
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

Impact on the comprehensive income statement

Current income tax 1917 - 3209
Deferred income tax 8 -44 643 36178
-42726 4085

The tax rate used to determine the amount of tax for the year in the financial statements is as follows:

_“

Nominal tax rate 21.00 % 21.00 %
Municipal surcharge - 1.25%
State surcharge (1) - 751 %
Income tax 21.00 % 29.76 %
Deductible temporary differences in the period 21.00 % 31.25%
Temporary differences during the period in force of the ICE 21.00 % -
Temporary differences post period in force of the ICE (1) 31.25% -
Tax losses 21.00 % -

(1) 3% on taxable income between € 1.5 million and € 7.5 million / 5% son taxable income between € 7,5 million and € 35 million
/ 9% when taxable income exceeds € 35 million.
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The reconciliation of the effective tax rate for the periods under review is shown below:

e tax | | |

CIT - Nominal rate + Municipal state surcharge + State surcharge -2100 -5030 -3125 -13656
State surcharge - Amount to be deducted / added - - 365 1585
Tax losses and RETGS benefits 7.05 1689 114 498
Corrections of previous years estimates 025 -60 04 -105
Deductible permanent differences 6504 15579 339 1482
Deductible permanent tax differences -2.88 -691 24 - 981
Subcapitalisation 8 6189 -14823 3634 15882
Tax rate difference 8 -16236  -38889 - -
SIFIDE 068 163 - -
Autonomous taxation 278 -pR5 144 -6830
CIT - Effective Rate -178.38 -42726 935 4085

The table above highlights the effects of the ICE benefit, both because of the benefit itself (-€ 14,414 thousand
included in deductible permanent differences) and because of the effect of regularising the bases of tax
differences arising from the prospect of tax losses during the ICE period, as explained in notes 2.3 and 8,
which amounted to € 38,889 thousand.

With regard to Undercapitalisation, in both years the variation is fundamentally explained by the impact of the

non-acceptance of net financing costs for tax purposes.

Since 2021, these net financing costs have been considered a temporary difference, and the expected future
deduction of these costs is estimated in accordance with Company's Business Plan and Budget, when this

estimate is updated and revised.

The evolution of these costs reflects the expectation that the weight of the Company's financial results will
decrease in the future, either by maintaining the policy of financing debt service (interest and capital) through

capital increases, or by the expected decreases in interest on sub-concessions.
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The amounts of net financing costs accrued in previous periods, respective expiry periods and expected

recovery amounts are presented below.

Last year of
—

2018 2023 23245

2019 2024 40 985

2020 2025 97 664 3781

2021 2026 55785 19597

2022 2027 26 364 26 364

2023 2028 38 864 38 864
282 907 88 606
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26.1. SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTIES
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Entities identified as related parties of IP eat 31 December 2023 and 2022, under the provisions of IAS 24 —

Related parties, are as follows:

: % holding % holding

Subsidiaries
IP Engenharia Field 98.4300% 98.4300 %
IP Patriménio Field 99.9968% 89.9968 %
IP Telecom Field 100.0000%  100.0000 %
Associate companies
Feﬁg’fé(n%‘?“"" de:Uompeskhans Significant influence 316500%  31.6500 %
Joint operations
AVEP - 50.0000 % 50.0000 %
AEIE CFM4 - 25.0000 % 25.0000 %
Public entities
AMT Regulatory entity - -
Portuguese State (*) Shareholder / Grantor - -
CP Control relationship - State (Railway operator) - -

Members of governing bodies

(*) Strictly speaking
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26.2. SIGNIFICANT BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH PUBLIC
ENTITIES

IP is wholly owned by the Portuguese State, the shareholder function being carried out by the Directorate-
General for Treasury and Finance and jointly supervised by the Ministry of Infrastructure and the Ministry of

Finance.

The balances with the State and Public Entities for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December

2022 are detailed as follows:

BALANCES RECEIVABLE
Grantor State - Account Receivable 12.21 4907 716 4 474 940
Other accounts receivable 190 892 111 641
Accounts receivable for accrued income 190 892 111 641
Compensatory Allowances 1224 96 954 31549
RSC 1224 93938 80092
5098 608 4 586 581

BALANCES PAYABLE

Loans 2 332 667 2 332 667
Segments - Shareholder 12.3.2 2332 667 2332667
Other accounts payable 0 1602
Creditors for accruals 0 1602
RSC - 1602

2332667 2334269
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Below are the transactions carried out with the State and Public Entities from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 and from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022:

_“

Rendered services 672 361 697 700
RSC 15. 641731 665 501
State Grantor - Revenue LDI 15. 30630 32199

Compensatory Allowances 16. 65 405 55 055
State 65 405 55055

Financial income 63 350 59 214
Interest earned - State Grantor 24. 63 350 59 214

External supplies and services 0 13 310
Collection expenses - RSC - 13310

Other expenses 3177 2929

TRIR 22. 3177 2929
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26.3. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH SUBSIDIARIES

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, balances with subsidiaries were made up as follows:

BALANCES RECEIVABLE

Borrowings granted 122.2 10 805 10 805
IP Patriménio 10 805 10 805
Trade receivables 1223 2486 1817
IP Patriménio 2484 1816

IP Telecom 2 1
Other accounts receivable 2067 4 836
Shareholders 12.24 1037 1737
IP Telecom 894 761

IP Engenharia 143 975
Accounts receivable for accrued income 12.24 1031 3100
IP Patriménio 914 1659

IP Engenharia 90 103

IP Telecom 27 1337

15 358 17 458
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BALANCES PAYABLE

Trade payables 1233 2807 1338
IP Patriménio 2029 584

IP Engenharia 390 -

IP Telecom 389 754
Other accounts payable 1234 4270 5392
Suppliers of investment 542 181

IP Engenharia 537 181

IP Telecom 4 -
Shareholders 1552 1945

IP Patriménio 1552 1945
Creditors for accruals 1234 1808 2998

IP Engenharia - 230

IP Patriménio f 1155

IP Telecom 1808 1614

Other accounts payable 368 267

IP Telecom 361 267

IP Engenharia 7 -
Deferred liabilities 0 72
IP Telecom - 72

7077 6 801
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The transactions carried out with subsidiaries from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 are shown below:

_“

Investments 3500 2796
IP Engenharia 3107 2796
IP Telecom 393 -
Rendered services 143 165
IP Patriménio a7 85
IP Engenharia 46 -
IP Telecom - 79
Other income 14 581 12477
IP Patriménio 8425 6 856
IP Telecom 6120 5563
IP Engenharia 36 58
Dividends received 23 2792 3669
IP Telecom 1800 1300
IP Patriménio 500 1308
IP Engenharia 492 1061
External supplies and services 6839 7427
IP Telecom 6472 6170
IP Engenharia 346 157
IP Patriménio 21 1101
Personnel expenses 0 1
IP Telecom - 1
Other expenses - 62 66
IP Engenharia - 66 65
IP Telecom 5 1

Significant transactions occurred intra group concern mainly the following services rendered / received:

Investments / IP Engenharia - Development of studies and projects, management, coordination and

supervision and consultancy services.
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Other income / IP Patriménio - concession contract between |IP and IP Patriménio, whereby IP Patrimonio is
entrusted the responsibility to manage and exploit the assets on the railway public domain not allocated to the

railway operation and assets of the Private Domain.

Other income / IP Telecom - Shared services protocol and concession contract for telecommunications

infrastructure, equipment, networks and related and support systems in force.

Supplies and services / IP Telecom - maintenance services, within the framework of the sub-concession, for
the maintenance and availability of communication services and use of the optical fibre on public railway and

road domain.
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26.4. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RAILWAY OPERATORS

The balances with the railway operator as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are detailed below:

_ m M-12-31

BALANCES RECEIVABLE
Trade receivables 12.2.3 4138 3330
Other accounts receivable 1224 7427 8 679
Accounts receivable for accrued income 7427 8679
11 565 12 009

BALANCES PAYABLE

Suppliers 12.3.3 1548 2421
Other accounts payable 1548 287
Creditors for accruals 12.3.4 155 238
Surety bonds 54 49
Investment Suppliers 1339 -
3096 2707
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Below is a breakdown of transactions with railway i operators for the periods 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 and 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022:

Investment 4 563 3638
4563 3638

Rendered Services 63 787 70711
Other income 4 240
63791 70951

Supplies and services 2441 2136
Personnel expenses 1191 1249
Other expenses 24 252
3656 3637

Significant transactions with the railway operator concern mainly the following services rendered / received:

The amounts under the investment heading are the result of road overflows following various

works/repairs/refurbishments on the railway line, rendering it unusable.

The majority of services provided relate to the use of the railway infrastructure, traction power for substations,

parking for rolling stock, the use of stations and aprons and utilities consumption.

Supplies and services essentially include the supply of electricity, maintenance of railway vehicles and

equipment and the provision of services relating to the Relief Train under the CP/IP Protocol.

The amount shown in personnel expenses relates to the transport concessions invoiced pursuant to the “Use

of CP transport by former REFER workers and beneficiaries” agreement;
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26.5. JOINT OPERATIONS

The following are the impacts of jointly controlled ventures on IP’s Financial Statements at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022:

Assets 122 130
Liabilities = 7

Rendered services - .
Profit/(Loss) for the period/year = 26
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26.6. REMUNERATION OF CORPORATE OFFICERS

GENERAL ASSEMBLY BOARD

Chairman: (*)

Vice-Chairman: (**) Paulo Miguel Garcés Ventura
Secretary: Maria Isabel Louro Caria Alcobia

(*) The former Chairman of the Board of the General Meeting resigned on 24 January 2020 and was not yet

replaced.
(**) The Vice-Chairman of the Board of the General Meeting resigned on 19 December 2022.

The members of the Board of the General Meeting were elected for the three-year period 2018-2020 and hold

their respective positions without remuneration.

EXECUTIVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EBD's composition for the period 1 January to 31 July 2023
Chairman: Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz
Vice-Chairman: Carlos Alberto Jodo Fernandes e Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida

Members: Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira (**), Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa and Isabel
Mota da Silva Coelho (*)

(*) Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho resigned as a member of the Executive Board of Directors and left office
on 31 March 2023.

(**) Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira resigned as a member of the Executive Board of Directors and
left office on 31 July 2023.

The terms of the mandate and the remuneration scheme associated with the exercise of the positions were

established at the general meeting of 26 August 2022.
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EBD's composition for the period 1 August to 31 December 2023

Chairman: Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz.

Vice-Chairman: Carlos Alberto Joao Fernandes and Maria Amélia Freire de Almeida.
Members: Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa and Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel (*)

(***) Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel was elected financial officer by unanimous written decision of 1 August
2023, with effect from 1 August 2023, replacing Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho, who left office on 31 March
2023.

The terms of office and the remuneration status associated with holding office were established at the General
Meeting held on 26 August 2022 (Minutes of General Meeting no. 06/2022) and, in the case of the member of
the EBD, Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel, are set out in the Unanimous Written Corporate Resolution of 1

August 2023, referring, with regard to the remuneration status, to the Minutes of General Meeting no. 06/2022.

As the remuneration status has been defined, the 5% reduction provided for in article 12 of Law 12-A/2010, of

30 June, was applied to the gross amounts calculated for the year 2023.
IP did not pay any variable performance bonus to its managers.

The accumulation of functions by the Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors, Miguel Jorge de Campos
Cruz, is authorised under the terms and pursuant to the provisions of article 20(3)(c) of the EGP, for the

exercise of teaching activity in public higher education establishments or in the public interest.
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The annual remuneration of the members is as follows:

(Figures in Euro)

Employer's Employer’s
Remuneration Welfare Remuneration Welfare
Contributions Contributions

Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz 108 509 25308 36 506 8 556
Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida 97 979 22777 34 341 8036
Carlos Alberto Jodo Fernandes 97 810 22777 94 188 21943
Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa 87 238 20 247 83 861 19 504
Vanda Cristina Loureiro Soares Nogueira 70 457 16437 83793 19 504
Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel 34 365 7990 - -
Ana Isabel Mota da Silva Coelho 23442 5409 29 331 6845
José Saturnino Sul Serrano Gordo - - 78121 18 248
Alberto Manuel de Almeida Diogo - - 53 560 12 584
Anténio Carlos Laranjo da Silva - - 28 413 6714

519799 120 945 522 114 121 935

GENERAL AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

The remuneration of the members of the General and Supervisory Board, which comprises a Committee for

Financial Matters, was defined at the General Meeting of 28 August 2015.

Thus, following a request to this effect, Duarte Manuel Ivens Pita Ferraz has been in office without pay due to

his retirement since July 2017.

José Emilio Coutinho Garrido Castel-Branco did not receive any remuneration until October 2022, the date on
which he ceased to be a public manager of another Public Business Sector entity, and the payment of his

remuneration is therefore resumed from that date.

Since 26 October 2022, José Emilio Coutinho Garrido Castel-Branco has held the remunerated position of
Chairman of the Financial Matters Committee of the General and Supervisory Board, earning 30% of the

monthly remuneration of the Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors currently in office.
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[Figures in Euro)

oner s Employer‘s
Remunerati Welfare Remuneration Welfare
Contributions Contributions

José Emilio Coutinho Garrido Castel-Branco 25 007 5502

25007 0 5502 0

In accordance with article 391, no. 4 of the Commercial Companies Code, approved by Decree-Law no.
262/86, of 2 September, by reference to article 435, no. 2 of the same Code, the members of the General and
Supervisory Board remain in office until they are reappointed, so since there was no reappointment when the
members of the other statutory bodies were elected, there was no change to the elected members of the

General and Supervisory Board.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

With regard to the Statutory Auditor, the general meeting of 19 March 2019 (Minutes of the General Meeting
03/2019) set the maximum limit for the fees to be awarded for this position at 35% of the overall remuneration

of the Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors, plus VAT at the legal rate in force.

(Figures in Euro)

| axz___| a2 |

Vitor Almeida & Associados, SROC, Lda. 35773 35773
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27. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

New standards, interpretations and amendments, effective from 1%t January 2023
IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts (Commission Regulation 2021/2036 of 19 November 2021)

IFRS 17 solves the comparison issue created by IFRS 4 requiring all insurance contracts to be accounted for
in a consistent manner, thus benefiting both investors and insurance companies. Insurance obligations are
now accounted for using current values instead of historic cost. Information is updated on a regular basis,

providing useful information to users of the financial statements.

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2023.

This change had no impact on the Company.

Amendments to IAS 12— Income tax: International tax reform - Pillar 2 Model Rules (Commission
Regulation 2023/2468 of 8 November 2023)

The amendments to IAS 12 give entities temporary relief in accounting for deferred taxes arising from the

OECD's new international tax reform, introducing:

*» atemporary exemption from accounting for deferred taxes arising in jurisdictions that implement global
tax rules. This will help ensure consistency in the financial statements while facilitating the
implementation of these same rules; and

e specific disclosure requirements to help investors better understand the entity's exposure to the
income taxes that will result from this reform, especially before the legislation implementing these rules

comes into force.

Entities will be able to benefit from this temporary exemption immediately, but are required to provide

disclosures to investors for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

This change had no impact on the Company.
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Amendments to IAS 1 and to IAS 8 (Commission Regulation 2022/357 of 02 March 2022)

o The changes to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their material accounting policy information instead
of its significant accounting policies.
e The changes to IAS 8 clarify how entities should distinguish between accounting policies and

accounting estimates. This distinction is important because changes in accounting estimates are
applied prospectively only to future transactions and other events, but changes in accounting policies

are generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and other events.

Applicable to financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early adoption permitted.

The amendment to IAS 1 was applied to the Company and its effects can be seen in notes 2.2 and 2.3.

Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred taxes related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction
(Commission Regulation 2022/1392 of 11 August 2022)

IAS 12 grants an exemption to entities from recognising deferred taxes when they result from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities. However, there was some uncertainty as to whether this exemption would
apply to transactions such as lease contracts and decommissioning obligations in which entities
simultaneously recognise both an asset and a liability. This amendment clarifies that the exemption from initial
recognition does not apply to these transactions in which equal amounts of taxable and deductible differences
result from initial recognition and, therefore, entities must recognise the deferred tax associated with such

transactions.

Applicable to financial years beginning on ar after 1 January 2023, with early adoption permitted.

This change had no impact on the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 17: Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative information
(Commission Regulation 2022/1491 of 8 September 2022)

IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 have different transition requirements. For some insurers, these differences may cause
accounting mismatches between the financial assets and liabilities of insurance contracts in the comparative
information that is presented in their financial statements when IFRS 9 and IFRS 17 are applied for the first
time. This amendment, by introducing an option for the presentation of comparative information about financial
assets, helps insurers to avoid these temporary accounting mismatches and thus increase the usefulness of

comparative information for investors.
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Applicable to financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2023, this amendment may only be applied when

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are initially applied.

This change had no impact on the Company.

New standards, interpretations and amendments effective as of or following 01 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current and non-current liabilities

with covenants (Commission Regulation 2023/2822 of 19 December 2023)

These amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, clarify the requirements that an entity
applies to determine whether a liability is classified as current or non-current. These amendments, in nature,
are only intended to be a reduction in scope, clarifying the requirements of IAS 1, and not a modification of the

underlying principles.
Applicable to financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2024 retrospectively, in accordance with IAS 8.
This amendment will have no material impact on the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease liabilities in a sale and leaseback (Commission Regulation 2023/2579
of 20 November 2023)

The IASB issued a limited scope amendment to the requirements for sale and leaseback transactions included
in IFRS 16 Leases, adding to the existing requirements explanations on how an entity accounts for the sale

and leaseback transaction after the date of the respective transaction.

IFRS 16 includes requirements on how an entity should account for a sale and leaseback transaction on the
date the transaction takes place. However, IFRS 16 did not specify how such a transaction should be measured
after that date.

The amendments now issued add to the sale and leaseback requirements of IFRS 16, thus supporting a

consistent application of this accounting standard.

These amendments do not change the accounting for other leases that do not result from a sale and leaseback

transaction.
The amendments are effective from 1 January 2024.

This change will be analysed by the Company.
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Standards (new or revised) issued by the IASB and interpretations issued by the IFRIC and not yet

endorsed by the European Union

Additionally, as of the date of approval of these financial statements the following standards and interpretations

were issued by IASB, though they are not yet endorsed by the European Union:

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Financing Arrangements with Suppliers (issued by the IASB on 25
May 2023)

The amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 introduce new disclosure requirements to increase the transparency of
financing arrangements with suppliers and their effects on an entity's liabilities, cash flows and exposure to

liquidity risk, complementing the requirements already in the IFRS and requiring an entity to disclose:

e the respective terms and conditions;

o the amount of the liabilities that form part of the agreements, itemising the amounts for which
suppliers have already received payment from lenders and indicating where these liabilities
appear on the balance sheet;

s payment due date ranges; and

e information on liquidity risk.

Supplier financing arrangements are often referred to as supply chain financing, accounts payable financing

or reverse factoring arrangements.

Applicable to financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2024, these changes are still subject to the

endorsement process by the European Union.

This change will be analysed by the Company.

Amendments to IAS 21 - Lack of interchangeability (issued by the IASB on 15 August 2023)

On 15 August, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 21 entitled "Lack of Exchangeability”. This amendment
resulted from the fact that IAS 21, until now, did not include any explicit requirements for determining the
exchange rate to be applied when a given foreign currency cannot be exchanged for other currencies, leading

to a diversity in the practical treatment that was applied in these situations.
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The amendments now introduced essentially include the following:

e The requirements for assessing when a currency is exchangeable into other currencies and when it is
not exchangeable;

o The requirements for determining the spot exchange rate when a given currency is not exchangeable
in other currencies;

o The additional disclosure requirements applicable when an entity makes estimates about the spot
exchange rate because the currency is not exchangeable in other currencies;

o Application guides to assist entities in assessing whether or not a currency is exchangeable in other
currencies and estimating the spot exchange rate when it is not exchangeable;

o |llustrative examples; and

* Amendments to IFRS 1 - First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards to align

the requirements related to severe hyperinflation with those of the current amendments to IAS 21.

Applicable to financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2025, these changes are still subject to the

endorsement process by the European Union.

This change will be analysed by the company and no significant impacts are expected from its implementation.
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28. GUARANTEES AND SURETIES

As of 31 December 2023 the liabilities for bank guarantees totalled € 1,518,657 thousand (2022: € 1,365,746

thousand), broken down as follows:

¢ Guarantees in the amount of € 1,513,905 thousand (2022: € 1,360,994 thousand) provided in favour
of the Tax Authority arising from the VAT procedure (note 10);

e Guarantees in the amount of € 4,752 thousand (2022: € 4,752 thousand) provided in favour of courts

as part of litigation proceedings and to other entities.
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29. CONTINGENCIES

See accounting policy 2.2.12.

According to current legislation, tax returns are subject to review and correction by the tax authorities for a
period of four years (five years for Social Security) except when there have been tax losses, tax benefits have
been granted or inspections, claims or challenges are in progress, in which case, depending on the
circumstances, the deadlines are extended or suspended. The Executive Board of Directors, based on
information from its tax advisers, believes that any tax contingencies will not have a material impact on the
Financial Statements as at 31 December 2023, taking into account the provisions set up and existing

expectations as of this date, including the judicial claim relating to the VAT dispute.

PENDING LAWSUITS

As of 31 December 2023 pending lawsuits concerning railway expropriations totalled € 32,324thousand (2022:
€ 51,741 thousand). This amount has no impact on the Statement of Financial Position. In these cases, but
only when figures are established by the court, deposits are made in the name of the court where the
proceedings are being heard. The deposits are equivalent to the value of the case and are in the custody of
the Caixa Geral de Depdésitos bank. Their resolution does not result in an expense for the Company, rather for

the Grantor of the railway infrastructures.

The Company has pending lawsuits relating to railway accidents occurred on the railway infrastructures under
management and for damages caused to third-party property. These lawsuits are covered by IP's activity

insurance.
SUBSIDIES/GRANTS

The subsidies allocated to the (road) concession were awarded in accordance with the eligibility conditions
applicable to the respective applications, although they are subject to audits and possible correction by the
competent authorities. In the case of applications for Community grants, these corrections may occur over a

period of five years from payment of the balance.

n the case of subsidies allocated to railway investment activity on behalf of the Grantor, the refund is only

reflected in the Grantor's account - State - account receivable.
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30. COMMITMENTS

IP’s commitments are primarily the responsibility of its obligation to meet the commitments made in the Road
Sub-concession Contracts and the substitution of the State in its payments and receipts of the concessioned

road network.

IP's net costs with State Road Concessions and Subconcessions, including toll revenues after the end of the
State Concession Contracts with the private partners, which are IP's revenues, in accordance with the
Concession Contract, at constant prices and including VAT, according to the figures sent to the Directorate-
General for the Treasury and Finance, which served as the basis for the figures presented in the corresponding

table in the 2024 State Budget Report, are summarised in the following table:

Concessions and Sub-concessions

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

expenses (EM)
Gross expenses 1396 1174 1062 981 881 781 648 574 405
Revenues - 394 -545 - 413 - 819 - 554 - 512 - 408 - 299 - 239
Net expenses 1002 630 649 162 328 269 240 276 166
Concessions and Sub-concessions 0,3 3934 2935 2035 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041

expenses (EM)
Gross expenses 318 306 249 174 148 168 42 13 0
Revenues - 205 -207 - 209 - 200 - 167 - 179 - 25 -8 0
Net expenses 112 100 40 - 26 - 19 -1 17 5 0

Source: 2024 State Budget Report

According to the 2024 State Budget Report:

"With regard fo the figures for the road partnerships shown in the table above, the budget forecasts were based
on the contracts in force, and do not take into account expectations of the results of ongoing negotiation

proceedings or pending litigation.

With regard to the Douro Interior, Litoral Oeste and Baixo Tejo sub-concession contracts, the forecasts for the
respective net costs do not include, as in previous budget years, the so-called contingent compensation -

which will not be paid, in line with the position expressed by the Court of Auditors in this regard.

Compared to the forecast in the State Budget Report for 2023, there has been an increase in the estimated

net costs, which is the resulf of an increase in gross costs, partially mitigated by an increase in revenue. The
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increase in gross charges can be seen (i) in payments for availability and service - with the growth in the
inflation rates considered and road traffic contributing to this increase (the latter only impacts payments for
service) -, (ii) in the cost of major repairs - with an estimated multi-year investment higher than in the previous
year - and (iii) in the cost of the toll collection service - a consequence of the increase in inflation and traffic,
as well as renegotiations in the Algarve and Norte Litoral concessions, the aim of which was to reduce IP's

operating risk."
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INFORMATION REQUIRED BY LAW

Under article 21(1) of Decree-Law 411/91 of 17 October, the Company confirms that it does not have

any Social Security payments in arrears. or overdue debts to the Tax Administration.

Impact of IP's activity on the National Accounts and Public Accounts (Basis 12, number 3, paragraph
c) of Decree-Law no. 110/2009 of 18 May).

i National accounts:

After consulting with the National Statistics Institute ("INE"), it is considered that all IP's accounting
items have a direct impact on the national accounts. All flows between I[P and units outside the General
Government perimeter shall have a direct impact on general government aggregates (deficit and/or
debt), such impact and the magnitude thereof depending on the operations in question. By way of
example, when IP earns interest from financial applications outside the public administration perimeter,
it contributes positively to the balance of public administrations. When IP pays for services provided
by entities outside the public administration perimeter, it is increasing public expenditure, and
consequently the deficit; if IP borrows from the financial sector or the Rest of the World, it is increasing
public debt.

Due to the nature of the national accounts system, the estimate of the impact of a single unit should
only be taken as indicative. In so far as this is an integrated system, in order to demonstrate the
underlying economic relations in a more explicit way, the national accounts methodology establishes
that the operations of a unit or set of units are sometimes subject to transformations and the analytical

effect of which only makes sense within the broader scope of the accounts.

ii. Public accounts:

Financial reporting on a public accounts basis uses the so-called cash basis where financial flows -

payments and receipts - are registered

IP is included in the Reclassified Public Entities on an equal standing with the Autonomous Services

and Funds, thus becoming integrated in the State Budget universe.



2023 Annual Report "

Il Separate Financial Statements and Notes Infraestruturas
I.327 de Porlugal

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Table | shows IP's forecast financial flows as at 31 December 2023, bearing in mind the commitments already
made by the Company. Note that compliance with the PRN 2000 requires making investments during the
period of EP's Concession Contract, the financial inflows and outflows of which are not taken into account in

the following table. Annual net income, annual borrowing requirements, dividends payable and income tax

(IRC) were all forecast.



qodbuers Moy YSeo & oy DSy ey jo toleads yinoa) (e (o) 41 jo juetitifistios SMOogLL pUE [SpUspiil g puk jusy Uassacio 110 smopino %305 _Eaagmﬂm 8, off o (2)

an.ﬁﬂm MOfY tSED B (oA (q)

‘Bloou) jeu sdeed eu wey junowe eubiy B Joj jou ylinoy] ‘spuspinip se

peingusip aq Aeiit jgep o wstidedes Butmojio; Sigefiene Mog YSE BUT B} PEUINSSE §i Il 'In0 PalUEd jou sen esiieXe LojoLIsas Ainbe et sotis pue "o sefiaioe esajiof (&)

6/9¢2) 2) (o7} 296 1) (990 852 1) (== (481 0% J) (6109z2) 06 FZ9 BI0SEY () 9JE1S BU UM SMoO|) |ejouEUY
(958 ¥5/) (zr0 80 (622 259) (ogz 8.9 (czeelg) [zgl 1£2) (cor e (281 ) (@) (11D) xey awoau| ajelodion
/BB EER | B9Z R9L | 125519} QL 12k b B A" " S0 %05 = = () ajqefed spuapialq
o s = - - - #0075/ LGOS | sjuawalinbal Bulmoliog [enuly
887 116 | 961 818 | 196 /98 | 8 6% | LIGBEZ | 08y 85 Fe9 89 g6 auWoau| 3N
802 6l0z 5902 5502 5Kz Senz 5202 vZ0z

Lja 'seaud JuaLine je seinb|4

NOILLYWHO ANI ONIMOOT-aN YMHO 4

(zee£989) (45 p6Y §) (202 820 1) (g5 9082) (ezz 8r6 1) (orogge) B9 Br9 044 2b9 () 9335 9L LM SMOJ} |e1oUBUL
(941 ger ) (0s/286 1) (627 687 1) (49,880 1) | (oesEB) | Lg) e (cs6 68 (08 £2) (@ (112) x&3 awoau| ajelodion
|E£9/09 ZES V6 b LAY %628/92 BOEEVE | 126 009 = # ) a|qeAed spuaplalQ
= = = - - - zZ/0E8) e /5| spuawalnbal Buimolioq enuuy
B8l r% 9 bpg 160G 6. 0E8E £r/89/C 8106002 T EEL iyt 188k awoau| 3N
7802 5102 5902 5502 " | stoz "+ | senz 5202 2oz

Uiz seoud ualno je sainbi4

NOLLYWHOANI ONIMOOT-aY YMHO 4

S9j0N
Hoday

seJnjnysaeu|

wsmog ap | 8ZEN

b&

lenuuy £202

PUE sjUaWAIEYS [BloUELl 4 Ajeledas ||



ssalBoud Uy peaids )| UiejU0a 0} Uaye] sainsesll pue gspued a0UB(E [BIOUBLY JO UaLiBEISU|EY (| Ipusosy) Jodaju| oanog

) sefileyo anlie|sibiel alioeds se fyjenb
ssalfioud U Asy) 'sjceye ollouoge-pajelal s)l pue owepued ey jo peeids goLe|eq |BlaUEUY O JUslUB]ElSUIEY {183y ole | oxeg
8y} alefijw /ueoo o} Ueye] SaunNseall aAjeljsiLWpe pue |efaT

‘pesyie|nBad Ajn) sea Lojienyis sy |20z Jequsides O pUe /Lo | Z0Z

BN | £ SEMLIOIM 1o} BLIIDESD U} 'SMp UOBIBLNLIB BULAZA O1P|Esd| Uoliesunilal jo wallAed eje| o} enp SiaLE Lo jsalalu)| LoljesaUniUal jo slAed aje| Lo jsaiaiu| olelualy oXeg

pasye|nfal Ainj se Uolenys ey |20z Jequieidag gl pue 2 ug 202

LIV € SO0} 8P 88D B3 '8P UoHEIBLnIUBI S LA 01 PBIELdl Uojjesauntual Jo etfed sje| o} anp SIeaLe Lo jsalaj| uojjelaLnwal jo uallAed sje| Uo jsaleiu| (X3 BUBUOUISUE| BPEIST-0)NY

‘(Uojssiw gnsal Bupmoljo) Lojsiaap Lojssilgns-Uow) Lojsioep
SIOJPNY Jo Wnog ey Jeje pawnsal sjuewhed (eadde wso ST Uo UojjeJauniual jo WslAed sje| o} enp Sleee Uo jsalaju| uojjelauUniua] jo juslAed sje) Uo jsaleil| (XX 3y} BUEWOWSUEI| EPEIST-0INY
Liojs|98p 10PNy o 1Nog 8u 1N 1sea) e ‘sjuawied pepuedsns 093 Sd

U03Ery{s BL 0 Yool jsenbay Bupelsusf j0e4 speu jsenbel jo edA ] E

.€20¢ lequiada(] g 0] dn pajilugns alam MwmwﬁUm._ 434 m_._:}___-O__OH_. ayl

‘sosde| 434 0} bl a|qissod pue aileind ay)
‘Buriinooo JusAe au) Jo sABp Og UIYIM SpeLU Jou SI Jusluajjijue Jo uoljealasal ay} JI 1By} pajou ag os|e p|noys }| ‘paniwigns aq ueo o ale suolieoidde 433 jey)

uoljeAlasal siy} Jale sl )| “43 Joj o|qibije si joe} Ulead e ey} SeAdljaq }i 1eyl d| wiojul o} sey i ‘e’ ‘,1ybll Jo UoljeAlasal, B SE UMOUY SI JeUMm 8}e|niulo) 0} sey

Apedisjunoo s d| ‘paniugns si (434) wnugiinba [eloueul Jo uonelo)sal 1o} jsenbal oljioads Aue alojag UaA® ‘SJOBIUOD UOISS8oU0ogNS 8U) JO SWid} 8y} Jepun

SLOVHLNOD
IDIAY3S ANV SNOISSIONOD-8NS NI SANI4 40 STvaddVY ANV (43¥) WNIRENIND3 TTVIONVYNIA 40 LNIWILVLSNIZY ¥0d SLS3and3y

‘SLHOIY 40 IAYISIY ‘NOILYSNIdWOD

S1OV4 INVATT3Y d3HLO ¢€

1ehnjog ep 62E
sajoN seJnjniIsaelju| PUE sjUaWAIEYS [BloUELl 4 Ajeledas ||
yoday .“ (enuuy 6207



'g8e0 ases-Ag-aseo e Lo pajmelal o Jaquwaseg Og 10 | 0z/a-9 Me Jo [eacidde o) juensind

panosdde aq |||m asaly pue ‘a|ifije se pejuasaid sasliadxs sU) pajdeste 4| S00Z/GZ OU MET O} Jusupuswy el el ul eBueys oyoeds BELERY IFPEU o e Ry |10} BHON - 8IA

Loj3BM|S aLp J0 49098 jsenba. Bupelsual Joe4 apew jsenbal joadA | Be.BYy Jop|Aolg 89jAIeS

(uoyapsin|
Mm_cmﬂln__j._ooo _._mo_Mmm.:_n_._d.omu_ﬁn%cm_u_om_w_wm._w ME _.n_uo___m_.mcmu_m_um.__uw m.mE .E F_m_E_:c_cm S A Uo|ssadlod-gng pelllojadal] Jo Uo|s! #MMM_CMO elo) ] aned
[efped Joj payse df L0js1oap UOYEGE B} j0 SAEp Gy JOUE SBGOBTE NS o 1o i yssioss ey 1oy sBupaso0:d Jo sdoos s Uiy oaunfuy  OISS30UOD-4NS PoLLIOJR) 8L} jo Lojssosal Ly [esoy] eAeBfy

pUE 'GE'GORTZO'LE 1588| 1B J0 UMOp papuel| S| Lojsioap [EUI 8y} |un 1o} sfiupaeaoid Jo adoas au LY Lojjauniuy

Jnowe Ao e srd 2y ‘€26'200'063 Aed 0} palspio d| oIsiaap ey

‘| Ag peyonu) suodacke

aU) passius|p sey | [(payene Lojs|oap) [BUNgL L (BIIGHY U JO Juspisald d| 0} elgeingue JOBIUOT (2101 anieBiy
sl Jo |eADWel al} pejsanbal Sey 4| AUM S Loium eungl] edigly Uoseas doj 'joenjUoD Uolssecuog-qng pawlojey o Uoljieus | Uo|ssacuog-ans pauliojgy Jo UoljeL|wle |
8y} Jo ped ey Lo ejpaul o} enp payjey usag =ey ing Bujpbuo s ssea sy

ssalfoud Uy syLeq Bujouew) Aq pesodoid jnsmes Insme| Lojestadwon |e1037 arlebiy

‘(Lojssiw gnsel BUmojo) Uojg(oap Lojssilgns-LoL) Lojs|oep
Sloypny 10 Unog aul Jale pelunsal siuswied eadde wgo gy Lo uopelsuntlal jo wawied sje| o) enp sigale Lo jsaieid)| UoljeraUniial jo usiliAed ale| Lo jsaaiu| {|d IpLassy) Jousiu| eyuld
Uo|sigsp SICHPAY 10 HNOZ 84} |IUn jsee) je 's)uaied papuadsns qg3 s

sefiLieyo aalie|s|Ba| aloeds s Ajenb
ssalfoudu)  Asy) !spoeye olwouosa-palejal s pue olspued ayy jo peaids S0LE[E] |E[OUELY JO JUBLUBIEISUEY (073%) e1sa [elol]
8} el ueloo o) Uaye) saunseall aajelisiuiwpe pue |ebaT

‘pas|ie|nBeu A nj sea Uojienys el |Z0z Jeqwieideg | pue / Up 20z

JSBNY | £ SEM oI 10} BUIIPEBP U} NP Lolieleuniua) suyAed o) pajies ] uojjelaunual jo e fed ale| o} 8np siealle Lo jsaleu| Uoljelaunwed jo ualiied eje| Lo jsalail)| {073y eisaq |elo)
‘(mepwil oo uo e obaLl
Jo dn Bujyss ey BujpseBa) Uojsiosp jueuieAc) Bujpusd 161020} 72 073y o) palasil) sadojs U| salfiojoyed o Jieda) (oS peuliojay L) eBueys [ieje|un Lo

pejep 138 lepel ‘el £z 1o ‘zZhoeshl 10 Ul paplaoid sBupsasoid e i (073 eisa0 el
poIo881 o| Deilfbed Wnowe Pl AZx ey oGe OHv/d| Usansq ‘saglads Jewo| /endienbalen - g7 @ sollanBalesyandy-60|  peseq) wnuginke (gjaUeUy jo JuswaeisuaY

SnsuasUoo S| esay] OISR o ‘D08 pewlojey Ul sBueyd |elsjeun

einung ap 0LEN
sajoN seJnjniIsaelju| PUE sjUaWAIEYS [BloUELl 4 Ajeledas ||
yoday .‘ (enuuy €207



2023 Annual Report "
Il Separate Financial Statements and Notes Infraestruturas
1.331 de Porlugal

COMPENSATIONS, RESERVATION OF RIGHTS AND REQUESTS FOR THE
REINSTATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL BALANCE IN STATE CONCESSIONS

In respect of State concessions that are negotiated by the State with the Concessionaires, IP is not a party
in the contracts, it is only aware of these situations through the representative of the State, the IMT As part
of its Concession Contract with the State, the IP Group may possibly be called upon to pay the reinstatement

of financial balance if the Grantor so decides.

In the 2023 financial year, IP recorded charges totalling € 64,757 thousand in co-payments, compensation

and rebalancing, of which the following stand out:

i Compensation to AUTO ESTRADA DO MARAO S A, totalling € 46,943 thousand, under the

terms of the Extra-Judicial Settlement Agreement relating to the Marao Tunnel Concession;

ii. Compensation to the concessionaire BRISAL-Auto-Estradas do Litoral, in the amount of €
15,743 thousand, relating to 2022 and 2023, under the terms of the Arbitration Court’s ruling of
15 April 2015;

iii. Compensation to the concessionaire AEDL - Auto-Estradas do Douro Litoral, in the amount of €
9,460 thousand, under the terms of the Arbitration Court's ruling of 7 February 2017;

iv. Implementation of Financial Rebalancing Agreement with Lusoponte, resulting in a balance of €
8,162 thousand favour of |P.

V. Reimbursement of the Road Infrastructure Regulation Fee (TRIR) and Electronic Transaction

Fee to the various concessionaires, totalling € 772 thousand.
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33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

See accounting policy 2.2.17

i) Share capital increase

According to Unanimous Shareholders' Resolution in Writing, dated 16 February 2024, it was decided to

increase |P's share capital by € 456,845 thousand, corresponding to 91,369 new shares.

According to Unanimous Shareholders' Resolution in Writing, dated 4 March 2024, it was decided to

increase |P's share capital by € 33,950 thousand, corresponding to 6,790 new shares.

According to Unanimous Shareholders' Resolution in Writing, dated 26 March 2024, it was decided to

increase IP's share capital by € 159,000 thousand, corresponding to 31,800 new shares..

ii) Ministerial order no. 418/2023, of 11 December - New system of discounts to be

applied to toll rates that comes into force on 1 January 2024

This decree regulates the reduction scheme applicable to the amount of tolls charged to users on the
sections and sub-sections identified in Decree-Law no. 111/2011, of 28 November (A22, A23, A24 and
A25), and on the sections and sub-sections of the A 4 - Mardo tunnel, A 4 - Vila Real-Bragancga
(Quintanilha), A 13 - Atalaia (A 23)-Coimbra Sul and A 13-1 motorways.

Although toll rates will be reduced by 65 per cent, the decree published here determines the end of the
modular system of discounts during the day (15 per cent and 35 per cent, depending on the ex-SCUT in
question) and also a 15 per cent reduction in the discounts currently provided for the aforementioned
sections of the A4, A13 and A13-1 (which are currently 55 per cent and will be reduced to 40 per cent)

during the night, on working days, public holidays and weekends

iii) Moratorium on state loans originating from the motorway

Under the terms of the Order of the Minister of Finance of 23 February 2024, IP was authorised to defer
the payment of the debt service on the loans granted by the Directorate-General for the Treasury and
Finance (DGTF) to IP, maturing on 30 November 2023, to 31 December 2024, at no additional cost.
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iv) New framework contract for the period 2024-2028

Council of Ministers Resolution no. 3/2024, of 5 January, authorises expenditure on the compensatory
allowances to be paid by the State to IP, for fulfilling the public service obligations of managing the railway
infrastructure, arising from the new railway programme contract, for the period 2024-2028. Each year, the

state will pay IP the sum of € 89,426 thousand (plus VAT at the legal rate in force).

v) International tender for the first section of the High-Speed Line

The international tender for the first section of the High-Speed Line (LAV) linking Lishon and Porto was
launched on 12 January 2024. Phase 1 comprises the section between Porto/Soure and has an estimated
investment of around 4,750 ME+VAT, with work scheduled to begin in 2025.

vi) CAM Ring — Concession Contract

The contract for the Design, Construction, Supply, Installation, Assembly and Entry into Operation of the
Submarine Fibre Optic Telecommunications Cable of the new CAM Ring (CAM - Mainland, Azores,
Madeira) was signed on 13 March 2024 between IP and Alcatel Submarine Networks (ASN).

vii) VAT proceedings

On 31 March 2024, the Almada Administrative and Tax Court handed down first instance judgements in
favour of IP for the 2013, 2015 and 2016 financial years.
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Almada, 23 April 2024

The Executive Board of Directors

Chairman  Miguel Jorge de Campos Cruz

Eiil:::tc;ifl fl\:ﬂ:ﬁ; ;0 Carmo Almiro do Vale Duarte ::ti]f;?;man Carles Alberio Jode Ferrandos
Vice':-- Maria Amalia Freire de Almeida
chairman
Member Alexandra Sofia Vieira Nogueira Barbosa
Certified Member Gina Maria dos Santos Pimentel

Accountant  Diogo Mendonga Lopes Monteiro
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BUDGETARY STATEMENTS AND ATTACHED ANNEXES
(Amounts in € thousand - €th)
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Current Revenue 542 871 95 969 0589 0000 0 000 639 429 564 112
R1  Taxrevenue 0 000 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R1.1 Direct taxes 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R1.2  Indirect taxes 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R2  Contributions to Social security, CGA and ADSE 0 000 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R3  Fees, fines and other penalties 399 648 0 000 0000 0000 0000 399 648 367 384
R4  Propety income 5341 0000 0000 0000 0000 5341 5257
R5  Current Transfers and Subsidies 0 000 95 969 0589 0000 0000 96 558 34 397
R5.1 Current Transfers 0000 95969 0589 0000 0000 96 558 34 397
R5.1.1 General Govemment 0 000 95 969 0000 0000 0000 95 869 33859
R5.1.1.1 Central Govemment - State 0 000 95 969 0000 0000 0000 95 969 33 859
R5.1.1.2 Central Government - other entities 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R5.1.1.3 Social security 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R5.1.14 Regional Administration 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
Rb.1:4.5 Local Govemment 0 000 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R5.1.2 Extemnal - EU 0 000 0000 0589 0000 0000 0589 0538
R5.1.3 Other 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R5.2 Current Subsidies 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
RB Sale of goods and services 132 852 0000 0000 0000 0000 132 852 153 161
Capital Revenue 8 805 587 362 266245 0000 0 000 862 413 B37 373
R8 Sale of investment goods 0 240 0000 0000 0000 0000 0240 10 404
RS Capital transfers and subsidies 0000 587 362 266245 0000 0000 853 608 818653
R9.1 Capital transfers 0 000 587 362 266245 0000 0000 853 608 818 653
R9.1.1 General Government 0000 587 362 0000 0000 0000 587 362 650 817
R9.1.1.1 Central Govemment - State 0000 587 362 0000 0000 0000 587 382 650 817
R9.11.2 Central Administration - other entities 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R%:113 Social security 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R9.1.14 Regional Administration 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R9.1.15 Local Govemment 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
R9.1.2 Extemnal - EU 0000 0000 266245 0000 0000 266 245 167 836
R9.13 Other 0 000 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
RY.2 Capital subsidies 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
Effective Revenue [2] 551 676 683 332 266834 0000 0000 1501842 1401485
Non effective revenue [3] 1595763 0000 0000 0000 0000 1595763 1439237
R12 Revenue from financial assets 161 248 0 000 0000 0000 0000 161 248 157 262
R13 Revenue from financial liabiities 143 515 0000 0000 0000 0000 1434515 1281975
Total [4]=[1]1+[2]*[3] 2176 742 712 200 267573 0000 0000 3156515 2875748
Treasury operations [B] 0000 0000 0000 0000 4 604 4 604 45103
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BUDGETARY PERFORMANCE STATEMENT AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
AND 31 DECEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

mmstn}
& -ﬂﬂl-ﬂ

Current Expenditure 553867 86162 561 949
D1 Personnel expenditure 102390 35030 0000 0 000 oooo :3? -szo 129 366
D11 Fixed and permanent remuneration 74755 25435 0000 0000 0000 100 190 93 441
D12 Vaniable or contingent bonuses 7351 2501 0000 0000 0000 9852 8485
D13 Social security 20 284 7094 0000 0000 0000 27 378 27 440
D2 Purchase of goods and services 341586 25995 0000 0000 0000 367 581 306 113
D3 Interest and other charges 81366 0000 0000 0000 0000 81366 75942
D4 Current transfers 1928 0000 0000 0000 0000 1928 2099
D41 General Govemment 0270 0000 0000 0000 0000 0270 0260
D4.1.1 Central Govemment - State 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D412 Central Govemment - other entitiess 0270 0000 0000 0000 0000 0270 0260
D413 Social security 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D414 Regional Administration 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D415 Regional Administration 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D42 Non-profit institutions 0 247 0000 0000 0000 0000 0247 0127
D43 Families 0024 0000 0000 0000 0000 0024 0038
D44 Other 1386 0000 0000 0000 0000 1386 1674
D5 Grants/Subsidies 0008 25137 0000 0000 0000 25145 0008
D8 Other currsnt expenditure 26 588 0000 0000 0000 0000 26 588 48 421

Capital Expenditure 1269570 588913 255024 0000 0000 2113507 198429
D7 Capital expenditure 1269470 588913 255024 0000 0000 2113407 1962569
D8 Capital transfers 0100 0000 0000 0000 0000 0100 1727
D8.1 General Govemment 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D8.1.1 Central Govemment - State 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D8.1.2 Central Administration - other entities 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D813 Social security 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D8.14 Regional Administration 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D815 Local Administration 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D82  Non-profit institutions 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D83 HousFamiliessholds 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D84 Other 0100 0000 0000 0000 0000 0100 1721
D9 Other capital expenditure 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000

Effective Expense [5] 1823437 675075 255024 0000 0000 2753536 2526244

effective expenditure [6] 359 220 0000 0000 0000 0000 359 220 290 594
D10 Expenses with financial assets 200 200 0000 0000 0000 0000 200 200 161 248
D11 Expenses with financial iabilties 159 020 0000 0000 0000 0000 159 020 129 345

Total [T]=[5]+[2]*[6] 2182658 675075 255024 0000 0000 3112756 2816838

Treasury operations [C] 0000 0000 0000 0000 0462 0 482 0693

Balance to be forwarded 5915 37125 12549 0000 18708 62 468 73478
Budgetary operations [8]=[4]-{7] 5915 37125 12549 0000 0000 43759 58910
Treasury operations [D] = [A[+[BHC] 0000 0000 0000 0000 18709 18709 14 566
Overall Balance [2] - [5] 4271762 8257 11810 0000 0000 -1251694 1124760

Primary expenditure 1742071 675075 255024 0000 0000 2672170 2450302
Current balance -10 997 9808 0589 0000 0000 -0 600 2163
Capital balance 1260765 1550 11222 0000 0000 -1251004 1126923
Primary balance -1 190 395 8257 11810 0000 0000 -1170328 -1048818
Overall Revenue [1] + [2] + [3] 2176742 712200 267573 0000 0000 3156515 2875748
Overall Expenditure [5] + [6] 2182658 675075 255024 0000 0000 3112756 2816838

The overall balance for 2023 shows a deterioration of € 126.6 million over the same period of 2022
and translates an implementation rate of 84% in relation to the 2023SB.

Public-Private Partnerships (PPPs), financial expenses and investments were the main expenditure
components responsible for a deficit of € 1,251.7 million which, when added to debt repayments, led
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to borrowing requirements of € 1,433 million, which were met through capital appropriations totalling
€ 1,434.5 million.

IP ended the year with a €22 million increase in the management balance, justified by the receipt of
the €12.2 million pre-funding concerning the application to the CEF Digital programme relating to the
replacement of the submarine cable system between the Mainland and the Autonomous Regions of
Madeira and the Azores (CAM Ring) and also around €8.2 million relating to the remainder of the €25
million subsidy received in 2023 to cover the damage caused by the storms of December 2022 and
January 2023.

As far as REVENUE is concerned, the positive deviation of € 280.8 million compared to the same
period last year stands out, essentially due to the € 152.5 million increase in capital appropriations,
but also as a result of the following impacts:

CURRENT REVENUE

An increase of € 32.3 million in toll revenue as a result of the growth in traffic;

Receipt of tax revenue totalling € 25 million, relating to Order 136/2023/SET of 3 April 2023,

intended to restore traffic and safety conditions on roads and railways following the damage

caused by the storms of December 2022 and January 2023;

3. Receipt of tax revenue totalling € 32.1 million, under Decree-Law 87-A/2022, which established
an exceptional regime for updating toll tariffs and fees, as well as the allocation of support to be
given to concessionaires in addition to the payment of toll tariffs and fees by users. Due to delays
in the transfer of funds to IP, which acts as an intermediary between the state and the
concessionaires, the delivery of support for the 15, 2" and 3™ quarters of 2023 occurred beyond
the deadlines established by law, and was fully completed on 31 December 2023;

4. Decrease in the value of own revenues, especially sales and services rendered (-€ 20.3 million),
since the railway operators kept outstanding invoices issued throughout 2023;

5. Decrease in the value of tax revenue, particularly Compensatory Allowances (-€ 33.8 million).

N =

.;'-‘_:i."-' IT \ RF

6. increase in the amount of EU funds received (+€ 98.8 million), due to the greater implementation
of rail investments, namely Ferrovia 2020, whose PT2020 programme ended on 31/12/2023, and
the receipt of € 12.2 million from the CEF Digital programme to finance the investment project to
replace the submarine cables that connect the Autonomous Regions to each other and the
mainland (CAM Ring);

7. Decrease in the amount of tax revenue, particularly RSC (-€ 24.5 million).

JENUE

With regard to CURRENT EXPENDITURE, the amount implemented of € 640 million is above the level
seen in the same period of 2022, the main reasons for which are related to:

1. An increase in the implementation of road maintenance, justified by the interventions carried out
to deal with the damage caused by the storms in December 2022 and January 2023, as well as
the increase in the costs of materials and labour:;

2. Increased expenditure in facilities expenses, in particular those related to energy (the
decommissioning authorised in the 15t quarter, amounting to € 53 million, made it possible to settle
invoices received in 2023 relating to the previous year); and

3. Therise in interest rates on loans indexed to floating interest rates (3-month Euribor).

Regarding CAPITAL EXPENDITURE, the amount implemented of € 2,113.5 million is above that seen
in the same period of 2022, the main reasons for which are:

1. Increase in the implementation of road investments related to the RRP, which are 100%
financed by RRP funds;

2. Increase in the implementation of railway investments, particularly in the last quarter of 2023,
where the payment of invoices before their due date using the capital appropriations was decisive
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so that this expenditure could be fully presented for reimbursement by the end of 2023, the date
of completion of the Portugal 2020 programme.
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NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY STATEMENTS

1. Revenue budget changes

This statement shows the budgetary changes that occurred during the reporting period; the breakdown of
revenue items is similar to that of the budget, integrating the effect of the changes occurred in the meantime.

Lo Jele]e e e W] e

Current Revenue
R1 Tax revenue 0 000 0 000 0.000 0000 0000
R1.1  Direct taxation 0-000 (000 0000 0000 0000
R1.2  Indrect taxes 0000 {000 0000 0.000 0 000
R2 Conirbutions to Social secunty, CGA and ADBE 0000 0000 0000 0000 0 000
R3 Fees, fines and other penai P 355154 60179 5206 0000 410127
R4  Property income 6 527 0 000 0000 0000 6 527
R5 Current Transfers and Subsidies P 153 842 32233 112 178 32 049 105 946
R5.1  Cument Transfers P 153 842 32233 112178 32 049 105 846
R5.1.1 zenzral go t P 150 862 30 868 110387 32049 103 391
RA.1.11 Cenfral Govemment - State P 150 862 30 868 110387 32049 103 33
R5.1.1.2 Ceniral Govemment - other entities 0000 0000 0000 0 000 0 000
R5.1.1.3 Social security 0000 {1 000 0000 0000 0 000
R51.14 Regional Administration 0 000 0 000 0000 0000 0000
R5115 Local Goverment 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0 000
R5.1.2 External - EU P 2980 1366 173 0000 2 555
R5.1.3 Other 0000 (000 0000 0000 0000
R5.2 Curmrent Subsidies 0000 (1000 0000 0000 0 000
RE Sale of s and services P 164 832 122711 32583 0000 254 561
R7 Cither current revenue P 1510 0000 0.000 0000 1510
Capital Revenue
RE Sale of investment goods 0 689 0000 0000 0000 0 689
R9 Capital fransfers and subsidies P 1105563 85 185 172798 0000 1047 950
R3.1 Capital transfers P 1105563 85183 172 798 0000 1017 950
R9.1.1 General Govemment P 634 465 0 000 38757 0000 594 708
R9.1.1.1 Central Govemment - State P 634 465 0000 39757 0.000 594 708
R9.1.1.2 Central Govemment - other entities 0000 (1.000 0000 0000 0000
R9.1.13 Social secunty 0000 {000 0000 0.000 0000
R9.1.1.4 Regional Administration 0-000 (000 0000 0000 0000
R9.1.15 Local Govemment 0 000 {1 000 0000 0000 0 000
R9.1.2 Extemal - EU P 471098 85 185 133 040 0 000 423243
R9.1.3 Other 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0 000
R9.2  Capital subsidies 0 000 0000 0.000 0000 0000
R10 Other capital revenus 0000 {1000 0000 0000 0 000
R11  Recovery not deducted from payments 0000 0000 0.000 0000 0000
R1Z  Revenue from financial assets M 0-000 (1000 0000 161 248 161 248
R13  Revenue from financial iabiities P 1646070 63 851 40 935 0000 1 668 925
EBalance from previous year - budget operations M 0000 0 000 0000 58 910 58910

Total 3434186 364 160 364160 252207 3 686 393
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This statement shows the budgetary changes that occurred during the reporting period; the breakdown of
expenditure items is similar to that of the budget, integrating the effect of the changes occurred in the
meantime.

Current Expenditure

D1 Personnel Expenditure P 145 555 155 488 155 488 0000 145555
D11 Fixed and permanent remuneration P 104 393 111 284 110 728 0000 104 948
D12  Varable or contingent bonuses P 9489 10 835 10 471 0000 9853
D13  Social security P 31673 33 368 34 288 0000 30753
D2 Purchase of goods and services P 424 878 251 484 191 584 0000 484 779
D3 Interest and other charges P 85 264 12 445 12 445 0000 85 264
D4 Current transfers P 5226 0 565 0 565 0000 5226
D41 General Govemment P 2336 0000 0000 0000 2336
D411 Central Government - State 0000 0 000 0000 0 000 0000
D4.12 Central Governement - other entities P 2 336 0000 0000 0000 2336
D413 Social security 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D414 Regional Administration 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0000
D415 Local Govemment 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D4.2  Non-profit institutions P 0270 0 000 0008 0000 0 262
D43  Familes P 0075 0000 0000 0000 0075
D44  Other P 2545 0 565 0557 0000 2553
D5 Grants/Subsidies 0008 0000 6912 32049 25 145
D6 Other current expenditure P 91 447 26 564 27 564 0000 90 447
Capital Expenditure

D7 Capital expenditure P 2521993 232131 283 860 0 000 2470 265
D8 Capial transfers P 079 0100 0 360 0000 0534
D81  General Govemment 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D811 Central Government - State 0000 0 000 0000 0 000 0000
D812 Central Government - other entities 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D813 Social security 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0 000
D814 Regional Administration 0000 0 000 0000 0000 0000
D815 Local Government 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D8.2 Non-profit institutions 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D83 Families 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
D8 4 Other P 0794 0100 0360 0 000 0534
D9  Other capital expenditure 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000
010 Expenses on financial assels M 0000 0000 0000 200 200 200 200
D11 Expenses on financial liabilties 159 020 0 000 0000 0000 159 020

Total 3434186 678 777 678 777 232 249 3 666 435

{1) Headings - corresponds to the headings of the initial budget plus those which, as a result of the entries,

are now shown in the statement of budgetary changes

2) Type - field identifying the type of change, tick (P} in the case of a permutative change or (M)

in the case of a amendment

3) Opening estimates - corresponds to the credit of the "021 -Opening appropriations” account

(4} Increases - corresponds to the credit balance of account "02311— Reinforcements to corrected appropriations”

(5) Decreases/ cancellations - corresponds to the debit balance of account "02321— Cancellations in corrected appropriations”
{6) Special credits - corresponds to the credit balance of account "02331— Special credits to corrected appropriations”

(7) Corrected appropriations - corresponds to the debit balance of account "022 - Corrected appropriations”, and can also be
obtained by formula applied in the statement of budgetary changes

(8) Notes - this is intended to accommodate any clarifications the organisation may wish to make
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3. Treasury operations

071100000 Recsipts Intermediation of fund 44 074 685 4604 270 0 48 678 954

072100000 Payments Intermediation of fund 29 508 453 0 461793 29 970 246
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